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Chief Executive Officer’s and Chief Financial Officer’s 

Responsibility Statement

The financial statements of Hatton National 

Bank PLC (“the Bank”) and the consolidated 

financial statements of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries as at 31st December 2016 are 

prepared and presented in compliance with 

the requirements of the following:

• Sri Lanka Accounting Standards issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka),

• Companies Act No 7 of 2007,

• Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 

Standards Act No 15 of 1995,

• Banking Act No 30 of 1988 (as amended),

• Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 

Exchange,

• Banking Act Direction No 11 of 2007 

on Corporate Governance for Licensed 

Commercial Banks in Sri Lanka (as 

amended from time to time) and

• Code of Best Practice on Corporate 

Governance issued jointly by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA 

Sri Lanka) and the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Sri Lanka

The formats used in the preparation of the 

financial statements and disclosures made 

comply with the formats prescribed by the 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

The Accounting Policies used in the 

preparation of the financial statements are 

appropriate and are consistently applied by 

the Group. There are no departures from 

the prescribed Accounting Standards in their 

adoption. Comparative information has been 

reclassified wherever necessary to comply with 

the current presentation.

The significant accounting policies and 

estimates that involved a high degree of 

judgment and complexity were discussed with 

the Audit Committee and external auditors.

The Board of Directors and the management 

of the Bank accept responsibility for the 

integrity and objectivity of these financial 

statements. The estimates and judgments 

relating to the financial statements were 

made on a prudent and reasonable basis; in 

order that the financial statements reflect a 

true and fair view, the form and substance 

of transactions and the Bank’s state of affairs 

are reasonably presented. To ensure this, the 

Bank has taken proper and sufficient care 

in installing a system of internal control and 

accounting records, for safeguarding assets 

and for preventing and detecting frauds as 

well as other irregularities, which are reviewed, 

evaluated and updated on an on going basis. 

It is confirmed that the Bank has adequate 

resources to continue its operations in the 

foreseeable future. Therefore, the Bank will 

continue to adopt the ‘going concern’ basis in 

preparing these financial statements.

Our internal auditor has conducted periodic 

audits to provide reasonable assurance that 

the established policies and procedures of the 

Bank were consistently followed. However, 

there are inherent limitations that should 

be recognised in weighing the assurances 

provided by any system of internal controls 

and accounting. Further, your Board assessed 

the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls 

over financial reporting during the year ended 

31st December 2016, as required by the 

Banking Act Direction No 11 of 2007, result 

of which is given on pages 150 to 151 in the 

Annual Report, the “Directors’ Statement on 

Internal Control”. External auditor’s Assurance 

Report on the “Directors’ Statement on 

Internal Control” is given on page 152 of the 

Annual Report.

The financial statements of the Group for 

the year 2016 were audited by Messrs 

Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, the 

independent external auditors. Their report is 

given on page 197 of the Annual Report. 

The Audit Committee of the Bank meets 

periodically with the internal audit team 

and the independent external auditor to 

review their audit plans, assess the manner 

in which these auditors are performing their 

responsibilities and to discuss their reports 

on internal controls and financial reporting 

issues. To ensure complete independence, 

the external auditor and the internal auditor 

have access to the members of the Audit 

Committee to discuss any matter of substance. 

Details of which are given in the ‘Audit 

Committee Report’ on pages 137 to 138.

The Audit Committee approves the audit and 

non audit services provided by external auditor, 

Messrs Ernst & Young, in order to ensure that 

the provision of such services does not impair 

Ernst & Young’s independence.

We confirm that,

• the Bank and its subsidiaries have complied 

with all applicable laws, regulations and 

prudential requirements;

• there are no material non compliances; and

• there are no material litigations that are 

pending against the Group other than 

those disclosed in the Note 59 (d) to the 

financial statements in this Annual Report.

Jonathan Alles

Managing Director / 

Chief Executive Officer

Anusha Gallage

AGM - Finance

Colombo, Sri Lanka

23rd February 2017
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The responsibility of the Directors in relation 

to the financial statements of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007 is 

set out in the following statement. 

The responsibilities of the external auditor in 

relation to the financial statements are set out in 

the report of the auditors given on page 197 of 

the Annual Report.

As per the provisions of sections 150 (1), 151, 

152 and 153 (1) & (2) of the Companies Act No 

7 of 2007, the Directors are required to prepare 

financial statements for each financial year and 

place them before a General Meeting. The 

financial statements comprise the Statement of 

Financial Position as at 31st December 2016, 

and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement 

of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes 

thereto.

The financial statements of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries give a true and fair view of:

1. the state of affairs of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries as at 31st December 2016; and 

2. the profit or loss of the Bank and its 

subsidiaries for the financial year then ended. 

In preparing these financial statements, the 

Directors are required to ensure that: 

1. appropriate accounting policies have been 

selected and applied in a consistent manner 

and material departures, if any, have been 

disclosed and explained;

2. judgments and estimates have been made 

which are reasonable and prudent; and

3. all applicable accounting standards, as 

relevant, have been complied with;

The Directors are also required to ensure that 

the Bank and its subsidiaries have adequate 

resources to continue in operation to justify 

applying the going concern basis in preparing 

these financial statements. 

Further, the Directors have a responsibility to 

ensure that the Companies within the Group 

maintain sufficient accounting records to 

disclose, with reasonable accuracy the financial 

position of the Bank and its subsidiaries. 

Financial statements prepared and presented in 

this report have been prepared based on new 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS) which 

came to effect from January 01, 2012 and are 

consistent with the underlying books of accounts 

and are in conformity with the requirements 

of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, Companies 

Act No 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting and 

Auditing Standard Act No 15 of 1995, Banking 

Act No 30 of 1988 and amendments thereto, 

Banking Act Direction No 11 of 2007 on 

Corporate Governance for Licensed Commercial 

Banks in Sri Lanka (as amended from time to 

time), the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 

Exchange and the Code of Best Practice on 

Corporate Governance issued jointly by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

(CA Sri Lanka) and the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC). 

In addition, these financial statements comply 

with the prescribed format issued by the Central 

Bank of Sri Lanka for the preparation of annual 

financial statements of Licensed Commercial 

Banks. 

The Directors have also instituted effective 

and comprehensive systems of internal control 

for identifying, recording, evaluating and 

managing the significant risks faced by the Bank 

throughout the year and it is being under regular 

review of the Board of Directors. This comprises 

internal reviews, internal audit and the whole 

system of financial and other controls required 

to carry on the business of banking in an orderly 

manner, safeguard its assets, prevent and detect 

frauds and other irregularities and secure as far 

as practicable the accuracy and reliability of the 

records. The results of such reviews carried out 

during the year ended 31st December 2016 are 

given on pages 150 to 151 of the Annual Report, 

“Directors’ Statement on Internal Control”. 

External Auditor’s Assurance Report on the 

“Directors’ Statement on Internal Control” is 

given on page 152 of the Annual Report.

The Directors have taken appropriate steps to 

ensure that the Bank and Group maintain proper 

books of accounts and review the financial 

reporting system directly by them at their regular 

meetings and also through the Board Audit 

Committee, the report of the said Committee 

is given on pages 137 to 138. The Board of 

Directors also approves the interim financial 

statements prior to their release following a 

review and recommendation by the Board Audit 

Committee. 

The Board of Directors accepts responsibility 

for the integrity and objectivity of the financial 

statements presented in this Annual Report. 

Directors are required to prepare the financial 

statements and provide the Bank’s external 

auditor, Messrs Ernst & Young, with every 

opportunity to carry out whatever reviews and 

checks on the system of internal control they 

may consider appropriate and necessary for 

expressing their independent audit opinion on 

the financial statements.

The financial statements of the Bank and the 

Group have been certified by the AGM - Finance 

of the Bank, the officer responsible for their 

preparation, as required by Sections 150 (1) 

(b) and 152 (1) (b) of the Companies Act. Also 

the financial statements of the Bank and the 

Group have been signed by two Directors and 

the Company Secretary of the Bank on February 

23rd, 2017 as required by Sections 150 (1) (c) 

and 152 (1) (c) of the Companies Act. 

Further, as required by Section 56 (2) of the 

Companies Act No 7 of 2007, the Directors 

have confirmed that the Bank, based on the 

information available, satisfies the solvency test 

immediately after the distribution of dividends, 

in accordance with Section 57 of the Companies 

Act No 7 of 2007, and has obtained a certificate 

from the auditors, prior to declaring a final 

dividend of Rs 7/- per share for this year to be 

paid in April 2017. 

The Directors to the best of their knowledge and 

belief, are satisfied that all statutory payments in 

relation to all relevant regulatory and statutory 

authorities which were due and payable by the 

Bank and its subsidiaries as at the Statement of 

Financial Position date have been paid or where 

relevant provided for.

The Directors are of the view that they have 

discharged their responsibilities as set out in this 

statement.

By order of the Board

K A L Thushari Ranaweera (Mrs)

Deputy General Manager (Legal) / Company 

Secretary

Colombo, Sri Lanka

23rd February 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial 

statements of Hatton National Bank PLC, 

(the “Bank”), and the consolidated financial 

statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the 

“Group”), which comprise the statement of 

financial position as at 31 December 2016, and 

the statement of profit or loss, statement of 

comprehensive income, statement of changes 

in equity and, statement of cash flows for the 

year then ended, and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

Board’s Responsibility for the 

Financial Statements

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is 

responsible for the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 

and for such internal control as Board determines 

is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these financial statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those 

standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to 

obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 

judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 

making those risk assessments, the auditors 

consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s 

preparation of the financial statements that 

give a true and fair view in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates made by Board, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial 

statements give a true and fair view of the 

financial position of the Group as at 31 

December 2016, and of its financial performance 

and cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 163(2) of the Companies 

Act No. 7 of 2007, we state the following: 

a) The basis of opinion, scope and limitations 

of the audit are as stated above. 

b) In our opinion :

- we have obtained all the information 

and explanations that were required for 

the audit and, as far as appears from our 

examination, proper accounting records 

have been kept by the Bank,

- the financial statements of the Bank 

give a true and fair view of the financial 

position as at 31 December 2016, and of 

its financial performance and cash flows 

for the year then ended in accordance 

with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and

- the financial statements of the Bank and 

the Group, comply with the requirements 

of sections 151 and 153 of the 

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

23rd February 2017

Colombo   
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Statement of Profit or Loss

 Bank Group 

For the year ended 31st December  2016 2015 2016 2015

 Note Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Gross income 7  84,350,823  61,153,466  95,990,771  70,026,698 

Interest income   75,608,193  52,615,463  81,533,502  56,893,956 

Less: Interest expenses   41,236,605  26,279,934  42,444,643  27,200,236 

Net interest income 8  34,371,588  26,335,529  39,088,859  29,693,720 

Fee and commission income   7,139,253  5,874,928  7,905,879  6,426,080 

Less: Fee and commission expenses   90,594  98,622  180,531  182,093 

Net fee and commission income 9  7,048,659  5,776,306 7,725,348  6,243,987 

Net interest, fee and commission income   41,420,247  32,111,835  46,814,207  35,937,707 

Net gain/(loss) from trading 10  (1,795,691)  196,993  (1,824,452)  212,364 

Net gain from financial investments 11  111,713  253,858  103,165  297,978 

Net insurance premium income 12  -  -   5,490,712  4,679,897 

Other operating income 13  3,287,355  2,212,224  2,781,965  1,516,423 

Total operating income   43,023,624  34,774,910  53,365,597  42,644,369 

Less: Impairment charge for loans and other losses 14  237,160  931,925  508,159  1,022,111 

Net operating income   42,786,464  33,842,985  52,857,438  41,622,258 

Less : Operating expenses     

Personnel expenses 15  8,703,575  7,927,695  10,416,099  9,155,160 

Benefits, claims and underwriting expenditure 16  -  - 4,571,389  4,211,996 

Other expenses 17  9,584,304  8,050,939 10,785,144  9,093,136 

Total operating expenses   18,287,879  15,978,634 25,772,632  22,460,292 

Operating profit before Value Added Tax (VAT) and     

 Nation Building Tax (NBT) on financial services   24,498,585  17,864,351 27,084,806  19,161,966 

Less: Value Added Tax (VAT) and     

 Nation Building Tax (NBT) on financial services 18  4,352,756  2,814,334  4,734,949  3,061,783 

Operating profit after Value Added Tax (VAT)     

      and Nation Building Tax (NBT) on financial services   20,145,829  15,050,017  22,349,857  16,100,183 

Share of profit of joint venture (net of income tax) 19  -  - 148,790  60,085 

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX   20,145,829  15,050,017  22,498,647  16,160,268 

Less: Income tax expense 20  6,002,423  4,601,231  6,833,685  5,064,424 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   14,143,406  10,448,786 15,664,962  11,095,844 

Profit attributable to:     

      Equity holders of the Bank   14,143,406  10,448,786 14,755,634  10,553,568 

      Non-controlling interests   -  - 909,328  542,276 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   14,143,406  10,448,786  15,664,962  11,095,844 

Earnings per share 21    

Basic earnings per ordinary share (Rs)   34.25  25.41 35.73 25.67

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (Rs)   34.17  25.31 35.65 25.56

Dividend per share     

Dividend per share: Gross (Rs)  *8.50 8.50 *8.50 8.50

The notes to the financial statements from pages 206 to 327 form an integral part of these financial statements.

*Calculated on interim dividend paid and final dividend proposed, which is to be approved at the Annual General Meeting.   
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 Bank Group 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

  Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  14,143,406 10,448,786  15,664,962 11,095,844

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX    

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or    

 loss in subsequent periods    

Available-for-sale financial assets:    

 Net change in fair value during the year   (3,158,637)  (2,450,679) (3,312,113)  (2,538,159)

 Transfer to life policy holder reserve fund   -  - 134,781  97,098 

 Net amount transferred to profit or loss    

  (available-for-sale financial assets)   -  - 14,466  (19,242)

Deferred tax effect on above   404,328  150,890 406,153  152,176 

Share of other comprehensive income of    

 equity accounted joint venture   -  - (21,154)  17,041 

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or    

 loss in subsequent periods   (2,754,309)  (2,299,789) (2,777,867)  (2,291,086)

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or    

 loss in subsequent periods    

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans   361,720  (897,969) 377,525  (909,543)

Revaluation of freehold land and buildings   2,273,397  2,095,076 5,748,917  5,597,137 

Deferred tax effect on above  (54,489)  (104,040) (157,789)  (104,040)

Deferred tax effect on realisation of revaluation surplus 1,214 - 1,214 -

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or    

 loss in subsequent periods  2,581,842  1,093,067  5,969,867  4,583,554 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX  (172,467)  (1,206,722)  3,192,000  2,292,468 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  13,970,939  9,242,064  18,856,962  13,388,312 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:    

      Equity holders of the Bank  13,970,939  9,242,064 17,865,820  12,855,605 

      Non-controlling interests  -  - 991,142  532,707

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  13,970,939  9,242,064 18,856,962  13,388,312 

The notes to the financial statements from pages 206 to 327 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
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Statement of Financial Position

 Bank Group 
As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015
 Note Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

ASSETS     
Cash and cash equivalents 24  17,511,446  14,909,598 18,668,703  15,419,654 
Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka 25  33,777,614  20,096,090 33,777,614  20,096,090 
Placements with banks 26  753,050  26,827 2,198,446  1,174,326 
Reverse repurchase agreements 27  4,303,460  4,869,219 5,756,794  7,782,374 
Derivative financial instruments 28  289,989  1,302,872 289,989  1,302,872 
Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 29  544,915  593,390 716,009  1,948,772 
Non-current assets held for sale 30  -  20,151  -  20,151 
Loans and receivables to customers 31  584,412,727  498,341,628 597,467,460  507,244,329 
Financial investments - loans and receivables 32  99,260,698  84,206,702 102,063,229  87,087,205 
Financial investments - available-for-sale 33  89,915,153  78,046,505 95,797,142  79,718,231 
Financial investments - held to maturity 34  -  - 465,081  1,257,433 
Investment in joint venture 35  755,000  655,000 1,450,806  1,253,370 
Investment in subsidiaries 36  3,017,285  3,017,285 -  -   
Investment properties 37  403,959  386,643 1,054,300  1,041,797 
Property, plant and equipment 38  13,945,002  11,473,569 29,844,234  23,908,688 
Intangible assets and goodwill 39  789,648  659,309 1,180,269  1,001,230 
Other assets 40  9,193,879  6,602,922 10,720,506  7,328,053 
Total assets   858,873,825  725,207,710  901,450,582  757,584,575 

LIABILITIES     
Due to banks 41  69,928,789  58,232,034 69,964,380  58,283,838 
Derivative financial instruments 28  665,890  304,485 665,890  304,485 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 42  13,458,127  16,630,201 13,458,127  16,630,201 
Due to customers 43  623,494,969  527,126,181 635,371,097  536,132,789 
Dividends payable 44  1,007,075  764,771 1,015,463  764,771 
Other borrowings 45  27,130,358  26,833,109 27,130,358  26,833,109 
Debt securities issued 46  4,653,057  4,490,742 5,115,801  4,913,751 
Current tax liabilities 48  6,223,943  4,542,977 6,425,379  4,762,707 
Deferred tax liabilities 49  231,364  378,820 824,778  579,102 
Insurance provision - life 50  -  - 8,747,856  7,007,081 
Insurance provision - general 51  -  - 1,921,567  1,546,266 
Other provisions   3,158,444  2,538,111 3,407,050  2,746,294 
Other liabilities 52  5,751,107  6,250,856 7,190,028  7,250,893 
Subordinated term debts 47  26,153,476  12,064,370 25,901,110  12,085,598 
Total liabilities   781,856,599  660,156,657  807,138,884  679,840,885 

EQUITY     
Stated capital 54  15,340,158  13,826,873 15,340,158  13,826,873 
Statutory reserve 55  4,560,000  3,760,000 4,560,000  3,760,000 
Other reserves 57  47,592,832  42,193,332 58,569,401  50,027,681
Retained earnings 56  9,524,236  5,270,848 12,821,116  7,949,848 
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank   77,017,226  65,051,053  91,290,675  75,564,402 
Non-controlling interests 58  -  - 3,021,023  2,179,288 
Total equity   77,017,226  65,051,053   94,311,698  77,743,690 
Total liabilities and equity   858,873,825  725,207,710 901,450,582  757,584,575 

Contingent liabilities and commitments 59  502,372,909  343,386,012 502,372,909  343,386,012 
Net assets value per share (Rs) 63 186.11  160.29 220.60  186.20

The notes to the financial statements from pages 206 to 327 form an integral part of these financial statements.

I certify that these financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act No 7 of 2007.

Anusha Gallage     

Assistant General Manager - Finance

For and on behalf of the Board

Jonathan Alles Rienzie Arseculeratne K A L Thushari Ranaweera (Mrs)
Managing Director / Chairman Deputy General Manager (Legal) /

Chief Executive Officer  Company Secretary  

23rd February 2017     
Colombo     
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Statement of Changes in Equity

B
a

n
k

S
ta

te
d

 C
a

p
it

a
l

O
th

e
r 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

V
o

ti
n

g
 

 N
o

n
-V

o
ti

n
g

  
S

ta
tu

to
ry

C
a

p
it

a
l 

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
-f

o
r-

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 

E
S

O
P

R
e

ta
in

e
d

To
ta

l

 S
h

a
re

s 
 S

h
a

re
s 

R
e

se
rv

e
R

e
se

rv
e

 
S

a
le

 R
e

se
rv

e
 R

e
se

rv
e

 
R

e
se

rv
e

E
a

rn
in

g
s

R
s 

0
0

0
R

s 
0

0
0

R
s 

0
0

0
R

s 
0

0
0

R
s 

0
0

0
R

s 
0

0
0

R
s 

0
0

0
R

s 
0

0
0

R
s 

0
0

0

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

st
 J

an
u
ar

y 
2
0
1
5

 1
0

,6
4

0
,3

9
1

 
 2

,6
4

9
,6

0
1

 
 3

,1
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 4

,4
6

6
,9

1
8

 
 6

,7
5

5
,3

5
5

 
 2

5
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 3
1

8
,3

3
9

 
 7

,8
0

8
,0

5
9

 
 6

0
,8

9
8

,6
6

3
 

Su
p

er
 g

ai
n

s 
ta

x 
p

ai
d

 [
N

o
te

 5
6

 (
a)

]
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 (
2

,0
7

4
,2

4
8

)
 (

2
,0

7
4

,2
4

8
)

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

st
 J

an
u
ar

y 
2
0
1
5
 -

 A
d
ju

st
ed

1
0

,6
4

0
,3

9
1

 2
,6

4
9

,6
0

1
 3

,1
6

0
,0

0
0

 4
,4

6
6

,9
1

8
 6

,7
5

5
,3

5
5

 2
5

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

 3
1

8
,3

3
9

5
,7

3
3

,8
1

1
5

8
,8

2
4

,4
1

5

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

N
et

 p
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
5

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 1

0
,4

4
8

,7
8

6
 

 1
0

,4
4

8
,7

8
6

 

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e,

 n
et

 o
f 

ta
x

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 1

,9
9

1
,0

3
6

 
 (

2
,2

9
9

,7
8

9
)

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 (
8

9
7

,9
6

9
)

 (
1

,2
0

6
,7

2
2

)

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 1

,9
9

1
,0

3
6

 
 (

2
,2

9
9

,7
8

9
)

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 9
,5

5
0

,8
1

7
 

 9
,2

4
2

,0
6

4
 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 e

q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s,

 
re

co
g
n
is

ed
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

in
 e

q
u
it
y

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

to

 
eq

u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s

Fi
n

al
 d

iv
id

en
d

 2
0

1
4

 -
 C

as
h

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 (

2
,8

2
7

,7
7

6
)

 (
2

,8
2

7
,7

7
6

)

In
te

ri
m

 d
iv

id
en

d
 2

0
1

5
 -

 C
as

h
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 (
6

0
8

,5
4

8
)

 (
6

0
8

,5
4

8
)

Is
su

e 
o

f 
sh

ar
es

 u
n

d
er

 E
SO

P
 3

6
8

,7
8

5
 

 5
2

,1
1

3
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 4
2

0
,8

9
8

 

To
ta

l c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

 
to

 e
q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s

 3
6

8
,7

8
5

 
 5

2
,1

1
3

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 (
3

,4
3

6
,3

2
4

)
 (

3
,0

1
5

,4
2

6
)

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
5

 1
0

1
,5

1
3

 
 1

4
,4

7
0

 
 6

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 (
2

2
,5

4
4

)
 -

  
 

 6
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 (
1

1
5

,9
8

3
)

 (
6

,5
7

7
,4

5
6

)
 -

  
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1
st

 D
ec

em
b
er

 2
0
1
5

 1
1

,1
1

0
,6

8
9

 
 2

,7
1

6
,1

8
4

 
 3

,7
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 6

,4
3

5
,4

1
0

 
 4

,4
5

5
,5

6
6

 
 3

1
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 2
0

2
,3

5
6

 
 5

,2
7

0
,8

4
8

 
 6

5
,0

5
1

,0
5

3
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

st
 J

an
u
ar

y 
2
0
1
6

 1
1

,1
1

0
,6

8
9

 
 2

,7
1

6
,1

8
4

 
 3

,7
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 6

,4
3

5
,4

1
0

 
 4

,4
5

5
,5

6
6

 
 3

1
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 2
0

2
,3

5
6

 
 5

,2
7

0
,8

4
8

 
 6

5
,0

5
1

,0
5

3
 

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

N
et

 p
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
 1

4
,1

4
3

,4
0

6
 

 1
4

,1
4

3
,4

0
6

 

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e,

 n
et

 o
f 

ta
x

-
-

-
 2

,2
1

8
,9

0
8

 
 (

2
,7

5
4

,3
0

9
)

-
-

 3
6

2
,9

3
4

 
 (

1
7

2
,4

6
7

)

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
2

,2
1

8
,9

0
8

 (
2

,7
5

4
,3

0
9

)
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 1

4
,5

0
6

,3
4

0
 

 1
3

,9
7

0
,9

3
9

 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 e

q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s,

 
re

co
g
n
is

ed
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

in
 e

q
u
it
y

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

to

 
eq

u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s

Fi
n

al
 d

iv
id

en
d

 2
0

1
5

 -
 C

as
h

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (
1

,4
2

1
,2

0
0

)
 (

1
,4

2
1

,2
0

0
)

Fi
n

al
 d

iv
id

en
d

 2
0

1
5

 -
 S

cr
ip

 1
,0

2
2

,4
7

3
 

 2
5

6
,6

0
7

 
-

-
-

-
-

 (
1

,4
2

1
,2

0
0

)
 (

1
4

2
,1

2
0

)

In
te

ri
m

 d
iv

id
en

d
 2

0
1

6
 -

 C
as

h
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

 (
6

2
0

,3
8

7
)

 (
6

2
0

,3
8

7
)

Is
su

e 
o

f 
sh

ar
es

 u
n

d
er

 E
SO

P
 1

5
7

,1
2

8
 

 2
1

,8
1

3
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

 1
7

8
,9

4
1

 

To
ta

l c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

 
to

 e
q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s

 1
,1

7
9

,6
0

1
 

 2
7

8
,4

2
0

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 (
3

,4
6

2
,7

8
7

)
 (

2
,0

0
4

,7
6

6
)

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
6

 4
8

,4
4

4
 

 6
,8

2
0

 
8

0
0

,0
0

0
(9

,8
3

5
)

-
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 (
5

5
,2

6
4

)
(6

,7
9

0
,1

6
5

)
 -

  
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1
st

 D
ec

em
b
er

 2
0
1
6

 1
2

,3
3

8
,7

3
4

 
 3

,0
0

1
,4

2
4

 
 4

,5
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 8

,6
4

4
,4

8
3

 
 1

,7
0

1
,2

5
7

 
 3

7
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 1
4

7
,0

9
2

 
 9

,5
2

4
,2

3
6

 
 7

7
,0

1
7

,2
2

6

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



202
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

Statement of Changes in Equity

G
ro

u
p

A
tt

ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o

 E
q

u
it

y
 H

o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 B
a

n
k

S
ta

te
d

 C
a

p
it

a
l

O
th

e
r 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

V
o

ti
n

g
 

N
o

n
-V

o
ti

n
g

S
ta

tu
to

ry
C

a
p

it
a

l 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

-

fo
r-

 S
a

le

R
e

se
rv

e

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

 
Li

fe
 P

o
li

cy
E

S
O

P
R

e
ta

in
e

d
N

o
n

To
ta

l

 S
h

a
re

s 
 S

h
a

re
s

 
R

e
se

rv
e

 

R
e

se
rv

e
 

 R
e

se
rv

e
 

 
H

o
ld

e
r

 
R

e
se

rv
e

 
Fu

n
d

R
e

se
rv

e
E

a
rn

in
g

s
 C

o
n

tr
o

ll
in

g

 
In

te
re

st
s

R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
R

s 
0

0
0

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

R
s 

0
0

0
 R

s 
0

0
0

 
R

s 
0

0
0

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

st
 J

an
u
ar

y 
2
0
1
5

 1
0

,6
4

0
,3

9
1

 
 2

,6
4

9
,6

0
1

 
 3

,1
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 8

,7
9

2
,7

7
8

 
 6

,8
0

6
,1

9
1

 
 2

5
,1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 4
0

,7
4

8
 

 3
1

8
,3

3
9

 
 1

0
,3

9
6

,5
1

7
 

 1
,7

3
4

,1
3

2
 

 6
9

,6
3

8
,6

9
7

 

Su
p

er
 g

ai
n

s 
ta

x 
p

ai
d

 [
N

o
te

 5
6

 (
a)

]
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 (

2
,0

9
3

,0
7

4
)

 (
1

2
,5

5
1

)
 (

2
,1

0
5

,6
2

5
)

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

st
 J

an
u
ar

y 
2
0
1
5
 -

 A
d
ju

st
ed

 1
0

,6
4

0
,3

9
1

 2
,6

4
9

,6
0

1
 3

,1
6

0
,0

0
0

 8
,7

9
2

,7
7

8
 6

,8
0

6
,1

9
1

 2
5

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

 4
0

,7
4

8
 3

1
8

,3
3

9
8

,3
0

3
,4

4
3

1
,7

2
1

,5
8

1
6

7
,5

3
3

,0
7

2

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 

N
et

 p
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
5

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 1
0

,5
5

3
,5

6
8

 
 5

4
2

,2
7

6
 

 1
1

,0
9

5
,8

4
4

 

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e,

 n
et

 o
f 

ta
x 

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 5
,4

9
3

,0
0

0
 

 (
2

,2
8

7
,7

5
0

)
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 (

9
0

3
,2

1
3

)
 (

9
,5

6
9

)
 2

,2
9

2
,4

6
8

 

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
 -

  
 -

  
 -

  
 5

,4
9

3
,0

0
0

 
 (

2
,2

8
7

,7
5

0
)

 -
  

 -
  

 -
  

 9
,6

5
0

,3
5

5
 

 5
3

2
,7

0
7

 
 1

3
,3

8
8

,3
1

2
 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 e

q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s,

 

  
  
 r

ec
o
g
n
is

ed
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

in
 e

q
u
it
y 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

to
 

 
eq

u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s 

Fi
n

al
 d

iv
id

en
d

 2
0

1
4

 -
 C

as
h

 
 -

  
 -

  
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

2
,8

2
7

,7
7

6
)

 (
7

5
,0

0
0

)
 (

2
,9

0
2

,7
7

6
)

In
te

ri
m

 d
iv

id
en

d
 2

0
1

5
 -

 C
as

h
 

 -
 -

  
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

6
0

8
,5

4
8

)
-

 (
6

0
8

,5
4

8
)

Is
su

e 
o

f 
sh

ar
es

 u
n

d
er

 E
SO

P 
 3

6
8

,7
8

5
 

 5
2

,1
1

3
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

 4
2

0
,8

9
8

 

To
ta

l c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

 

 
to

 e
q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s 

 3
6

8
,7

8
5

 
 5

2
,1

1
3

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

3
,4

3
6

,3
2

4
)

 (
7

5
,0

0
0

)
 (

3
,0

9
0

,4
2

6
)

Tr
an

sf
er

 t
o

 li
fe

 p
o

lic
y 

h
o

ld
er

 r
es

er
ve

 f
u

n
d

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

9
7

,0
9

8
)

-
-

-
 (

9
7

,0
9

8
)

D
ee

m
ed

 d
is

p
o

sa
l g

ai
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 jo
in

t 
ve

n
tu

re
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

 9
,8

3
0

 
-

 9
,8

3
0

 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
5

 1
0

1
,5

1
3

 
 1

4
,4

7
0

 
 6

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 (
2

2
,5

4
4

)
-

 6
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

-
 (

1
1

5
,9

8
3

)
 (

6
,5

7
7

,4
5

6
)

-
-

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1
st

 D
ec

em
b
er

 2
0
1
5

 1
1

,1
1

0
,6

8
9

 
 2

,7
1

6
,1

8
4

 
 3

,7
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 1

4
,2

6
3

,2
3

4
 

 4
,5

1
8

,4
4

1
 

 3
1

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

 
 (

5
6

,3
5

0
)

 2
0

2
,3

5
6

 
 7

,9
4

9
,8

4
8

 
 2

,1
7

9
,2

8
8

 
 7

7
,7

4
3

,6
9

0
 



203
Hatton National Bank PLC

Annual Report 2016

G
ro

u
p

A
tt

ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o

 E
q

u
it

y
 H

o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 B
a

n
k

S
ta

te
d

 C
a

p
it

a
l

O
th

e
r 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

V
o

ti
n

g
 

N
o

n
-V

o
ti

n
g

S
ta

tu
to

ry
C

a
p

it
a

l 
A

v
a

il
a

b
le

-

fo
r-

 S
a

le

R
e

se
rv

e

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

 
Li

fe
 P

o
li

cy
E

S
O

P
R

e
ta

in
e

d
N

o
n

To
ta

l

 S
h

a
re

s 
 S

h
a

re
s

 
R

e
se

rv
e

 

R
e

se
rv

e
 

 R
e

se
rv

e
 

 
H

o
ld

e
r

 
R

e
se

rv
e

 
Fu

n
d

R
e

se
rv

e
E

a
rn

in
g

s
 C

o
n

tr
o

ll
in

g

 
In

te
re

st
s

R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
R

s 
0

0
0

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

R
s 

0
0

0
 R

s 
0

0
0

 
R

s 
0

0
0

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

 R
s 

0
0

0
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

st
 J

an
u
ar

y 
2
0
1
6

 1
1

,1
1

0
,6

8
9

 
 2

,7
1

6
,1

8
4

 
 3

,7
6

0
,0

0
0

 
 1

4
,2

6
3

,2
3

4
 

 4
,5

1
8

,4
4

1
 

 3
1

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

 
 (

5
6

,3
5

0
)

 2
0

2
,3

5
6

 
 7

,9
4

9
,8

4
8

 
 2

,1
7

9
,2

8
8

 
 7

7
,7

4
3

,6
9

0
 

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 

N
et

 p
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

 1
4

,7
5

5
,6

3
4

 
 9

0
9

,3
2

8
 

 1
5

,6
6

4
,9

6
2

 

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e,

 n
et

 o
f 

ta
x 

-
-

-
 5

,5
1

8
,5

0
6

 
 (

2
,7

7
6

,9
0

6
)

-
-

-
 3

6
8

,5
8

6
 

 8
1

,8
1

4
 

 3
,1

9
2

,0
0

0
 

To
ta

l c
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
-

-
-

 5
,5

1
8

,5
0

6
 

 (
2

,7
7

6
,9

0
6

)
-

-
-

 1
5

,1
2

4
,2

2
0

 
 9

9
1

,1
4

2
 

 1
8

,8
5

6
,9

6
2

 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 e

q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s,

 

  
  
 r

ec
o
g
n
is

ed
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

in
 e

q
u
it
y 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

to
 

 
eq

u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s 

-

Fi
n

al
 d

iv
id

en
d

 2
0

1
5

 -
 C

as
h

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

1
,4

2
1

,2
0

0
)

 (
1

4
9

,4
0

7
)

 (
1

,5
7

0
,6

0
7

)

Fi
n

al
 d

iv
id

en
d

 2
0

1
5

 -
Sc

ri
p

 
 1

,0
2

2
,4

7
3

 
 2

5
6

,6
0

7
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

 (
1

,4
2

1
,2

0
0

)
-

 (
1

4
2

,1
2

0
)

In
te

ri
m

 d
iv

id
en

d
 2

0
1

6
 -

 C
as

h
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

 (
6

2
0

,3
8

7
)

-
 (

6
2

0
,3

8
7

)

Is
su

e 
o

f 
sh

ar
es

 u
n

d
er

 E
SO

P 
 1

5
7

,1
2

8
 

 2
1

,8
1

3
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

 1
7

8
,9

4
1

 

To
ta

l c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

b
y 

an
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s 

 

 
to

 e
q
u
it
y 

h
o
ld

er
s 

 1
,1

7
9

,6
0

1
 

 2
7

8
,4

2
0

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

3
,4

6
2

,7
8

7
)

 (
1

4
9

,4
0

7
)

 (
2

,1
5

4
,1

7
3

)

Tr
an

sf
er

 t
o

 li
fe

 p
o

lic
y 

h
o

ld
er

 r
es

er
ve

 f
u

n
d

 
-

-
-

-
-

-
 (

1
3

4
,7

8
1

)
-

-
-

 (
1

3
4

,7
8

1
)

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

 2
0

1
6

 4
8

,4
4

4
 

 6
,8

2
0

 
8
0
0
,0

0
0

(9
,8

3
5
)

-
6
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

-
 (

5
5

,2
6

4
)

(6
,7

9
0
,1

6
5
)

-
-

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1
st

 D
ec

em
b
er

 2
0
1
6

 1
2
,3

3
8
,7

3
4
 

 3
,0

0
1
,4

2
4
 

 4
,5

6
0
,0

0
0
 

 1
9
,7

7
1
,9

0
5
 

 1
,7

4
1
,5

3
5
 

 3
7
,1

0
0
,0

0
0
 

 (
1
9
1
,1

3
1
)

 1
4
7
,0

9
2
 

 1
2
,8

2
1
,1

1
6
 

 3
,0

2
1
,0

2
3
 

 9
4
,3

1
1
,6

9
8
 

Th
e 

n
o

te
s 

to
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 p
ag

e 
 2

0
6

 t
o

 3
2

7
 f

o
rm

 a
n

 in
te

g
ra

l p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

es
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



204
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policy    

The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the direct method of preparing cash flows in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - LKAS 7 on “Statement of Cash Flows” whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, financing activities 

and investing activities have been recognised. Cash and cash equivalents comprise short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 

to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.    

The cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks, placements with banks, money at call and short notice.

 Bank Group 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015
  Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cash flows from operating activities    

Interest and commission receipts  77,766,617  57,870,224  84,142,896  62,541,611 

Interest payments  (36,874,859)  (26,162,039)  (37,989,919)  (26,960,267)

Cash payments to employees  (8,610,079)  (7,787,955)  (10,255,904)  (9,016,129)

Cash payments to other operating activities  (12,385,159)  (9,658,598)  (16,156,447)  (13,221,249)

Receipts from other operating activities  3,152,693  2,486,728  9,035,322  7,422,487 

Recovery of loans written off in prior years  34,014  19,989  52,881  33,267 

Operating profit before changes in    

 operating assets and liabilities [Note (a)]  23,083,227  16,768,349  28,828,829  20,799,720 

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets    

Deposits held for regulatory or monetary control purpose  (13,681,524)  (3,188,552)  (13,681,524)  (3,188,552)

Loans and receivables to customers  (85,148,644)  (102,633,950)  (89,595,887)  (106,052,373)

Reverse repurchase agreements  567,579  11,922,595  2,043,130  11,731,355 

Other short term assets  (343,355)  (1,385,665)  (1,090,556)  (1,356,430)

  (98,605,944)  (95,285,572)  (102,324,837)  (98,866,000)

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities    

Deposits from customers  91,722,310  106,591,985  94,514,994  109,212,989 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements  (3,446,549)  (342,332)  (3,446,549)  (342,332)

Other liabilities  (621,447)  686,371  (434,220)  696,755 

  87,654,314  106,936,024  90,634,225  109,567,412 

Net cash generated from operating activities    

 before income tax  12,131,597  28,418,801  17,138,217  31,501,132 

Income taxes paid  (3,447,705)  (2,142,303)  (3,949,092)  (2,340,344)

Super gains tax paid  -  (2,074,248)  -  (2,105,625)

Net cash generated from operating activities  8,683,892  24,202,250  13,189,125  27,055,163 

Cash flows from investing activities    

Dividend income  886,229  1,236,084  145,082  298,749 

Dividend income received from joint venture  -  -  30,200  30,130 

Net proceeds from sale, maturity and purchase of financial investments  (28,227,265)  (61,270,205)  (30,271,537)  (62,764,719)

Proceeds from deemed disposal of subsidiary company by joint venture -  - -  9,830 

Investment in joint venture company  (100,000)  -  (100,000)  -   

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets held for sale  23,734  31,000 23,734  31,000 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  12,151  23,522  11,577  23,593 

Purchase of intangible assets   (350,477)  (77,194)  (441,837)  (156,306)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (975,198)  (882,803)  (1,285,867)  (1,091,320)

Proceeds from sale of investment properties   -  -  3,650  -   

Improvements to investment properties   (22,787)  -  (21,516)  (4,221)

Net cash used in investing activities   (28,753,613)  (60,939,596)  (31,906,514)  (63,623,264)

Cash flows from financing activities    

Dividends paid   (1,799,283)  (3,258,631)  (1,948,690)  (3,333,631)

Debenture issue expenses  (35,233)  -  (35,233)  -   

Increase in subordinated term debts  13,000,000  -  12,750,000  -   

Increase in long term borrowings  12,053,368  37,580,671  12,045,541  37,556,509 

Proceeds from issue of shares under ESOP  178,940  420,898  178,940  420,898 

Net cash generated from financing activities  23,397,792  34,742,938  22,990,558  34,643,776 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  3,328,071  (1,994,408)  4,273,169  (1,924,325)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  14,936,425  16,930,833  16,593,980  18,518,305 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [Note (b)]  18,264,496  14,936,425  20,867,149  16,593,980 
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 Bank Group 
For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015
  Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Note (a) - Reconciliation of operating profit before changes in    

      operating assets and liabilities    

Profit before income tax  20,145,829  15,050,017  22,498,647  16,160,268 

Amortisation of intangible assets  220,138  220,613  260,357  244,835 

Accrual for interest payable  7,035,640  1,633,362  7,017,836  1,721,691 

Accrual for interest receivable  (4,047,724)  (56,035)  (4,326,631)  (123,440)

Accrual for other payable  234,917  113,144  587,249  110,290 

Accrual for other receivable  (92,289)  53,776  (92,289)  61,900 

Depreciation of investment property  5,471  5,445  4,813  4,810 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  810,321  740,538  1,128,658  1,001,399 

Debenture issue expenses  35,233  -  35,233  -   

Dividend income  (888,352)  (1,236,834)  (145,007)  (299,499)

(Gain) / loss on  FCBU revaluation  25,080  (147,688)  25,080  (147,688)

Gain on disposal from sale of non-current assets held for sale  (3,556)  (763)  (3,556)  (763)

Loss on disposal of investment property - - 550 -

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (4,379)  (14,805)  (1,807)  (14,722)

Impairment charge for loans and other losses  237,160  931,925  508,159  1,022,111 

Increase in insurance contract liabilities - life  -  -  1,740,775  1,444,432 

Movement in general insurance reserve fund  -  -  375,301  267,127 

Net capital (gain) / loss from financial investments - available-for-sale -  -  14,466  (44,066)

Net capital (gain) / loss from financial investments     

 - fair value through profit or loss  (4,712)  (32,744)  12,719  (15,884)

Net loss from marked to market valuation of     

 financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  44,604  8,825  63,732  4,064 

Notional tax credit and WHT credit  (670,154)  (500,427)  (726,666)  (537,060)

Share of profits of associate and joint venture -  -  (148,790)  (60,085)

  23,083,227  16,768,349  28,828,829  20,799,720  

    

 Bank Group 
As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Note (b) - Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)  17,511,446   14,909,598   18,668,703   15,419,654  

Placements with banks (Note 26) 753,050   26,827   2,198,446   1,174,326  

  18,264,496   14,936,425   20,867,149   16,593,980  

    

The notes to the financial statements from pages 206 to 327 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 REPORTING ENTITY   

1.1 Corporate Information

 Hatton National Bank PLC (the “Bank”) is a public quoted 

company incorporated on 5th March 1970 with limited 

liability and domiciled in Sri Lanka. It is a licensed commercial 

bank registered under the Banking Act No. 30 of 1988 and 

amendments thereto. The Bank was re-registered under the 

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The registered office of the 

Bank is situated at No 479, T B Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10. 

The shares of the Bank have a primary listing on the Colombo 

Stock Exchange. The staff strength of the Bank as at 31st 

December 2016 was 4,190 (2015 - 4,285).

1.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

 The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year 

ended 31st December 2016 include the Bank and its subsidiaries 

(together referred to as the “Group” and individually as 

“Group entities”) and the Group’s interest in its joint venture. 

The financial statements of all companies in the Group have a 

common financial year which ends on December 31st except for 

HNB Grameen Finance Ltd, a subsidiary of the Bank and Lanka 

Ventures PLC, a subsidiary of Acuity Partners (Pvt) Limited, the 

joint venture, whose financial year ends on March 31st .

 Hatton National Bank PLC is the ultimate parent of the Group.

 There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal 

activities of the Group during the financial year under review. 

     

1.3 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

Entity Principal business activities

Bank Banking and related activities such as 

accepting deposits, corporate and retail 

banking, personal financial services, off 

shore banking, foreign currency operations, 

trade services, investment banking, 

development banking, rural finance, project 

finance, dealing in government securities, 

leasing, islamic banking etc.

Subsidiaries

HNB 

Assurance PLC

Life insurance

HNB General 

Insurance Ltd 

(Held 

through HNB 

Assurance 

PLC)

General insurance

Entity Principal business activities

Sithma 

Development 

(Pvt) Ltd

Construction and letting of premises for 

commercial purposes and related services

HNB Grameen 

Finance Ltd

Micro finance facilities and accepting 

deposits

Joint venture

Acuity Partners 

(Pvt) Ltd

Operating as an investment company and 

providing financial services 

      

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND OTHER 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1 Basis of Preparation   

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

 The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the 

separate financial statements of the Bank which comprise of 

the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, 

statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 

equity, statement of cash flows and notes thereto, have been 

prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

(commonly referred as “SLFRS” / “LKAS”) laid down by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) 

and comply with the requirements of Companies Act No 7 

of 2007, Banking Act No 30 of 1988, Insurance Industry Act 

No 43 of 2000 and Finance Business Act No 42 of 2011 and 

amendment thereto.

2.1.2 Responsibility for Financial Statements

 The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements of the Group and the 

Bank as per Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and the provisions 

of the Companies Act No 07 of 2007.

2.1.3 Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

 The financial statements of the Group and the Bank were 

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with 

the resolution of the directors on 23rd February 2017. 
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2.1.4 Basis of Measurement

 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 

cost basis and applied consistently except for the following items 

in the statement of financial position.

Item Basis of measurement

Derivative financial 

instruments

Fair value

Financial 

instruments 

classified as fair 

value through profit 

or loss

Fair value

Available-for-sale 

financial assets

Fair value

Freehold land and 

buildings

Measured at cost at the time of 

acquisition and subsequently at 

revalued amounts (except investment 

properties), which are the fair values 

at the date of revaluation

Non-current assets 

held for sale 

Measured at lower of its carrying 

amount and fair value less costs to sell

Defined benefit 

obligations

Liability for defined benefit obligations 

is recognised as the present value of 

the defined benefit obligation less the 

fair value of the plan assets.

2.1.5 Functional and Presentation Currency

 The financial statements of the Group are presented in 

Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), which is the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the Group operates (Group’s 

functional currency). Financial information presented in Sri 

Lankan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand 

unless indicated otherwise.

 Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency 

and items included in the financial statements of each individual 

entity are measured using that functional currency. There was 

no change in the Group’s presentation and functional currency 

during the year under review.

2.1.6 Presentation of Financial Statements

 The assets and liabilities of the Group presented in the 

statement of financial position are grouped by nature and listed 

in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity 

pattern. An analysis on recovery or settlement within 12 months 

after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months 

after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 61 to 

the financial statements.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 

amount is reported in the statement of financial position only 

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Income and expenses are not offset in the statement of profit 

or loss unless required or permitted by an accounting standard 

or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting 

policies of the Group.

 Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the 

financial statements. Items of dissimilar nature or function are 

presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted by 

the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 1 on “Presentation of 

Financial Statements”.

2.1.7 Changes in Accounting Policies

 There were no changes in accounting policies and the  

accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the 

previous financial year.

2.1.8 Comparative Information

 The comparative information is re-classified wherever necessary 

to conform with the current year’s classification in order 

to provide a better presentation. The details of such re-

classifications have been provided in Note 65 to the financial 

statements.

2.2 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates 

and Assumptions    

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affects the 

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, 

and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure 

of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 

affected in future periods.

 The most significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 

judgements in applying accounting policies that have most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements of the Group are as follows.

2.2.1 Going Concern    

 The directors have made an assessment of the Group’s ability 

to continue as a going concern and are satisfied that it has the 

resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. 

Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties 

that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to 

liquidate or to cease operations of the Group. Therefore, the 

financial statements continue to be prepared on the going 

concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.2.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

 Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 

recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be 

derived from active markets, those are determined using 

a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of 

mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived 

from observable market data where possible, but if this is not 

available, judgement is required to establish fair values. The 

valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail in 

Note 5 to the financial statements.

2.2.3 Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances

Individual impairment assessment

 The Group reviews their individually significant loans and 

advances at each reporting date to assess whether an 

impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of profit 

or loss. In particular, management judgement is required in the 

estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 

determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on 

assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may 

differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance 

made.

Collective impairment assessment

 Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and 

found not to be impaired and all individually insignificant loans 

and advances are then assessed collectively, by categorising 

those into groups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics, 

to determine whether a provision should be made due to 

incurred loss events for which there is an objective evidence, 

but the effects of which are not yet evident. The collective 

assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio such 

as number of days in arrears and judgements on the effect of 

concentrations of risks and economic data (including levels of 

unemployment, inflation, interest rates, exchange rates, effect 

of regulatory changes), and trends in non-performing loans.

 The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in Note 

31 (b) to the financial statements.   

 

2.2.4 Impairment of Available for Sale Investments

Debt securities

 The Group reviews their debt securities classified as available-

for-sale investments at each reporting date to assess whether 

those are impaired. This requires application of similar 

judgements as applied to the individual assessment of loans and 

advances.

Equity investments 

 The Group also records impairment charges on available-for-

sale equity investments when there has been a significant 

or prolonged decline in the fair value below the cost. The 

determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires 

judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, 

among other factors, historical share price movements, duration 

and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than 

its cost.

 The impairment loss on available-for-sale investments is 

disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

2.2.5 Impairment of Investments in Subsidiaries and Other 

Financial Assets    

 The Group follows the guidance of Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - LKAS 36 on “Impairment of Assets” and Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard - LKAS 39 on “Financial Instruments : 

Recognition and Measurement” in determining whether an 

investment or a financial asset is impaired. This determination 

requires significant judgement. The Group evaluates, among 

other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value 

of an investment or a financial asset is less than its cost and 

the financial health of the near-term business outlook of the 

investment or the financial asset, including factors such as 

industry and sector performance, changes in technology and 

operational and financing cash flows.

2.2.6 Impairment of Goodwill

 The Group estimates the value in use of the Cash Generating 

Units (CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated in order 

to determine whether goodwill is impaired. The value in use 

calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows 

expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate 

in order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of 

goodwill as at 31st December 2016 is Rs 122.9 Mn (2015 : 

Rs 122.9 Mn).

 The details on assessment of goodwill impairment is given in 

Note 39 (b).

2.2.7 Deferred Tax Assets    

 Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of loan impairment 

allowances which will be recovered in the foreseeable future 

and tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be 

utilised. Judgement is required to determine the amount of 

deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the likely 

timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future 

tax planning strategies.

 Details on deferred tax assets are disclosed in Note 49 (b) to the 

financial statements.   

2.2.8 Defined Benefit Obligation

 The cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined using 

an actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making 

assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on 

assets, future salary increases, mortality rates, increase in cost 
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of living allowances and future pension increases. Due to the 

long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to 

significant uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed at each 

reporting date.

 In determining the appropriate discount rate, management 

considers the interest rates of Government of Sri Lanka Treasury 

Bonds with maturities corresponding to the expected duration 

of the defined benefit obligation. Future salary increases and 

pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates 

and expected future salary increment rate of the Bank. 

 Details of the key assumptions used in the estimates are 

contained in Note 53 to the financial statements.

2.2.9 Fair Value of Freehold Land and Buildings

 The freehold land and buildings of the Group are reflected 

at fair value. The Group engaged independent valuers to 

determine fair value of freehold land and buildings in terms 

of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 13 on “Fair Value 

Measurement”. When current market prices of similar assets are 

available, such evidence is considered in estimating fair values of 

these assets.

 The methods used to determine the fair value of the freehold 

land and buildings, are further explained in Note 38 to the 

financial statements.    

2.2.10 Useful Life time of Property, Plant and Equipment, 

Investment Properties and Intangible Assets

 The Group reviews the residual values, useful lives and methods 

of depreciation of property, plant and equipment, investment 

properties and intangible assets at each reporting date. 

Judgement of the management is exercised in the estimation 

of these values, rates, methods and hence those are subject to 

uncertainty.

2.2.11 Classification of Investment Properties

 Management uses its judgment to determine whether a 

property qualifies as an investment property. The Group has 

developed criteria so it can exercise its judgment consistently.

 A property that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation 

or both, and which generates cash flows largely independent 

of the other assets held by the Group are accounted for as 

investment properties. On the other hand, a property that is 

used for operations or in the process of providing services or 

for administrative purposes and which do not directly generate 

cash flows as a standalone asset, are accounted for as property, 

plant and equipment. The Group assesses on an annual basis, 

the accounting classification of its properties, taking into 

consideration the current use of such properties.

2.2.12 Valuation of Life Insurance Contract Liabilities of 

Subsidiary HNB Assurance PLC (HNBA)

 The liability for life insurance contracts with Discretionary 

Participation Features (DPF) is either based on current 

assumptions or on assumptions established at the inception of 

the contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time, increased 

with a margin for risk and adverse deviation. All contracts are 

subject to a liability adequacy test, which reflect management’s 

best current estimate of future cash flows.

 The main assumptions used relate to mortality, morbidity, 

longevity, investment returns, expenses, lapse and surrender 

rates and discount rates. For those contracts that insure risk 

related to longevity, prudent allowance is made for expected 

future mortality improvements, as well as wide ranging changes 

to life style, which could result in significant changes to the 

expected future mortality exposure.

 Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising 

from the assets backing life insurance contracts. These estimates 

are based on current market returns, as well as expectations 

about future economic and financial developments.

 Assumptions on future expense are based on current 

expense levels, adjusted for expected expense inflation, if 

appropriate. 

 Lapse and surrender rates are based on HNBA’s historical 

experience of lapses and surrenders. Discount rates are based 

on current industry risk rates, adjusted for the HNBA’s own risk 

exposure. 

2.2.13 Valuation of General Insurance Contract Liabilities of 

Subsidiary HNB Assurance PLC (HNBA)

 The estimates of general insurance contracts have to be made, 

both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the 

reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims 

Incurred But Not yet Reported (IBNR), at the reporting date. It 

can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claims 

cost can be established with certainty. The main assumption 

underlying estimating the amounts of outstanding claims is the 

past claims development experience.

 Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by 

being reserved at the face value of loss adjusted estimates or 

separately projected in order to reflect their future development. 

In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding 

future rates of claims, inflation or loss ratios.

2.2.14 Deferred Acquisition Expenses

 Acquisition expenses, representing commissions, which vary 

with and are directly related to the production of business, are 

deferred and amortised over the period in which the related 

written premiums are earned. Reinsurance commission is also 

treated in the same manner with deferred acquisition costs.
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2.2.15 Taxation    

 The Group is subject to income tax and judgement is required 

to determine the total provision for current, deferred and other 

taxes due to the uncertainties that exist with respect to the 

interpretation of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of 

preparation of these financial statements.

 Uncertainties also exist with respect to the interpretation of 

complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future 

taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships 

and the long term nature and complexity of existing contractual 

agreements, differences arising between the actual results and 

the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, 

could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense 

amounts that were initially recorded, and deferred tax amounts 

in the period in which the determination is made.

2.2.16 Share-Based Payments    

The Group measures the cost of equity settled transactions 

with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity 

instruments on the date on which those are granted. 

Estimating fair value for share based payment transactions 

require determination of the most appropriate valuation 

model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of 

the grant.

 This estimate also requires determination of the most 

appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the 

expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield 

and making assumptions about them.

2.2.17 Commitments and Contingencies 

 All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount 

of all known liabilities.

 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence 

will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present 

obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not 

probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities 

are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are 

disclosed unless they are remote.

 Details on commitments and contingencies are given in Note 59 

to the financial statements.

2.2.18 Provisions for Liabilities and Contingencies

 The Group receives legal claims against it in the normal course 

of business. Management has made judgements as to the 

likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The 

time of concluding legal claims is uncertain, as is the amount of 

possible outflow of economic benefits. 

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The significant accounting policies set out below have been 

applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial 

statements of the Group, unless otherwise indicated. The 

accounting policies have been consistently applied by the 

Group entities where applicable and deviations if any have been 

disclosed accordingly.

3.1 Basis of Consolidation

 The Bank’s financial statements comprise the amalgamation of 

the financial statements of the Domestic Banking Unit (DBU) and 

the Foreign Currency Banking Unit (FCBU). The Group’s financial 

statements comprise consolidation of the financial statements 

of the Bank, its subsidiaries in terms of the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - SLFRS 10 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” 

and the proportionate share of the profit or loss and net assets 

of its joint venture (equity method) in terms of the Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard - SLFRS 11 on “Joint Arrangements”.

3.1.1 Business Combinations and Goodwill

 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 

method as per the requirements of Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - SLFRS 3 on “Business Combinations”. When the 

Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets 

and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and 

designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 

circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition 

date.

 The Group measures goodwill as the fair value of the 

consideration transferred including the recognised amount 

of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net 

recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable 

assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured as of 

the acquisition date. When the excess is negative, a bargain 

purchase gain is recognised immediately in the statement 

of profit or loss. Acquisition related costs are expensed as 

incurred and are included in other expenses. Goodwill is initially 

measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - SLFRS 3 on “Business Combinations”.

 Goodwill has to be reviewed for impairment annually or more 

frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying 

value may be impaired.

 The Group elects on a transaction by transaction basis whether 

to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value, or at its 

proportionate share of the recognised amount of the identifiable 

net assets, at the acquisition date.

 The consideration transferred does not include amounts related 

to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are 

generally recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.1.2 Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation

 Intra-group balances, transactions and income and expenses 

arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing 

the consolidated financial statements. Un-realised gains 

arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are 

eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. 

Un-realised losses are eliminated in the same way as un-realised 

gains, except that those are only eliminated to the extent that 

there is no evidence of impairment.

3.1.3 Material Gains or Losses, Provisional Values or Error 

Corrections

 There were no material gains or losses, provisional values 

or error corrections recognised during the year in respect of 

business combinations that took place in previous periods.

3.2 Foreign Currency

3.2.1 Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the 

functional currency, which is Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), using the 

middle rates of exchange prevailing at the dates on which the 

transactions were affected.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 

at the reporting date are retranslated to Sri Lankan Rupees 

using the middle rates of exchange prevailing at that date. All 

differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to ”other 

operating income” in the statement of profit or loss.

 The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the 

difference between amortised cost in the functional currency 

at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest 

and payments during the period and the amortised cost in 

foreign currency translated at the middle rates of exchange 

prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Foreign currency 

differences arising on retranslation are recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss, except for differences arising on the 

retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, a financial 

liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign 

operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognised 

in other comprehensive income.

 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to Sri 

Lankan Rupees at the exchange rates on the date that the fair 

value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. 

 Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or 

reporting of monetary items at rates different from those which 

were initially recorded are dealt in the statement of profit or 

loss.

 Forward exchange contracts are valued at the forward market 

rates prevailing on the reporting date. Resulting net unrealised 

gains or losses are dealt in the statement of profit or loss.

3.3 Financial Instruments – Initial Recognition, 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

3.3.1 Date of Recognition

 All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the 

trade date, i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular 

way trades”. Regular way trades means purchases or sales of 

financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time 

frame generally established by regulation or convention in the 

market place.

3.3.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial 

Instruments

 The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition 

depends on their purpose and characteristics and the 

management’s intention in acquiring them. 

 All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value 

plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition 

or issue of such financial instruments, except in the case of 

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss according to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 39 

on “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. 

Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial 

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with 

through the statement of profit or loss.

 In respect of financial assets and liabilities held at fair value 

through profit or loss, any changes in fair value from the trade 

date to settlement date are accounted in the statement of 

profit or loss, while for available-for-sale financial assets, any 

changes in fair value from the trade date to settlement date are 

accounted in the other comprehensive income.

3.3.2 (a) “Day 1” Profit or Loss

 When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other 

observable current market transactions in the same instrument, 

or based on a valuation technique whose variables include 

only data from observable markets, the Group recognises the 

difference between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 

1 profit or loss) over the tenor of the financial instrument using 

the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. In cases where fair 

value is determined using data which is not observable, the 

difference between the transaction price and model value is only 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the inputs 

become observable, or when the instrument is de-recognised.
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3.3.3 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of 

Financial Instruments

(i) At inception, a financial asset is classified in one of the 

following categories:

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial assets held for trading

- Financial assets designated at fair value through 

profit or loss

• Loans and receivables

• Held to maturity financial assets

• Available-for-sale financial assets

(ii) At inception, a financial liability is classified in one of the 

following categories:

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial liabilities held for trading

- Financial liabilities designated at fair value through 

profit or loss

• Financial liabilities at amortised cost

 The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities 

depend on the classification.

 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include 

financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit 

or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at 

fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and 

changes therein are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

 Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

 Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 

acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in 

the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed 

together for short term profit or position taking. This category 

includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 

Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 

relationships.

 Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 

for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging 

instruments.

 Gains or losses in liabilities held for trading are recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss.

 

 Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through 

Profit or Loss

 The Group designates financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss in the following circumstances:

• Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces 

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities

• The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, 

financial assets or both, which are managed and their 

performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance 

with a documented risk management or investment 

strategy

•  The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives 

that significantly modify the cash flows that would 

otherwise have been required under the contract.

 The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon 

initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss as at the 

reporting date.

 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

 Financial liabilities issued by the Group that are not designated 

as at fair value through profit or loss are classified as 

liabilities under ‘due to banks’, ‘due to customers’, ‘other 

borrowings’, ‘debt securities issued’ and ‘subordinated term 

debts’ as appropriate, where the substance of the contractual 

arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either 

to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or 

to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another 

entity, under conditions that are potentially un-favourable to the 

entity or settling the obligation by delivering variable number of 

entity’s own equity instruments.

 The details of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

are given in Note 41, 42, 43, 45, 46 and 47 to the financial 

statements.

3.3.4 Reclassifications of Financial Instruments

 The Group does not reclassify any financial instrument into 

the ‘fair value through profit or loss’ category after initial 

recognition. Further the Group does not reclassify any financial 

instrument out of the ‘fair value through profit or loss’ category 

if upon initial recognition it was designated as at fair value 

through profit or loss. The Group reclassifies non–derivative 

financial assets out of the ‘held-for-trading’ category and into 

the ‘available-for-sale’, ‘loans and receivables’, or ‘held-to-

maturity’ categories as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - LKAS 39 on “Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement”. Further, in certain circumstances, the Group is 

permitted to reclassify financial instruments out of the ‘available-

for-sale’ category and into the ‘loans and receivables’ or ‘held- 

to-maturity’ category.
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 Reclassifications are recorded at fair value at the date of 

reclassification, which becomes the new amortised cost.

 For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale 

category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been 

recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the 

remaining life of the investment using the Effective Interest Rate 

(EIR). Any difference between the new amortised cost and the 

expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of 

the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined 

to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is recycled 

to the statement of profit or loss.

 The Group may reclassify a non–derivative trading asset out 

of the ‘held for trading’ category and into the ‘loans and 

receivables’ category if it meets the definition of loans and 

receivables and the Group has the intention and ability to hold 

the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity. 

If a financial asset is reclassified and if the Group subsequently 

increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of 

increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that 

increase is recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from the date 

of the change in estimate.

 Reclassification is at the election of management and is 

determined on an instrument by instrument basis. 

3.3.5 De-recognition of Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

 A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset 

or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-recognised 

when:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 

from the asset or

• has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows 

in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass–

through’ arrangement; and either:

• the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset

 or

• the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially 

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 

control of the asset

 On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between 

the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount 

allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and 

consideration received (including any new asset obtained less, 

any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss 

that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is 

recognised in statement of profit or loss.

 When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows 

from an asset or has entered into a pass–through arrangement 

and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of 

the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of 

the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s 

continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group 

also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and 

the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over 

the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 

carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

 A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under 

the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an 

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability 

and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between 

the carrying value of the original financial liability and the 

consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit or 

loss.

3.3.6 Impairment of Financial Assets

 At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is an 

objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value 

through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group 

of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there 

is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 

more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of 

the asset (an incurred loss event), and that the loss event has an 

impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 

or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

 Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity 

securities) are impaired can include and not limited to: 

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default 

or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or 

advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not 

otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will 

enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a 

security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets 

such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or 

issuers in the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with 

defaults in the Group. In addition, for an investment in an equity 

security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below 

its cost is an objective evidence of impairment.
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3.4 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other 

than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 

such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for 

an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable 

amount. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite 

useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable 

amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment 

loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its 

Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount.

 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its 

value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value 

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset or CGU.

 For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot 

be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest 

group of assets that generate cash inflows from continuing 

use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 

assets or CGU. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for 

the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which 

goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at 

which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level 

at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. 

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to 

groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies 

of the combination.

 The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash 

inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate 

assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent 

basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of the 

CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

 Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or 

loss, except for property previously revalued where the gain 

or loss on revaluation was taken to equity. In this case, the 

impairment is also recognised in equity up to the extent of 

any previously recognised revaluation gains. Impairment losses 

recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the 

carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group 

of CGUs) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other 

assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In 

respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior 

periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 

loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 

used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 

loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 

impairment loss had been recognised.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Introduction and Overview

 The Bank manages its exposure to the risks integral to its activities through a process of proper risk identification, analysis, measurement and 

continuous monitoring. The Bank is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

• Credit risk

• Liquidity risk

• Market risk

 The Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, objectives, policies and processes associated with measuring and managing such risks, and 

its strategy on capital management is detailed below. Since the Bank accounts for more than 95% of the total assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses of the Group, only the Bank’s exposure has been discussed under this note.

4.2 Risk Management Framework

 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s risk management framework. In discharging 

its governance responsibility it operates through two key committees, the Board Integrated Risk Management Committee (BIRMC) and the 

Board Audit Committee (BAC).

 The BIRMC provides the Board, the assurance that risk management strategies, policies and processes are in place to manage events / 

outcomes that have the potential to impact significantly on earnings performance, reputation and capital. The approach entails active 

monitoring of the level of risk exposure against the parameters set in the risk appetite. The BIRMC also assists the Board by assessing significant 

credit and other transactions beyond the discretion of executive management.

 The following executive management sub - committees, each with specialised focus, support the BIRMC and are responsible for the co-

ordination of risk matters for each of the areas of risk management:

• Operational Risk Steering Committee

• Asset and Liability Committee

• Credit Policy Committee

• Investment Committee

• IT Steering Committee 

 Internal Audit Department undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are 

reported to the BAC.

 The BAC provides its assessment on the effectiveness of internal audit and external disclosure of accounting policies and financial reporting to 

the Board.

 Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered.

4.3 Credit Risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and advances to customers, investment in debt and equity securities. For risk 

management reporting purposes, the Bank considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor default 

risk, industry risk and geographical risk etc.).

 For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading assets is managed independently and information thereon is disclosed below.

 The credit risk policy plays a central role in managing daily business activities. The Bank has developed a policy which defines the principles 

encompassing client selection, due diligence, early warning signals, watch listing, tolerable levels of concentration risk and portfolio monitoring 

in line with Bank’s risk appetite. The approach is to avoid a large credit risk on a counterparty or portfolio level by applying stringent 

underwriting standards combined with sound collateralisation where feasible. The policy is reviewed at least annually and approved by the 

Board Credit / Assets and Liabilities Committee (BC/ALC) ensuring consistency with the Bank’s business strategy.

 A monthly Credit Policy meeting chaired by the Chief Executive Officer, drives policy decisions and implementation plans.
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 Bank manages credit risk by focusing on following stages;

 The loan origination process comprises initial screening and credit appraisal. The evaluation focuses on the borrower’s ability to meet its 

obligations in a timely manner. Efforts are made to ensure consistent standards are maintained in credit approval. Collateral and guarantees 

form an important part of the credit risk mitigation process and internal policy dictates margins in Bank’s favour by type of security offered, 

standards for periodic valuations and assessment of realisable value of collateral.

 A suite of internal risk rating models are in place for corporate and retail customer segments. The internal risk rating is an important part of 

the risk assessment of customers and is incorporated in the credit decision process. Significant strides have been made in internalising this 

approach with a view to giving due prominence to lending, based on cash flow repayment ability as distinct from collateral based lending.

 The Bank has established clear guidelines for loan approvals / renewals by adopting a committee based approval structure, where all approval 

signatories carry equal responsibility for credit risk. Individual credit facilities beyond a minimum threshold require an independent risk signatory 

with no revenue targets in respective committees.

 Bank’s corporate banking loan portfolio is administered through a centralised credit administration division which ensures efficient and effective 

post sanction customer support including disbursement, settlements, processing renewal notices and advising customers on interest rate 

amendments. This division independently reports to the risk management unit to ensure the availability of clear segregation of duties from 

business origination. The unit further ensures that the disbursements happen only after stipulated conditions are met and relevant security 

documents are obtained.

 To safeguard the Bank against possible losses, problem loans need to be identified early. The credit risk management division measures and 

tracks the status of the credit portfolio, undertakes impact studies and detects early warning signals and watch listing pointing to deterioration 

in the financial health of a borrower.

 A credit risk dashboard is prepared monthly to review high level credit portfolio concentration and assesses performance against internal limits 

(Board risk appetite) and regulatory requirements. An internally developed business intelligence system (‘KPI Wizard’) is in place to evaluate 

credit risk indicators at branch, regional, zonal and Bank level. Accountability for credit risk performance is vested with individual business units 

and unhealthy trends addressed at all levels.

 Problem loans are managed by the Credit Supervision and Recoveries Division. This unit is responsible for all aspects of an overdue facility, 

restructuring of the credit, monitoring the value of the applicable collateral and liquidation, scrutiny of legal documents and liaising with the 

customer until all recovery matters are finalised. This division’s activities are seamlessly integrated with credit administration and credit risk 

management to ensure effective follow up and learning transfer.

 Back office recovery functions representing problem loans classification, rescheduling, provisioning and valuation of collateral on delinquent 

assets is centralised to ensure standardisation and accuracy. The Bank strictly conforms to regulatory requirements in problem loan classification 

and management.

 Regular audits of business units are undertaken by Internal Audit Division in order to ensure smooth functioning of each of these stages.

 Impairment assessment

 The methodology adopted by the Bank in respect of impairment assessment is given in Note 31 (b).

 Derivative financial instruments

 Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded on the statement 

of financial position. With gross–settled derivatives, the Bank is also exposed to a settlement risk, being the risk that the Bank honours its 

obligation, but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter value.

 Credit related commitment risks

 The Bank makes available to its customers, guarantees which may require that the Bank makes payments on their behalf and enters into 

commitments to extend credit lines to secure their liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit 

the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods. Such 

commitments expose the Bank to risks similar to loans and are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.
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4.3.1 (a) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

 The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk and net exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset.

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 Maximum  Maximum

exposure to Net exposure exposure to Net exposure

credit risk to credit risk credit risk to credit risk

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Placements with banks 753,050 753,050 26,827 26,827

Reverse repurchase agreements 4,303,460 118,045 4,869,219 -

Derivative financial instruments 289,989 289,989 1,302,872 1,302,872

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 544,915 544,915 593,390 593,390

Loans and receivables to customers (gross) 595,513,919 216,949,035 509,525,467 195,574,504

Financial investments - available-for-sale 89,915,153 89,915,153 78,046,505 78,046,505

Financial investments - loans and receivables 99,260,698 99,260,698 84,206,702 83,013,332

Other assets 2,308,521 2,308,521 1,565,169 1,565,169

792,889,705 410,139,406 680,136,151 360,122,599

Guarantees, letters of credit and acceptances 149,358,306 147,824,644 111,842,959 109,917,959

 Collateral and other credit enhancements

 The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering 

the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

 The general creditworthiness of customers tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan. However, collateral provides 

additional security and the Bank generally requests large borrowers to provide same. The Bank may take collateral in the form of a first charge 

over real estate and residential properties, floating charges over all corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.

 The Bank’s policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in an orderly manner. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay the 

outstanding claim. The Bank generally does not use non-cash collateral for its own operations.

4.3.1 (b) Credit Quality by Class of Financial Assets

 The Bank manages the credit quality of loans and receivables based on an internal credit rating system while the other financial assets are 

managed based on the external credit ratings of the counterparty. The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial 

assets exposed to credit risk based on the credit ratings.

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

As at 31st December 2016  High Grade  Standard

Grade 

  Sub-

 Standard

 Grade

 Unrated  Exposures

not Subject

to Rating 

 Past Due but

not Impaired 

Past Due and

Impaired

Individually

Impaired

Total

Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 17,511,446 - - - - - - - 17,511,446

Balances with

 Central Bank of Sri Lanka 33,777,614 - - - - - - - 33,777,614

Placements with banks - - -  753,050 - - - - 753,050

Reverse repurchase agreements 4,303,460 - - - - - - - 4,303,460

Derivative financial instruments 260,927 11,387 26 17,649 - - - - 289,989
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Neither Past Due nor Impaired

As at 31st December 2016  High Grade  Standard

Grade 

  Sub-

 Standard

 Grade

 Unrated  Exposures

not Subject

to Rating 

 Past Due but

not Impaired 

Past Due and

Impaired

Individually

Impaired

Total

Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial investments - fair 

 value through profit or loss

Equity securities 235,944 - - 308,971 - - - - 544,915

Loans and receivables to 114,696,550 92,172,162 4,143,986 206,102,196 49,058,659 113,391,068 7,060,081 8,889,217 595,513,919

 customers (gross)

Financial investments -

 available-for-sale

Government securities 84,295,103 - - - - - - - 84,295,103

Equity securities - quoted 4,936,537 - - 270,000 - - - - 5,206,537

Equity securities - unquoted - - - 413,513 - - - - 413,513

Financial investments -

 loans and receivables

Government securities 84,786,207 - - - - - - - 84,786,207

Debt securities - quoted 12,338,128 2,136,363 - - - - - - 14,474,491

Other assets - - - - 2,308,521 - - - 2,308,521

357,141,916 94,319,912 4,144,012 207,865,379 51,367,180 113,391,068 7,060,081 8,889,217 844,178,765

 Neither Past Due nor Impaired

As at 31st December 2015  High Grade  Standard

Grade 

  Sub-

 Standard

Grade 

 Unrated  Exposures

not Subject

to Rating 

 Past Due but

not Impaired 

Past Due and

Impaired

Individually

Impaired

Total

Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14,909,598 - - - - - - - 14,909,598

Balances with Central Bank of 20,096,090 - - - - - - - 20,096,090

 Sri Lanka

Placements with banks 26,827 - - - - - - - 26,827

Reverse repurchase agreements 4,869,219 - - - - - - - 4,869,219

Derivative financial instruments 1,256,294 18,843 - 27,735 - - - - 1,302,872

Financial investments - fair value

 through profit or loss

Equity securities 319,995 - - 273,395 - - - - 593,390

Loans and receivables to

 customers (gross) 107,390,276 98,307,805 12,916,156 113,268,931 48,842,861 116,121,689 7,404,485 5,273,264 509,525,467

Financial investments -

 available-for-sale

Government securities 70,911,843 - - - - - - - 70,911,843

Equity securities - quoted 6,635,079 - - 280,800 - - - - 6,915,879

Equity securities - unquoted - - - 218,783 - - - - 218,783

Financial investments - - - - - - - - -

 loans and receivables

Government securities 71,848,102 - - - - - - - 71,848,102

Debt securities - quoted 9,887,898 1,981,702 - -  - - - - 11,869,600

Debt securities - unquoted 489,000 - - - - - - - 489,000

Other assets - - - -  1,565,169 - - - 1,565,169

308,640,221 100,308,350 12,916,156 114,069,644 50,408,030 116,121,689 7,404,485 5,273,264 715,141,839
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4.3.1 (c) Loans and Receivables to Other Customers

 Allowances for impairment

 The Bank established an allowance for impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost and financial investments - available-for-sale that 

represents its estimate of incurred losses in its loans and investments in debt/equity securities portfolio. The main components of this allowance 

are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures and for assets measured at amortised cost, a collective loan 

loss allowance established for groups of homogeneous assets, as well as for individually significant exposures that were subject to individual 

assessment for impairment, but not found to be individually impaired and exposures found to be impaired but not provided. Assets carried at 

fair value through profit or loss are not subject to impairment testing as the measure of fair value reflects the credit quality of each asset.

 The Bank regards an individually significant loan and advance or a debt security as impaired, where there is an objective evidence that a loss 

event has occurred since initial recognition and such loss event has an impact on future estimated cash flows from the asset. 

 Movement of the impairment provision during the year, is given in Note 31 (b) to the financial statements.

 Past due but not impaired loans

 Past due but not impaired loans are those for which contractual interest or principal payments are past due, but the Bank believes that 

impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Bank.

4.3.1 (d) Age Analysis of Financial Assets that are Past Due but not Impaired

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000

Past due but not impaired

 1-30 days 87,031,345 92,620,707

 31-60 days 24,050,226 21,459,343

 61-90 days 1,376,933 910,628

 91-120 days 439,232 386,006

 121-150 days 239,126 500,810

 151-180 days 254,206 244,195

113,391,068 116,121,689

 Rescheduled loans

 Rescheduled loans are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position, where the Bank has made 

concessions, by agreeing to terms and conditions that are more favourable to the borrower compared to the original contract. The Bank 

implements forbearance policy in order to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank’s forbearance 

policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis in situations where the debtor is currently in default on its debt, or where there is a 

high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all the reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and they are 

expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms usually include extending maturity, changing timing of interest payments 

and amendments to the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy. Once the loan is 

restructured, it remains in this category independent of satisfactory performance after restructuring. At the time of restructuring the loan, the 

Bank determines the fair value of the loan and carrying value is brought down to reflect the fair value charging the difference if any, to the 

statement of profit or loss under impairment for loans and other losses.

 During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Bank restructured loans and advances with a carrying value of Rs 8,428.81 Mn 

(2015 - Rs 5,528.04 Mn) and recognised an impairment of Rs 9.66 Mn (2015 - Rs 40.55 Mn) in the statement of profit or loss.

 The Board Audit Committee regularly reviews reports on forbearance activities.

 Write-off policy

 The Bank writes off a loan or an investment in debt / equity security balance and any related allowances for impairment losses, when it 

determines that the loan or security is uncollectible. This determination is made after considering information such as the occurrence of 

significant changes in the borrower’s / issuer’s financial position, such that the borrower / issuer can no longer pay the obligation or that 

proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For standardised loans with smaller balances, write-off decisions 

generally are based on a product-specific past due status.
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4.3.1 (e) Concentrations of Credit Risk

 The Bank monitors concentration of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An analysis of risk concentration of financial asset by 

industry is given below.

4.3.1 (e) i Concentration by Sector

As at 31st December 

2016

 Agriculture

and fishing

Manufacturing  Tourism  Transport Construction  Traders  New

Economy 

  Financial 

 and Business 

 Services 

Infrastructure Other Services Other Total

Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - - 17,511,446 - - - 17,511,446

Balances  with

 Central Bank of Sri Lanka - - - - - - - 33,777,614 - - - 33,777,614

Placements with banks - - - - - - - 753,050 - - - 753,050

Reverse repurchase  

 agreements - - - - - - - 4,303,460 - - - 4,303,460

Derivative

 financial instruments - - - - - - - 289,989 - - - 289,989

Financial investments 

 - fair value through 

 profit or loss 50,855 52,240 36,622 - 354 17,253 - 179,435 47,355 160,801 - 544,915

Loans and receivables

 to customers (gross) 54,101,769 69,188,984 43,708,242 11,645,488 85,885,286 117,378,942 6,560,378 71,151,207 41,002,795 57,842,020 37,048,808 595,513,919

Financial investments

 - available-for-sale - - - - - - - 89,915,153 - - - 89,915,153

Financial investments -

 loans and receivables - 3,144,562 - - - 500,738 - 93,904,248 1,518,534 192,616 - 99,260,698

Other assets - - - - - - - 2,308,521 - - - 2,308,521

54,152,624 72,385,786 43,744,864 11,645,488 85,885,640 117,896,933 6,560,378 314,094,123 42,568,684 58,195,437 37,048,808 844,178,765

As at 31st December 2015 Agriculture

and fishing

Manufacturing  Tourism  Transport Construction  Traders  New

Economy 

 Financial and

Business

Services 

Infrastructure Other Services Other Total

Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - -  14,909,598 - - -  14,909,598 

Balances  with

 Central Bank of Sri Lanka - - - - - - -  20,096,090 - - -  20,096,090 

Placements with banks - - - - - - -  26,827 - - -  26,827 

Reverse repurchase  

 agreements - - - - - - -  4,869,219 - - -  4,869,219 

Derivative

 financial instruments - - - - - - -  1,302,872 - - -  1,302,872 

Financial investments 

 - fair value through 

 profit or loss -  135,722  130,519  17,244  330  13,982 -  198,241  8,700  88,652 -  593,390 

Loans and receivables

 to customers (gross)  46,969,592  61,730,842  35,180,590  11,455,385  75,857,189  98,073,956  3,721,347  63,769,572  32,661,197  43,955,289  36,150,508  509,525,467 

Financial investments

 - available-for-sale - - - - - - -  78,046,505 - - -  78,046,505 

Financial investments -

 loans and receivables -  2,509,590 - - -  500,000 -  79,011,112  2,000,000  186,000 -  84,206,702 

Other assets -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,565,169  1,565,169 

 46,969,592  64,376,154  35,311,109  11,472,629  75,857,519  98,587,938  3,721,347  263,795,205  34,669,897  44,229,941  36,150,508  715,141,839 
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4.3.1 (e) ii Concentration by Location

 Concentration of loans and advances by location is given below.

As at  31st December 2016  31st December 2015

  Rs 000  %  Rs 000  %

Western 428,736,278 71.99 369,605,337 72.54

Southern 27,501,951 4.62 22,558,498 4.43

Uva 8,504,380 1.43 7,588,602 1.49

North Central 10,023,284 1.68 8,604,336 1.69

North Western 28,081,752 4.72 24,586,758 4.83

Eastern 15,892,029 2.67 12,867,433 2.53

Northern 16,016,453 2.69 12,351,575 2.42

Sabaragamuwa 12,761,719 2.14 12,243,551 2.4

Central 32,209,039 5.41 28,707,819 5.63

Overseas 15,787,034 2.65 10,411,558 2.04

595,513,919 100 509,525,467 100

 Concentration by location for loans and advances is measured based on the location of the customer centre that granted the facility, which has 

a high correlation with the location of the borrower, except for loans granted by the Foreign Currency Banking Unit (FCBU).

 Significant foreign exposures

 Gross and net carrying values of significant foreign lendings are given below. All these loans have been considered as significant loans and 

analysed individually. When the Bank has identified objective evidence of impairment of these loans, future cash flows have been estimated 

giving due consideration for specific industry, country risk factors etc. and availability of collateral. 

Cambodia Maldives

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Gross carrying value 6,371,813 6,405,650 5,338,160 1,808,186

Provision for impairment  (17,399)  (19,363)  (387,418)  (461,328)

Net carrying value 6,354,414 6,386,287 4,950,742 1,346,858

 Total unutilised overdrafts approved to above customers as at 31st December 2016 amounts to Rs 899.55 Mn (2015 : Rs 864.66 Mn).

4.3.1 (f) Commitments and Guarantees

 The Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent liabilities in order to meet the financial needs of the customer. These 

obligations contain credit risk and form part of the overall risk of the Bank even though those are not recognised on the statement of financial 

position.

 The table below shows the Bank’s maximum credit risk exposure for commitments and guarantees.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk relating to acceptances, documentary credit and guarantees, is the amount the Bank would have to pay 

in the event those are called upon. The maximum exposure to credit risk relating to loan commitments, is the full amount of the commitment. 

In both cases, the maximum risk exposure is significantly greater than the amount recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position.

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 Rs 000  Rs 000

Acceptances  15,827,724  10,865,852 

Documentary credit  24,629,974  21,730,162 

Guarantees  108,900,608  79,246,945 

Commitments for unutilised facilities - direct  114,244,896  101,817,026 

Commitments for unutilised facilities - indirect  100,901,909  41,946,000 

 364,505,111  255,605,985 
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4.4 Liquidity Risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its debt obligations associated with its financial liabilities due to lack of funds or having 

to meet these obligations at excessive cost.

4.4.1 Management of Liquidity Risk

 The Bank manages liquidity risk, in accordance with regulatory guidelines and international best practices. The objective of the Bank’s liquidity 

and funding framework is to ensure that funding commitments and deposit withdrawals can be met when due and that market access remains 

cost effective. A Board approved liquidity policy to manage liquidity on a day-to-day basis and a contingency funding plan to deal with crisis 

situations are in place. Contractual maturity of assets and liabilities, key liquidity ratios and monthly liquidity forecasts and gaps are reviewed at 

Assets and Liability Committee (ALCO) meetings. The main sources of the Bank’s funding are capital, core deposits from retail and commercial 

clients, wholesale deposits and access to borrowed funds from the interbank money market. The Bank also maintains a portfolio of readily 

marketable securities to further strengthen its liquidity position. Liquidity risk exposure is managed by treasury with limits and triggers set to 

ensure that sufficient liquidity surplus and reserves are available to meet daily business requirements and also to deal with a sudden liquidity 

shock. Treasury reports the Bank’s overall liquidity position to management on a daily basis.

4.4.1 (a) Exposure to Liquidity Risk

 The Bank monitors the following liquidity ratios to assess funding requirements.

2016 2015

Net loans / total assets 68.04% 68.72%

Gross loans / customer deposits 95.51% 96.66%

Liquid Asset Ratio (LAR)

As at 31st December 24.23% 25.09%

Average for the year 23.64% 24.31%

Maximum for the year 24.51% 26.48%

Minimum for the year 21.96% 21.94%

 Components of the Bank’s liquid assets portfolio used for the purpose of statutory liquid asset ratio calculation as at 31st December 2016 

(average balance for the month of December) is given below.

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000

Cash 15,994,207 13,947,385

Balances with licensed commercial banks 156,486 156,736

Money at call in Sri Lanka 1,096,323 3,695,742

Treasury bills and securities issued or guaranteed by the Government of Sri Lanka  

 which have a maturity not exceeding one year 154,671,263 130,779,418

Import bills - 15,862

Export bills 1,733,589 1,859,146

Cash items in the process of collection 1,008,177 1,074,133

Balances with the banks abroad 1,706,249 1,635,933

Total average liquid assets for the month of December 176,366,293 153,164,355

 Monthly liquidity gap is reported to ALCO by Treasury for each currency, together with the overall gap position. Liquidity gap is based on the 

expected realisation of the assets and liabilities which have been determined based on historical behaviour. Net liquidity position reported for 

the month is monitored against the pre-set limits which have been approved by the ALCO.

 The Bank also holds debt and equity securities which are not considered as liquid assets but for which there is an active and liquid market. 

These assets can be readily sold to meet any unexpected liquidity requirements. Detailed analysis of the debt and equity securities held by the 

Bank as at 31st December 2016 is presented under credit risk. No assets have been pledged as collateral for borrowings other than treasury 

bills and bonds which are pledged against repurchase transactions. Details of treasury bills and bonds pledged as collateral against repurchase 

transactions are disclosed under Note 33 (k) to the financial statements.
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4.4.1 (b) Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31st December. 

Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Bank expects that many customers 

will not request repayment on the earliest date it could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by 

its deposit retention history.

 Contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial liabilities.

31st December 2016  Upto

3 months 

 3 - 12

months 

 1 - 3

years 

 3 - 5

years 

 More than

5 years 

 Total

 Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 17,511,446 - - - - 17,511,446

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka - - - - 33,777,614 33,777,614

Placements with banks 753,050 - - - - 753,050

Reverse repurchase agreements 4,304,494 - - - - 4,304,494

Derivative financial instruments 152,566 137,423 - - - 289,989

Financial investments-fair value through profit or Loss 544,915 - - - - 544,915

Loans and receivables to customers 248,793,756 121,203,976 186,798,226 89,217,633 83,139,982 729,153,573

Financial investments - available-for-sale 6,652,784 34,901,127 33,636,104 22,771,358 13,837,326 111,798,699

Financial investments - loans and receivables 18,445,161 26,949,649 27,342,764 39,660,236 49,979 112,447,789

Other assets - - 2,455,967 - - 2,455,967

Total undiscounted financial assets 297,158,172 183,192,175 250,233,061 151,649,227 130,804,901 1,013,037,536

Financial Liabilities

Due to banks 25,135,863 18,587,927 20,352,562 10,892,549 594,016 75,562,917

Derivative financial instruments 429,084 236,806 - - - 665,890

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 8,733,218 4,910,733 - - - 13,643,951

Due to customers 445,559,576 173,725,972 14,615,437 6,298,701 - 640,199,686

Dividends payable  1,007,075 - - - - 1,007,075

Other borrowings 1,062,167 3,019,231 14,080,343 11,209,294 1,708,333 31,079,368

Debt securities issued - 549,818 3,508,661 334,001 2,424,716 6,817,196

Other liabilities 403,851 - - - - 403,851

Subordinated term debts 793,973 2,459,759 8,761,185 19,071,077 7,229,821 38,315,815

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 483,124,807 203,490,246 61,318,188 47,805,622 11,956,886 807,695,749

Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) (185,966,635) (20,298,071) 188,914,873 103,843,605 118,848,015 205,341,787

 The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank’s contingent liabilities and commitments.

Upto

3 months

3 - 12

months

1 - 3

years

3 - 5

years

More than

5 years

Total

  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Acceptances 11,111,376 4,650,939 65,409 - - 15,827,724

Documentary credit 19,771,633 4,836,075 22,266 - - 24,629,974

Guarantees 18,094,646 35,573,737 39,747,563 10,820,265 4,664,397 108,900,608

Undrawn commitments to lend - direct facilities 114,244,896 - - - - 114,244,896

Undrawn commitments to lend - indirect facilities 100,901,909 - - - - 100,901,909

264,124,460 45,060,751 39,835,238 10,820,265 4,664,397 364,505,111

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD.)

4.4 Liquidity Risk (Contd.)

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



224
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements

31st December 2015  Upto 3

months 

 3 - 12

months 

 1 - 3 

years 

 3 - 5

years 

 More than 

5 years 

 Total

 Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14,909,598 - - - - 14,909,598

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka - - - - 20,096,090 20,096,090

Placements with banks 26,827 - - - - 26,827

Reverse repurchase agreements 4,870,068 - - - - 4,870,068

Derivative financial instruments 278,361 1,024,511 - - - 1,302,872

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 593,390 - - - - 593,390

Loans and receivables to customers 189,579,911 112,239,271 146,092,981 74,930,958 73,880,756 596,723,877

Financial investments - available-for-sale 14,038,553 24,383,411 16,297,711 18,479,192 19,204,245 92,403,112

Financial investments - loans and receivables 14,419,556 13,779,143 32,622,517 35,731,034 - 96,552,250

Other assets - 471,866 1,093,303 - - 1,565,169

Total undiscounted financial assets 238,716,264 151,898,202 196,106,512 129,141,184 113,181,091 829,043,253

Financial Liabilities

Due to banks 13,063,401 23,664,773 18,687,149 7,084,231 985,145 63,484,699

Derivative financial instruments 157,154 147,331 - - - 304,485

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 16,487,390 183,732 - - - 16,671,122

Due to other customers 372,110,420 147,243,100 12,316,092 6,346,352 - 538,015,964

Dividends payable  764,771 - - - - 764,771

Other borrowings 59,787 45,487 61,543 9,954,572 21,625,494 31,746,883

Debt securities issued - 391,607 930,997 3,295,560 2,592,029 7,210,193

Other liabilities 278,584 - - - - 278,584

Subordinated term debts - 1,170,262 6,766,190 4,571,267 4,978,004 17,485,723

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 402,921,507 172,846,292 38,761,971 31,251,982 30,180,672 675,962,424

Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) (164,205,243) (20,948,090) 157,344,541 97,889,202 83,000,419 153,080,829

The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank’s contingent liabilities and commitments.

Upto 3

months

3 - 12

months

1 - 3

years

3 - 5

years

More than 

5 years

Total

 Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000  Rs 000

Acceptances 8,540,327 2,263,053 62,472 - - 10,865,852

Documentary credit 17,826,795 3,453,886 449,481 - - 21,730,162

Guarantees 17,618,025 23,749,445 26,129,432 5,350,007 6,400,036 79,246,945

Undrawn commitments to lend 

 - direct facilities 101,817,027 - - - - 101,817,027

Undrawn commitments to lend 

 - indirect facilities 41,946,000 - - - - 41,946,000

187,748,174 29,466,384 26,641,385 5,350,007 6,400,036 255,605,986

The Bank expects that not all of the contingent liabilities or commitments will be drawn before expiry of the commitments.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD.)

4.4 Liquidity Risk (Contd.)

4.4.1 (b) Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Contractual Maturities (Contd.)
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4.5 Market Risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating 

to changes in the obligor’s or issuer’s credit standing) which will affect the Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. 

The objective of the Bank’s market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters in order to 

ensure the Bank’s solvency while optimising the return on risk.

4.5.1 Management of Market Risk

 The Bank separates its exposure to market risk between trading and non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolio includes financial assets and 

liabilities that are managed on a fair value basis. All foreign exchange positions within the Bank are treated as part of the Bank’s trading 

portfolios for risk management purposes. Non trading portfolio is managed in accordance with the purpose and strategic benefits of such 

investments, rather than purely on fair value basis.

 The Bank has a board approved treasury policy. Treasury middle office monitors the Bank’s compliance with the above policy and ensures that 

the Bank’s market risk limits are in line with the level of risk acceptable to the Board. The Bank employs a range of tools to monitor and limit 

market risk exposures which are discussed below.

4.5.2 Exposure to Market Risk

 The principal tool used to measure and control market risk exposure within the Bank is Value at Risk (VaR). The VaR of a portfolio is the 

estimated loss that will arise on the portfolio over a specified period of time (holding period) from an adverse market movement with a 

specified probability (confidence level). The VaR model used, by the Bank is based upon a 99 percent confidence level and assumes 1-day and 

a 10-day holding period. The VaR model used is based mainly on historical simulation. Taking account of market data from the previous two 

years and observed relationships between different markets and prices, the model generates a wide range of plausible future scenarios for 

market price movements.

 Although VaR is an important tool for measuring market risk, the assumptions on which the model is based give rise to some limitations, 

including the following:

 The 1-day and 10-day holding periods assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of positions within those periods. This may not be the 

case for illiquid assets or in situations in which there is severe general market liquidity.

 A 99 percent confidence level does not reflect losses that may occur beyond this level. Even within the model used, there is a one percent 

probability that losses could exceed the VaR.

 VaR is calculated on an end-of-day basis and does not reflect exposures that may arise on positions during the trading day.

 The use of historical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future outcomes, may not always cover all possible scenarios, 

especially those of an exceptional nature.

 The VaR measure is dependent upon the Bank’s position and the volatility of market prices. The VaR of an unchanged position reduces if 

market price volatility declines and vice versa.

 The Bank uses VaR limits for foreign exchange and equity risks. The overall structure of VaR limits is subject to review and approval by ALCO. 

VaR limits are allocated to portfolios. VaR is measured at least monthly and reported to ALCO.

 The Bank’s VaR models are subject to regular validation by Treasury Mid Office (TMO) to ensure that they continue to perform as expected and 

that assumptions used in model development are still appropriate.

 A summary of the VaR position of the Bank as at 31st December and during the period is as follows:

As at 31st December Average Maximum Minimum

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

2016

Foreign currency risk (USD NOP)* 16,639 13,324 17,592 7,416

Equity risk 32,280 30,176 32,710 26,150

2015

Foreign currency risk (USD NOP)* 12,647 4,788 12,647 1,059

Equity risk 26,471 27,618 32,432 23,365

 * Only USD exposure has been considered as it represents over 98.52% of the foreign currency transactions.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD.)
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4.5.2 Exposure to Market Risk (Contd.)

 The limitations of the VaR methodology are recognised by supplementing VaR limits with other risk measures. The Bank uses a wide range 

of stress tests to model the financial impact of a variety of exceptional market scenarios such as changes in exchange rates, interest rates and 

prices of financial instruments such as equities and bonds. The results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

4.5.3 Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

 The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of 

financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. The Bank manages the interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits, 

which is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities to various rate scenarios. Net interest yields are 

also calculated for each product, to ensure adequate margins are kept.

 The Bank holds treasury bills and bonds with shorter maturities, thus the impact of interest rate changes on treasury bill and bond prices are 

very minimal. Modified duration of both the trading and non-trading portfolios as at 31st December is given below.

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Trading - -

Non trading 2.5166 2.4342

 Modified duration follows the concept that the interest rates and bond prices move in opposite directions. This determines the effect that a 

100 basis point (1%) change in interest rates will have on the price of a bond.

 An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity to an increase or decrease in market interest rates based on rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabilities 

as at 31st December 2016 is as follows.

Decrease of Decrease of Increase of Increase of

100 bps 200 bps 100 bps 200 bps

LKR Portfolio (Rs 000)  (794,843)  (1,630,310) 755,947 1,474,800

USD Portfolio (USD 000)  (4,636)  (9,607) 4,332 8,387

4.6 Capital Management

 The Bank’s capital management objectives can be summarised as follows:

 • Maintain sufficient capital to meet minimum regulatory capital requirements

 • Hold sufficient capital to support the Bank’s risk appetite

 • Allocate capital to businesses to support the Bank’s strategic objectives

 • Ensure that the Bank maintains capital in order to achieve debt rating objectives and to withstand the impact of potential stress events

 Regulatory capital

 The Bank manages its capital considering regulatory capital requirements. The Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) sets and monitors capital 

requirements for licensed banks in Sri Lanka based on the Basel Framework. Thus the Bank’s operations are directly supervised by the CBSL and 

the Bank is required to comply with the provisions of the Basel II framework in respect of regulatory capital and capital to cover any additional 

risk. Commercial banks in Sri Lanka need to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10% and a core capital ratio (Tier 1) of at 

least 5% . Historically the Bank has been maintaining CAR well above the regulatory minimum.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD.)

4.4 Liquidity Risk (Contd.)
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Accounting Policy

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 

transfer the liability takes place either:

• in the principal market for the asset or liability or

• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1 - Valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active 

markets

• Level 2 - Valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets 

or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all 

significant inputs are observable.

• Level 3 - Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or 

more significant inputs are unobservable.

Level 1

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument or dealer 

price quotations (assets and long positions are measured at a bid price, liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price), 

without any deduction for transaction costs.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market 

transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Group establishes fair value using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques 

include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of 

other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. The chosen valuation technique 

makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Group, incorporates all factors that market 

participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. 

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial 

instrument. The Group calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in 

the same instrument, or based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the 

consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market 

transactions in the same instrument, i.e. without modification or repackaging, or based on a valuation technique whose variables include 

only data from observable markets. When a transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial 

instrument is initially measured at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value initially obtained from a 

valuation model, is subsequently recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument, but not later than when 

the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

Level 3

Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques, in which current market transactions or observable 

market data are not available. Their fair value is determined using a valuation model that has been tested against prices or inputs to actual 

market transactions and using the Bank’s best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. Models are adjusted to reflect the 

spread for bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out positions, credit and debit valuation adjustments, liquidity spread and limitations in 

the models. Also, profit or loss calculated when such financial instruments are first recorded (day-1 profit or loss) is deferred and recognised 

only when the inputs become observable or on de-recognition of the instrument.

Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and the 

counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity risk or model 

uncertainties; to the extent that the Group believes a third-party market participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction.
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5 FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTD.)

5.1 Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value

 A description of how fair values are determined for assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques is summarised 

below, which incorporates the bank’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments.

 Derivative financial instruments

 Derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps are valued, using a valuation technique with 

market observable inputs (Level 2). The most frequently applied valuation technique is forward pricing model which incorporates various inputs, 

including foreign exchange spot and forward premiums.

 Financial investments - available for sale

 Government debt securities classified as financial investments - available-for-sale are valued using current yield rates or market rates published 

by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. Quoted equities and units classified as financial investments - available-for-sale are valued using quoted 

market prices in the active markets as at the reporting date (Level 1). Unquoted units classified as financial investments - available-for-sale are 

valued using manager’s selling price. Unquoted shares classified as financial investments - available-for-sale are valued at cost.

 Financial investments fair value through profit or loss

 Government debt securities classified as financial investments fair value through profit or loss are valued using yield curves published by the 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka, while quoted equities classified as financial investments fair value through profit or loss are valued using quoted 

market prices in active markets as at the reporting date (Level 1). Unquoted units classified as financial investments fair value through profit or 

loss are valued using manager’s selling price.

 Freehold land and buildings

 Fair value of freehold land and buildings (revalued amount) is determined using the depreciated replacement cost basis of valuation and market 

comparable method (Level 3), which as a basis of valuation is the sum of;

1). The open market value of the land for its existing use plus

2). The current gross replacement cost of the buildings and their site works less an allowance for all appropriate factors such as age, 

condition, functional and environmental obsolescence which result in the existing property being worthless than a new replacement.

5.2 Valuation Model

 The fair values are measured using the fair value hierarchy.

 For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, 

independent price determination or validation is obtained. In an inactive market, direct observation of a traded price may not be possible. In 

these circumstances, the Bank uses alternative market information to validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to 

information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

 The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Bank’s freehold land and buildings at least once in every three years according to the 

Bank’s policy. The Bank carried out a revaluation of it’s freehold land and buildings in 2016. The methods used to determine the fair value of 

freehold land and buildings are explained in Note 38 (b) to the financial statements.
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5.3 Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value - Fair Value Hierarchy

 The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy, into which the fair value 
measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position.

Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Financial assets measured at fair value

Derivative financial instruments
Currency swaps  -    255,902  -    255,902 -  255,902 -  255,902 
Forward foreign exchange contracts  -    34,087  -    34,087 -  34,087 -  34,087 

 -    289,989  -    289,989 -  289,989 -  289,989 
Financial investments fair value through profit or loss
Quoted shares  544,915  -    -    544,915  690,094 - -  690,094 
Quoted units  -    -    -    -    10,296 - -  10,296 
Unquoted units  -    -    -    -   -  1,036 -  1,036 
Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds  -    -    -    -    14,583 - -  14,583 

 544,915  -    -    544,915  714,973  1,036 -  716,009 
Financial investments available-for-sale
Quoted shares  4,936,537  -    -    4,936,537  5,079,477 - -  5,079,477 
Quoted units  270,000  -    -    270,000  270,000 - -  270,000 
Unquoted shares - -  25,405  25,405 - -  37,835  37,835 
Unquoted units  -    388,108  -    388,108 -  388,108 -  388,108 
Government of Sri Lanka treasury bills  31,579,089  -    -    31,579,089  32,881,462 - -  32,881,462 
Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds  52,716,014  -    -    52,716,014  57,140,260 - -  57,140,260 

 89,501,640  388,108  25,405  89,915,153  95,371,199  388,108  37,835  95,797,142 

Non-financial assets measured at fair value
Freehold land and buildings  -    -    11,413,989  11,413,989 - -  25,374,381  25,374,381 

 -    -    11,413,989  11,413,989 - -  25,374,381  25,374,381 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative financial instruments
Currency swaps  -    586,229  -    586,229 -  586,229 -  586,229 
Forward foreign exchange contracts  -    79,661  -    79,661 -  79,661 -  79,661 

-  665,890 -  665,890 -  665,890 -  665,890 

Bank Group

As at 31st December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Financial assets measured at fair value

Derivative financial instruments
Currency swaps -  1,163,561 -  1,163,561 -  1,163,561 -  1,163,561 
Forward foreign exchange contracts -  139,311 -  139,311 -  139,311 -  139,311 

-  1,302,872 -  1,302,872 -  1,302,872 -  1,302,872 
Financial investments fair value through profit or loss
Quoted shares  593,390 - -  593,390  829,689 - -  829,689 
Quoted units - - - -  10,708 - -  10,708 
Unquoted units - - - - -  229,699 -  229,699 
Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - - - -  878,676 - -  878,676 

 593,390 - -  593,390  1,719,073  229,699 -  1,948,772 
Financial investments available for sale
Quoted shares  6,635,080 - -  6,635,080  6,835,384 - -  6,835,384 
Quoted units  280,800 - -  280,800  280,800 - -  280,800 
Unquoted shares - -  25,405  25,405 - -  37,835  37,835 
Unquoted units -  193,377 -  193,377 -  193,377 -  193,377 
Government of Sri Lanka treasury bills  31,557,730 - -  31,557,730  31,606,222 - -  31,606,222 
Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds  39,354,113 - -  39,354,113  40,764,613 - -  40,764,613 

 77,827,723  193,377  25,405  78,046,505  79,487,019  193,377  37,835  79,718,231 

Non-financial assets measured at fair value
Freehold land and buildings - -  9,138,545  9,138,545 - -  19,729,723  19,729,723 
Non current assets held for sale - - 20,151 20,151 - - 20,151 20,151

- -  9,158,696  9,158,696 - -  19,749,874  19,749,874 
Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivative financial instruments
Currency swaps -  91,491 -  91,491 -  91,491 -  91,491 
Forward foreign exchange contracts -  212,994 -  212,994 -  212,994 -  212,994 

-  304,485 -  304,485 -  304,485 -  304,485 

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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5 FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTD.)

5.4 Level 3 Fair Value Measurement

5.4 (a) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets Classified as “Level 3” in the Fair Value Hierarchy

5.4 (a) i Unquoted Equity Securities accounted as Financial Investments - Available-for-sale

2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  25,405  34,644 

Impairment provision during the year  -    (12,384)

Investments made during the year  -    3,145 

Balance as at 31st December  25,405  25,405 

 Rs 12.4 Mn impairment provision was made during 2015 in respect of investments in Lanka Rating Agency Ltd and S.W.I.F.T. which is recorded 

in Note 14 ‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses’.

5.4 (a) ii Property, Plant and Equipment

 The reconciliation of property, plant and equipment is given in Note 38 to the financial statements.

5.4 (b) Unobservable Inputs used in Measuring Fair Value

 The information about significant unobservable inputs used in measuring financial instruments categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy 

as at 31st December 2016 is given in Note 38 (b) to the financial statements.

5.5 Fair value of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

 The following table summarises the carrying amounts and the Group’s estimate of fair values of those assets and liabilities not presented in the 

statement of financial position at fair value. The fair values in the table below may be different from the actual amounts that will be received / 

paid on the settlement or maturity of the asset or liability. For certain instruments, the fair value may be determined, using assumptions which 

are not observable in the market.

Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Fair Value

 Total

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Fair Value

 Total

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets 

Loans and receivables to customers  584,412,727  -    556,802,087  -    556,802,087  597,467,460 -  569,792,300  -    569,792,300 

Financial investments - Held to maturity - - - - -  465,081  468,138  -   -  468,138 

Financial investments - Loans and receivables  99,260,699  -    98,772,966  -    98,772,966  102,063,229  -    101,288,303  -    101,288,303 

Investment properties 403,959 - - 3,538,583 3,538,583 1,054,300 - - 2,097,500 2,097,500

Liabilities  -    -   

Due to customers  623,494,969  -    622,724,013  -    624,724,013  635,371,097 -  635,598,540  -    635,598,540 

Debt securities issued  4,653,057  -    4,244,179  -    4,244,179  5,115,801 -  5,102,460 -  5,102,460 

Subordinated term debts  26,153,476  -    26,215,790  -    26,215,790  25,901,110 -  25,889,460 -  25,889,460 
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5.5 Fair value of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value (Contd.)

Bank Group

As at 31st December 2015 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets 

Loans and receivables to customers 498,341,628 -   495,961,362 -   495,961,362 507,244,329 504,864,063 -   504,864,063

Financial investments - Held to maturity - - - - - 1,257,433 1,274,963 -   1,274,963

Financial investments - Loans and receivables 84,206,702 -   84,152,729 -   84,152,729 87,087,206 -   86,989,529 -   86,989,529

Investment properties 386,643 - - 2,390,400 2,390,400 1,041,797 - - 1,850,780 1,850,780

Liabilities

Due to customers 527,126,181 -   529,280,510 -   529,280,510 536,132,789 - 538,430,241 -   538,430,241

Debt securities issued 4,490,742 -   4,615,375 -   4,615,375 4,913,751 4,972,240 4,972,240

Subordinated term debts 12,064,370 -   13,809,598 -   13,809,598 12,085,598 13,766,240 13,766,240

 Fair values of the following assets and liabilities are estimated for the purpose of disclosure as described below:

 Loans and receivables to customers

 The loans and receivables to customers comprise of both fixed rate loans and floating rate loans. Majority of the floating rate loans can be 

re-priced either quarterly or semi-annually while for fixed rate loans, the loan contract allows the Bank to change the contracted rate if there 

is a material difference between the contracted rate and the market rate. The carrying value of floating rate loans generally approximates the 

fair value due to the effect of re-pricing while the fair value of loans and receivables to customers with a residual maturity of less than one year 

generally approximates the carrying value, subject to any significant movement in credit spreads.

 The estimated fair value of loans and receivables with a residual maturity of more than one year, is the present value of future cash flows 

expected to be received from such loans and receivables calculated based on interest rates at the reporting date for similar types of loans and 

receivables.

 Financial investments - Loans and receivables

 Financial investments - loans and receivables comprise of investments in Sri Lanka development bonds, Sri Lanka sovereign bonds, long term 

non-negotiable bond, quoted and unquoted debentures.

 Sri Lanka development bonds are variable rate instruments where the re-pricing happens semi-annually. Thus the carrying value of these 

bonds approximates to their fair value as at the reporting date. The fair values of Sri Lanka sovereign bonds are valued using quoted market 

prices while the fair value of unquoted debentures are estimated as the present value of future cash flows expected to be received from such 

investments calculated based on interest rates at the reporting date for similar instruments.

 Financial investments - Held to maturity

 Financial investments - Held to maturity comprise of Government debt securities. These are valued using current yield rates or market rates 

published by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

 Due to customers

 The fair value of customer deposits which are repayable on demand or have a remaining contractual maturity of less than one year, 

approximates to the carrying value of such deposits.

 The fair value of customer deposits with a contractual maturity of more than one year, is estimated as the present value of future cash flows 

expected from such deposits calculated based on interest rates at the reporting date for similar types of deposits.

 Debt securities issued

 The fair value of debt securities issued has been determined by discounting the future cash flows by the interest rates prevailing as at the 

reporting date for similar instruments.
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5.5 Fair value of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value (Contd.)

 Subordinated term debts

 Subordinated term debts include the subordinated debentures and the subordinated loan obtained from German Development Financial 

Institution (DEG). The subordinated loan has a variable interest rate, resulting in a carrying value approximating to fair value as at the reporting 

date.

 In respect of fixed rate subordinated debentures, fair value has been determined by discounting the future cash flows by the interest rates 

prevailing as at the reporting date for similar instruments.

 Investment properties

 Fair value of the investment properties is determined using the income approach, market comparable method and depreciated replacement 

cost basis.

 The carrying values of assets and liabilities listed below are reasonable approximation of their fair values since, those are short term in nature or 

re-priced to current market rates frequently:

Assets Liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents Due to banks

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Placements with banks Other borrowings

Securities purchased under resale agreements Dividends payable

Other assets Other liabilities

 Reclassification of financial assets 

 There have been no reclassifications during 2016 and 2015.

 6  NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT REPORTING DATE

 The following new accounting standards/amendments were issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Sri Lanka which are not 

yet effective as at 31 December 2016. Accordingly these accounting standards have not been applied in the preparation of the financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

 In July 2014, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka issued SLFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (on par with International Accounting 

Standards Board), the standard that will replace LKAS 39 “Financial Instruments - Recognition and measurement” for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1st January 2018, with early adoption permitted.

 Bank performed the diagnostic phase (impact assessment exercise) and identified the gaps. Bank is yet to commence the implementation phase 

based on the diagnostic findings.

 Impairment of Financial Assets

 SLFRS 9 will fundamentally change the loan loss impairment methodology. The standard will replace incurred loss approach of LKAS 39 - 

“Financial Instruments - Recognition” with a forward-looking expected loss (ECL) approach. The bank will be required to record an allowance 

for expected losses for all loans and other debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss, together with loan commitments and 

financial guarantee contracts.

 The impairment methodology under SLFRS 9 requires impairment to be assessed under 3 stages.

 Stage 01

 In accordance with LKAS 39 the bank has been recording an allowance for Incurred But Not Identified (IBNI) impairment losses. These are 

designed to reflect impairment losses that had been incurred in the performing portfolio but have not been identified. In accordance with 

SLFRS 9, the impairment of financial assets that are not considered to have suffered a significant increase in their credit risk, will be measured 

on a 12 month expected credit loss (12 month ECL) basis. 
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 Stage 02

 SLFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified in stage 2, when their credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition. For 

these assets, a loss allowance needs to be recognised based on their lifetime Expected Credit Losses (lifetime ECLs). Since this is a new concept 

compared to LKAS 39, it will result in increased allowance, as most of such assets are not considered to be credit-impaired under LKAS 39.

 Stage 03

 Financial assets will be included in stage 3 when there is objective evidence that the loan is credit impaired.

 Loans in stage 3, where the bank calculated the LKAS 39 impairment on an individual basis are not expected to be significantly different, but 

collateral values will be adjusted to reflect the amounts that can be expected to be realised.

 Classification and measurement

 From a classification and measurement perspective, the new standard will require all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, 

to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow 

characteristics. The LKAS 39  measurement categories will be replaced by: Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL), Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) and amortised cost.

 The accounting for financial liabilities will largely be the same as the requirements of LKAS 39, except for the treatment of gains or losses  

arising from  an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities designated at FVPL.

 SLFRS 15 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

 SLFRS 15 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018 with early adoption permitted. SLFRS 15 defines principles for 

recognising revenue and will be applicable to all contracts with customers. However, interest and fee income integral to financial instruments 

and leases will continue to fall outside the scope of SLFRS 15 and will be regulated by the other applicable standards (e.g., SLFRS 9 and 

SLFRS 16).

 Revenue under SLFRS 15 will need to be recognised as goods and services are transferred, to the extent that the transferor anticipates 

entitlement to goods and services. The standard will also specify a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements regarding the nature, extent 

and timing, as well as any uncertainty of revenue and corresponding cash flows with customers. The bank does not anticipate early adoption of 

SLFRS 15. 

 A preliminary evaluation of the existing contracts which falls mainly under fee and commission income of the bank has been performed in 

relation to the adoption of SLFRS 15. The bank’s current assessment has not revealed a significant change to the revenue recognition pattern. 

However, the bank is currently in the process of evaluating and quantifying the accounting impact and the current systems and processes will 

be modified where necessary.

 SLFRS 16 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - “Leases”        

SLFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 

months or less or the underlying asset has a low value even though lessor’s accounting remains similar to current practice. This supersedes: Sri 

Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease”, SIC 15 “Operating Leases 

- Incentives”; and SIC 27 “Evaluating the substance of Transactions Involving the Legal form of a Lease”. Earlier application is permitted for 

entities that apply SLFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.       

  

 SLFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The impact on the implementation of the above 

standard has not been quantified yet by the Group.

 Amendments to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses 

 The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make 

deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should 

determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than 

the carrying amount.
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 Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening 

equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), 

without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose 

that fact.

 These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted. If an entity applies 

the amendments for an earlier period, it must disclose that fact. This amendment is not expected to have a material impact on the Group/Bank

 Amendments to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative “Statement of Cash Flows”

 The amendments to LKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” are part of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka’s Disclosure Initiative 

and require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing 

activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application of the amendment, entities are not 

required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2017, with early application permitted. Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures to be provided by the Group.

 Amendments to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 2 “Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 

Transactions”

 The  Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka issued amendments to SLFRS 2 “Share based Payment” that address three main areas: 

the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based 

payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the terms and 

conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

 On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective application is permitted if elected 

for all three amendments and other criteria are met. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 

with early application permitted. The impact on the implementation of the above standard has not been quantified yet by the Group.

6.1  Amendments to existing accounting standards effective from 1st January 2016

 SLFRS 14 Sri Lanka Accounting Standard “Regulatory Deferral Account”

 The objective of this standard is to specify the financial reporting requirements for regulatory deferral account balances that arise when an 

entity provides goods or services to customers at a price or rate that is subject to rate regulation.

 SLFRS 14 was effective from 1st January 2016. This standard did not have any impact on the financial statements of the Group.

 Amendments to Existing Accounting Standards Effective From 1st January 2016

 Amendments to existing accounting standards effective from 1st January 2016 as published by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Sri Lanka did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.      
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7 GROSS INCOME

Accounting Policy

Gross revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably 

measured. The specific recognition criteria, for each type of gross income, are given under the respective income notes.

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income [Note 8 (a)] 75,608,193 52,615,463 81,533,502 56,893,956

Fee and commission income (Note 9) 7,139,253 5,874,928 7,905,879 6,426,080

Net gain / (loss) from trading (Note 10) (1,795,691) 196,993 (1,824,452) 212,364

Net gain from financial investments (Note 11) 111,713 253,858 103,165 297,978

Net insurance premium income (Note 12) - - 5,490,712 4,679,897

Other operating income (Note 13) 3,287,355 2,212,224 2,781,965 1,516,423

 84,350,823 61,153,466 95,990,771 70,026,698

8 NET INTEREST INCOME

Accounting Policy

Interest income and expenses are allocated over the relevant period using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, for all financial 

instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available-for-sale and financial instruments at fair value 

through profit or loss.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 

financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When 

calculating the effective Interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but will 

not consider future credit losses. The calculation Includes all fees and points received or paid between parties to the contract that are an 

integral part of the effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted, if the Bank revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The 

adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income for 

financial assets and interest expense for financial liabilities. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the Bank subsequently 

increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is 

recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in estimate.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest 

income continues to be recognised, using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the 

impairment loss.

8 (a) Interest Income

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cash and cash equivalents 17,355 15,308 38,062 24,208

Placements with banks 150,222 57,791 272,508 172,399

Securities purchased under resale agreements 172,388 359,740 336,660 598,848

Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 25,202 37,787 25,202 37,787

Loans and receivables to customers 61,127,471 43,647,464 65,912,111 47,081,333

Financial investments - available for sale 8,664,720 5,476,808 9,164,289 5,621,962

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 18 706 7,828 9,555

Financial investments - held to maturity - - 76,253 70,146

Financial investments - loans and receivables 5,396,078 2,958,752 5,697,782 3,268,218

Other interest income 54,739 61,107 2,807 9,500

 75,608,193 52,615,463 81,533,502 56,893,956
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8 NET INTEREST INCOME (CONTD.)

8 (b) Interest Expenses

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Due to banks 2,654,793 1,637,739 2,655,424 1,643,354

Deposits from customers (due to customers) 32,622,175 21,216,749 33,705,430 22,031,573

Debt securities issued 437,802 430,942 544,907 513,805

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 2,222,760 889,104 2,222,760 889,104

Subordinated term debts 2,004,159 1,238,902 2,021,206 1,255,902

Other borrowings 1,282,050 844,599 1,282,050 844,599

Other interest expenses 12,866 21,899 12,866 21,899

 41,236,605 26,279,934 42,444,643 27,200,236

8 (c) Net Interest Income from Sri Lanka Government Securities

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income 13,034,389 8,137,779 13,846,507 8,678,537

Less : Interest expenses 2,222,760 889,104 2,222,760 889,104

Net interest income from Sri Lanka Government Securities 10,811,629 7,248,675  11,623,747 7,789,433

 Notional tax credit for withholding tax on government securities on secondary market transactions.

 Section 137 of the Inland Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 provides that a company which derives interest income from the secondary market 

transactions in government securities be entitled to a notional tax credit (being one ninth of the net interest income) provided such interest 

income forms part of the statutory income of the company for that year of assessment.

 Accordingly, net income earned from secondary market transactions in government securities for the year by the Bank / Group has been 

grossed up in the financial statements and the resulting notional tax credit amounted to Rs 664 Mn (2015 : Rs 486.8 Mn) for the Bank and 

Rs 720.5 Mn (2015 : Rs 523.44 Mn) for the Group.

9 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Accounting policy

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers which can be divided in to the 

following two categories.

(a) Fee and commission income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time

 Fee and commission earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.

(b) Fee and commission income from providing transaction services

 Fee and commission income arising from renegotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party are 

recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are 

recognised as the related services are performed.

Fees and commission expenses relating to transaction and service fees are expensed as the services are received. Fee and commission 

expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Notes to the Financial Statements



237
Hatton National Bank PLC

Annual Report 2016

9 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (CONTD.)

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Fee and commission income 7,139,253 5,874,928 7,905,879 6,426,080 

Less: Fee and commission expenses 90,594 98,622 180,531 182,093 

Net fee and commission income 7,048,659 5,776,306 7,725,348 6,243,987 

Comprising

 Loans 1,379,067 1,017,821 2,007,816 1,468,930 

 Cards 1,952,300 1,530,098 1,952,300 1,530,098 

 Trade and remittances 1,467,683 1,370,938 1,467,683 1,370,938 

 Deposits 759,647 667,229 667,772 583,362 

 Guarantees 850,965 699,330 850,965 699,330 

 Currency 77,975 86,570 77,975 86,570 

 Others 561,022 404,320 700,837 504,759 

Net fee and commission income 7,048,659 5,776,306 7,725,348 6,243,987 

10 NET GAIN / (LOSS) FROM TRADING

Accounting policy

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from realised and unrealised fair value changes, related capital gains and 

losses, dividend income of financial assets “held for trading” and gains/(losses) from revaluation of derivative financial instruments.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Derivative financial instruments are fair valued at each reporting date. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in the 

statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

 

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

 Financial investments - Held for trading

Fixed income

 Net marked to market gain / (loss) - (52) (11,000) 12,926 

 Net capital gain / (loss) 323 13,898 323 (3,014)

Equities

 Net marked to market loss (44,604) (8,773) (52,732) (16,990)

 Net capital gain / (loss) 4,389 18,846 (13,042) 18,898 

 Dividend income 19,578 18,117 27,376 45,587 

Derivative financial instruments

 Gain / (loss) on revaluation of foreign currency derivatives

  - With banks (1,789,930) 158,482 (1,789,930) 158,482

  - With customers 14,553 (3,525) 14,553 (3,525)

Total net gain / (loss) from trading (1,795,691) 196,993 (1,824,452) 212,364 
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11 NET GAIN FROM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Accounting policy

Net gain from financial investments includes capital gains / (losses) and dividend income of financial investments - available-for-sale.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established. 

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Fixed income

 Net capital gain / (loss) - - (14,466) 30,358 

Equities

 Net capital gain - - - 13,708 

 Dividend income 111,713 253,858 117,631 253,912 

Total net gain from financial investments 111,713 253,858 103,165 297,978

12 NET INSURANCE PREMIUM INCOME

Accounting Policy

Insurance Premiums

Life Insurance Business

Gross recurring premiums on life insurance contracts are recognised as revenue when payable by the policyholder (policies within the 30 day 

grace period are considered as due). Premiums received in advance, are not recorded as revenue and recorded as liability until the premium 

is due, unless otherwise the relevant policy conditions require such premiums to be recognised as income. Benefits and expenses are 

provided against such revenue to recognise profits over the estimated life of the policies.

For single premium business, revenue is recognised on the date on which the policy is effective.

General Insurance Business

Gross general insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums received /receivable for the whole period of cover provided by 

contracts entered into during the accounting period. Gross written premium generally recognised is written upon inception of the policy. 

Upon inception of the contract, premiums are recorded as written and are earned primarily on a pro-rata basis over the term of the related 

policy coverage.

Rebates that form part of the premium rate, such as no-claim rebates, are deducted from the gross premium.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned 

premiums are calculated on 1/24th basis except for the marine policies which are computed on a 60-40 basis, in accordance with the 

Regulation of Insurance Industry Act, No. 43 of 2000. However, for those contracts for which the period of risk differs significantly from the 

contract period, premiums are earned over the period of risk in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. The proportion 

attributable to subsequent periods, is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums which is included under liabilities.

Reinsurance Premiums

Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as an expense on the earlier of the date when premiums are payable or 

when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are decided based on rates agreed with reinsurers.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year, that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. 

Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts (using 

1/24th basis except for the marine policies which are computed on a 60-40 basis in accordance with the Regulation of Insurance Industry 

Act, No 43 of 2000).

Notes to the Financial Statements
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12 NET INSURANCE PREMIUM INCOME (CONTD.)

  Group

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Gross insurance premium income   6,549,527 5,401,658 

Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance premium income   (877,713) (599,084)

Net written premium   5,671,814 4,802,574 

Net change in reserves for unearned premium   (181,102) (122,677)

Net insurance premium income   5,490,712 4,679,897 

13 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Accounting Policy

Other operating income includes rental income, dividend income from group entities, gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

and foreign exchange gains and losses.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividend income from subsidiaries and joint venture

Dividend income from subsidiaries and joint venture is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets including 

investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for, in the statement of profit or loss after deducting from the 

proceeds on disposal, the carrying amount of such assets and the related selling expenses.

Foreign exchange gain

Foreign currency positions are revalued at each reporting date. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in the 

statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Auditorium hire income 3,550 2,627 3,550 2,627 

Dividend income from subsidiaries and joint venture 757,061 964,859 - - 

Foreign exchange gain / (loss) 

 - With banks 1,142,176 3,888 1,150,994 15,833

 - With customers 1,219,536 1,105,084 1,219,536 1,105,084

Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale 3,556 763 3,556 763 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 4,379 14,805 1,807 14,722

Loss on disposal of investment properties - - (550) - 

Rental income 8,821 10,211 190,821 195,829 

Rental income from investment properties 92,293 80,978 112,697 101,403 

Recovery of loans written off in prior years 34,014 19,989 52,881 33,267 

Recovery of operational losses provided for in prior years 788 526 788 526 

Miscellaneous 21,181 8,494 45,885 46,369 

 3,287,355 2,212,224 2,781,965 1,516,423 
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14 IMPAIRMENT CHARGE / (REVERSAL) FOR LOANS AND OTHER LOSSES

Accounting Policy

The Group recognise the changes in the impairment provisions for loans and receivables, which are assessed as per Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - LKAS 39 on “Financial Instruments : Recognition and Measurement”. The methodology adopted for impairment is explained in 

Note 31 (b) to the financial statements. The Bank also makes provisions/(write-backs) for impairment of financial investments - available-

for-sale and financial investments - loans and receivables when there is a permanent diminution in the carrying value of these investments. 

Further, Group recognises an impairment loss when the carrying amount of a non-financial asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount 

from that asset.

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Loans and receivables to customers

 Individual impairment 250,783 700,325 250,783 700,325 

 Collective impairment 12,333 137,386 278,959 227,572 

 Direct write offs 727 2,421 727 2,421 

 Others 9,669 40,551 9,669 40,648 

Financial investments - available-for-sale - 12,384 4,373 12,384 

Financial investments - loans and receivables 397 (711) 397 (711)

Property, plant and equipment (Note 38) (41,219) 39,569 (41,219) 39,472

Charge / (reversal) of impairment write-off 4,470 - 4,470 - 

 237,160 931,925 508,159 1,022,111

15 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Accounting policy

Personnel expenses include salaries and bonus, terminal benefit charges and other related expenses. Short-term employee benefit 

obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the 

amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 

to pay this amount, as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF) contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) contributions in accordance with 

the respective statutes and regulations.

Defined benefit plan contributions and changes in the liabilities for EPF interest guarantee and accumulated leave are recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss based on actuarial valuations carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 19 on 

“Employee Benefits”.

The Group’s net obligation to the pension fund, gratuity, EPF interest guarantee and unutilised accumulated annual leave is disclosed under 

Note 53 to the financial statements.

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Salaries and bonus 7,238,790 6,552,778 8,733,832 7,604,361 

Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund 542,246 519,905 666,323 615,905 

Contributions to Employees’ Trust Fund 138,681 129,965 169,661 153,965 

Contribution to defined benefit plan [Note 15 (a)] 419,438 404,951 475,863 460,833 

Increase in liability for EPF interest guarantee 3,197 15,877 3,197 15,877 

Increase / (decrease) in liability for accumulated leave 4,030 (3,244) 4,030 (3,244)

Others 357,193 307,463 363,193 307,463 

 8,703,575 7,927,695 10,416,099 9,155,160 
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15 PERSONNEL EXPENSES (CONTD.)

15 (a) Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Current service cost 527,676 546,842 527,676 546,842 

Net interest on defined benefit asset (108,238) (141,891) (108,238) (141,891)

Provision for gratuities - - 56,425 55,882 

 419,438 404,951 475,863 460,833

16 BENEFITS, CLAIMS AND UNDERWRITING EXPENDITURE

Accounting Policy

Gross Benefits and Claims

Life Insurance Business

Claims by death and maturity are charged against revenue on notification of death or on expiry of the term. The interim payments and 

surrenders are accounted for only at the time of settlement.

Expenses on life insurance relates to the acquisition expenses and expenses for maintenance of life insurance business, investment related 

expenses not treated as part of the capital cost of investment, etc. which are accounted on accrual basis.

General Insurance Business

General insurance claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, together with claims handling costs that are 

directly related to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments 

to claims outstanding from previous years. Claims outstanding are assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating changes in the 

ultimate cost of settling claims.

The provision in respect of Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and Claims Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) is actuarially 

valued to ensure a more realistic estimation of the future liability, based on the past experience and trends. Actuarial valuations are 

performed on a semi-annual basis.

Whilst the directors of HNB Assurance PLC, subsidiary of the Bank consider that the provisions for claims are fairly stated on the basis 

of information currently available, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and events. This may result in 

adjustments to the amounts provided. Such amounts are reflected in the financial statements for that period.

The methods used to estimate claims and the estimates made are reviewed regularly.

Reinsurance Claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of the relevant contract.

Deferred Acquisition Expenses

Acquisition expenses, representing commissions, which vary with and are directly related to the production of business, are deferred and 

amortised over the period in which the related written premiums are earned.

Reinsurance commission is also treated in the same manner within deferred acquisition costs.

  Group

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Net insurance benefits and claims paid   1,966,759 1,984,358 

Net change in insurance claims outstanding   (19,114) 133,431 

Change in contract liabilities - Life fund   1,708,285 1,462,100 

Underwriting and net acquisition costs   915,459 632,107 

   4,571,389 4,211,996
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17 OTHER EXPENSES

Accounting Policy

Other operating expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred 

and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and maintaining the property, plant 

and equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to the statement of profit or loss in arriving at the profit of the year. Provisions in 

respect of other expenses are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 

made of the amount of the obligation.

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Advertising and related expenses 263,156 270,024 305,483 372,254 

Auditors’ remuneration [Note 17 (a)] 18,906 14,793 27,070 24,872 

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 39) 220,138 220,613 260,357 244,835 

Business promotion and product expenses 631,952 482,584 631,952 482,584 

Depreciation of investment property (Note 37) 5,471 5,445 4,813 4,810 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 38) 810,321 740,538 1,128,658 1,001,399 

Direct operating expenses on investment property 1,257 3,562 7,380 4,982 

Debenture issue expenses 35,233 - 35,233 - 

Deposit insurance premium 664,611 448,503 680,775 460,218 

Directors’ emoluments 95,514 86,905 110,090 96,581 

Donations 20,451 12,819 24,751 19,110 

Crop insurance levy 113,473 108,379 133,541 118,288 

Legal expenses and professional fees 88,814 79,188 98,662 84,374 

Operational risk event losses 28,526 81,397 28,526 81,397 

Office administration and establishment expenses 5,562,306 4,908,351 5,600,631 4,979,948 

Other overhead expenses 1,024,175 587,128 1,707,222 1,117,484 

 9,584,304 8,114,040 10,785,144 9,093,136 

17 (a) Auditors’ Remuneration

Audit fees and expenses 10,899 10,283 18,410 19,709 

Audit related fee and expenses 2,262 1,458 2,915 2,111 

Non-audit expenses 5,745 3,052 5,745 3,052 

 18,906 14,793 27,070 24,872 

18 VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) AND NATION BUILDING TAX (NBT) ON FINANCIAL SERVICES

 The base of the calculation of Value Added Tax (VAT) and Nation Building Tax (NBT) on financial services is the operating profit before value 

added tax and nation building tax on financial services adjusted for emoluments of employees and economic depreciation.

 VAT rates applied during 2016 were as follows (2015 - 11%):

 Period Rate

 1st January 2016 - 1st May 2016 11%

 2nd May 2016 - 11th July 2016 15%

 12th July 2016 - 30th October 2016 11%

 1st November 2016 - 31st December 2016 15%

 The NBT rate applied in 2016 is 2% (2015 - 2%)

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Value Added Tax on financial services 3,787,448 2,381,359 4,114,963 2,590,622 

Nation Building Tax on financial services 565,308 432,975 619,986 471,161 

 4,352,756 2,814,334 4,734,949 3,061,783 
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19 SHARE OF PROFIT OF JOINT VENTURE (NET OF INCOME TAX)

Accounting Policy

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of the joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss outside 

operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the joint venture.

  Group

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Share of profit of joint venture before income tax   165,967 75,072 

Income tax on share of operating results of joint venture   (17,177) (14,987)

Share of profit of joint venture (net of income tax) [Note 35 (b)]   148,790 60,085 

20 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Accounting Policy

As per Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 12 on “Income taxes”, tax expense is the aggregate amount included in determination of 

profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, 

except to the extent it relates to items recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), in which case it is recognised in OCI.

Current Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in respect of the 

current as well as prior years. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted on 

the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity, is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns, with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Management has used its judgement on the application of tax law including transfer pricing regulation involving identification of associated 

undertaking estimation of respective arm’s length prices and selection of appropriate pricing mechanism.

Economic Service Charges (ESC)

ESC was payable at 0.25% on exempt turnover of the Bank until 31st March 2016. From 1st April 2016 onwards ESC is payable at 0.50% 

on total turnover of the Bank. ESC is deductible from the income tax payable.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts for financial reporting purposes for all Group entities.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 

combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when 

the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 

reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 

(if any), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the 

unused tax credits and unused tax losses carried forward can be utilised except;

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 

transaction, that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 

or loss

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, 

deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable 

future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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20 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTD.)

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date, and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Un-recognised deferred tax assets are 

re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates, that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the 

liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The rates 

applicable as at reporting date are given in Note 20 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity are also recognised in equity, through other comprehensive income and not in 

the statement of profit or loss deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax 

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Accordingly, provision for taxation is made on the basis of the accounting profit for the year as adjusted for taxation purposes in accordance 

with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 and the amendments thereto, at the rates specified below.

Applicable Income Tax Rates

Hatton National Bank PLC 28%

HNB Assurance PLC and its subsidiary HNB General Insurance Ltd 28%

HNB Grameen Finance Ltd 28%

Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd

In accordance with the BOI agreement dated 18th June 1999, the profits and income of Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd (company) are 

exempt from income tax until 24th January 2018. After the expiration of the said tax exemption period, the provisions of the Inland Revenue 

regulations for the time being in force shall apply to the company. However the company pays tax for the interest income earned from its 

investments at the rate of 28%.

The deferred tax liabilities / assets are disclosed under Note 49 to the financial statements.

20 (a) Current Tax Expense

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Current tax on profit for the year 5,798,826 3,888,177 6,284,983 4,208,488 

Notional tax unutilised during the year - - 56,512 29,383 

Over provision in previous years - - (3,064) - 

 5,798,826 3,888,177 6,338,431 4,237,871 

20 (b) Deferred Tax Expense

Recognition of deferred tax liability [Note 49 (a) i and 49 (a) ii] 174,698 665,240 357,834 798,092

Recognition of deferred tax asset [Note 49 (b)] 28,899 47,814 137,420 28,461

 203,597 713,054 495,254 826,553 

Total income tax expense [Note 20 (d)] 6,002,423 4,601,231 6,833,685 5,064,424 

Effective tax rate 29.79% 30.57% 30.37% 31.34%

Effective tax rate (excluding deferred tax) 28.78% 25.84% 28.17% 26.22%
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20 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTD.)

20 (c) Current Tax on Profit for the year - Subsidiaries

  Group

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Sithma Development (Pvt)Ltd   5,437 4,941

HNB Assurance PLC   59,812 29,383

HNB Grameen Finance Ltd   474,356 315,370

Total   539,605 349,694 

20 (d) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 % Rs 000 % Rs 000 % Rs 000 % Rs 000

Profit before income tax   20,145,829   15,050,017   22,498,647   16,160,268 

Tax using the corporate tax rate  28.00  5,640,832  28.00  4,214,005  28.00  6,299,622  28.00  4,524,874 

Disallowable expenses  12.03  2,422,898  10.66  1,604,802  14.97  3,366,995  11.71  1,891,762 

Tax effects on:        

 Allowable expenses  (20.61)  (4,151,094)  (25.56)  (3,846,713)  (21.10)  (4,748,215)  (26.20)  (4,233,463)

 Tax exempt income  (9.21)  (1,856,408)  (8.52)  (1,282,583)  (10.02)  (2,253,918)  (8.31)  (1,343,639)

 Adjustments for leasing  18.58  3,742,598  21.25  3,198,666  16.63  3,742,598  19.79  3,198,666 

Tax loss incurred during the year - -  -  - - -  1.89  306,006 

Tax loss utilised - -  -  - (0.54)  (122,099)  (0.84)  (135,718)

Current tax on profits for the year  28.78  5,798,826  25.84  3,888,177  27.93  6,284,983  26.04  4,208,488 

Notional tax unutilised during the year - -  -  - 0.25  56,512  0.18  29,383 

Over provision in prior years - -  -  - (0.01)  (3,064)  -  -   

Current tax expense [Note 20 (a)]  28.78  5,798,826  25.84  3,888,177  28.17  6,338,431  26.22  4,237,871 

Recognition of deferred tax liability        

 on temporary differences  0.87  174,698  4.42  665,240  1.59  357,834  4.94  798,092 

Recognition of deferred tax asset        

 on temporary differences  0.14  28,899  0.32  47,814  0.61  137,420  0.81  28,461 

Total income tax expense [Note 20 (b)]  29.79  6,002,423  30.57  4,601,231  30.37  6,833,685  31.34  5,064,424  

20 (e) Tax Losses Brought Forward and Utilised during the Year

  Group

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January    4,223,016  326,125 

Adjustment for brought forward tax losses    (53,644)  2,804,013 

Tax losses incurred during the year    974,797  1,092,878 

Tax losses utilised during the year    (436,068)  -   

Tax losses carried forward    4,708,101  4,223,016  
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21 EARNINGS PER SHARE

 The Bank/Group presents basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or 

loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 

year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees as per 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 33 on “Earnings per Share”.

21 (a) Basic Earnings per Share

 Bank Group

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Amount used as the numerator

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank (Rs 000) 14,143,406 10,448,786 14,755,634 10,553,568 

Number of ordinary shares used as the denominator 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

 outstanding during the year used as the denominator

 for basic EPS (‘000) 412,970 411,176 412,970 411,176 

Basic earnings per ordinary share (Rs) 34.25 25.41 35.73 25.67 

21 (b) Diluted Earnings per Share

 Bank Group

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Amount used as the numerator

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank (Rs 000) 14,143,406 10,448,786 14,755,634 10,553,568 

Number of ordinary shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

 outstanding during the year used as the denominator

 for basic EPS (‘000) 412,970 411,176 412,970 411,176 

Effect of dilution:

Weighted average number of potential ordinary shares

 outstanding under ESOP (‘000) 2,730 4,649 2,730 4,649 

Weighted average number of potential ordinary shares that

 would have been issued at average market price (‘000) (1,786) (2,953) (1,786) (2,953)

Weighted average number of potential ordinary shares

 that would have been issued for zero consideration under ESOP 944 1,696 944 1,696 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

 outstanding during the year used as the denominator 

 for diluted EPS (‘000) 413,914 412,872 413,914 412,872 

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (Rs) 34.17 25.31 35.65 25.56 
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22 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

 2016 2015

 Gross Dividend Net Gross Dividend Net

 Dividend Tax Dividend Dividend Tax Dividend

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Interim dividends paid

Rs 1.50 cash dividend per share declared 

 and paid in 2015 - - - 608,548 - 608,548

Rs 1.50 cash dividend per share declared 

 and paid in 2016 620,387 10,721 609,666 - - -

Final dividends paid

Rs 7.00 cash dividend per share 

 declared in 2014 and paid in 2015 - - - 2,827,776 278,995 2,548,781

Rs 3.50 cash dividend per share 

 declared in 2015 and paid in 2016 1,421,200 79,122 1,342,078 - - -

Rs 3.50 scrip dividend per share 

 declared in 2015 and paid in 2016 1,421,200 142,120 1,279,080 - - -

Total dividends paid 3,462,787 231,963 3,230,824 3,436,324 278,995 3,157,329

22 (a) Proposed Dividends

 The directors recommend that a final dividend of Rs 7.00 per share by way of Rs 3.50 cash and Rs 3.50 scrip (2015 : Rs 7.00 per share by way 

of Rs 3.50 cash and Rs 3.50 scrip) on both voting and non-voting shares of the Bank, be paid for the financial year ended 31st December 2016.

 Further this dividend is to be approved at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th March 2017. In accordance with Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard - LKAS 10 on “Events after the reporting period”, this proposed final dividend has not been recognised as a liability as at 

31st December 2016. An interim dividend of Rs 1.50 per share (2015 : Rs 1.50) was paid to the shareholders on 16th December 2016. Final 

dividends proposed for the year 2016 amounts to Rs 2,896.7 Mn (2015 : Rs 2,842.2 Mn).

23 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY MEASUREMENT BASIS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category as defined in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 39 on “Financial Instruments - 

Recognition and Measurement” under headings of the statement of financial position are summarised below.
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23 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY MEASUREMENT BASIS (CONTD.)

23 (a) Analysis of Financial Instruments by Measurement Basis - Bank

As at 31st December 2016 Fair Value Through Loans and Available- Total 

 Profit or Loss Receivable for-Sale Carrying

    Amount

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 17,511,446 - 17,511,446 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka - 33,777,614 - 33,777,614 

Placements with banks - 753,050 - 753,050 

Reverse repurchase agreements - 4,303,460 - 4,303,460 

Derivative financial instruments 289,989 - - 289,989 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 544,915 - - 544,915 

Loans and receivables to customers - 584,412,727 - 584,412,727

Financial investments - loans and receivables - 99,260,698 - 99,260,698 

Financial investments - available-for-sale - - 89,915,153 89,915,153 

Other assets - 2,308,521 - 2,308,521 

Total financial assets 834,904 742,327,516 89,915,153 833,077,573 

Liabilities

Due to banks - 69,928,789 - 69,928,789 

Derivative financial instruments 665,890 - - 665,890 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements - 13,458,127 - 13,458,127 

Due to customers - 623,494,969 - 623,494,969 

Dividends payable - 1,007,075 - 1,007,075 

Other borrowings - 27,130,358 - 27,130,358 

Debt securities issued - 4,653,057 - 4,653,057 

Other liabilities - 403,851 - 403,851 

Subordinated term debts - 26,153,476 - 26,153,476 

Total financial liabilities 665,890 766,229,702 - 766,895,592 

As at 31st December 2015 Fair Value Through Loans and Available- Total 

 Profit or Loss Receivable for-Sale Carrying

    Amount

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 14,909,598 - 14,909,598 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka - 20,096,090 - 20,096,090 

Placements with banks - 26,827 - 26,827 

Reverse repurchase agreements - 4,869,219 - 4,869,219 

Derivative financial instruments 1,302,872 - - 1,302,872 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss 593,390 - - 593,390 

Loans and receivables to customers - 498,341,628 - 498,341,628 

Financial investments - loans and receivables - 84,206,702 - 84,206,702 

Financial investments - available-for-sale - - 78,046,505 78,046,505 

Other assets - 1,565,169 - 1,565,169 

Total financial assets 1,896,262 624,015,233 78,046,505 703,958,000 
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23 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY MEASUREMENT BASIS (CONTD.)

23 (a) Analysis of Financial Instruments by Measurement Basis - Bank (Contd.)

As at 31st December 2015 Fair Value Through Loans and Available- Total 

 Profit or Loss Receivable for-Sale Carrying

    Amount

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Liabilities

Due to banks - 58,232,034 - 58,232,034 

Derivative financial instruments 304,485 - - 304,485 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements - 16,630,201 - 16,630,201 

Due to customers - 527,126,181 - 527,126,181 

Dividends payable - 764,771 - 764,771 

Other borrowings - 26,833,109 - 26,833,109 

Debt securities issued - 4,490,742 - 4,490,742 

Other liabilities - 278,585 - 278,585 

Subordinated term debts - 12,064,370 - 12,064,370 

Total financial liabilities 304,485 646,419,993 - 646,724,478

23 (b) Analysis of Financial Instruments by Measurement Basis - Group

As at 31st December 2016 Fair Value Through Held to Loans and Available- Total 

 Profit or Loss Maturity Receivable for-Sale Carrying

     Amount

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets     

Cash and cash equivalents - -  18,668,703 -  18,668,703

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka - -  33,777,614 -  33,777,614 

Placements with banks - -  2,198,446 -  2,198,446 

Reverse repurchase agreements - -  5,756,794 -  5,756,794 

Derivative financial instruments  289,989 - - -  289,989 

Financial investments - fair value through         

 profit or loss  716,008 - - -  716,008 

Loans and receivables to customers - -  597,467,460 -  597,467,460 

Financial investments - loans and receivables - -  102,063,229 -  102,063,229 

Financial investments - available-for-sale - - -  95,797,141  95,797,141 

Financial investments - held to maturity -  465,081 - -  465,081 

Other assets - -  3,175,431 -  3,175,431 

Total financial assets  1,005,997  465,081  763,107,677  95,797,141  860,375,896 

Liabilities     

Due to banks - -  69,964,380 -  69,964,380 

Derivative financial instruments  665,890 - - -  665,890 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -  13,458,127 -  13,458,127 

Due to customers - -  635,371,097 -  635,371,097 

Dividends payable - -  1,015,463 -  1,015,463 

Other borrowings - -  27,130,358 -  27,130,358 

Debt securities issued - -  5,115,801 -  5,115,801 

Other liabilities - -  1,295,848 -  1,295,848 

Subordinated term debts - -  25,901,110 -  25,901,110 

Total financial liabilities  665,890  -  779,252,184  -  779,918,074 
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23 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY MEASUREMENT BASIS (CONTD.)

23 (b) Analysis of Financial Instruments by Measurement Basis - Group (Contd.)

As at 31st December 2015 Fair Value Through Held to Loans and Available- Total 

 Profit or Loss Maturity Receivable for-Sale Carrying

     Amount

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 15,419,654 - 15,419,654 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka - - 20,096,090 - 20,096,090 

Placements with banks - - 1,174,326 - 1,174,326 

Reverse repurchase agreements - - 7,782,374 - 7,782,374 

Derivative financial instruments 1,302,872 - - - 1,302,872 

Financial investments - fair value through

 profit or loss 1,948,772 - - - 1,948,772 

Loans and receivables to customers - - 507,244,329 - 507,244,329 

Financial investments - loans and receivables - - 87,087,205 - 87,087,205 

Financial investments - available-for-sale - - - 79,718,231 79,718,231 

Financial investments - held to maturity - 1,257,433 - - 1,257,433 

Other assets - - 1,703,598 - 1,703,598 

Total financial assets 3,251,644 1,257,433 640,507,576 79,718,231 724,734,884 

Liabilities

Due to banks - - 58,283,838 - 58,283,838 

Derivative financial instruments 304,485 - - - 304,485 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - 16,630,201 - 16,630,201 

Due to customers - - 536,132,789 - 536,132,789 

Dividends payable - - 764,771 - 764,771 

Other borrowings - - 26,833,109 - 26,833,109 

Debt securities issued - - 4,913,751 - 4,913,751 

Other liabilities - - 715,537 - 715,537 

Subordinated term debts - - 12,085,598 - 12,085,598 

Total financial liabilities 304,485 - 656,359,594 - 656,664,079

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Accounting Policy

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and balances with banks. These are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair 

value and are used by the Group in the management of its short term commitments. These are brought to financial statements at their face 

values or gross values. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Local currency in hand  15,856,178 11,473,785 15,910,825 11,543,049 

Foreign currency in hand  786,709 1,083,074 786,709 1,087,975 

Balances with banks  868,559 2,352,739 1,971,169 2,788,630 

  17,511,446 14,909,598 18,668,703 15,419,654 

All cash and cash equivalent balances held by the Group entities were available for use by the Group.
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25 BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OF SRI LANKA

 Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka represent the cash balance that is required to be maintained as per the provisions of Section 93 of the 

Monetary Law Act. The minimum cash reserve requirement on rupee deposit liabilities was 7.5% as at 31st December 2016 (2015 : 6%).

 There are no reserve requirements for deposit liabilities of the Foreign Currency Banking Unit (FCBU) and foreign currency deposit liabilities in 

the Domestic Banking Unit (DBU).

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Statutory balance with Central Bank of Sri Lanka 33,777,614 20,096,090 33,777,614 20,096,090 

 33,777,614 20,096,090 33,777,614 20,096,090 

26 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS

 Placements with banks include money at call and short notice that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in the fair value, and are used 

by the Group and the Bank in the management of its short term commitments. These are brought to financial statements at the face values or 

gross values.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Placements - within Sri Lanka - - 1,445,396 1,147,499 

Placements - outside Sri Lanka 753,050 26,827 753,050 26,827 

 753,050 26,827 2,198,446 1,174,326 

27 REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Accounting Policy

Securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date are not recognised in the statement of financial position. The 

consideration paid, including accrued interest, is recorded in the statement of financial position, within “reverse repurchase agreements”, 

reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a loan by the Group. The difference between the purchase and resale prices is recorded in 

net interest income and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Securities purchased under reverse repurchase agreements

 With banks 4,119,909 4,809,802 4,146,527 4,809,802 

 With customers 183,551 59,417 1,610,267 2,972,572 

 4,303,460 4,869,219 5,756,794 7,782,374 

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



252
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Policy

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument prices, commodity 

prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk and indices. Derivatives are categorised as trading unless they are designated as hedging 

instruments. The Bank uses derivatives such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps. Bank has not designated any 

derivatives as hedging instruments and has not followed hedge accounting as at the reporting date. All derivatives are initially recognised 

and subsequently measured at fair value, with all revaluation gains or losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss under “Net gain 

/ (loss) from trading” (Note 10). Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities 

when their fair value is negative. Fair value is determined using the forward market rates ruling on the reporting date.

 The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments, recorded as assets or liabilities.

  Bank/Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Currency swaps

  Sales 3,389 14,548 537 21,815 

  Purchases 252,513 571,681 1,163,024 69,676 

Forward foreign exchange contracts

  Sales 20,090 75,248 5,857 208,417 

  Purchases 13,997 4,413 133,454 4,577 

 289,989 665,890 1,302,872 304,485 

29 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Accounting Policy

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or 

holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short term profit or position taking.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in “net 

gain / (loss) from trading” (Note 10). Interest income is recorded in “Interest income” and dividend income is recorded in “net gain / (loss) 

from trading” (Note 10) according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive the payment has been established.

The Group evaluates its financial assets held for trading, other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention to sell them in the near 

term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to sell 

them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities, equity instruments etc. that have been acquired 

principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Fair Value Fair Value

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Quoted shares - Bank  [Note 29 (a)]   544,915 593,390

Total financial investments - fair value through profit or loss - Bank    544,915  593,390 

Quoted shares - Subsidiaries [Note 29 (b)]    145,179  236,299 

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - Subsidiaries [Note 29 (c)]    14,583  878,676 

Quoted units in unit trusts - Subsidiaries [Note 29 (d)]    10,296  10,708 

Unquoted units in unit trusts - Subsidiaries [Note 29 (e)]    1,036  229,699 

Total financial investments - fair value through profit or loss - Subsidiaries    171,094  1,355,382 

Total financial investments - fair value through profit or loss - Group    716,009  1,948,772 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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29 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTD.)

29 (a) Quoted Shares Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015

No of Cost of % of Fair No of Cost of % of Fair

Ordinary Investment Total Value Ordinary Investment Total Value

Shares Rs 000 Cost Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Cost Rs 000

Banks, Finance and Insurance

Ceylinco Insurance PLC 34,000 23,035 3.79 24,820 34,000 23,035 3.76 27,200

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 195,779 30,793 5.06 28,388 193,000 30,445 4.98 27,059

National Development Bank PLC 250,000 65,925 10.84 39,000 250,000 65,925 10.77 48,525

Peoples Insurance PLC 363,600 5,454 0.90 6,908 - - - -

Peoples Leasing and Finance PLC 1,000,000 21,000 3.45 17,200 1,000,000 21,000 3.43 22,000

Sampath Bank PLC 242,389 59,750 9.83 63,118 296,201 73,120 11.95 73,458

Sector Total 205,957 179,434 213,525 198,242

Beverage, Food and Tobacco

Cargills (Ceylon) PLC 73,982 12,207 2.01 14,382 73,982 12,207 2 13,983

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC - - - - 11,000 4,449 0.73 4,638

Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC - - - - 274,019 60,591 9.9 67,409

Sector Total 12,207 14,382 77,247 86,030

Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals

Chemical Industries (Colombo) PLC 556,396 47,850 7.87 50,855 616,396 53,010 8.66 61,825

Sector Total 47,850 50,855 53,010 61,825

Construction and Engineering

Access Engineering PLC 14,275 472 0.08 354 14,275 472 0.08 330

Sector Total 472 354 472 330

Diversified Holdings

Aitken Spence PLC 360,030 39,588 6.51 23,402 400,030 43,987 7.19 38,683

Ceylon Theatres PLC - - - - 25,000 4,013 0.66 3,500

CT Holdings PLC 25,000 4,013 0.66 3,130 - - - -

Expolanka Holdings PLC 1,687,000 11,941 1.96 10,628 - - - -

John Keells Holdings PLC 220,606 42,749 7.03 31,988 227,156 50,307 8.22 40,456

Melstacorp Ltd 900,076 53,352 8.78 53,375 - - - -

Softlogic Holdings PLC 544,065 8,275 1.36 7,073 544,065 8,275 1.35 8,433

Sunshine Holdings PLC 669,661 31,809 5.23 31,206 669,661 31,809 5.2 35,626

Sector Total 191,727 160,802 138,391 126,698

Footwear and Textiles

Hayleys Fabrics PLC 82,657 1,496 0.25 1,240 82,657 1,496 0.24 1,852

Sector Total 1,496 1,240 1,496 1,852

Hotels and Travels

Aitken Spence Hotel Holdings PLC 575,301 45,998 7.57 24,795 575,301 45,998 7.52 39,120

Asian Hotels & Properties PLC 207,476 14,917 2.45 11,826 207,476 14,918 2.44 12,262

Sector Total 60,915 36,621 60,916 51,382

Manufacturing

Alumex PLC 740,000 13,095 2.15 14,948 - - - -

Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC 

- Non-voting 200,000 6,755 1.11 10,300 - - - -

Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC 

- Voting 435,000 15,789 2.60 25,752 - - - -

Sector Total 35,639 51,000 - -

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



254
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

As at 31st December 2016 2015

No of Cost of % of Fair No of Cost of % of Fair

Ordinary Investment Total Value Ordinary Investment Total Value

Shares Rs 000 Cost Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Cost Rs 000

Motors

United Motors Lanka PLC 33,385 3,522 0.58 2,871 187,643 19,796 3.24 17,244

Sector Total 3,522 2,871 19,796 17,244

Power & Energy

Vallibel Power Erathna PLC - - - - 977,555 6,122 1.00 8,700

Sector Total - - 6,122 8,700

Telecommunication

Dialog Axiata PLC 4,510 48,195 7.93 47,356 3,840,000 40,876 6.68 41,087

Sector Total 48,195 47,356 40,876 41,087

Total 607,980 100.00 544,915 611,851 100.00 593,390

Unrealised loss from marked 

 to market valuation (63,065) (18,461)

Total quoted shares - Bank 544,915 544,915 593,390 593,390

29 (b) Quoted shares Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

No of Cost of % of Fair No of Cost of % of Fair

Shares Investment Total Value Shares Investment Total Value

Rs 000 Cost Rs 000 Rs 000 Cost Rs 000

Banks, Finance and Insurance

National Development Bank PLC  11,299  1,600  1.23  1,763 78,200 9,519 4.64 15,179

Sampath Bank PLC  82,657  17,088  13.11  21,524 80,477 17,088 8.33 19,958

Nations Trust Bank PLC  97,674  6,768  5.19  7,902 253,261 17,120 8.35 21,856

DFCC Bank PLC  -   -   -   -  30,000 3,765 1.84 5,043

Peoples Leasing & Finance PLC  721,543  12,988  9.96  12,411 912,800 16,430 8.01 20,082

Seylan Bank PLC - (Non-Voting)  315,283  11,633  8.92  18,602 390,283 14,636 7.13 28,491

Sector Total 50,077 62,202 78,558 110,609

Beverage Food and Tobacco

Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC  -   -   -   -  60,000 10,648 5.19 14,760

Sector Total 10,648 14,760

Diversified Holdings

John Keells Holdings PLC  48,274  7,865  6.03  7,000 54,278 10,185 4.96 9,667

Richard Peiris and Company PLC  722,851  10,342  7.93  5,783 962,851 13,457 6.56 8,184

Vallibel One PLC  375,000  6,764  5.19  6,975 375,000 6,764 3.3 8,063

Melstacorp Limited  240,000  14,226  10.91  14,232 

Sector Total 39,197 33,990 30,406 25,914

Manufacturing

Royal Ceramic Lanka PLC  51,550  7,901  6.06  5,954 128,000 19,819 9.66 14,234

Dipped Products PLC  5,798  545  0.42  503 34,220 4,061 1.98 3,764

ACL Cables PLC  186,800  7,570  5.81  11,301 93,400 7,570 3.69 11,292

Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC  275,724  12,278  9.42  16,323 435,604 19,072 9.3 21,345

Kelani Cables PLC  -   -   -   -  44,300 5,035 2.45 5,679

Sector Total 28,294 34,081 55,557 56,314

Notes to the Financial Statements

29 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTD.)

29 (a) Quoted Shares Held by the Bank (Contd.)



255
Hatton National Bank PLC

Annual Report 2016

As at 31st December 2016 2015

No of Cost of % of Fair No of Cost of % of Fair

Shares Investment Total Value Shares Investment Total Value

Rs 000 Cost Rs 000 Rs 000 Cost Rs 000

Hotels and Travels

Palm Garden Hotels PLC  -   -   -   -  23,000 4,537 2.21 876

Sector Total  -  - 4,537 876

Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals

CIC Holdings PLC  163,085  12,817  9.83  14,906 185,000 15,731 7.67 18,556

Haycarb PLC  -   -   -   -  20,500 3,547 1.73 3,380

Sector Total 12,817 14,906 19,278 21,936

Construction and Engineering

Access Engineering PLC  -   -   -   -  255,000 6,163 3 5,890

Sector Total 6,163 5,890

Total 130,385  - 145,179 205,147 236,299

Unrealised gain 

 from marked to market  valuation 14,794 31,152

Total quoted shares - Subsidiaries 145,179 145,179 236,299 236,299

29 (c) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 Cost of Fair Cost of Fair

Year of Maturity Investment Value Investment Value

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

2018  -  -  685,695  699,014 

2021  16,370  14,583  16,837  15,738 

2022  -  -  182,108  163,924 

Unrealised loss from marked to market valuation  (1,787)    (5,964) 

Total Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - Subsidiaries  14,583  14,583  878,676  878,676 

29 (d) Quoted Units in Unit Trusts Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Units Investment Value Units Investment Value

  Rs 000 Rs 000  Rs 000 Rs 000

Namal Acuity Value Fund  114,400  7,203 10,296  114,400  7,203  10,708

Unrealised gain from marked      

 to market valuation   3,093    3,505 

Total quoted units - Subsidiaries   10,296  10,296   10,708  10,708

29 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTD.)

29 (b) Quoted shares Held by Subsidiaries (Contd.)
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29 (e) Unquoted Units in Unit Trusts Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015
 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair
 Units Investment Value Units Investment Value

  Rs 000 Rs 000  Rs 000 Rs 000

Cey Bank  -     -     -     1,800,000   18,000   18,577 
Ceylon Income Fund  -     -     -     2,686,703   35,000   36,700 
Comtrust Money Market Fund  -     -     -     383,877   4,000   4,498 
Comtrust ADL Mudarbah Fund  96,781   1,000  1,036  96,781   1,000   976 
Eagle Income Fund  -     -     -     989,198   10,000   10,331 
FC Wealth Fund  -     -     -     56,111   64,000   67,437 
Guardian Acuity Fixed Income Fund  -     -     -     4,155,034   45,000   51,772 
Namal High Yield Fund  -     -     -     2,686,567   27,000   39,408 
Total   1,000   1,036    204,000   229,699 
Unrealised gain from        
 marked to market valuation   36     25,699  

Total unquoted units in        

 unit trusts - Subsidiaries   1,036   1,036    229,699   229,699  

30 NON CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Accounting Policy

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as “held-

for-sale”. These are assets which are available for immediate sale in their present condition, subject to only the terms that are usual and 

customary for sale of such assets. Their sale is highly probable and the management has committed to the sale and the sale is expected to be 

completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are presented separately on the statement of financial position at the lower of its carrying amount and 

fair value less costs to sell. Thereafter, the Group assesses at each reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the investment is impaired. The Group recognises an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write down of the assets to 

fair value less cost to sell while a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less cost to sell of an asset is recognised, only to the extent 

of the cumulative impairment losses that have been recognised previously. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and 

subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets classified as non-current assets held for sale are neither amortised nor depreciated.

In the statement of profit or loss, income and expenses from discontinued operations (if any) are reported separately from income and 

expenses from continued operations, down to the level of profit after taxes, even when the Group retains a non-controlling interest in the 

subsidiary after the sale. The resulting profit or loss (after taxes) is reported separately in the statement of profit or loss.

  Bank/Group
As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January   20,151 30,238 

Classified during the year   - 20,151 

Disposed during the year   (20,151) (30,238)
Balance as at 31st December   - 20,151 

30 (a) Analysis of Non-current Assets held for sale

 Freehold land and buildings

  Bank/Group
As at 31st December   Carrying Carrying Total 

 Building Extent Value of Value of 2016 2015
 sq.ft Perches Land Buildings  

   Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Bank House 

No 88 & 90, Dimbula Road, Hatton - - - - - 20,151 
     - 20,151 

   

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS

Accounting Policy

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, 

other than:

• Those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as at 

fair value through profit or loss

• Those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as available-for-sale

• Those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than due to credit deterioration

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), less 

allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs 

that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included in ‘interest income’ in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from 

impairment are recognised in ‘impairment charge for loans and other losses’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Write-off of loans and receivables

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect 

of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from the realisation of security. If a write-off is later 

recovered, the recovery is credited to “Impairment charge for loans and other losses”.

Collateral Valuation

The Group seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in various forms such as cash, 

gold, securities, letters of credit, guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such 

as netting arrangements. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on the Bank’s approved 

valuation policy.

To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral. Other financial assets which do 

not have a readily determinable market value are valued using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data 

provided by third parties such as independent professional valuers.

Collaterals repossessed

The Bank / Group’s policy is to sell the repossessed assets at the earliest possible opportunity. Such collaterals repossessed are held on a 

memorandum basis without de-recognising the underlying receivable.

Rescheduled Loans

Loans where original terms have been modified including those subject to forbearance strategies are considered as rescheduled loans. 

This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. If the renegotiations are on terms that 

are not consistent with those readily available in the market, this provides objective evidence of impairment. Once the terms have been 

renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan/advance is no longer 

considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans and advances to ensure that all criteria are met and the future 

payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the 

original EIR of the loan.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Gross loans and receivables [Note 31 (a)] 595,513,919 509,525,467 608,965,683 518,586,177 

Less: Individual impairment [Note 31 (b) i] 3,366,278 3,345,714 3,366,278 3,345,714 

   Collective impairment [Note 31 (b) ii] 7,734,914 7,838,125 8,131,945 7,996,134 

Net loans and receivables 584,412,727 498,341,628 597,467,460 507,244,329 
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31 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTD.)

31 (a) Analysis of Loans and Advances

31 (a) i By Product

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Overdrafts 91,093,180 71,566,434 91,085,039 71,566,434 

Bills of exchange 2,913,620 3,115,186 2,913,620 3,115,186 

Commercial papers 153,972 161,270 153,972 161,270 

Short term loans 60,562,111 50,881,880 60,682,052 50,973,872 

Credit cards 6,061,567 4,548,111 6,061,567 4,548,111 

Pawning advances 14,010,152 16,439,602 14,010,152 16,439,602 

Trust receipts 24,885,713 23,669,721 24,885,713 23,669,721 

Packing credit loans 10,893,772 9,416,979 10,893,772 9,416,979 

Staff loans 11,430,637 10,875,391 11,975,374  11,339,787 

Term loans 296,741,917 247,329,286 308,370,722 255,831,049 

Lease and hire purchase receivable [Note 31 (c)] 42,621,900 40,341,596 43,788,322 40,344,155 

Housing loans 33,966,019 30,808,329 33,966,019 30,808,329 

Lease backed securities 179,359 371,682 179,359 371,682 

Total gross loans and receivables (Note 31) 595,513,919 509,525,467 608,965,683 518,586,177 

31 (a) ii By Currency

Sri Lankan Rupees 527,288,700 446,394,387 540,740,464 455,455,097 

United States Dollars 66,722,374 61,821,575 66,722,374 61,821,575 

Great Britain Pounds 388,411 473,270 388,411 473,270 

Euros 1,018,384 558,902 1,018,384 558,902 

Other currencies 96,050 277,333 96,050 277,333 

Total gross loans and receivables (Note 31) 595,513,919 509,525,467 608,965,683 518,586,177 

31 (b) Allowance for Impairment Losses

Accounting policy

The Group considers objective evidence of impairment for loans and advances to customers and held to maturity investments at both 

specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances to customers and held to maturity investments are first 

assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant loans and advances to customers and held to maturity investments found 

not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that 

are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is recognised are not included in a collective assessment of 

impairment. Loans and advances to customers and held to maturity investments that are not individually significant are collectively assessed 

for impairment by grouping together loans and advances to customers and held to maturity investments with similar risk characteristics.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are 

measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

discounted at original effective interest rate of the asset. If the loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 

impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. If the Group has reclassified trading assets to loans and receivables, the discount rate 

for measuring any impairment loss is the new effective interest rate which is determined at the date of reclassification. The impairment 

allowances on individually significant accounts are reviewed more regularly when circumstances require. This normally encompasses re-

assessment of the enforceability of any collateral held and the timing and amount of actual and anticipated receipts. Individually assessed 

impairment allowances are only released when there is a reasonable and objective evidence of a reduction in the established loss estimate. 

Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.
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31 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTD.)

31 (b) Allowance for Impairment Losses (Contd.)

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may 

result from the foreclosure less costs of obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable. The methodology and 

the assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates and actual 

loss experience.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest 

used to discount the future cash flows, for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss and recorded as part of ‘interest income’.

For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on a basis, which takes into consideration credit risk 

characteristics such as asset type, industry, past due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss 

experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current 

observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions on, which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of 

conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect and are directionally consistent with, changes in related observable data from year to year 

(such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices, commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred 

losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to 

reduce any differences between estimated loss and actual loss experience.

Details of impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortised cost are given in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Bank ceases the recognition of interest income on assets which are collectively impaired, when it is probable that the economic benefit 

associated will not continue to flow to the Bank.

Reversal of Impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 

after the impairment was recognised, the excess is written back to the statement of profit or loss by reducing the financial asset impairment 

allowance account accordingly.

31 (b) i Movement in Individual Impairment Allowance for Loans and Advances

 Bank Group

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 3,345,714 2,645,389 3,345,714 2,645,389 

Net impairment charge for the year 225,581 662,538 225,581 662,538 

Write-offs during the year (230,219) - (230,219) -

Interest accrued on impaired loans and receivables 25,202 37,787 25,202 37,787 

Balance as at 31st December 3,366,278 3,345,714 3,366,278 3,345,714 

31 (b) ii Movement in Collective Impairment Allowance for Loans and Advances

 Bank Group

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 7,838,125 8,008,889 7,996,134 8,718,377 

Net impairment charge for the year 12,333 137,386 278,959 227,572 

Write-offs during the year (115,544) (308,150) (143,148) (949,815)

Balance as at 31st December 7,734,914 7,838,125 8,131,945 7,996,134 
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31 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTD.)

31 (b) iii Product wise Movement in Allowance for Impairment Losses - Bank

 2016  2015

 Lease and Loans and Pawning Total Total

 Hire Purchases Receivables

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  1,077,909  10,016,038  89,892  11,183,839  10,654,277 

Net impairment charge for the year  (41,625)  325,297  (45,758)  237,914  799,924 

Write-offs during the year  (32,288)  (312,697)  (778)  (345,763)  (308,149)

Interest accrued on impaired loans and receivables -  25,202 -  25,202  37,787 

Balance as at 31st December 1,003,996 10,053,840 43,356  11,101,192  11,183,839 

31 (b) iv Product wise Movement in Allowance for Impairment Losses - Group

 2016  2015

 Lease and Loans and Pawning Total Total

 Hire Purchases Receivables

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 1,077,909  10,174,047  89,892  11,341,848  11,363,765 

Net impairment charge for the year  (41,625)  591,922  (45,758)  504,539  890,111 

Write-offs during the year  (32,288)  (340,300)  (778)  (373,366)  (949,815)

Interest accrued on impaired loans and receivables - 25,202 -  25,202  37,787 

Balance as at 31st December 1,003,996 10,450,871 43,356  11,498,223  11,341,848

31 (c) Lease and Hire Purchase Receivables

Accounting Policy

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership other than legal title, are 

classified as finance leases. Amounts receivable under finance leases are classified as lease and hire purchase receivables and presented 

within loans and receivables to customers in the statement of financial position after deduction of unearned lease income and the 

impairment for rentals doubtful of recovery. Lease receivables are collectively assessed for impairment in accordance with ”allowance for 

impairment losses” policy as given in Note 31 (b) to the financial statements.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Total lease and hire purchase rentals receivable 50,841,718 47,918,782 52,537,430  47,922,562 

Unearned lease income (8,219,818) (7,577,186) (8,749,108)  (7,578,407)

Gross lease and hire purchase receivable 42,621,900 40,341,596 43,788,322   40,344,155 

Impairment allowance for

 lease and hire purchase receivable - Collective (1,003,996) (1,077,909) (1,003,996)  (1,077,909)

Net lease and hire purchase receivable 41,617,904 39,263,687 42,784,326  39,266,246 

Net lease and hire purchase receivables

 within one year [Note 31 (c) (i)] 14,540,693 12,777,028 14,820,410  12,777,623

Net lease and hire purchase receivables from 

 one to five years [Note 31 (c) (ii)] 26,934,823 26,308,836 27,815,881  26,310,800 

Net lease and hire purchase receivables after

 five years [Note 31 (c) (iii)] 142,388 177,823 148,035  177,823 

 41,617,904 39,263,687 42,784,326  39,266,246 
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31 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTD.)

31 (c) i Net Lease and Hire Purchase Receivables within one year

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Total lease and hire purchase rentals receivable within

 one year from the reporting date 18,901,797 16,681,239 19,385,149  16,682,453 

Unearned lease and hire purchase income (4,010,322) (3,553,443) (4,213,942)  (3,554,062)

Impairment allowance for lease and hire purchase receivables (350,782) (350,768) (350,797)  (350,768)

 14,540,693 12,777,028 14,820,410  12,777,623 

31 (c) ii Net Lease and Hire Purchase Receivables from one to five years

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Total lease and hire purchase rentals receivables from one to

 five years from the reporting date 31,782,286 31,042,158 32,965,906  31,044,724 

Unearned lease and hire purchase income (4,197,684) (4,011,063) (4,500,261)  (4,011,665)

Impairment allowance for lease and hire purchase receivables (649,779) (722,259) (649,764)  (722,259)

 26,934,823 26,308,836 27,815,881  26,310,800

31 (c) iii Net Lease and Hire Purchase Receivables after five years

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Total lease and hire purchase rentals receivable after

 five years from the reporting date 157,635 195,385 163,577  195,385 

Unearned lease and hire purchase income (11,812) (12,680) (12,107)  (12,680)

Impairment allowance for lease and hire purchase receivables (3,435) (4,882) (3,435)  (4,882)

 142,388 177,823 148,035  177,823

32 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 

Accounting Policy

Financial investments - loans and receivables are initially recognised and subsequently measured based on the accounting policy described 

in Note 31 to the financial statements. These assets are tested for impairment in accordance with the criteria given in Note 31 (b) to the 

financial statements.

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Sri Lanka development bonds - Bank [Note 32 (a)]    76,443,803  71,191,194 

Sri Lanka sovereign bonds - Bank [Note 32 (b)]    8,342,404  656,908 

Foreign government bonds - Bank [Note 32 (c)]    -  -   

Quoted debentures - Bank [Note 32 (d)]    14,474,491  11,869,600 

Other long term investments - Bank [Note 32 (e)]    -  489,000 

Total financial investments - loans and receivables - Bank    99,260,698  84,206,702 

Quoted debentures - Subsidiaries [Note 32 (f)]    2,802,531  2,814,616 

Unquoted debentures - Subsidiaries [Note 32 (g)]    -  65,887 

Total financial investments - loans and receivables - Subsidiaries    2,802,531  2,880,503 

Total financial investments - loans and receivables - Group    102,063,229  87,087,205 
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32 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTD.)

32 (a) Sri Lanka Development Bonds Held by the Bank

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Year of Maturity   Rs 000 Rs 000

2016   - 24,006,577

2017   40,095,572 12,316,205

2018   13,653,532 13,080,141

2020   22,694,699 21,788,271

Total Sri Lanka development bonds - Bank   76,443,803 71,191,194

32 (b) Sri Lanka Sovereign Bonds Held by the Bank

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Year of Maturity   Rs 000 Rs 000

2019   5,065,452 656,908

2021   3,276,952 -

Total Sri Lanka sovereign bonds - Bank   8,342,404 656,908

32 (c) Foreign Government Bonds Held by the Bank

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Year of Maturity   Rs 000 Rs 000

2042   49,980 49,582

Allowance for impairment   (49,980) (49,582)

Total foreign government bonds - Bank   - -

These bonds were issued by the Government of Greece.

32 (d) Quoted Debentures Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Carrying No of Carrying

 Debentures Value Debentures Value

  Rs 000  Rs 000

Abans PLC 5,000,000 500,738 5,000,000 523,178

(9% debentures redeemable on 26th December 2019)

Access Engineering PLC 15,000,000 1,518,534 15,000,000 1,518,534

(10.25% debentures redeemable on 18th November 2020)

Alliance Finance Company PLC 3,000,000 328,203 3,000,000 328,204

(9.35% debentures redeemable on 29th December 2019)

Central Finance PLC 2,000,000 219,040 2,000,000 211,163

(9.52% debentures redeemable on 01st June 2020)

Commercial Leasing & Finance PLC 10,000,000 1,097,500 10,000,000 1,043,808

(9.75% debentures redeemable on 21st July 2020)

DFCC Bank PLC 5,000,000 525,361 5,000,000 525,430

(9.10% debentures redeemable on 10th June 2020)

Hayleys PLC 5,000,000 512,582 5,000,000 512,582

(7.85% debentures redeemed on 06th March 2020)

HDFC Bank of Sri Lanka - - 284,900 29,531

(14.5% debentures redeemable on 23rd October 2016)

Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC 5,000,000 511,311 5,000,000 511,342

(9% debentures redeemable on 24th November 2019)
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32 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTD.)

32 (d) Quoted Debentures Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Carrying No of Carrying

 Debentures Value Debentures Value

  Rs 000  Rs 000

LB Finance PLC 4,408,600 446,088 4,408,600 446,102

(14% debentures redeemable on 28th November 2018)

Lion Brewery Ceylon PLC 4,686,000 477,872 4,686,000 477,872

(7.85% debentures redeemable on 08th December 2019)

Mercantile Investment and Finance PLC 418,650 42,539 418,650 42,539

(10.5% debentures redeemable on 05th November 2018)

MTD Walkers PLC 5,000,000 512,918 5,000,000 513,058

(10.25% debentures redeemable on 30th September 2020)

Nawaloka Hospitals PLC 1,860,000 192,616 1,860,000 192,634

(14.15% debentures redeemable on 30th September 2018)

Orient Finance PLC 2,500,000 261,374 2,500,000 261,405

(9.05% debentures redeemable on 26th December 2019)

People’s Leasing and Finance PLC 201,200 22,057 201,200 22,057

(9.625% debentures redeemable on 23rd September 2018)

People’s Leasing and Finance PLC 20,000,000 2,026,715 20,000,000 2,026,715

(9.95% debentures redeemable on 12th November 2020)

People’s Leasing and Finance PLC 20,000,000 2,031,759 - -

(12.60% debentures redeemable on 16th November 2021)

Richard Pieris and Company PLC 1,409,900 144,810 1,409,900 144,810

(10.75% debentures redeemable on 16th May 2017)

Sanasa Development Bank PLC 9,433,700 988,899 9,433,700 943,619

(9.6% debentures redeemable on 31st December 2018)

Senkadagala Finance PLC 3,000,000 305,877 - -

(13.75% debentures redeemable on 09th November 2020)

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC 9,000,000 974,250 9,000,000 974,250

(8.25% debentures redeemable on 22nd December 2017)

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC 5,000,000 522,130 5,000,000 521,678

(8.60% debentures redeemable on 07th June 2018)

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC - - 957,120 99,089

(14% debentures redeemed on 16th September 2016)

Siyapatha Finance PLC 3,000,000 311,318 - -

(13.5% debentures redeemable on 20th September 2021)

Quoted debentures - Bank  14,474,491  11,869,600

32 (e) Other Long Term Investments Held by the Bank

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Long term non-negotiable bond

 matured on 14th November 2016   - 489,000

Total other long term investments - Bank   - 489,000
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32 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTD.)

32 (f) Quoted Debentures Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015
 No of Carrying No of Carrying
 Debentures Value Debentures Value

  Rs 000  Rs 000

Abans PLC
(14.00%  debentures redeemed on 20th December 2016) -  -  100,000  10,702 
(14.25%  debentures redeemable on 20th December 2017) 750,000  80,373  750,000  80,358 
(14.50%  debentures redeemable on 20th December 2018)  550,000  59,009  550,000  58,998 
(09.00%  debentures redeemable on 26th December 2019)  450,000  47,092  450,000  45,055 
   186,474   195,113 

Access Engineering PLC    
 (10.25%  debentures redeemable on 18th November 2020)  1,250,000  126,509  125,000  126,509 
   126,509   126,509 

Bank of Ceylon    

(11.00% debentures redeemed on 07th December 2016)  -  -  150,000  15,163 

(16.00% debentures redeemable on 29th November 2017)  1,100,000  111,783  1,100,000  111,495 

(08.00% debentures redeemable on 21st September 2019)  140,000  14,310  140,000  14,307 

(13.25% debentures redeemable on 29th December 2021)  400,000  40,029  -  -   

   166,122   140,965 

Central Finance Company PLC    

(14.25% debentures redeemed on 17th June 2016)  -  -  11,400  11,809 

(14.75% debentures redeemable on 17th June 2018)  29,000  30,078  29,000  30,078 

   30,078   41,887 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC    

(12.00%  debentures redeemable on 27th October 2021)  289,500  29,559  -  -   

(12.25%  debentures redeemable on 27th October 2026)  135,700  13,861  -  -   

   43,420  -

Commercial Credit and Finance PLC    

(10.50% debentures redeemable on 01st June 2020)  1,100,000  112,903  1,100,000  112,879 

(10.40% debentures redeemable on 10th December 2020)  1,000,000  100,598  1,000,000  100,599 

   213,501   213,478 

Commercial Leasing and Finance PLC    

(9.75%  debentures redeemable on 21st July 2020)  600,000  65,850  600,000  62,612 
   65,850   62,612 

DFCC Bank PLC    

(14.00% debentures redeemed on 26th September 2016) -  -  5,000  5,698 

(08.50% debentures redeemable on 18th August 2017)  427,700  44,115  427,700  44,115 

(09.40% debentures redeemable on 10th June 2020)  405,500  42,680  405,500  42,680 
(12.15%  debentures redeemable on 09th June 2021)  100,000  10,173  -  -   
(12.75%  debentures redeemable on 09th June2023)  700,000  71,272  -  -   
   168,240   92,493 

Hayleys PLC    
(14.25% debentures redeemed on 09th July 2016)  -  -  45,000  46,617 

   -   46,617 

HDFC Bank   

(15.50% debentures redeemable on 23rd October 2018)  600,000  69,300  600,000  68,679 
   69,300   68,679 

Hemas Holdings PLC    
(11.00%  debentures redeemable on 29th April 2019)  557,900  57,504  557,900  57,553 
   57,504   57,553 

Lanka Orix Leasing Company PLC    
(11.90% debentures redeemed on 30th June 2016)  -  -  750,000  79,499 

(09.00% debentures redeemable on 24th November 2019)  550,000  56,244  550,000  56,235 
   56,244   135,734

LB Finance PLC    

(15.00% debentures redeemable on 28th November 2018)  851,000  97,865  851,000  97,830 
   97,865   97,830 
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32 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTD.)

32 (f) Quoted Debentures Held by Subsidiaries (Contd.)

As at 31st December 2016 2015
 No of Carrying No of Carrying
 Debentures Value Debentures Value

  Rs 000  Rs 000

Lion Brewery (Ceylon) PLC    
(13.50% debentures redeemed on 17th June 2016)  -  -  28,800  29,780 
(13.75% debentures redeemable on 17th June 2017)  28,800  29,806  28,800  29,798 
(14.00% debentures redeemable on 17th June 2018)  38,400  39,766  38,400  39,755 
   69,572   99,333 

Mercantile Investment & Finance PLC    
(10.50% debentures redeemable on 05th November 2018)  114,100  11,597  114,100  11,594 
   11,597   11,594 

Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka & Finance PLC    
(14.25% debentures redeemable on 16th December 2017)  400,000  47,123  750,000  94,183 
(17.50% debentures redeemable on 27th March 2018)  112,600  13,231  197,100  23,150 
(16.70% debentures redeemable on 27th March 2018)  112,600  11,729  112,600  12,192 
(08.75% debentures redeemable on 12th November 2019)  150,000  15,658  150,000  15,658 
(09.00% debentures redeemable on 12th November 2019)  410,000  44,690  410,000  44,680 
   132,431   189,863 

National Development Bank PLC    
(13.00% debentures redeemable on 19th December 2018)  125,900  13,413  125,900  13,411 
(13.40% debentures redeemable on 19th December 2018)  84,200  9,496  84,200  9,493 
(09.40% debentures redeemable on 24th June 2020)  217,200  15,845  -  -   
(09.40% debentures redeemable on 24th June 2020)  253,000  27,678  470,200  41,076 
(13.90% debentures redeemable on 19th December 2023)  187,500  21,409  187,500  21,402 
   87,841   85,382 

Nations Trust Bank PLC    
(13.00% debentures redeemable on 19th December 2018)  331,500  35,317  331,500  35,311 
(12.65% debentures redeemable on 08th December 2021)  357,400  36,396  -  -   
(12.80%  debentures redeemable on 08th December 2021)  210,200  21,411  -  -   
   93,124   35,311 

Nawaloka Hospitals PLC    
(14.15% debentures redeemable on 30th September 2018)  550,000  56,940  550,000  56,940 
   56,940   56,940 

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC    
(09.52% debentures redeemable on 30th October 2019)  207,340  21,069  207,340  21,069 
(09.75% debentures redeemable on 30th October 2019)  458,517  46,611  458,517  46,611 
   67,680   67,680 

People’s Leasing & Finance PLC    
(08.75% debentures redeemable on 23rd September 2017)  16,300  1,773  16,300  1,772 
(17.00% debentures redeemable on 26th March 2018)  300,000  35,100  300,000  35,086 
(09.625% debentures redeemable on 23rd September 2018)  59,400  6,512  59,400  6,510 
(09.60% debentures redeemable on 12th November 2019)  450,000  45,580  450,000  45,568 
(09.95% debentures redeemable on 12th November 2020)  290,000  29,387  290,000  29,380 
(12.60% Debentures redeemable on 16th November 2021)  500,000  50,777  -  -   
   169,129   118,316 

Richard Pieris and Company PLC    
(10.75% debentures redeemable on 16th May 2017)  31,100  3,194  31,100  3,193 
(11.00% debentures redeemable on 16th May 2018)  124,000  12,744  124,000  12,740 
(11.25% debentures redeemable on 16th May 2019)  408,800  42,403  408,800  42,721 
   58,341   58,654

Sampath Bank PLC    
(16.50% debentures redeemable on 11th October 2017)  283,100  33,451  283,100  32,971 
(13.40% debentures redeemable on 04th December 2018)  363,400  41,210  363,400  41,196 
(08.25% debentures redeemable on 14th December 2019)  750,000  81,187  750,000  81,171 
(09.90% debentures redeemable on 18th November 2020)  1,642,200  166,180  1,642,200  166,135 
   322,028  321,473 

Seylan Bank PLC    
(15.50% debentures redeemable on 21st February 2018)  900,000  101,963  900,000  101,924 
(08.60% debentures redeemable on 22nd February 2019)  300,000  32,644  300,000  32,637 
(08.75% debentures redeemable on 23rd December 2020)  500,000  54,483  500,000  54,471 
(13.00%  debentures redeemable on 15th July 2021)  215,800  22,879  -    -   
   211,969   189,032 
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32 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (CONTD.)

32 (f) Quoted Debentures Held by Subsidiaries (Contd.)

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Carrying No of Carrying

 Debentures Value Debentures Value

  Rs 000  Rs 000

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC   
(14.50% debentures redeemed on 29th May 2016)  -     -     270,000   27,987 

(08.25% debentures redeemable on 23rd December 2019)  270,000   29,227   270,000   29,222 

   29,227    57,209 
Siyapatha Finance PLC    
(08.90% debentures redeemable on 24th December 2019)  1,000,000   108,900   1,000,000   108,875 

(13.50% debentures redeemable on 20.09.2021)  244,200   25,341   -     -   

   134,241    108,875 
Softlogic Finance PLC    

(10.00% debentures redeemable on 29th August 2019)  303,900   31,154   303,900   31,148 

   31,154    31,148 

Softlogic Holdings PLC    

(15.75% debentures redeemed on 09th September 2016)  -     -     550,000   58,186 

   -      58,186 

Vallibel Finance PLC    

(10.25% debentures redeemable on 31st March 2020)  450,000   46,150   450,000   46,150 

  -     46,150    46,150 

Total quoted debentures - Subsidiaries   2,802,531   2,814,616

32 (g) Unquoted Debentures Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Carrying No of Carrying

 Debentures Value Debentures Value

  Rs 000  Rs 000

Abans PLC

(13.50% debentures redeemed on 01st March 2016)  -     -     25,000   25,842 

National Development Bank PLC    

(3 months gross T.Bill +1% debentures redeemed on    

 30th June 2016)  -     -     40,000   40,045 

Total unquoted debentures held by - Subsidiaries   -      65,887 

33 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

Accounting Policy

Available-for-sale investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as ‘available-for-sale’ are those which are 
neither classified as ‘held for trading’ nor ‘designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt securities in this category are intended to be 

held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 
The Group has not designated any loans or receivables as available-for-sale.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value.

Unrealised gains and losses are recognised directly in equity via ‘other comprehensive income’ in the ‘available-for-sale reserve’. When 

the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the statement of profit or loss 
in ‘net gain / (loss) from financial investments’. Where the Bank holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed 

to be disposed of on a first in first out basis. Interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale financial investments is reported as ‘interest 
income’ using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). Dividends earned whilst holding available-for-sale financial investments are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss as ‘net gain / (loss) from financial investments’ when the right to receive the dividend has been established. 

The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in ‘impairment losses on financial 
investments’ and are removed from the ‘available-for-sale reserve’.
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33 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (CONTD.)

Impairment of Financial Investments - Available-for-sale

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that an 
investment is impaired.

In case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, the Group assesses individually whether there is an objective evidence of 
impairment based on the same criteria as used for the measurement of impairment relating to loans and advances as mentioned in Note 31 
(b) to the financial statements. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between 
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the 
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of interest income as ‘financial 
investments - available-for-sale’. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase could be objectively 
related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed 
through the statement of profit or loss.

In case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in 
the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is an evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference 
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not 

reversed through the statement of profit or loss, increases in the fair value after impairment are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’. 

The Group writes off certain financial investments – available-for-sale when they are determined to be uncollectible.

   Fair Value Fair Value

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Quoted shares - Bank [Note 33 (a)]    4,936,537   6,635,080 

Quoted units - Bank [Note 33 (b)]    270,000   280,800 

Unquoted shares - Bank [Note 33 (c)]    25,405   25,405 

Unquoted units - Bank [Note 33 (d)]    388,108   193,377 

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - Bank [Note 33 (e)]    52,716,014   39,354,113 

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bills - Bank [Note 33 (f)]    31,579,089   31,557,730 

Total financial investments - available-for-sale - Bank    89,915,153   78,046,505 

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - Subsidiaries [Note 33 (g)]    4,424,246   1,410,500 

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bills - Subsidiaries [Note 33 (h)]    1,302,373   48,492 

Quoted shares - Subsidiaries [Note 33 (i)]    142,940   200,304 

Unquoted shares - Subsidiaries [Note 33 (j)]    12,430   12,430 

Total financial investments - available-for-sale - Subsidiaries    5,881,989   1,671,726 
Total financial investments - available-for-sale - Group    95,797,142   79,718,231  

33 (a) Quoted Shares Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015
 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value

 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

DFCC Bank 32,396,140 942,651 3,968,527 32,396,140 942,651 5,471,708

National Development Bank PLC 4,282,200 694,519 668,023 4,282,200 694,519 839,312
Nations Trust Bank PLC 3,703,543 383,236 299,987 3,703,543 383,236 324,060

Total quoted shares - Bank  2,020,406 4,936,537  2,020,406 6,635,080

33 (b) Quoted Units in Unit Trusts Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015
 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value
 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

Namal Acuity Value Fund 3,000,000 150,000 270,000 3,000,000 150,000 280,800
Total quoted units in unit trusts - Bank  150,000 270,000  150,000 280,800
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33 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (CONTD.)

33 (c) Unquoted Shares Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015
 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair
 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value

 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka 5,300 530 530 5,300 530 530
Fitch Ratings Lanka Ltd 62,500 625 625 62,500 625 625
Lanka Clear (Pvt) Ltd 2,200,000 22,000 22,000 2,200,000 22,000 22,000
Lanka Financial Services Bureau 225,000 2,250 2,250 225,000 2,250 2,250
Lanka Rating Agency Limited* 1,379,182 16,550 - 1,379,182 16,550 -
Magpek Exports Ltd** 359,000 14,360 - 359,000 14,360 -
S.W.I.F.T* 27 5,196 - 27 5,196 -
Allowance for impairment  (36,106)   (36,106)
Total Unquoted shares - Bank  25,405 25,405  25,405 25,405

* Directors carried out an impairment assessment of the unquoted share investments held by the Bank as at 31st December 2016 and 
concluded that no further impairment provision is required in 2016, while in 2015 an impairment charge of Rs. 9.24 Mn and Rs 3.14 Mn was 

made against the investment in Lanka Rating Agency Limited and S.W.I.F.T. respectively.

** Delisted shares

33 (d) Unquoted Units in Unit Trusts Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value

 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

JB Vantage Value Equity Fund 19,455,327 400,000 388,108 9,596,825 200,000 193,377

Total unquoted units in

 unit trusts - Bank  400,000 388,108  200,000 193,377

33 (e) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Year of Cost of Fair Cost of Fair

Maturity Investment Value Investment Value
 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

2016 - - 2,968,456 2,963,085

2017 3,943,085 3,921,073 3,955,380 3,926,537
2018 10,116,422 9,919,799 6,277,602 6,262,922
2019 15,262,833 14,576,141 12,543,239 12,405,902

2020 3,016,946 2,826,830 3,007,214 2,995,669

2021 15,352,639 15,058,456 6,594,498 6,516,790
2022 280,525 252,941 284,298 277,383
2023 3,300,389 2,950,166 3,335,082 3,242,764

2024 2,542,757 2,523,189 - -

2025 758,881 687,419 756,939 763,061
Total government of Sri Lanka
 treasury bonds - Bank 54,574,477 52,716,014 39,722,708 39,354,113

33 (f) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills Held by the Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015
Year of Cost of Fair Cost of Fair

Maturity Investment Value Investment Value
 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

2016 - - 31,582,588 31,557,730
2017 31,526,681 31,579,089 - -

Total government of
 Sri Lanka treasury bills - Bank 31,526,681 31,579,089 31,582,588 31,557,730
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33 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (CONTD.)

33 (g) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Year of Cost of Fair Cost of Fair

Maturity Investment Value Investment Value

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

2016  -  -  193,486  203,891 

2017  360,253  361,528  108,344  102,642 

2018  116,389  120,773  44,974  49,017 

2019  500,308  490,960  211,580  214,833 

2020  421,653  425,409  -  -   

2021  1,089,786  1,071,214  132,357  132,827 

2022  646,373  611,859  194,301  181,971 

2023  253,697  247,214  -  -   

2024  474,639  478,171  57,064  56,799 

2026  166,179  166,336  -  -   

2028  48,755  48,558  -  -   

2029  135,191  103,644  135,191  120,396 

2044  143,435  101,954  143,435  123,036 

2045  222,302  196,626  222,302  225,088 

Total government of Sri Lanka     

 treasury bonds - Subsidiaries  4,578,960  4,424,246  1,443,034  1,410,500 

33 (h) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Year of Cost of Fair Cost of Fair

Maturity Investment Value Investment Value

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

2016  -  -  47,045  48,492 

2017  1,224,348  1,302,373  -  -   

Total government of Sri Lanka treasury bills    

 - Subsidiaries  1,224,348  1,302,373  47,045  48,492 

33 (i) Quoted Shares Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value

 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

Banks, Finance and Insurance      

Seylan Bank PLC - (Non-Voting)  241,000  12,347  14,219  241,000  12,347  17,593 

Sampath Bank PLC  109,749  24,877  28,579  108,802  25,352  26,983 

Central Finance Company PLC  206,743  25,370  20,674  100,037  25,370  25,309 

Sector Total   62,594  63,472   63,069  69,885 

Diversified Holdings      

Vallibel One PLC - - -  301,877  7,860  6,490 

Melstacorp Limited  39,532  2,343  2,344 - - -

Sector Total   2,343  2,344   7,860  6,490 

Hotels and Travels      

Aitken Spence Hotels Holdings PLC  -  -  -  80,112  6,805  5,448 

Palm Garden Hotels PLC  -  -  -  69,000  3,795  2,629 

Sector Total     -  -   10,600  8,077 
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33 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (CONTD.)

33 (i) Quoted Shares Held by Subsidiaries (Contd.)

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value

 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

Investment Trusts      

Renuka Holdings PLC  -  -  -  425,000  15,408  11,433 

Sector Total  -  -  -   15,408  11,433 

Manufacturing      

Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC  388,568  22,074  23,003  408,568  23,004  20,020 

Royal Ceramic Lanka PLC  83,000  10,072  9,586  83,000  10,072  9,230 

Textured Jersey Lanka PLC  453,681  10,817  19,418  863,681  20,118  30,661 

Sector Total   42,963  52,007   53,194  59,911 

Beverage, Food and Tobacco      

Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC  -  -  -  9,883  2,048  2,431 

Sector Total  -  -  -   2,048  2,431 

Chemicals And Pharmaceuticals      

CIC Holdings PLC - (Non-Voting)  141,915  9,698  9,650  141,915  9,698  11,523 

Sector Total  141,915  9,698  9,650   9,698  11,523 

Power and Energy      

Lanka IOC PLC  -  -  -  340,000  19,703  12,614 

Sector Total      19,703  12,614 

Land and Property      

Overseas Reality (Ceylon) PLC  773,335  19,640  15,467  773,335  19,564  17,940 

Sector Total  773,335  19,640  15,467   19,564  17,940 

Total quoted shares - Subsidiaries   137,238  142,940   201,144  200,304 

33 (j) Unquoted Shares Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2016 2015

 No of Cost of Fair No of Cost of Fair

 Ordinary Investment Value Ordinary Investment Value

 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000 Shares Rs 000 Rs 000

Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka  100  234  234  100  234  234 

UB Finance  1,742,326  12,196  12,196  1,742,326  12,196  12,196 

Standard Credit Lanka (Formerly Ceylinco      

 Investment and Reality Ltd)  38,458,474  38,692  -  38,458,474  38,692  -   

Allowance for impairment   (38,692)    (38,692) 

Total unquoted shares - Subsidiaries   12,430  12,430   12,430  12,430 

33 (k) Assets Pledged as Security

The following amounts of financial investments - available-for-sale are pledged as security for re-purchase agreements entered into by the Group.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Treasury bills  9,384,179  13,797,976 9,384,179  13,797,976

Treasury bonds  4,926,410  2,791,821 4,926,410  2,791,821

  14,310,589  16,589,797 14,310,589  16,589,797
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34 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - HELD-TO-MATURITY

Accounting Policy

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the 

positive intention and ability to hold till maturity and which are not designated as at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale.

After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) 

less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral 

part of the EIR. The amortisation is included in ‘interest income’ in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment of such 

investments are recognised in ‘impairment charge for loans and other losses’ in the statement of profit or loss.

A sale or a reclassification of more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments would result in the reclassification of all 

held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, and would prevent the Group from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity 

for the current and the following two financial years. However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would not 

trigger a reclassification:

• sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on 

the financial asset’s fair value

• sales or reclassifications after the Group has collected substantially all of the asset’s original principal and

• sales or reclassifications attributable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Group’s control that could not have been reasonably 

anticipated.

  Group

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bills - Subsidiaries [Note 34 (a)]    291,056  784,868

Government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - Subsidiaries [Note 34 (b)]    174,025  472,565

Total financial investments - Held-to-maturity - Group    465,081  1,257,433

34 (a) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Year of Maturity   Rs 000 Rs 000

2016    -  784,868

2017    291,056 -

Total government of Sri Lanka treasury bills  - Subsidiaries    291,056  784,868

34 (b) Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds Held by Subsidiaries

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Year of Maturity   Rs 000 Rs 000

2016    -  304,278 

2018    174,025  168,287

Total government of Sri Lanka treasury bonds - Subsidiaries    174,025  472,565 
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35 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Accounting Policy

Joint venture is a type of joint arrangement, whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of 

the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 

relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group determines joint control, by taking into account similar considerations necessary, to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is accounted for, using the equity method and is recognised initially at cost. The carrying amount 

of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill 

relating to a joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit or loss reflects Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any change in ‘other comprehensive 

income’ of the joint venture is presented as part of the Group’s ‘other comprehensive income’. In addition, when there has been a change 

recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of 

changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the 

extent of the interest in the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss outside 

operating profit and includes profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the joint venture.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are 

made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is an objective evidence that the investment in joint venture is impaired. If 

there is such an evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint 

venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss in impairment for loans and other losses in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date that it ceases, to have joint control over the joint venture and accounts for 

the investment in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for financial instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount of 

the joint venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal, is recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss.

35 (a) Investment in Joint Venture - Bank

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Principal Cost of Directors’ Cost of Directors’

Principal Place of % Investment Valuation % Investment Valuation

Activity Business Holding Rs 000 Rs 000 Holding Rs 000 Rs 000

Acuity Partners Investment

 (Pvt) Ltd banking Sri Lanka 50.00 755,000 755,000 50.00 655,000 655,000

Total 755,000 655,000 

 Bank received Rs 30.2 Mn of dividend income from Acuity Partners (Pvt) Ltd for the year ended 31st December 2016 (2015 : Rs 30.1 Mn).
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35 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTD.)

35 (b) Investment in Joint Venture - Group

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Investment in joint venture (at cost) as at 1st January   655,000 655,000

Group’s share of joint venture profit as at 1st January   710,508 653,682

Group’s share of net assets of joint venture company as at 1st January   1,365,508 1,308,682

Share of unrealised profit on disposal of investments   (112,138) (112,138)

Group’s share of net assets of joint venture company as at 1st January (net of unrealised profit)  1,253,370 1,196,544

Additional investment during the year   100,000  -  

Share of profit of joint venture (net of income tax) (Note 19)   148,790 60,085

Share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted joint venture   (21,154) 17,041

Deemed disposal gain through joint venture   - 9,830

Dividend received during the year   (30,200) (30,130)

Group’s share of net assets of joint venture company as at 31st December   1,450,806 1,253,370

35 (c) Summarised Financial Position of Joint Venture - Acuity Partners (Pvt) Ltd and its Subsidiaries

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Current assets    4,085,610  5,703,694 

Non-current assets    7,488,395  3,413,100 

Current liabilities    (6,098,930)  (4,348,747)

Non-current liabilities    (1,063,494)  (945,056)

Non controlling interest    (1,285,694)  (1,091,976)

Equity    3,125,887  2,731,015 

Group carrying amount of the investment    1,562,944  1,365,508 

Share of unrealised profit on disposal of investments    (112,138)  (112,138)

Group’s carrying amount of the investment - Net    1,450,806  1,253,370

35 (d) Summarised statement of profit or loss of Joint Venture - Acuity Partners (Pvt) Ltd and its Subsidiaries  

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Revenue    1,233,881  853,971 

Administration and distribution  expenses    (468,489)  (385,656)

Finance cost    (166,309)  (91,922)

Profit from operations    599,083  376,393 

VAT and NBT on financial services    (2,699)  (1,664)

Profit before tax    596,384  374,729 

Income tax expenses    (61,499)  (68,749)

Profit for the year    534,885  305,980 

Other comprehensive income    (48,143)  64,450 

Total comprehensive income for the year    486,742  370,430 

Non controlling interest    (230,252)  (203,025)

Total comprehensive income for the year    256,490  167,405 

Group’s share of profit for the year    127,636  77,126  
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36 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Accounting Policy

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 

from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect the returns of those investees through its power over the investee. 

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

• power over the investee

• exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

• the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has 

less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing 

whether it has power over an investee, including:

• the contractual arrangement with other vote holders of the investee

• rights arising from other contractual arrangements

• the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the 

above.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences, until 

the date that control ceases. Where Subsidiaries have been sold or acquired during the year, assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the 

said subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements, from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 

to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s 

accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members 

of Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries, not owned directly or indirectly by the 

Bank. The non-controlling interest is presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately from the equity 

attributable to the equity holders of the Bank. Non-controlling interests in the profit or loss of the Group, is disclosed separately in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. Upon the loss of 

control, the Group de-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the 

other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control, is recognised in the statement of 

changes in equity. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that 

control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for 

financial instruments depending on the level of influence retained.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Bank in the form of cash dividends or repayment 

of loans and advances. All subsidiaries of the Bank as at the reporting date have been incorporated in Sri Lanka.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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36 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTD.)

36 (a) Investment in Subsidiary - Quoted

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Principal Cost of Directors’ Cost of Directors’

Principal Place of % Investment Valuation % Investment Valuation

Activity Business Holding Rs 000 Rs 000 Holding Rs 000 Rs 000

HNB Assurance PLC

(29,993,000 shares) Insurance Sri Lanka 60.00 384,285 1,778,585 60.00 384,285 2,249,475

Total quoted subsidiaries 384,285 384,285 

36 (b) Investment in Subsidiary - Unquoted

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Principal Cost of Directors’ Cost of Directors’

Principal Place of % Investment Valuation % Investment Valuation

Activity Business Holding Rs 000 Rs 000 Holding Rs 000 Rs 000

Sithma Development

 (Pvt) Ltd Property Sri Lanka 100.00 1,973,000 1,973,000 100.00 1,973,000 1,973,000

 (206,000,000 development

 ordinary shares)

HNB Grameen 

 Finance Ltd Micro-finance Sri Lanka 42.16 660,000 660,000 42.16 660,000 660,000

 (724,904,118

 ordinary shares)

Total unquoted subsidiaries 2,633,000 2,633,000 

Total for the Bank [36 (a) and 36 (b)] 3,017,285 3,017,285 

 HNB Grameen Finance Ltd

 Bank holds a stake of 51% in the voting rights of Prime Grameen Micro Finance Ltd (subsequently rebranded as HNB Grameen Finance Ltd). 

Accordingly, the said investment is accounted for as an investment in subsidiary. Since the Bank does not hold non-voting shares of HNB 

Grameen Finance Ltd, Bank’s holding in the said company is 42.16%.

36 (c) Subsidiary Held through HNB Assurance PLC

As at 31st December 2016 2015

Principal Cost of Directors’ Cost of Directors’

Principal Place of % Investment Valuation % Investment Valuation

Activity Business Holding Rs 000 Rs 000 Holding Rs 000 Rs 000

HNB General

Insurance Limited

General 

Insurance

Sri Lanka 100.00 1,150,000 1,150,000 100.00 1,150,000 1,150,000

 (115,000,000

 ordinary shares)

1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000
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36 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTD.)

36 (d) Non-Controlling Interests (NCI) in Subsidiaries

Subsidiary % of

Ownership

Interest held

by NCI

% of

Voting

Rights

held by NCI

Share of

Total

Comprehensive

Income of

NCI for the

Year Ended

31st December

NCI as at 31st December Dividends Paid to NCI

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

HNB Assurance PLC  40.00  40.00  237,260  65,982  1,086,409  889,105  40,000  75,000 

HNB Grameen Finance Ltd  57.84  49.00  753,882  466,725  1,934,614  1,290,183  109,407  - 

 991,142  532,707  3,021,023  2,179,288  149,407  75,000 

36 (e) Summarised Financial Information of Subsidiaries

 HNB Assurance PLC Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd HNB Grameen

   Finance Ltd

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets 14,528,854 11,640,830 10,203,235 10,231,547 18,614,934 13,490,777

Liabilities 11,831,797 9,356,885 625,296 609,327 15,292,385 11,400,853

Equity 2,697,057 2,283,945 9,577,944 9,622,220 3,322,549 2,089,924

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Revenue 6,896,816 5,775,631 940,575 922,156 5,784,350 4,024,608

Profit after tax 647,413 196,591 555,720 576,159 1,280,661 981,518

Total comprehensive income 647,892 185,878 555,720 576,159 1,421,778 972,311

 HNB Assurance PLC Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd HNB Grameen

   Finance Ltd

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cash flows from operating activities 1,292,190 1,169,770 717,134 712,160 (248,916) 792,988

Cash flows from investing activities (953,592) (767,836) (84,534) (3,638) 992,446 (665,479)

Cash flows from financing activities (100,000) (188,250) (600,000) (832,600) (382,056) (46,751)

37 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Accounting Policy

Basis of Recognition

An investment property is recognised, if it is probable that future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will 
flow to the Group and cost of the investment property can be reliably measured.

When a portion of the property is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes, the Group accounts for the portions separately if these portions could be sold 

separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease). If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is treated as investment 
property, only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Where the Group provides ancillary services to the occupants of a property it holds, the Group treats such a property as investment property 

if the services are insignificant to the arrangement as a whole.

Measurement

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. The cost of a purchased investment property comprises of its purchase price and 
any directly attributable expenditure. The cost of a self-constructed investment property, is its cost at the date when the construction or 

development is completed.
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The Group applies the cost model for investment properties in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 40 on “Investment 

Property”. Accordingly, land classified as investment properties are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and buildings 

classified as investment properties are stated at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group obtains the services of independent valuers who are not connected with the Bank, in order to determine the fair value of 

its investment properties annually for disclosure purposes and such fair values have been disclosed as required by Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - LKAS 40 on “Investment Property”.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated life of the class of asset from the date of purchase up to the date of 

disposal.

Class of Asset % per annum

Hatton National Bank PLC

 Freehold buildings [Refer Note 37 (a)] 2.5

Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd*

 Freehold buildings [Refer Note 37 (b)] 

  HNB Tower 1

  Others 2.5

 Plant, machinery and equipment integral to freehold buildings referred to above 20

* Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd 

The HNB towers which is owned by Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd (“Sithma”), is leased to occupants including the Bank. This building was 

classified as property, plant and equipment in the financial statements of Sithma, since the ancillary services provided by Sithma to the 

occupants of HNB towers, is a significant, component of the arrangement as a whole: In 2016, there was a change in the arrangements 

whereby the ancillary services provided to the occupants became  less significant component of the arrangements as a whole. Accordingly, 

HNB towers is classified as an investment property in the financial statements of Sithma as at 31st December 2016, in accordance with 

Sri Lanka accounting standard - LKAS 40 on ‘Investment property’.

The said building is treated as property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of financial position, since a major portion of 

the building is used by the Bank.

De-recognition

Investment properties are de-recognised when disposed of, or permanently withdrawn from the use since no future economic benefits are 

expected. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an investment property are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Transfers are made to and from investment properties only when there is a change in use.

Investment Property Leased within the Group

Any property leased out to the parent or a subsidiary in full or where the parent or subsidiary occupies a significant portion of such a 

property is considered as owner-occupied from the perspective of the Group and adjustments are made for consolidation purposes.

 Bank Group

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cost

Balance as at 1st January 435,442 435,442 1,140,184 1,135,963

Disposal during the year - - (5,400) -

Improvements 22,787 - 21,516 4,221

Balance as at 31st December 458,229 435,442 1,156,300 1,140,184

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1st January 48,799 43,354 98,387 93,577

Disposal during the year - - (1,200) -

Charge for the year (Note 17) 5,471 5,445 4,813 4,810

Balance as at 31st December 54,270 48,799 102,000 98,387

Net book value as at 31st December 403,959 386,643 1,054,300 1,041,797

37 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTD.)
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37 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTD.)

37 (a) Valuation of Investment Properties - Bank

Cost / Carrying Amount Fair Value Fair Value

As at 31st December 2016 As at 31st December 2016 as at 31st 

Building December 

Land (Net Book 2015

Building Extent (Cost) Value) Total Land Building Total Total

sq.ft Perches Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

23 & 23 1/1,

Independence Avenue,

Colombo 7 [Note 37 (b) i] 10,645 105.10 37,081 44,830 81,911 - - 739,000 739,000

479 T B Jayah Mawatha,

Colombo 10 [Note 37 (b) ii] Land 112.96 126,480 - 126,480 1,412,000 - 1,412,000 903,680

21, 21A, 23 & 25,

Janadhipathi Mawatha,

Colombo 1 [Note 37 (b) ii] Land 26.62 34,889 - 34,889 465,850 - 465,850 159,720

10, Sri Uttarananda Mawatha,

Colombo 3 [Note 37 (b) iii] 57,197 40.00 72,000 88,679 160,679 600,000 321,733 921,733 588,000

270,450 133,509 403,959 3,538,583 2,390,400

37 (b) Valuation of Investment Properties - Group

Cost / Carrying Amount Fair Value Fair Value

As at 31st December 2016 As at 31st December 2016 as at 31st 

Building December 

Land (Net Book 2015

Building Extent (Cost) Value) Total Land Building Total Total

sq.ft Perches Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Through the Bank

23 & 23 1/1,

Independence Avenue,

Colombo 7 [Note 37 (b) i]  10,645  105.10  37,081  44,830  81,911 - -  739,000 739,000

Through the Subsidiary

 - Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd

21, 21A, 23 & 25,

Janadhipathi Mawatha,  41,688 - -  86,089  86,089 -  308,900  308,900 221,280

Colombo 1 [Note 37 (b) ii]

Through the Subsidiary

 - HNB Grameen Finance Ltd

 [Note 37 (b) iv]

249, Stanley Thilekaratne 

Mawatha,

Pagoda, Nugegoda  24,952  39.60  151,063  407,937  559,000  205,134  482,366  687,500 559,000

Vihara Road, Rankewatte,

Matale  Land  15.00  9,000 -  9,000  9,000 -  9,000 9,000

44/1, Service Road, Puttalam  Land  25.60  12,800 -  12,800  15,400 -  15,400 12,800

465/1, Old Police Station Road,

Kahathuduwa, Polgasowita  20,494  182.59  49,008  71,992  121,000  56,755  72,845  129,600 121,000

67/1, Mahinda Place, Kirulapone,

Colombo 5  5,786  8.00  25,267  90,733  116,000  33,786  96,214  130,000 116,000

06, Abaya Place, 7th Lane,

Anuradapura  Land  13.52  20,000 -  20,000  25,000 -  25,000 20,000

10/11, Galle Road,

Moratuwa  Land  23.00  34,500 -  34,500  36,800 -  36,800 34,500

Adampodaivayal, 

Adampodaimalaikadu,

Trincomalee  Land  724.00  14,000 -  14,000  16,300 -  16,300 14,000

Nallaruwa, Panadura Land - - - - - - - 4,200

 352,719  701,581  1,054,300 - -  2,097,500 1,850,780

The Bank / Group carries investment properties at cost. Market valuations of the above investment properties were carried out as at 31st 

December 2016. Since the fair values of the investment properties were above the carrying value, the Board of Directors concluded that there 

was no impairment in investment properties.
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37 (b) Valuation of Investment Properties - Group (Contd.)

37 (b) i Valued as a condominium property.

37 (b) ii Land situated at No 479, T B Jayah Mw, Colombo 10 on which HNB Towers is built, and No 21, 21A, 23 and 25, Janadhipathi Mawatha, 

Colombo 01 are leased to Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd by the Bank and the Bank receives ground rent. Accordingly, these lands have been 

classified as investment properties in the statement of financial position of the Bank. However, according to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 

- LKAS 40 on “Investment Property”, the said lands are treated as property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of financial 

position, since these are leased to a group entity.

37 (b) iii Building situated at No 10, Sri Uttarananda Mw, Colombo 03 is leased out to HNB Assurance PLC and Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC. Accordingly 

this building is classified as investment property in the statement of financial position of the Bank. However, according to Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard - LKAS 40 on “Investment Property”, the said building is treated as property, plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of 

financial position, since Group uses a significant portion of the building for use in the production or supply of goods and services.

37 (b) iv These properties are held by the subsidiary of the Bank, HNB Grameen Finance Ltd. and valuations of the said properties were carried out 

by Messer’s R.S.Wijesuriya, DIV, FIV (Sri Lanka) a professional independent valuer. All these properties other than the property situated in 

Trincomalee have been mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by HNB Grameen Finance Ltd for the financial facilities obtained by the company. The 

aggregate mortgage value amounts to Rs 665Mn.

37 (c) Valuation details of Investment Properties

 In determining fair value, the current condition of the properties, future usability and associated development requirements have been 

considered. Further, the valuers have made reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties with appropriate 

adjustments for size and locations.

37 (c) i Bank

Property Name of Method of valuation Range of

professional and significant unobservable estimates for

Valuer inputs unobservable inputs

23 &23 1/1, Independence Avenue, Colombo 07 Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Income approach

- Estimated rent per month Rs 3,284,500

- Years purchase 25

- Outgoing expenses as a percentage 

of gross annual rent

25%

479, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Market comparable method 

- Rate per perch for land Rs 12,500,000

21, 21A, 23 & 25, Janadhipathi Mawatha, Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Market comparable method 

Colombo 01 - Rate per perch for land Rs 17,500,000

10, Sri Uttarananda Mawatha, Colombo 03 Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis / 

Market comparable method

- Rate per perch for land Rs 15,000,000

- Rate per square foot for building Rs 12,500

- Depreciation rate 55%
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37 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTD.)

37 (c) Valuation details of Investment Properties (Contd.)

37 (c) ii Group

Property Name of Method of valuation Range of

professional and significant unobservable estimates for

Valuer inputs unobservable inputs

Through the Bank

23 &23 1/1, Independence Avenue, Colombo 07 Mr. J..MJ. Fernando Income approach

- Estimated rent per month Rs 3,284,500

- Years purchase 25

- Outgoing expenses as a 

 percentage of gross annual rent 25%

Through the subsidiary -

Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd.

21, 21A, 23 & 25, Janadhipathi Mawatha, Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis

Colombo 01 - Rate per Sq.ft for building Rs 5,380

Through the subsidiary -  

 HNB Grameen Finance Ltd

No.249, Stanley Thilekerathna Mawatha, Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Income approach

Pagoda, Nugegoda - Estimated rent per month Rs 1,700,000

- Discount rate 20%

Vihara Road, Rakewatta, Matale Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Market comparable method

- Rate per perch for land Rs 600,000

No.44/1, Service Road, Puttalam Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Market comparable method

- Rate per perch for land Rs 600,000

No.465/1, Old police Station Road, Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Income approach

Kahathduwa, Polgasowita - Estimated rent per month Rs 450,000

- Depreciation rate 20%

No. 67/1, Mahinda Place, Kirulapone, Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Income approach

Colombo 05 - Estimated rent per month Rs 450,000

- Depreciation rate 20%

No. 06, Abaya Place, 7th Lane, Anuradapura Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Market comparable method

- Rate per perch for land Rs 1,850,000

No. 10/11, Galle Road, Katubedda, Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Market comparable method

Moratuwa - Rate per perch for land Rs 1,600,000

Adampodaivayal, Adampodaimlaikadu, Mr. R.S. Wijesuriya Market comparable method

Trincomalee - Rate per perch for land Rs 22,500

Unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value

- Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

Significant increase / (decrease) in estimated price per perch, price per sq.ft and depreciation rate would result in a significantly higher / 

(lower) fair value.

- Investment method

Significant increase / (decrease) in rent per sq.ft, outgoing expenses and number of years since purchase would result in a significantly 

higher / (lower) fair value.
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Accounting Policy

Basis of Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the 

Group and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost includes expenditure 

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. The cost 

of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a 

working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. 

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of computer equipment.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 

property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model

The Group applies cost model to property, plant and equipment except for freehold land and buildings and records at cost of purchase or 

construction together with any incidental expenses thereon, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluation Model

The Group applies the revaluation model to the entire class of freehold land and buildings. Such properties are carried at a revalued amount, 

being their fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment 

loss. Freehold land and buildings of the Group are revalued at least once in every three years on a roll over basis, to ensure that the carrying 

amounts do not differ materially from the fair values at the reporting date. On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount 

is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve, or used to reverse a previous revaluation 

decrease relating to the same asset, which was charged to the statement of profit or loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognised 

as income to the extent of the previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognised as an expense in the statement of 

profit or loss or debited in the other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the capital reserve in respect of 

that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital reserves. Any 

balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset, is transferred directly to retained earnings on retirement or disposal of 

the asset.

Reclassification as Investment Property

When the use of property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is re-measured to fair value and reclassified 

as investment property. Any gain arising on re-measurement, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss to the extent that it reverses 

a previous impairment loss on the specific property, with any remaining gain recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in 

revaluation reserve in equity. Any loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent Costs

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item 

if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the Group and its cost can be reliably measured. 

The costs of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs incurred 

in using or redeploying an item, is not included under carrying amount of an item.
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38 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)

De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment which is 

calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds, is included in the statement of profit or loss when 

the item is de-recognised.

When replacement costs are recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining carrying amount 

of the replaced part is de-recognised. Major inspection costs are capitalised. At each such capitalisation, the remaining carrying amount of 

the previous cost of inspections is de-recognised.

Depreciation

The Group provides depreciation from the date the assets are available for use up to the date of disposal. The assets are depreciated at the 

following rates on a straight line basis over the periods appropriate to the estimated useful lives, based on the pattern in which the asset’s 

future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group other than disclosed separately. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the 

earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or the date that the asset is de-recognised. Depreciation does not cease when 

the assets become idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Hatton National Bank PLC and its Subsidiary Companies (except for Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd)

Class of Asset % per annum

Freehold buildings 2.5

Motor vehicles 25

Computer equipment 16.67

Office equipment 20

Furniture and fittings 10

Fixtures 10

Improvements to leasehold buildings over the lease period

Depreciation is not provided for freehold land.

Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd

Class of Asset % per annum

Generators, generator panels and associated power cables 2

Chillers, cooling towers and associated equipment 4

Lifts and escalator 4

Building management systems 4

Plant and machinery 20

Equipment 20

Furniture and fittings 10

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Capital Work-in-Progress

These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and system 

development, awaiting capitalisation. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use i.e. 

when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-

progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset have been capitalised as part 

of the cost of the asset in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 23 on “Borrowing Costs”. A qualifying asset is an asset 

which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially 

all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are completed. Other borrowing costs are recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss in the period in which they incur.
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Bank

Leasehold Freehold Computer Equipment Motor Capital 2016 2015

Buildings Land and Equipment Furniture Vehicles Work-in Total Total

Buildings and Progress

Fixtures

Note 38 (c) Note 38 (a)

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cost / valuation as at 1st January 1,546,988 9,143,068 3,376,238 4,280,666 127,917 117,152 18,592,029 16,087,612 

Accumulated depreciation

 adjustment on revaluation - (103,189) - - - - (103,189) (260,002)

Write-off during the year - - - (9,594) - - (9,594) -

Revaluation surplus - 2,273,397 - - - - 2,273,397 2,095,076 

Net impairment (charge) / reversal

 (Note 14) - 41,219 - - - - 41,219 (39,569)

Additions and improvements 27,953 62,078 235,403 295,561 - 354,203 975,198 882,803 

Disposals during the year (10,058) (2,584) (73,767) (127,810) - - (214,219) (153,713)

Transferred to non-current assets

 held for sale (Note 30) - - - - - - - (20,178)

Transferred from capital

 work-in-progress 3,849 - - 148,810 - (152,659) - - 

Cost / valuation

 as at 31st December 1,568,732 11,413,989 3,537,874 4,587,633 127,917 318,696 21,554,841 18,592,029 

Accumulated depreciation

 as at 1st January 1,237,615 4,523 2,462,018 3,300,280 114,024 - 7,118,460 6,782,947 

Accumulated depreciation

 adjustment on revaluation - (103,189) - - - - (103,189) (260,002)

Accumulated depreciation on 

 write-off assets

- - - (5,124) - - (5,124) -

Charge for the year 99,803 98,666 265,409 338,192 8,251 - 810,321 740,538 

Transferred to non-current assets

 held for sale (Note 30) - - - - - - - (27)

Disposals during the year (9,682) - (73,555) (127,392) - - (210,629) (144,996)

Accumulated depreciation

 as at 31st December 1,327,736 - 2,653,872 3,505,956 122,275 - 7,609,839 7,118,460 

Net book value

 as at 31st December 2016 240,996 11,413,989 884,002 1,081,677 5,642 318,696 13,945,002 -

Net book value

 as at 31st December 2015 309,373 9,138,545 914,220 980,386 13,893 117,152 - 11,473,569 

 The Bank / Group revalued its freehold land and buildings during 2016. The details relating to the revaluation of freehold land and buildings 

are given in Note 38 (b).

 Based on the assessment of potential impairment carried out internally by the Board of Directors as at 31st December 2016, Rs 41.22 Mn was 

recognised as a reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment which is accounted for in “impairment charge / (reversal) for 

loans and other losses”.
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Group

Leasehold Freehold Computer Equipment Motor Capital 2016 2015

Buildings Land and Equipment Furniture Vehicles Work in Total Total

Buildings and Progress

Note 38 (c) Note 38 (a) Fixtures

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cost / valuation as at 1st January  1,546,988  19,820,653  3,655,728  6,747,021  158,273  120,975  32,049,638  26,053,148 

Accumulated depreciation

 adjustment on revaluation -  (137,629) - - - -  (137,629)  (470,972)

Revaluation surplus -  5,748,917 - - - -  5,748,917  5,597,137 

Write-off during the year - - - (9,594) - - (9,594) -

Net Impairment (charge) / reversal 

 Note 14 -  41,219 - - - -  41,219  (39,472)

Additions and improvements  27,953  75,343  306,750  449,859 -  425,962  1,285,867  1,091,320 

Disposals during the year  (10,058)  (2,583)  (80,204)  (155,678) - -  (248,523)  (161,345)

Transferred from intangible assets - - -  3,051 - -  3,051 -

Transferred to non-current assets

 held for sale (Note 30) - - - - - -  (20,178)

Transferred from capital -

 work-in-progress  3,849 - -  148,810 -  (152,659) - -

Cost / valuation

    as at 31st December  1,568,732  25,545,920  3,882,274  7,183,469  158,273  394,278  38,732,946  32,049,638 

Accumulated depreciation

 as at 1st January  1,237,615  90,930  2,633,558  4,051,438  127,409 -  8,140,950  7,762,783 

Accumulated depreciation

 adjustment on revaluation -  (137,629) - - - -  (137,629)  (470,972)

Accumulated depreciation on 

 write-off assets

- - - (5,124) - - (5,124) -

Charge for the year  99,803  218,238  306,778  487,710  16,129 -  1,128,658  1,001,399 

Transferred from intangible assets - - -  610 - -  610 -

Transferred to non-current assets

 held for sale (Note 30) - - - - - - -  (27)

Disposals during the year  (9,682) -  (80,133)  (148,932)  (6) -  (238,753)  (152,233)

Accumulated depreciation

    as at 31st December  1,327,736  171,539  2,860,203  4,385,702  143,532 -  8,888,712  8,140,950 

Net book value

    as at 31st December 2016  240,996  25,374,381  1,022,071  2,797,767  14,741  394,278  29,844,234 -

Net book value

    as at 31st December 2015  309,373  19,729,723  1,022,170  2,695,583  30,864  120,975 -  23,908,688 
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38 (a) Information on Freehold Land and Buildings of the Bank - Extents and Locations

As at 31st As at 31st

Cost / Cost / December December

Extent Buildings Valuation of Valuation of Total Accumulated 2016 2015

(perches) Sq.ft. Land Buildings Value Depreciation Net Book Net Book

Value Value

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Akkaraipattu Branch
14, Main Street, 19.32 10,080 53,130 48,870 102,000 - 102,000 88,949 
Akkaraipattu.
Ambalangoda Branch
94/1, New Galle Road, 29.90 4,959 90,000 18,000 108,000 - 108,000 91,975 
Ambalangoda.
Anuradhapura Branch
30, Maithripala Senanayake 58.99 9,510 106,500 31,500 138,000 - 138,000 137,947 
Mawatha, Anuradhapura.
Badulla Branch
15, 15 1/1,

Udayaraja Mawatha,

27.75 5,629 83,250 20,750 104,000 - 104,000 92,970 

Badulla.
Bambalapitiya Branch
285, Galle Road, 20.00 16,170 240,000 69,000 309,000 - 309,000 228,585 
Colombo 04.
Boralesgamuwa Branch
24, Maharagama Road, 29.55 5,432 88,650 26,350 115,000 - 115,000 98,966 
Boralesgamuwa.
Borella Branch
53/1, D S Senanayake 

Mawatha,

28.00 10,102 196,000 95,000 291,000 - 291,000 227,882 

Colombo 08.
Centralised Operations
90, Vinayalankara Mawatha, 249.00 10,250 2,128,950 56,631 2,185,581 - 2,185,581 1,467,939 
Colombo 10.
City Office
16, Janadhipathi Mawatha, 84.00 44,807 1,260,000 82,000 1,342,000 - 1,342,000 584,071 
Colombo 1.
Chavakachcheri Branch
170, Kandy Road, 20.40 5,557 35,420 15,580 51,000 - 51,000 - 
Chavakachcheri .
Dambulla Branch
700B, Anuradhapura Road, 100.00 7,456 120,000 43,474 163,474 - 163,474 163,416 
Dambulla.
Fruithill Bungalow
No 295/6, Dimbula Road, 53.08 4,277 12,105 13,895 26,000 - 26,000 22,985 
Hatton.
Galle Branch
3, Wakwella Road, 13.68 7,920 75,000 20,000 95,000 - 95,000 79,981 
Galle.
Gampaha Branch
148, Colombo Road, 25.00 16,682 65,000 170,929 235,929 - 235,929 235,713 
Gampaha.
Gampola Branch
142, Kandy Road, 17.05 12,825 46,888 64,112 111,000 - 111,000 101,936 
Gampola.
Grandpass Branch
182, St Joseph Street, 24.00 11,220 102,000 80,000 182,000 - 182,000 158,896 
Colombo 14.
Gunasinghapura Stores
11, Mohandiram’s Road, 48.30 6,022 127,740 22,391 150,131 - 150,131 149,963 
Colombo 12. 
Ja-Ela Branch
73,Old Negombo 

Road,Kanuwana,

19.00 3,766 29,450 13,750 43,200 - 43,200 42,477 

Ja-Ela.

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



286
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

As at 31st As at 31st

Cost / Cost / December December

Extent Buildings Valuation of Valuation of Total Accumulated 2016 2015

(perches) Sq.ft. Land Buildings Value Depreciation Net Book Net Book

Value Value

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Jaffna Metro Branch
177 & 179, Ponnampalam Rd, 61.36 30,694 276,000 254,000 530,000 - 530,000 558,078 
Jaffna.
Kahawatte Branch
772 A, Main Street, 16.14 3,298 25,000 16,000 41,000 - 41,000 29,993 
Kahawatte.
Kalmunai Branch
30A, Batticaloa Road, 25.10 6,123 56,475 35,525 92,000 - 92,000 79,968 
Kalmunai.
Kandy Branch
1, Dalada Veediya, 58.00 26,821 576,500 138,500 715,000 - 715,000 667,640 
Kandy.
Kegalle Branch
451, Kandy Road, 61.70 - 83,400 - 83,400 - 83,400 83,400 
Kegalle.
Kuliyapitiya Branch
225, Main Street, 32.08 4,500 24,000 15,800 39,800 - 39,800 39,973 
Kuliyapitiya.
Kurunegala Branch
6, St. Anne’s Street, 36.25 17,970 145,000 105,828 250,828 - 250,828 250,650 
Kurunegala.
Mount Bungalow
16, Mount Road, 160.09 5,074 32,018 17,982 50,000 - 50,000 14,989 
Hatton.
Mannar Branch

68, Main Street, 23.00 5,866 11,500 19,700 31,200 - 31,200 31,475 
Mannar.
Marawila Branch
534, Colombo Road, 43.80 7,217 32,150 25,400 57,550 - 57,550 57,957 
Marawila.
Maskeliya Branch
7/11, New Town, 20.32 8,277 22,352 39,648 62,000 - 62,000 53,944 
Maskeliya.
Matara Branch
58D, Esplanade Road, 26.00 7,242 54,000 31,000 85,000 - 85,000 82,948 
Matara.
Minuwangoda Branch
41, Samarakkody Road, 20.51 3,452 30,765 15,235 46,000 - 46,000 45,981 
Minuwangoda.
Managers’ Bungalow
295, Dimbula Road, 42.20 1,976 9,495 8,505 18,000 - 18,000 42,975 
Hatton.
Mount Lavinia Branch
605, Galle Road, 22.66 11,350 84,975 66,025 151,000 - 151,000 134,298 
Mount Lavinia.
Negombo Branch
18, Rajapakse Broadway, 8.88 5,450 15,984 19,300 35,284 - 35,284 34,967 
Negombo.
Negombo Metro
201, Colombo Road, 51.98 28,081 103,960 211,040 315,000 - 315,000 314,734 
Negombo.
Nittambuwa Branch
22, Kandy Road, 55.69 10,411 111,380 149,588 260,968 - 260,968 260,671 
Nittambuwa.
Nochchiyagama Branch *
10, Puttalam Road, - 8,652 - 24,500 24,500 - 24,500 24,659 
Nochchiyagama.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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As at 31st As at 31st

Cost / Cost / December December

Extent Buildings Valuation of Valuation of Total Accumulated 2016 2015

(perches) Sq.ft. Land Buildings Value Depreciation Net Book Net Book

Value Value

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Nugegoda Branch
181, High Level Road, 16.50 11,096 99,000 72,124 171,124 - 171,124 140,895 
Nugegoda.
Nugegoda Branch
190,190/1, High Level Road, 39.65 Under 128,863 - 128,863 - 128,863 128,863 
Nugegoda. construction
Nuwara Eliya Branch / 

Bungalow
42, Queen Elizabeth Drive, 149.03 12,929 514,833 55,167 570,000 - 570,000 509,920 
Nuwara Eliya.
Panchikawatte Branch
168, Panchikawatta Road, 22.55 16,366 135,300 94,700 230,000 - 230,000 198,905 
Colombo 10.
Pettah Branch
149-151, Main Street, 13.03 11,460 195,450 79,450 274,900 - 274,900 229,277 
Colombo 11.
Pettah Metro **
88, Main Street, - 3,708 - 83,000 83,000 - 83,000 63,919 
Colombo 11.
Polonnaruwa Branch *
467, Main Street, Kaduruwela, - 9,882 - 56,884 56,884 - 56,884 56,759 
Polonnaruwa.
Pussellawa Branch
510, Nuwaraeliya Road, 14.30 4,785 25,025 24,975 50,000 - 50,000 42,974 
Pussellawa.
Ratnapura Branch
21 & 23, Senanayake Mawatha, 43.40 6,732 86,000 12,000 98,000 - 98,000 92,471 
Ratnapura.
Sea Street Branch
60, Sea Street, 6.93 9,608 83,160 44,840 128,000 - 128,000 105,927 
Colombo 11.
Trincomalee Branch
59, Ehamparam Road, 31.75 9,156 69,850 49,623 119,473 - 119,473 119,775 
Trincomalee.
Vavuniya Branch *
43, Inner Circular Road, - 9,032 - 25,300 25,300 - 25,300 25,457 
Vavuniya.
Wattala Branch
270, 270/1, Negombo Road, 53.00 8,579 185,500 52,100 237,600 - 237,600 195,925 
Wattala.
Welimada Branch
35, Nuwara Eliya Road, 14.37 9,909 39,518 55,482 95,000 - 95,000 82,941 
Welimada.
Wellawaya Branch
70, Kumaradasa Mawatha, 26.60 5,873 7,000 14,000 21,000 - 21,000 12,750 
Wellawaya.
Wellawatte Branch
100 & 102, Galle Road, 36.05 16,082 360,500 123,500 484,000 - 484,000 347,836 
Colombo 06.
Total freehold land and 

buildings

8,485,036 2,928,953 11,413,989 - 11,413,989 9,138,545 

*Buildings constructed on state land given on lease

** Condominium property

38 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)
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38 (b) Information on Valuations of Freehold Land and Buildings of the Bank

 The below table summarises the result of the revaluation carried out in 2016

Name of Professional Valuer Method of Valuation and Significant Unobservable Inputs

Akkaraipattu Branch Mr. M.H.G.Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/

14, Main Street, Market comparable method

Akkaraipattu. - Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Ambalangoda Branch Mr. G.K.D.K. Abeytunga Depreciated replacement cost basis/

94/1, New Galle Road, Ambalangoda. Market comparable method

- Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Anuradhapura Branch Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/

30, Maithripala Senanayake Market comparable method

Mawatha, Anuradhapura. - Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Badulla Branch Mr. M.H.G.Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/

15, 15 1/1, Udayaraja Mawatha, Market comparable method

Badulla. - Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Bambalapitiya Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

285, Galle Road, Colombo 4. - Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Boralesgamuwa Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

24, Maharagama Road, - Price per perch for land

Boralesgamuwa. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Borella Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

53/1, D S Senanayake Mawatha, - Price per perch for land

Borella. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Centralised Operations Building Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

90, Vinayalankara Mawatha, - Price per perch for land

Colombo 10. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Chavakachcheri Branch Mr.Balenthiran B. Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

170, Kandy Road, Chavakachcheri - Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

City Office Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

16, Janadhipathi Mawatha, - Price per perch for land

Colombo 1. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Dambulla Branch Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

700B, Anuradhapura Road, - Price per perch for land

Dambulla. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Fruithill Bungalow Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

No 295/6, - Price per perch for land

Dimbula Road, - Price per square foot for building

Hatton. - Depreciation rate
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Range of Estimates for Unobservable Inputs Net book value

before revaluation of

Revalued amount of Revaluation Gain/(Loss) 

Recognised on

Land Building Land Building Land Building

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

 48,300  39,375  53,130  48,870  4,830  9,495 

Rs.2,750,000 p.p

Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

10.00%

 74,500  16,850  90,000  18,000  15,500  1,150 

Rs.3,000,000 p.p

Rs.4,500 to Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

30.00%

 106,500  30,219  106,500  31,500  -    1,281 

Rs.1,000,000 to Rs.2,850,000 p.p

Rs.3,500 to Rs.4,500 p. sq.ft

20.00%

 74,925  17,293  83,250  20,750  8,325  3,457 

Rs.3,000,000 p.p

Rs.2,000 to Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 160,000  65,727  240,000  69,000  80,000  3,273 

Rs.12,000,000 p.p

Rs.9,000 p. sq.ft

52.00%

 73,875  24,255  88,650  26,350  14,775  2,095 

Rs.3,000,000 p.p

Rs.3,750 to Rs.7,500 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 140,000  84,951  196,000  95,000  56,000  10,049 

Rs.7,000,000 p.p

Rs.3,850 to Rs.12,750 p. sq.ft

22.00%

 1,419,300  47,114  2,128,950  56,631  709,650  9,517 

Rs.9,000,000 p.p

Rs.6,500 p. sq.ft

15.00%

 36,017  16,069  35,420  15,580  (597)  (489)

Rs.11,000,000 p.p

Rs.1,500 to Rs.3,500 p. sq.ft

 504,000  77,146  1,260,000  82,000  756,000  4,854 

Rs.15,000,000 p.p

Rs.3,300 to Rs.7,750 p. sq.ft

73.67%

 120,000  41,978  120,000  43,474  -    1,496 

Rs.800,000 to Rs.1,600,000 p.p

Rs.7,500 to Rs.8,000 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 10,760  11,841  12,105  13,895  1,345  2,054 

Rs.225,000 p.p

Rs.4,000 p. sq.ft

30.00%

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



290
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements

Name of Professional Valuer Method of Valuation and Significant Unobservable Inputs

Galle Branch Mr. G.K.D.K. Abeytunga Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

3, Wakwella Road, - Price per perch for land

Galle. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Gampaha Branch Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

148, Colombo Road, - Price per perch for land

Gampaha. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Gampola Branch Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

142, Kandy Road, - Price per perch for land

Gampola. - Price per square foot for building

Grandpass Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

182, St Joseph Street, - Price per perch for land

Colombo 14. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Gunasinghepura Stores Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis

11, Mohandiram’s Road, - Price per perch for land

Colombo 12. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Ja-Ela Branch Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

73,Old Negombo Road, - Price per perch for land

Ja-Ela. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Jaffna Metro Branch Mr. B. Balenthiran Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

177 179 Ponnampalam Rd, - Price per perch for land

Jaffna. - Price per square foot for building

Kahawatte Branch Mr. G.K.D.K. Abeytunga Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

77 2A, Main Street, - Price per perch for land

Kahawatte. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Kalmunai Branch Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

30A, Batticaloa Road, - Price per perch for land

Kalmunai. - Price per square foot for building

Kandy Branch Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

1, Dalada Veediya, - Price per perch for land

Kandy. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Kegalle Branch Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis

451, Kandy Road, - Price per perch for land

Kegalle. - Price per square foot for building

Kuliyapitiya Branch Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

225, Main Street, - Price per perch for land

Kuliyapitiya. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Kurunegala Branch Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

6, St. Anne’s Street, - Price per perch for land

Kurunegala. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Mount Bungalow Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

No 295, Mount Road, - Price per perch for land

Hatton. - Price per square foot for building

Mannar Branch Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

68, Main Street, - Price per perch for land

Mannar. - Price per square foot for building
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Range of Estimates for Unobservable Inputs Net book value

before revaluation of

Revalued amount of Revaluation Gain/(Loss) 

Recognised on

Land Building Land Building Land Building

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

 68,400  11,480  75,000  20,000  6,600  8,520 

Rs.5,500,000 p.p

Rs.3,500 to Rs.4,000p. sq.ft

30.00%

 65,000  165,364  65,000  170,929  -  5,566 

Rs.2,600,000 p.p

Rs.8,000 to Rs.15,000 p. sq.ft

15.00%

 42,625  57,707  46,888  64,112  4,262  6,405 

Rs.2,750,000 p.p

Rs. 5,000 p. sq.ft

 84,000  72,308  102,000  80,000  18,000  7,692 

Rs.4,250,000 p.p

Rs.9,350 p. sq.ft

23.00%

 127,740  21,297  127,740  22,391  -    1,094 

Rs.3,000,000 p.p

Rs.2,000 to Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

23.66% and 73.67%

 28,500  13,466  29,450  13,750  950  284 

Rs.1,550,000 p.p

Rs.2,500 to 4,500 p. sq.ft

18.00%

 276,000  274,453  276,000  254,000  -    (20,453)

Rs.4,500,000 p.p

Rs.9,200 p. sq.ft

 24,210  5,634  25,000  16,000  790  10,366 

Rs.1,550,000 p.p

Rs.3,000 to Rs.3,500 p. sq.ft

35.00%

 50,200  29,247  56,475  35,525  6,275  6,278 

Rs.2,250,000 p.p

Rs.5,500 p. sq.ft

 547,675  114,944  576,500  138,500  28,825  23,556 

Rs.10,000,000 p.p

Rs.4,750 to Rs.6,500 p.sq.ft

40.00%

 83,400  -     83,400  -    -    -   

Rs.1,000,000 to Rs.2,000,000 p.p

Rs.4,500 to Rs.5,500 p. sq.ft

 24,000  15,791  24,000  15,800  -    9

Rs.425,000 to Rs.850,000 p.p

Rs.4,300 p. sq.ft

18.00%

 145,000  101,776  145,000  105,828  -    4,052 

Rs.4,000,000 p.p

Rs.4000 to Rs.8,500 p. sq.ft

20.00%

 8,440  6,485  9,495  8,505  1,055  2,020 

Rs.225,000 p.p

Rs.3,500 p. sq.ft

 11,500  19,505  11,500  19,700  -    195 

Rs.500,000 p.p

Rs.2,750 to Rs.3,550 p. sq.ft
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Name of Professional Valuer Method of Valuation and Significant Unobservable Inputs

Marawila Branch Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

534, Chilaw Road, - Price per perch for land

Marawila. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Maskeliya Branch Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

7/11, New Town, - Price per perch for land

Maskeliya. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Matara Branch Mr. G.K.D.K. Abeytunga Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

58D, Esplanade Road, - Price per perch for land

Matara. - Price per square foot for building

Minuwangoda Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

41, Samarakkody Road, - Price per perch for land

Minuwangoda. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Manager Bungalow Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

295, Dimbula Road, - Price per perch for land

Hatton. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Mount Lavinia Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

605, Galle Road, - Price per perch for land

Mount Lavinia. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Negombo Branch Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

18, Rajapakse Broadway, - Price per perch for land

Negombo. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Negombo Metro Building Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

201, Colombo Road, - Price per perch for land

Negombo. - Price per square foot for building

Nittambuwa Branch Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

22, Kandy Road, - Price per perch for land

Nittambuwa.  - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Nochchiyagama Branch* Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

10, Puttalam Road, - Price per square foot for building

Nochchiyagama. - Depreciation rate

Nugegoda Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

181, High Level Road, - Price per perch for land

Nugegoda. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Nugegoda Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Market comparable method

(Under construction) - Price per perch for land

190,190/1, High Level Road,

Nugegoda

Nuwara Eliya Branch / Bungalow Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

42, Queen Elizabeth Drive, - Price per perch for land

Nuwara Eliya. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Panchikawatta Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

168, Panchikawatta Road, - Price per perch for land

Colombo 10. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Pettah Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

149-151, Main Street, - Price per perch for land

Colombo 11. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate
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Range of Estimates for Unobservable Inputs Net book value

before revaluation of

Revalued amount of Revaluation Gain/(Loss) 

Recognised on

Land Building Land Building Land Building

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

 32,150  24,768  32,150  25,400  -    632 

Rs.500,000 to Rs.1,000,000 p.p

Rs.3,300 to Rs.4,300 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 20,320  32,222  22,352  39,648  2,032  7,426 

Rs.1,100,000 p.p

Rs.4,500 to Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 52,000  31,900  54,000  31,000  2,000  (900)

Rs.2,250,000 p.p

Rs.4,500 to Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

 30,765  14,755  30,765  15,235  -    480 

Rs.1,500,000 p.p

Rs.2,500 to Rs.6,000 p. sq.ft

21.00%

 28,016  14,336  32,018  17,982  4,002  3,646 

Rs.200,000 p.p

Rs.4,000 p. sq.ft

35.00%

 73,645  58,126  84,975  66,025  11,330  7,899 

Rs.3,750,000 p.p

Rs.9,000 p. sq.ft

35.00%

 15,500  18,729  15,984  19,300  484  571 

Rs.1,800,000 p.p

Rs.850 to Rs.4,850 p. sq.ft

16.50%

 103,960  204,472  103,960  211,040  -    6,568 

Rs.2,000,000 p.p

Rs.8,550 to Rs.9,500 p. sq.ft

 108,753  143,114  111,380  149,588  2,627  6,473 

Rs.2,000,000 p.p

Rs.12,000 to Rs.18,000 p. sq.ft

12.00%

 -     23,631  -     24,500  -     869 

Rs 1,500 to Rs.4,400 p. sq.ft

23.% and 30.5%

 78,550  59,747  99,000  72,124  20,451  12,377 

Rs 6,000,000 p.p

Rs.10,000p. sq.ft

35.00%

 128,863  -     128,863  -     -    -   

Rs.3,250,000 p.p

 462,575  45,641  514,833  55,168  52,258 9,526

Rs.2,750,000 to Rs.4,500,000 p.p

Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

40.00%

 112,750  83,727  135,300  94,700  22,550  10,973 

Rs.6,000,000 p.p

Rs.3,000 to Rs.9,000 p. sq.ft

35.00%

 156,360  70,029  195,450  79,450  39,090  9,421 

Rs.15,000,000 p.p

Rs.9,500 p. sq.ft

27.00%
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Name of Professional Valuer Method of Valuation and Significant Unobservable Inputs

Pettah Metro ** Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Investment basis

88, Main Street, - Rent per sqft

Colombo 11. - Out-going expenses

- Years purchase

Polonnaruwa Branch * Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

467, Main Street, Kaduruwela, - Price per square foot for building

Polonnaruwa. - Depreciation rate

Pussellawa Branch Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

510, Pussellawa Road, - Price per perch for land

Pussellawa. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Ratnapura Branch Mr. G.K.D.K. Abeytunga Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

21 & 23, Senanayake Mw, - Price per perch for land

Ratnapura. - Price per square foot for building

Sea Street Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/

60, Sea Street, Market comparable method

Colombo 11. - Price per perch for land

- Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Trincomalee Branch Mr. N.M. Jayatilake Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

59, Ehampraram Road, - Price per perch for land

Trincomalee. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Vavuniya Branch * Mr. Tissa Weeratne Depreciated replacement cost basis/

43, Inner Circular Road, - Price per square foot for building

Vavuniya. - Depreciation rate

Wattala Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

270, 270/1, Negombo Road, - Price per perch for land

Wattala. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Welimada Branch Mr. W.M.H.G. Heenbanda Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

35, Nuwara Eliya Road, - Price per perch for land

Welimada. - Price per square foot for building

Wellawaya Branch Mr. G.K.D.K. Abeytunga Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

70, Kumaradasa Mawatha - Price per perch for land

Wellawaya. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

Wellawatte Branch Mr. J.M.J. Fernando Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

100 & 102, Galle Road, - Price per perch for land

Wellawatte. - Price per square foot for building

- Depreciation rate

* Buildings constructed on state land given on lease

** Valued as a condominium property

Unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value

- Depreciated replacement cost basis/Market comparable method

Significant increase / (decrease) in estimated price per perch, price per sq.ft and depreciation rate would result in a significantly higher / 

(lower) fair value.

- Investment method

Significant increase / (decrease) in rent per sq.ft, outgoing expenses and number of years since purchase would result in a significantly 

higher / (lower) fair value.

38 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)

38 (b) Information on Valuations of Freehold Land and Buildings of the Bank (Contd.)
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Range of Estimates for Unobservable Inputs Net book value

before revaluation of

Revalued amount of Revaluation Gain/(Loss) 

Recognised on

Land Building Land Building Land Building

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

 -     63,833  -     83,000  -     19,167 

Rs 180.00

35% of the gross annual rent

16

 -     55,049  -     56,884  -     1,835 

Rs.6,500 to Rs.7,500 p. sq.ft

20.00%

 21,450  20,891  25,025  24,975  3,575  4,084 

Rs.1,750,000 p.p

Rs.5,000 p. sq.ft

5.00%

 75,000  16,755  86,000  12,000  11,000  (4,755)

Rs.1,750,000 to Rs.2,250,000 p.p

Rs.3,000 p. sq.ft

 62,370  41,742  83,160  44,840  20,790  3,098 

Rs.12,000,000 p.p

Rs.9,000p. sq.ft

48.00%

 69,850  49,022  69,850  49,623  -    601 

Rs.2,200,000 p.p

Rs.6,500 to Rs.8,000 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 -     24,520  -     25,300  -     780 

Rs.1,500 to Rs.4,250 p. sq.ft

28.50%

 145,750  48,388  185,500  52,100  39,750  3,712 

Rs.3,500,000 p.p

Rs.3,750 p.sq.ft to Rs.9000 p. sq.ft

27.00%

 35,925  45,671  39,518  55,483  3,593  9,811 

Rs.2,750,000 p.p

Rs.5,250 p. sq.ft 

 2,809  9,810  7,000  14,000  4,191  4,190 

Rs.250,000 p.p

Rs.3,500 to Rs.4,000 p. sq.ft

25.00%

 234,325  109,668  360,500  123,500  126,175  13,832 

Rs.10,000,000 p.p

Rs10,000 p. sq.ft

23.00%

 6,406,553  2,692,821  8,485,036  2,928,955  2,078,483  236,132 
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38 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.)

38 (c) Leasehold Buildings

Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016  2015 2016 2015

Cost of Accumulated Net Net Cost of Accumulated Net Net

Buildings Depreciation Book Value Book Value Buildings Depreciation Book Value Book Value

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

01 - 05 years 1,349,517 1,170,999 178,518 27,421 1,349,519 1,170,999 178,520 27,421 

06 - 10 years 148,305 89,477 58,828 268,071 148,303 89,477 58,826 268,071 

11 - 15 years 70,910 67,260 3,650 12,942 70,910 67,260 3,650 12,942 

16 - 20 years - - - 939 - - - 939 

Total 1,568,732 1,327,736 240,996 309,373 1,568,732 1,327,736 240,996 309,373 

38 (d) Temporarily Idle Property, Plant and Equipment - Bank

 There was no temporarily idle property, plant and equipment as at 31st December 2016.

38 (e) Compensation from Third Parties for Property, Plant and Equipment - Bank

 Rs. 2.01 Mn was received as compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up.

39 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Accounting Policy

Basis of Recognition

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group 

and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in 

a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is measured at initial recognition in 

accordance with Note 3.1.1.

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill 

is included in the carrying amount of the investment, and an impairment loss in such an investment is not allocated to any asset, including 

goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the equity accounted investee.

Any gain on bargain purchase is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

(b) Software

All computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the Group, which are not integrally related to associated hardware, which can 

be clearly identified, reliably measured and it’s probable that those will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the statement 

of financial position under the category ‘intangible assets’ and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses.
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39 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (CONTD.)

License

The amount that would be required to obtain a license to operate a registered finance business is recognised as license in the financial 

statements.

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalised, only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate future 

economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the 

asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or infinite. Intangible assets, with finite lives, are amortised on a straight line 

basis in the statement of profit or loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best estimate of the useful economic life 

based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the Group, at 16.67% per annum.

Those assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognised as an expense by the Group in previous annual financial statements or interim 

financial statements are not recognised as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date. Amortisation methods, useful lives and 

residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Goodwill and intangible assets with infinite useful lives such as license are not amortised, but are assessed for impairment annually. The 

assessment of infinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the infinite life continues to be supportable.

De-recognition

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and subsequent disposal. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cost    

Balance as at 1st January  2,650,728  2,573,534  3,135,428  2,979,122 

Additions and improvements during the year  350,477  77,194  441,837  156,306 

Transferred to property, plant and equipment - -  (3,051) -

Balance as at 31st December  3,001,205  2,650,728  3,574,214  3,135,428 

Accumulated amortisation    

Balance as at 1st January  1,991,419  1,770,806  2,134,198  1,889,363 

Amortisation for the year (Note 17)  220,138  220,613  260,357  244,835 

Transferred to property, plant and equipment - -  (610) -

Balance as at 31st December  2,211,557  1,991,419  2,393,945  2,134,198 

Net book value as at 31st December  789,648  659,309  1,180,269  1,001,230 
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39 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (CONTD.)

39 (a) Analysis of Intangible Assets

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Computer Software  789,648  659,309  957,328  778,289 

Goodwill *  -  -  122,941  122,941

License  -  -  100,000  100,000 

  789,648  659,309  1,180,269  1,001,230 

 *Goodwill amounting to Rs 122.94 Mn has been recognised in respect of acquisition of HNB Grameen Finance Ltd. 

 The Bank carried out an impairment assessment as at 31st December 2016 on the goodwill recognised on acquisition of HNB Grameen Finance Ltd.

39 (a) i Assessment of Goodwill Impairment

 The recoverable value of the goodwill has been determined based on the residual income method.

 Key assumptions used in residual income calculation

 Profit Growth

 Profit growth for the next five years was projected at Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR). This was based on a reasonable value growth, 

taking into account the anticipated growth in micro finance industry and the existing interest margin of the company. Beyond five years 

terminal growth was assumed to be 0%.

 Discount factor

 The discount rate used is the risk free rate, adjusted by the addition of an appropriate risk premium.

 Inflation

 The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted cost inflation is the inflation rate based on projected economic 

conditions. 
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40 OTHER ASSETS

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Deposits and prepayments 1,184,065 1,149,211 986,290 841,268

Items held for use 74,442 31,778 74,442 31,778

Items in transit 24,891 12,557 24,891 12,557

Receivable from pension fund 1,955,967 1,093,303 1,955,967 1,093,303

Un-amortised cost on staff loans 3,442,399 2,633,289 3,553,722 2,707,835

VAT recoverable 26,543 162,528 26,543 162,528

Other debtors 2,485,572 1,520,256 4,098,651 2,478,784

 9,193,879 6,602,922 10,720,506 7,328,053

41 DUE TO BANKS

Accounting Policy

Due to banks represents refinance borrowings, call and time deposits and borrowings from banks. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 

are measured at their amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in “interest expenses” in the 

statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Call and time deposits - 6,495,946 - 6,495,946

Foreign bank borrowings 52,215,707 31,794,480 52,215,707 31,794,480

Local bank borrowings 13,688,878 15,876,680 13,724,469 15,928,484

Refinance borrowings 4,024,204 4,064,928 4,024,204 4,064,928

 69,928,789 58,232,034 69,964,380 58,283,838

42 SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Accounting Policy

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date are not de-recognised from the statement of financial position, 

as the Group retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash received is recognised in the statement 

of financial position as an asset and a corresponding obligation to return it with accrued interest, as ‘securities sold under repurchase 

agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s economic substance as a loan to the Group. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices 

is treated as interest expense and is accrued over the life of agreement using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

 With banks 800,372 3,303,720 800,372 3,303,720

 With customers 12,657,755 13,326,481 12,657,755 13,326,481

 13,458,127 16,630,201 13,458,127 16,630,201
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43 DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Accounting Policy

Due to customers include non-interest bearing deposits, savings deposits, term deposits, deposits payable at call, certificate of deposits 

and margin deposits. Subsequent to initial recognition, deposits are measured at their amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) 

method, except where the Group designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in “interest expenses” 

in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Local currency deposits 522,168,609 438,253,261 534,044,737 447,347,346

Foreign currency deposits 101,326,360 88,872,920 101,326,360 88,785,443

 623,494,969 527,126,181 635,371,097 536,132,789

43 (a) Analysis of Due to Customers

43 (a) i By Product

Current account deposits 36,675,800 33,958,697 36,392,699 33,676,332

Savings deposits 188,845,184 184,204,894 190,211,901 185,608,355

Time deposits 395,482,519 305,945,326 406,275,031 313,830,838

Certificates of deposit 957,804 1,092,264 957,804 1,092,264

Margin deposits 1,533,662 1,925,000 1,533,662 1,925,000

 623,494,969 527,126,181 635,371,097 536,132,789

43 (a) ii By Currency

Sri Lankan Rupees 522,168,609 438,253,261 534,102,873 447,347,346

United States Dollars 78,507,427 67,911,332 78,449,617 67,823,855

Great Britain Pounds 7,226,325 6,361,377 7,226,325 6,361,377

Euros 10,730,892 9,795,940 10,730,566 9,795,940

Australian Dollars 3,997,421 4,047,365 3,997,421 4,047,365

Other currencies 864,295 756,906 864,295 756,906

 623,494,969 527,126,181 635,371,097 536,132,789

44 DIVIDENDS PAYABLE

Accounting Policy

Provision for final dividends is recognised at the time the dividend recommended and declared by the Board of Directors, is approved by 

the shareholders. Interim dividends payable is recognised, when the Board of Directors approves such dividends in accordance with the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Details of dividends declared for the year after the reporting date are given in Note 64 (a) to the financial statements as an event after the 

reporting period in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 10 on “Events after the reporting period”.

 Bank Group

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 764,771 587,078 764,771 587,078

Final cash dividends declared in the prior year 1,421,200 2,827,776 1,578,995 2,902,776

Interim cash dividends declared during the year 620,387 608,548 620,387 608,548

Dividends paid during the year (1,799,283) (3,258,631) (1,948,690) (3,333,631)

Balance as at 31st December 1,007,075 764,771 1,015,463 764,771
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45 OTHER BORROWINGS

Accounting Policy

Other borrowings represent refinance borrowings and borrowings from other financial institutions. Subsequent to initial recognition these 

borrowings are measured at their amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 

account any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in “interest 

expenses” in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-

recognised.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Refinance borrowings 115,778 162,362 115,778 162,362

Foreign borrowings 27,014,580 26,670,747 27,014,580 26,670,747

 27,130,358 26,833,109 27,130,358 26,833,109

46 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Accounting Policy

Debt securities issued represent funds borrowed for long term funding purposes. Subsequent to initial recognition debt securities are 

measured at their amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in “interest expenses” in the 

statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised.

Bank Group

Colombo Interest Face Value Interest Rate Repayment Issue Date Maturity Date As at As at As at As at

Stock Payment Rs 000 Terms 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Exchange Frequency Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Listing

(i) Year of issuance 2013* Listed Annually 2,000,000 8.00% 10 Years 30th Aug 2013 29th Aug 2023 1,536,302 1,490,742 1,515,060 1,470,125

(ii) Year of issuance 2014* Listed Semi 

Annually

158,720 6.88% 3 Years 15th Dec 2014 15th Dec 2017 164,225 158,720 164,225 158,720

Semi 

Annually

2,757,240 7.75% 5 Years 15th Dec 2014 15th Dec 2019 2,864,961 2,757,240 2,832,750 2,725,029

Semi 

Annually

84,040 8.33% 10 Years 15th Dec 2014 15th Dec 2024 87,569 84,040 66,729 63,200

(iii) Year of issuance 2011** Not Listed Monthly 665,000 1 Yr Avg TB 

rate

20 Years 30th Jun 2014 30th Jun 2034 - - 537,037 496,677

Total debt securities issued 4,653,057 4,490,742 5,115,801 4,913,751

Due within one year 329,831 54,207 329,831  54,208

Due after one year 4,323,226 4,436,535 4,785,970 4,859,543

Total debt securities issued 4,653,057 4,490,742 5,115,801 4,913,751

* HNB Assurance PLC, subsidiary of the Bank has invested Rs 74.29 Mn in debt securities issued by the Bank.

** Debt securities issued by HNB Grameen Finance Ltd. Capital repayment will commence from 2024.
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47 SUBORDINATED TERM DEBTS

Accounting Policy

Subordinated term debts represent funds borrowed for long term funding purposes which are subordinated to the other claims. Subsequent 

to initial recognition, subordinated term debts are measured at their amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised 

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included in “interest expenses” in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit 

or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised.

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Subordinated debentures [Note 47 (a)] 22,409,926 8,471,740 22,157,560 8,492,968 

Subordinated loan [Note 47 (b)] 3,743,550 3,592,630 3,743,550 3,592,630 

 26,153,476 12,064,370 25,901,110 12,085,598 

47 (a) Subordinated Debentures

Bank Group

Colombo Interest Face Value Interest Rate Repayment Issue Date Maturity Date As at As at As at As at

Stock Payment Rs 000 Terms 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Exchange Frequency Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Listing

(i) Year of issuance 2006* Listed At maturity 514,345 11.00% 15 Year 1st Apr 2006 31st Mar 2021 330,287 297,488 307,217 276,709

At maturity 1,362,800 11.25% 18 Year 1st Apr 2006 31st Mar 2024 629,495 565,709 629,495 565,709

(ii) Year of issuance 2007 Listed Annually 500,000 16.00% 10 Year 1st Aug 2007 31st Jul 2017 540,000 540,000 540,000 540,000

Annually 700,000 16.75% 15 Year 1st Aug 2007 31st Jul 2022 758,625 758,625 758,625 758,625

(iii) Year of issuance 2011 Listed Semi 

Annually

2,000,000 11.50% 10 Year 5th Sep 2011 4th Sep 2021 2,115,628 2,000,000 2,115,628 2,000,000

(iv) Year of issuance 2013* Listed Annually 4,000,000 14.00% 5 Year 13th Jun 2013 12th Jun 2018 4,309,918 4,309,918 4,251,905 4,251,925

(vi) Year of issuance 2016 Listed Annually 7,000,000 11.25% 5 Year 28th Mar 2016 28th Mar 2021 7,599,795 - 7,328,512 -

Listed Annually 2,000,000 11.75% 5 Year 1st Nov 2016 1st Nov 2021 2,039,274 - 2,039,274 -

Listed Annually 4,000,000 13.00% 7 Year 1st Nov 2016 1st Nov 2023 4,086,904 - 4,086,904 -

(v) Year of issuance 2013 Not Listed Monthly 100,000 17.50% 5 Year 17th Jun 2013 16th Jun 2018 - - 100,000 100,000

Total subordinated debentures 22,409,926 8,471,740 22,157,560 8,492,968

Due within one year 1,250,144 - 1,250,144 -

Due after one year 21,159,782 8,471,740 20,907,416 8,492,968

Total subordinated debentures 22,409,926 8,471,740 22,157,560 8,492,968

* HNB Assurance PLC, subsidiary of the Bank has invested Rs 352.36 Mn in subordinated debentures issued by the Bank

47 (b) Subordinated Loan

Subordinated loan represents eight year subordinated loan of USD 25 Mn from German Development Financial Institution (DEG).
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48 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Tax payable 6,223,943 4,542,977 6,425,379 4,762,707 

 6,223,943 4,542,977 6,425,379 4,762,707 

49 DEFERRED TAX

 Bank Group

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Deferred tax liabilities [Note 49 (a)]  2,397,140  2,573,495  3,086,438  2,981,800 

Deferred tax assets [Note 49 (b)]  (2,165,776)  (2,194,675)  (2,261,660)  (2,402,698)

  231,364  378,820  824,778  579,102  

49 (a) Deferred Tax Liabilities

49 (a) i Deferred Tax Liabilities on Other Temporary Differences

Bank Group

2016 2015 2016 2015

Temporary Tax Temporary Tax Temporary Tax Temporary Tax

Difference Effect Difference Effect Difference Effect Difference Effect

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  9,191,052  2,573,495  6,982,518  1,955,105  9,736,224  2,726,143  7,611,839  2,131,315 

Originating during the year

Recognised in the

 statement of profit or loss  623,921  174,698  2,375,857  665,240  775,746  217,209  2,296,300  642,964 

Recognised in OCI

 Revaluation surplus charged to equity  194,604  54,489  371,571  104,040  550,612  154,171  371,571  104,040 

 Realisation of revaluation surplus (4,336) (1,214) - - (4,336) (1,214) - -

 Others   (1,444,029)  (404,328)  (538,894)  (150,890)  (1,450,546)  (406,153)  (543,486)  (152,176)

Balance as at 31st December  8,561,212  2,397,140  9,191,052  2,573,495  9,607,700  2,690,156  9,736,224  2,726,143 

49 (a) ii Deferred Tax Liabilities on Undistributed Profits of Subsidiaries

Bank Group

2016 2015 2016 2015

Temporary Tax Temporary Tax Temporary Tax Temporary Tax

Difference Effect Difference Effect Difference Effect Difference Effect

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January - -  -  -  2,556,570  255,657  1,005,290  100,529 

Originating during the year

Recognised in the statement of

 profit or loss - -  -  -  502,232  140,625  1,551,280  155,128 

Balance as at 31st December - -  -  -  3,058,802  396,282  2,556,570  255,657 

Total deferred tax liabilities (Note 49) 8,561,212 2,397,140  9,191,052  2,573,495  12,666,502  3,086,438  12,292,794  2,981,800 
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49 DEFERRED TAX (CONTD.)

49 (b) Deferred Tax Assets

Bank Group

2016 2015 2016 2015

Temporary Tax Temporary Tax Temporary Tax Temporary Tax

Difference Effect Difference Effect Difference Effect Difference Effect

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  7,838,125  2,194,675 8,008,889 2,242,489  8,581,063  2,402,698  8,682,709 2,431,159

Originating during the year

 Recognised in the statement of

  profit or loss  (103,211)  (28,899) (170,764) (47,814)  (490,786)  (137,420)  (101,646) (28,461)

 Recognised in OCI - - - -  (12,921)  (3,618)  - -

Balance as at 31st December (Note 49) 7,734,914  2,165,776 7,838,125 2,194,675  8,077,356  2,261,660  8,581,063 2,402,698

49 (c) Recognised Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities        

49 (c) i Recognised Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities - Bank       

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following.       

Statement of Financial Position Income Statement Other Comprehensive Income

As at 31st December For the year ended For the year ended

31st December 31st December

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

 - Property, plant and equipment  (514,626)  (486,975)  (27,652)  16,937  -    - 

 - Intangible assets  (137,760)  (106,585)  (31,175)  (10,792)  -    - 

 - Assets on leasing  business  (1,910,626)  (1,794,754)  (115,871)  (671,385)  -    - 

Revaluation of government securities  514,494  110,166  -    -  404,328  150,890 

Revaluation of freehold buildings  (348,622)  (295,347)  -    -  (53,275)  (104,040)

Temporary difference on provisions  2,165,776  2,194,675  (28,899)  (47,814)  -    - 

 (231,364)  (378,820)  (203,597)  (713,054)  351,053  46,850 

49 (c) ii Recognised Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities - Group       

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following.       

Statement of Financial Position Income Statement Other Comprehensive Income

As at 31st December For the year ended For the year ended

31st December 31st December

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

 - Property, plant and equipment  (618,637)  (616,806)  (1,830)  63,603  -    -   

 - Intangible assets  (137,760)  (106,585)  (31,175)  (10,792)  -    -   

 - Assets on leasing  business  (1,978,959)  (1,794,754)  (184,204)  (671,385)  -    -   

Revaluation of government securities  517,605  111,452  -    -    406,153  152,176 

Revaluation of freehold buildings  (472,406)  (319,449)  -    (24,390)  (152,957)  (104,040)

Undistributed profits of subsidiaries  (396,282)  (255,657)  (140,625)  (155,128)  -    -   

Unutilised tax losses  43,997  164,289  -    16,799  -    -   

Temporary  difference on  provisions  2,217,664  2,238,408  (137,420)  (45,260)  (3,618)  -   

 (824,778)  (579,102)  (495,254)  (826,553)  249,578  48,136 



305
Hatton National Bank PLC

Annual Report 2016

50 INSURANCE PROVISION - LIFE        

Accounting Policy        

Insurance Provision - Life Insurance        

The insurance provision - life balance represents the life fund of the subsidiary HNB Assurance PLC, which is carrying out life  insurance 
business.        

Life insurance liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. These liabilities are measured by using 
a prospective actuarial valuation method. The liability is determined as the sum of the present value of future benefits, the expected 
future management and distribution expenses, less the present value of future gross premiums arising from the policy discounted at the 
appropriate risk discount rate. The liability is based on best estimate assumptions and with due regard to significant recent experience. An 
appropriate allowance for provision of risk margin for adverse deviation from expected experience is included in the valuation.

Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)        

As required by Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 4 on “Insurance Contracts”, the entity performed a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) 
in respect of Life Insurance contract liabilities with the assistance of an external actuary. In performing the LAT, current best estimates of 
future contractual cash flows, including related cash flows such as claims handling and policy administration expenses, policyholder options 
and guarantees, as well as investment income from assets backing such liabilities, are used. Number of valuation techniques are applied 
including discounting cashflows , interest rate applied is based on the managements expectation of current market interest rates. The 

liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient to meet future benefits and expenses.

 Insurance provision - life balance represents the amounts attributable to life policy holders included in the Group’s net assets. The valuation of 

the Life Insurance business as at 31st December 2016 was made by Mr. Hassan Scott Odierno, of M/S Actuarial Partners Consulting Sdn Bhd.

 The life fund stands at Rs 8,747.86 Mn as at 31st December 2016 (2015 : Rs 7,007.08 Mn) and in the opinion of the actuary this amount is 

adequate to cover the liabilities pertaining to the long term insurance business of HNB Assurance PLC, as per the actuary’s report dated 

9th February 2017.        

51 INSURANCE PROVISION - GENERAL        

Accounting Policy        

Insurance Provision – General Insurance        

General insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.  These liabilities comprise 

claims liabilities and premium liabilities.          

Claims liabilities        

Claims liabilities are recognized in respect of both with reinsurance and without reinsurance. Claims liabilities refer to the obligation by 
the insurance company, whether contractual or otherwise to make future payments in relation to all claims that have been incurred as at 

valuation date. These include provision for claims reported, claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) together with related claims handling 

costs. Claims liabilities consist of the best estimate value of the claim liabilities and the Provision of Risk Margin for adverse Deviation 
(“PRAD”) calculated at line of business level.        

Premium liabilities        

Premium liabilities is the higher of the aggregate of the UPR and the best estimate value of the insurer’s unexpired risk reserves (“URR”) at 
the valuation date and the PRAD calculated at line of business level.

The provision for unearned premiums represents premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. Generally the reserve is released over 

the term of the contract and is recognized as premium income.

Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)        

As required by Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 4 on “Insurance Contracts”, the entity performed a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) in 
respect of general insurance contract liabilities with the assistance of an external actuary.

Title Insurance Reserve

Title insurance reserve is maintained by the Group to pay potential claims arising from the title insurance policies. Title insurance policies 

are normally issued for a long period such as 5 years or more. Thus, no profit is recognised in the first year of the policy given the higher 
probability of claims occurring in the first two years. From the 2nd year onwards, profit is recognised by amortising the premium received 

over a five year period using the straight line method. Profit in the first year will be recognised in the 2nd year and thereafter it is periodically 
recognised.         

If the corresponding loan of the Title Insurance Policy issued is settled before the maturity, full premium of such policies remaining as at the 
date of settlement of such loan is recognised in profits upon confirmation of the same by the respective Bank. 
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51 INSURANCE PROVISION - GENERAL (CONTD.)        

  Group 

As at 31st December 2016 2015 

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Unearned premium 

Gross  1,596,757   1,301,243 

Reinsurance  (317,896)   (203,026)

Net  1,278,861   1,098,217 

Deferred acquisition expenses     -   

Reserve for title insurance  19,611   19,154 

Unexpired risk reserve     -   

     1,117,371 

Claims outstanding - gross 555,807  359,921 -

Claims incurred but not reported - gross 67,288   623,095  68,974  428,895 

Total  1,921,567   1,546,266 

52 OTHER LIABILITIES 

 Bank Group 

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Cheques sent on clearing  32,549  27,290 32,549  27,290 

Bills payable  1,770,925  2,970,847 1,770,925  2,970,847 

Items in transit  19,887  52,772 19,887  52,772 

Refundable deposits and advances  -  - 88,822  60,186 

Balance held o/a of pension fund  336,418  240,599 336,418  240,599 

Balance held o/a of Widows’, Widowers’ 

   and Orphans’ Pension Fund (WW&OP)  62,530  33,526 62,530  33,526 

Balance held o/a of Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF)  4,902  4,460 4,902  4,460 

Liability for EPF interest rate guarantee [Note 53 (b)]  57,434  54,237 57,434  54,237 

Liability for leave accrual plan [Note 53 (c)]  114,885  110,855 114,885  110,855 

Provision for grativity benefits  -  - 253,381  228,176 

Payable to vendors for lease equipments  697,620  582,087 697,620  582,087 

Other creditors  2,653,957  2,174,183 3,750,675  2,885,858 

  5,751,107  6,250,856  7,190,028  7,250,893

53 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Accounting Policy

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Pension Fund

The Bank operates an approved pension fund to facilitate the following payments for permanent staff of the Bank:

Pensions to Retiring Staff

Pensionable staff members who are in the permanent cadre are eligible to draw pension from the pension fund as per the trust deed dated 

24th September 1981.

Benefits to Staff who Opted for the Optional Scheme for Pension introduced in 2005

Staff members who opted for the optional scheme for pension introduced in 2005 are eligible for the payment in accordance with the terms 

and conditions agreed upon.
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53 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTD.)

Gratuity

Gratuity would be the payments to staff who satisfy the criteria as per the Gratuity Act No 12 of 1983 at the time of leaving the services of 

the Bank without pension rights. Payment of gratuities to employees who have completed more than five years of service under the said act 

is covered through the Bank’s own non-contributory pension scheme which is in force.

The Bank’s obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees 

have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, and discounting that benefit to determine its present value, then 

deducting the fair value of any plan assets to determine the net amount to be shown in the statement of financial position. The value of any 

defined benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions 

in the future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum 

funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Bank. An economic benefit is available to the Bank if it is realisable during the life of the 

plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

The Bank determines the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) by applying the discount rate used to 

measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability / (asset) at the beginning of 

the annual period.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Bank’s 

obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The Bank recognises the total actuarial gains and losses that arise in calculating the Bank’s obligation in respect of a plan in other 

comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (55 yrs), early withdrawals from service and retirement on 

medical grounds, death before and after retirement etc. The assets of the fund are held separately from those of the Bank’s assets and are 

administered independently by the trustees of the fund.

Details of pension fund are given in Note 53 (a) to the financial statements.

Gratuity Obligation

The subsidiaries of the Bank do not operate pension funds and make a provision for gratuity obligation. These liabilities are assessed either 

by actuarial valuations or by the use of gratuity formula.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The Bank’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension fund, is the amount of future benefit that 

employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present 

value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of 

the Bank’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognised in 

the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The Bank’s liability towards the portion of the accumulated leave which is 

expected to be utilised beyond one year from the end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits.

Widows’, Widowers’ and Orphans’ Pension Fund

The Bank operates a separate Widows’, Widowers’ and Orphans’ Pension Scheme (WW & OP) which was established with effect from 1st 

September 1995. The contributions are from employees only and the Bank does not have any legal or constructive obligation towards the 

above scheme.

Details of Widows’, Widowers’ and Orphans’ Pension Fund are given in Note 53 (d) to the financial statements.

Employees’ Provident Fund – Group Companies

The Group entities and their employees contribute at 12% and 8% respectively on the salary of each employee to Employees’ Provident 

Fund except for the Bank as explained below.
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53 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTD.)

Employees’ Provident Fund - Bank

Employees’ Provident Fund is an approved private provident fund which has been set up to meet the provident fund liabilities of the Bank to 

which the Bank and employees contribute at 12% and 8% respectively on the salary of each employee. Staff members who are members of 

the fund are entitled to receive a minimum interest rate which is the higher of one year fixed deposit rate of HNB or National Savings Bank 

on their balance on a semi-annual basis. Accordingly this obligation was treated as a defined benefit liability and an actuarial valuation was 

conducted to value the Bank’s obligation of the same.

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will 

have no legal or constructive obligation to pay a further contribution if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits 

relating to employee services in the current and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as 

an expense in the statement of profit or loss as and when they are due.

Employees’ Trust Fund

The Bank and the Group contribute 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

53 (a) Pension Fund - Bank 

 An actuarial valuation of the pension fund was carried out as at 31st December 2016 by Mr M Poopalanathan, AIA, M/s Actuarial and 

Management Consultants (Pvt) Ltd, a firm of professional actuaries. The valuation method used by the actuaries to value the fund is the 

projected unit credit method, the method recommended by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 19 on “Employee Benefits”.

 The Bank contributes 20% of the basic salary to the pension fund in respect of all employees. (2015: 20%) 

 The assets of the fund, which are independently administered by the trustees as per the provision of the Trust Deed are held separately from 

those of the Bank. 

 No additional provision has been made in the financial statements of the Bank for gratuities to employees who have completed five or more 

years of service, payable under the Payment of Gratuity Act No 12 of 1983 as the Bank contributes for all permanent employees to its own 

non-contributory pension scheme, which is in force.

53 (a) i Net Asset / (Liability) Recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Present value of funded obligation [Note 53 (a) iii]    12,543,413  12,425,853

Total present value of obligations    12,543,413  12,425,853

Fair value of plan assets [Note 53 (a) ii]    (14,499,380)  (13,519,157)

Present value of net surplus [Note 53 (a) iv]    (1,955,967)  (1,093,304)

Recognised asset for defined benefit obligations    (1,955,967)  (1,093,304)

 The Bank is expecting to recover the above surplus by way of reduced future contributions to the pension fund and accordingly the Bank 

recognised a net receivable of Rs 1,955.9 Mn from the pension fund as the present value of the reduction in future contributions. 

53 (a) ii Fair Value of Plan Assets consist of the following 

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Equity securities and debentures   2,579,854 2,332,155

Government securities   5,155,437 5,185,470

Balance with Hatton National Bank PLC   335,487 231,810

Fixed deposits   6,456,570 5,649,561

Others    (27,968) 120,161

   14,499,380 13,519,157
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53 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTD.)

53 (a) Pension Fund - Bank (Contd.)

53 (a) iii Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations 

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Liability for defined benefit obligations as at 1st January    12,425,853  11,486,841

Current service cost    527,676  546,842

Interest on obligation    1,230,159  1,062,533

Actuarial (gains) / losses    (874,585)  192,323

Benefits paid by the plan    (765,690)  (862,686)

Liability for defined benefit obligations as at 31st December    12,543,413  12,425,853

53 (a) iv Movement in Fair Value of Plan Assets 

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Fair value of plan assets as at 1st January    13,519,157  13,020,795 

Expected return on plan assets    1,338,395  1,204,424 

Contributions paid into plan    920,383  862,270 

Benefits paid by the plan    (765,690)  (862,686)

Actuarial gains / (losses)    (512,865)  (705,646)

Fair value of plan assets as at 31st December    14,499,380  13,519,157

53 (a) v Net Interest on Defined Benefit Asset

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest on obligation    1,230,159  1,062,533

Expected return of plan assets    (1,338,395)  (1,204,424)

Net interest on defined benefit asset    (108,236)  (141,891)

53 (a) vi Actuarial Gains and Losses Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Actuarial gains / (losses) on present value of defined benefit obligations    874,585  (192,323)

Actuarial gains / (losses) on fair value of plan assets    (512,865)  (705,646)

Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised during the year    361,720  (897,969)

53 (a) vii Actuarial Assumptions 

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Discount rate   12.37% 9.90%

Expected return on plan assets as at 1st January   9.90% 9.25%

Future salary increment rate   11.25% 9.00%

Future pension increments   Nil Nil

Increase in cost of living allowance   11.25% 9.00%

Normal retirement age   55 years 55 years

Mortality   1967-70 1967-70

   Mortality Table Mortality Table

   issued by the issued by the

   Institute of Institute of

   Actuaries Actuaries

 The average duration of the pension fund obligation is 28 years as at 31st December 2016 (2015 - 26 years).
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53 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTD.)

53 (a) Pension Fund - Bank (Contd.)

53 (a) viii Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed on Actuarial Valuation 

 Assumptions regarding discount rate and salary increment rate have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income and statement of financial position.

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in such assumptions with all other variables held constant, in 

the actuarial valuation of the pension fund as at 31st December 2016.

Increase / (decrease) in 

Discount Rate

Increase / (decrease) in 

Salary Increment Rate

Sensitivity Effect on Statement of

Comprehensive Income

Sensitivity Effect on

Pension Fund Surplus

Increase / (decrease)

in results for the year

Increase / (decrease)

Rs 000 Rs 000

1%  1,020,492  1,020,492 

-1%  (1,220,693)  (1,220,693)

1%  (780,650)  (780,650)

-1%  695,278  695,278 

53 (b) Provision for EPF Interest Rate Guarantee Plan - Bank 

 EPF is an approved provident fund which has been set up to meet the provident fund liabilities of the Bank. Staff members who are members 

of the fund are entitled to receive a minimum interest rate which is the higher of one year fixed deposit rate of HNB or National Savings Bank 

on their balance on a semi-annual basis. Accordingly, this obligation was treated as a defined benefit liability and an actuarial valuation was 

conducted to value the Bank’s obligation on same with the following actuarial assumptions. 

  Bank 

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Discount rate   9.95% 6.95%

Long term interest rate to credit the fund   10.00% 7.00%

  Bank

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Present value of obligation as at 1st January    54,237  38,360 

Provision made during the year    3,197  15,877 

Present value of obligation as at 31st December (Note 52)    57,434  54,237 

 

53 (c) Provision for Leave Accrual Plan - Bank

 Employees are entitled to accumulate annual leave up to a maximum of ninety days and such accumulated leave to be utilised prior to their 

retirement. This has been treated as other long term benefit in terms of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards - LKAS 19 on “Employee benefits” and 

an actuarial valuation has been conducted on same with the following assumptions.

As at 31st December   2016 2015

Discount rate   12.37% 9.90%

Future salary increase   11.25% 9.00%

  Bank

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Present value of obligation as at 1st January    110,855  114,099 

Charge / (reversal) of provision during the year    4,030  (3,244)

Present value of obligation as at 31st December (Note 52)    114,885  110,855 
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53 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTD.)

53 (d) Widows’, Widowers’ and Orphans’ Pension Fund 

 The results of the actuarial valuation of the Widows’, Widowers’ and Orphans’ Pension Fund indicate that the actuarial present value of the 

promised benefit is Rs 483 Mn and that the fair value of the fund assets is Rs 1,340 Mn resulting in a past service surplus of Rs 857.57 Mn 

(2015 : Rs 600.63 Mn) in the Widows’, Widowers’ and Orphans’ Pension Scheme as at 31st December 2016.

 No contribution is made by the Bank and the members’ contribution during the period amounted to Rs 85 Mn. 

54 STATED CAPITAL 

 In accordance with Section 58 of Companies Act No 7 of 2007, which became effective from 3rd May 2007, share capital and share premium 

have been classified as stated capital.

54 (a) Stated Capital - Bank / Group 

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Voting ordinary shares 

Balance as at 1st January    11,110,689  10,640,391 

Issue of shares under ESOP    157,128  368,785 

Transfer from ESOP reserve *    48,444  101,513 

Issue of shares through scrip dividend    1,022,473  -   

Balance as at 31st December    12,338,734  11,110,689 

Non-voting ordinary shares 

Balance as at 1st January    2,716,184  2,649,601 

Issue of shares under ESOP    21,813  52,113 

Transfer from ESOP reserve *    6,820  14,470 

Issue of shares through scrip dividend    256,607  -   

Balance as at 31st December    3,001,424  2,716,184 

Stated capital as at 31st December    15,340,158  13,826,873 

54 (b) Reconciliation of Number of Shares 

   2016 2015

Voting ordinary shares 

Balance as at 1st January    324,405,445  321,736,509 

Issue of shares under ESOP    1,088,993  2,668,936 

Issue of shares through scrip dividend    5,262,344  -   

Balance as at 31st December    330,756,782  324,405,445 

Non-voting ordinary shares 

Balance as at 1st January    81,415,925  80,861,147 

Issue of shares under ESOP    225,050  554,778 

Issue of shares through scrip dividend    1,417,717  -   

Balance as at 31st December    83,058,692  81,415,925 

Total number of shares as at 31st December    413,815,474  405,821,370 

 * Fair value of options on the grant date relating to options exercised during the year has been transferred from the ESOP reserve to stated 

capital. 

 

 The non-voting shares rank pari passu in respect of all rights with the ordinary shares of the Bank except voting rights on resolutions passed 

at general meetings. If the Bank fails to pay dividends for three consecutive years, these shares will automatically be converted into voting 

ordinary shares. 
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54 STATED CAPITAL (CONTD.)

54 (c) Share-Based Payment Transactions 

Accounting Policy

Equity Settled Share Based Payment Transactions

Fair value of equity settled share based payment awards granted to employees on the grant date is recognised as an employee expense, 

with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the employees unconditionally became entitled to the awards. The amount 

recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of share awards for which the related service and non-market performance 

vesting conditions are expected to be met such that, the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of share 

awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For share based payment awards with 

non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up 

for difference between expected and actual outcomes.

On 28th March 2008 the Bank established an employee share option scheme that entitled employees in the rank of management and above 

to purchase shares in the Bank. Holders of vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the given exercise prices. The total number of 

share options available to the eligible employees per year was 1.25% of shares issued by the Bank up to a maximum limit of 5% of the 

shares issued (both voting and non-voting) by the Bank in 4 years. The benefits under ESOP are accrued to eligible employees of the Bank in 

any particular year only if the conditions set out in the ESOP are met.

An eligible employee qualified to receive share options in a particular year by achieving a positive performance rating in the annual 

performance assessment. The amount of share options granted to each qualified eligible employee depended on his/her seniority in the 

Bank. This employee share option plan has potential dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Bank.

The recognition and measurement principles in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 2 on “Share based payment” have not been applied 

to the grants made in 2008 and 2010 based on the transitional provisions available in SLFRS 2. The standard is applied for share options 

granted after 1st January 2012 and have not been vested on the effective date of SLFRS 2.

The Bank made two further grants under the employee share option scheme on 30th March 2012 and 05th June 2013, which are 

recognised and measured in terms of SLFRS 2.

All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares.

 

54 (c) i Employee Share Option Plan (Equity-Settled Share Based Payment Scheme)

The number and the weighted average exercise price of share options are as follows: 

 2016 2015 

 Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average Number of

 Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options

 Rs  Rs 

Outstanding as at 1st January  136.13  3,266,569  132.99  6,715,057

Exercised during the year  136.18  (1,314,043)  130.56  (3,223,714)

Expired during the year  136.51  (98,951)  122.29  (224,774)

Outstanding as at 31st December  136.07  1,853,575  136.13  3,266,569 

Exercisable as at 31st December  136.07  1,853,575  136.13  3,266,569 

 The options outstanding as at 31st December 2016 have exercise prices in the range of Rs 81.43 to Rs 145.79 (2015: Rs 81.43 to Rs 145.79) 

and a weighted average contractual life of 1.10 years (2015 : 1.95 years)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise, for share options exercised during the year ended 31st December 2016 was 

Rs 217.20 for voting shares and Rs 184.55 for non-voting shares (2015: Rs 226.01 voting and Rs 178.68 non-voting). 
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55 STATUTORY RESERVES 

Statutory Reserve Fund 

 Bank Group 

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  3,760,000  3,160,000  3,760,000 3,160,000 

Transfers during the year  800,000  600,000  800,000 600,000 

Balance as at 31st December  4,560,000  3,760,000  4,560,000  3,760,000 

 

 Statutory reserve fund is maintained as per the statutory requirements in terms of Section 20 (1) and (2) of the Banking Act No 30 of 1988. 

 This fund is built up by transferring a sum equivalent to not less than 5% of the profit after tax before any dividend is declared or any profits 

are transferred until the fund equals 50% of the Bank’s stated capital. Thereafter a further sum equal to 2% of profit after tax is transferred 

until the fund equals to the stated capital of the Bank.

56 RETAINED EARNINGS 

 Bank Group 

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  5,270,848  7,808,059 7,949,848  10,396,517 

Profit for the year  14,143,406 10,448,786 14,755,634  10,553,568 

Other comprehensive income for the year 362,934  (897,969) 368,586  (903,213)

Transfer to other reserves (6,790,165)  (6,577,456) (6,790,165)  (6,577,456)

Dividends (3,462,787)  (3,436,324) (3,462,787)  (3,436,324)

Deemed disposal gain through joint venture -  - -  9,830 

Super gains tax paid -  (2,074,248) -  (2,093,074)

Balance as at 31st December 9,524,236  5,270,848 12,821,116  7,949,848 

56 (a) Super Gains Tax 

 A Super Gains Tax (SGT) was imposed by the Finance Bill passed in Parliament on 20th October 2015, whereby SGT was payable by every company 

or individual whose profit before income tax as per the audited financial statements for the year of assessment 2013/2014 exceeded Rs 2 Bn, at the 

rate of 25% on its taxable profits for the said year of assessment. SGT payments were made in three equal instalments on 30th October 2015, 30th 

November 2015 and 31st December 2015. The impact for the Bank/Group from SGT amounted to Rs 2,074 Mn / Rs 2,105 Mn respectively. 

57 OTHER RESERVES 

57 (a) 2016 

 Bank Group 

 Opening Movement/ Closing Opening Movement/ Closing

 Balance Transfers Balance Balance Transfers Balance

 As at 1st  As at 31st As at 1st  As at 31st

 January  December January  December

 2016  2016 2016  2016

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Capital reserve [Note 57 (c)] 6,435,410 2,209,073 8,644,483 14,263,234 5,508,671 19,771,905

Available for sale reserve [Note 57 (d)] 4,455,566 (2,754,309) 1,701,257 4,518,441 (2,776,906) 1,741,535

General reserve [Note 57 (e)] 31,100,000 6,000,000 37,100,000 31,100,000 6,000,000 37,100,000

ESOP reserve [Note 57 (f)] 202,356 (55,264) 147,092 202,356 (55,264) 147,092

Life policy holder reserve fund [Note 57 (g)] - - - (56,350) (134,781) (191,131)

  42,193,332  5,399,500  47,592,832  50,027,681  8,541,720  58,569,401 
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57 OTHER RESERVES (CONTD.)

57 (b) 2015 

 Bank Group 

 Opening Movement/ Closing Opening Movement/ Closing

 Balance Transfers Balance Balance Transfers Balance

 As at 1st  As at 31st As at 1st  As at 31st

 January  December January  December

 2015  2015 2015  2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Capital reserve [Note 57 (c)]  4,466,918  1,968,492  6,435,410  8,792,778  5,470,456  14,263,234 

Available for sale reserve [Note 57 (d)]  6,755,355  (2,299,789)  4,455,566  6,806,191  (2,287,750)  4,518,441 

General reserve [Note 57 (e)]  25,100,000  6,000,000  31,100,000  25,100,000  6,000,000  31,100,000 

ESOP reserve [Note 57 (f)]  318,339  (115,983)  202,356  318,339  (115,983)  202,356 

Life policy holder reserve fund [Note 57 (g)]  -  -  -  40,748  (97,098)  (56,350)

  36,640,612  5,552,720  42,193,332  41,058,056  8,969,625  50,027,681

57 (c) Capital Reserve 

 Bank Group 

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 6,435,410  4,466,918 14,263,234  8,792,778 

Revaluation during the year 2,273,397  2,095,076 5,656,382  5,597,040 

Deferred tax effect on 

 Revaluation of freehold land and buildings (54,489)  (104,040) (137,876)  (104,040)

Amount transferred to retained earnings 

 on disposal of property, plant and equipment (9,835)  (22,544) (9,835)  (22,544)

Balance as at 31st December 8,644,483  6,435,410 19,771,905  14,263,234 

 Capital reserve relates to revaluation surplus that resulted from the revaluation of freehold land and buildings carried out in 1989, 1993, 2007, 

2012, 2015 and 2016.

57 (d) Available-for-sale Reserve 

 Bank Group 

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January  4,455,566 6,755,355 4,518,441  6,806,191 

Net change in fair value during the year (3,158,637)  (2,450,679) (3,191,009)  (2,428,191)

Net amount transferred to profit or loss on disposal of 

 available for sale financial assets -  - 8,680  (11,545)

Deferred tax effect 404,328  150,890 405,423  151,986 

Balance as at 31st December 1,701,257  4,455,566 1,741,535  4,518,441 

 The available for sale reserve comprises of the cumulative net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial investments until the assets are 

de-recognised or impaired. 
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57 OTHER RESERVES (CONTD.)

57 (e) General Reserve 

 Bank Group 

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 31,100,000  25,100,000 31,100,000  25,100,000 

Transfer during the year 6,000,000  6,000,000 6,000,000  6,000,000 

Balance as at 31st December 37,100,000  31,100,000 37,100,000  31,100,000 

 General reserve comprises of the amounts appropriated by the Board of Directors as a general banking reserve. 

57 (f) ESOP Reserve 

 Bank Group 

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January 202,356  318,339 202,356  318,339 

Transfer to stated capital (55,264)  (115,983) (55,264)  (115,983)

Balance as at 31st December 147,092  202,356 147,092  202,356 

 ESOP reserve consists of the liability recognised on account of the ESOP allocations granted in 2012 and 2013. 

57 (g) Life Policy Holder Reserve Fund 

  Group 

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Balance as at 1st January   (56,350)  40,748 

Transfer to life policy holder reserve fund   (134,781)  (97,098)

Balance as at 31st December   (191,131)  (56,350)

 

58 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 

  Group 

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Subsidiaries 

HNB Assurance PLC   1,086,409  889,142 

HNB Grameen Finance Ltd   1,934,614  1,290,146 

Total   3,021,023  2,179,288
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59 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

 Commitments and Contingencies 

 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where 

the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured as defined in the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 37 on 

“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”.

 To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent liabilities. These consist of 

financial guarantees, letters of credit and other undrawn commitments to lend. Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby letters of 

credit) commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of 

goods. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry a similar credit risk to loans. Operating lease commitments of the Bank (as a lessor and 

as a lessee) and pending legal claims against the Bank also form part of commitments of the Bank. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in 

the statement of financial position but are disclosed unless they are remote. But these contingent liabilities do contain credit risk and therefore 

form part of the overall risk of the Bank.

 All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. The Bank’s share of any contingencies and capital 

commitments of a subsidiary or joint venture for which the Bank is also liable severally or otherwise are also included with appropriate 

disclosures.

 Financial Guarantees 

 Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements within ‘other liabilities’ at fair value, being the premium received. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less 

cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial 

obligation arising as a result of the guarantee.

 Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded in the statement of profit or loss. The premium received is recognised in 

the statement of profit or loss in ‘net fee and commission income’ on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.

 No material losses are anticipated as a result of these commitments and contingencies.

59 (a) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities - Bank / Group 

As at 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Documentary credit    24,629,974  21,730,162 

Guarantees    108,900,608  79,246,945 

Acceptances    15,827,724  10,865,852 

Bills for collection    11,321,870  9,532,904 

Forward exchange contracts 

 Forward exchange sales    25,559,988  11,328,378 

 Forward exchange purchases    95,863,030  62,352,069 

Cheques sent on clearing    5,122,910  4,566,674 

Commitments for unutilised facilities - direct    114,244,896  101,817,028 

Commitments for unutilised facilities - indirect    100,901,909  41,946,000 

Total - Bank    502,372,909  343,386,012
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59 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTD.)

59 (b) Capital Commitments 

 Capital expenditure approved by the Board of Directors for which provision has not been made in the accounts amounts to approximately 

Rs 592 Mn.

 Bank Group 

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Approved and contracted but not provided for  592,401  524,137 592,401  524,137 

Approved and not contracted for  -  - -  -   

  592,401  524,137 592,401  524,137

59 (c) Operating leases 

 Operating leases are those leasing arrangements that do not transfer to the Bank, substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 

of the leased items.

 When the Bank is the lessee, leased assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position. Rentals payable under operating leases are 

accounted for on a straight line basis over the periods of the leases and are included in the statement of profit or loss.

59 (c) i Future Monthly Commitments on Operating Leases 

 Bank Group 

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Less than 1 year  1,130,976  725,566 1,310,875  745,944 

1-5 years  2,033,164  946,785 2,509,080  975,779 

6-10 years  256,040  205,817 277,123  205,817 

11-15 years  27,570  660 35,625  660 

  3,447,750  1,878,828  4,132,703  1,928,200

59 (d) Litigation against the Bank 

 Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. 

 The Bank has formal controls and policies in place for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of 

loss is reasonably estimated, the Bank makes adjustments to accounts for any adverse effects of such claims on its financial standing.

 The Bank confirms that there is no case (including the LT cases) filed against the Bank, which is not disclosed that would have a material impact 

on the financial position of the Bank.

59 (e) Tax Assessments

59 (e) i Tax assessments against the Bank

 Assessments to the value of Rs 376.1 Mn on Financial Services VAT (relating to 2003, 2004, 2012 and 2013), assessments to the value of 

Rs 2,021.3 Mn on Income tax (relating to Y/A 2012/13 and 2013/14) and an assessment to the value Rs 47.6 Mn on PAYE tax (relating to Y/A 

2012/13) received by the Bank are outstanding and have been duly appealed.

 The Bank is of the view that the above assessments will not have any material impact on the financial statements.

59 (e) ii Tax assessments against  group entity - HNB Assurance PLC (Company)

 Assessments to the value of Rs 13.3 Mn on VAT on Reinsurance Claims and Commissions (relating to Y/A 2010/11) and assessments to the 

value of Rs 132 Mn on Income tax (relating to Y/A 2011/12, 2012/13, and 2013/14 ) received by the Company  are outstanding and have been 

duly appealed.

 The Group is of the view that the above assessments will not have any material impact on the financial statements.
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60 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 The Bank carries out transactions with parties who are defined as related parties in the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 on “Related 

party disclosures”, in the ordinary course of its business. The details of such transactions are reported below. The pricing applicable to such 

transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Bank and is comparable with what is applied to transactions between 

the Bank and its unrelated customers.

60 (a) Parent and ultimate controlling party

 The Bank does not have an identifiable parent of its own.

60 (b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP)

 According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 on “Related party disclosures”, Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those having 

authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.

 Accordingly, the Bank’s KMP include the Board of Directors (including executive and non-executive directors) and selected key employees who 

meet the above criteria.

Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Group

 Bank is the ultimate parent of its subsidiaries listed out in Note 36 to the financial statements. Thus the KMPs of the Bank have the authority 

and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and have been identified as KMPs of the Group as well.

 Close Family Members (CFMs) of KMPs are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that KMP in their 

dealings with the entity. CFMs may include the domestic partner and children of KMP, the children of KMP’s domestic partner and dependents 

of KMP and the KMP’s domestic partner.

60 (b) i Compensation to KMP

 Bank Group

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Short term employment benefits

 Board of Directors and other KMP’s 122,903 110,377 127,673 111,933

60 (b) ii Transactions, Arrangements and Agreements involving Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and their Close Family 

Members (CFMs)

 Statement of Financial Position-Bank 

 Closing Balance Average Balance

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Loans and receivables to customers 90,259 77,601 76,193 66,744

 90,259 77,601 76,193 66,744

Liabilities

Securities sold under repurchase agreements - 7,500 7,580 7,500 

Due to customers 248,200 171,803 198,462 170,234

 248,200 179,303 206,042 177,734

  Closing Balance

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Commitments for unutilised facilities

 Direct   42,237 33,847

   42,237 33,847
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60 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTD.)

60 (b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) (Contd.)

60 (b) ii Transactions, Arrangements and Agreements involving Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and their Close Family (Contd.)

 Statement of Profit or Loss - Bank

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income   6,203 4,291

Interest expenses   13,746 9,631

Details of ESOPs granted to KMP are given below.

   2016 2015

Number of options exercised during the year   99,926 34,342

Number of options remaining as at 31st December   99,926 199,852

60 (b) iii Transactions, Arrangements and Agreements with Entities which are controlled and/or jointly controlled by the KMP’s or 

their Close Family Members (CFMs)

 Statement of Financial Position - Bank

 Closing Balance Average Balance

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Loans and receivables to customers 3,432,032 3,064,384 3,266,297 2,478,731

 3,432,032 3,064,384 3,266,297 2,478,731

Liabilities

Due to customer 260,641 129,657 173,904 81,774

 260,641 129,657 173,904 81,774

Commitments and contingencies

  Closing Balance

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Guarantees   35,080 60,290

Documentary credit   730,010 87,360

Commitments for unutilised facilities

 Direct   2,579,150 2,032,160

 Indirect   412,860 1,219,700

   3,757,100 3,399,510

 Statement of Profit or Loss - Bank

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income   359,380 175,152

Interest expenses   8,306 1,802
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60 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTD.)

60 (c) Transactions with Group Entities 

 The Group entities include subsidiaries and joint venture of the Bank. 

60 (c) i Transactions with Subsidiaries 

 Statement of Financial Position - Bank 

 Closing Balance Average Balance

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets 

Loans and receivables to customers  586,729  112,675  102,163  65,603 

Other assets  495,256  496,327  497,718  490,300 

 1,081,985  609,002  599,881  555,903 

Liabilities 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements  -  - - 117,000 

Debt securities issued and subordinated term debt  381,073  146,215  414,785  144,251 

Due to customers  1,197,536  948,230  1,300,462  293,078 

 1,578,609  1,094,445  1,715,247  554,329 

 Commitments and contingencies 

  Closing Balance

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Commitments for unutilised facilities 

 Direct    50,000  50,000 

   50,000  50,000 

 Statement of Profit or Loss - Bank 

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income    62,608  58,548 

Interest expenses    134,589  42,292 

Other income    884,609  1,130,645 

Other expenses    749,591  719,150 

Other transactions  

Expenses reimbursed to the bank    56,294  53,174 

Expenses reimbursed by the bank    89,717  103,866 

Insurance claims received    8,752 9,839

Notes to the Financial Statements



321
Hatton National Bank PLC

Annual Report 2016

60 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTD.)

60 (c) Transactions with Group Entities (Contd.)

60 (c) ii Transactions with the Joint Venture 

 Statement of Financial Position - Bank 

 Closing Balance Average Balance

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets 

Loans and receivables to customers  1,547,632  1,701,422  1,563,277  1,589,226 

  1,547,632  1,701,422  1,563,277  1,589,226 

Liabilities 

Due to customers  50,421  59,369  97,903  58,079 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements  28,100  88,910  64,440  66,700 

 78,521  148,279  162,343  124,779 

 Commitments and Contingencies 

  Closing Balance

   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Commitments for unutilised facilities 

 Direct    3,814,270  1,353,310 

   3,814,270  1,353,310 

 Statement of Profit or Loss - Bank 

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income    144,824  115,744 

Interest expenses    13,299  6,471 

Other income   6,462 4,724

Other expenses   9,601 10,855

60 (d) Transactions with Post Employment Benefit Plans of the Bank 

 Statement of Financial Position - Bank 

 Closing Balance Average Balance

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Liabilities 

Due to customers  13,427,401  12,670,073  12,490,093  10,015,651 

Debt securities issued and subordinated term debts  719,806  106,299  623,618  106,298 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements  73,100  73,089  565,590  574,090 

 14,220,307  12,849,461  13,679,301  10,696,039 

Equity 

Stated capital  139,379  130,288  125,534  130,288 

 139,379  130,288  125,534  130,288 

 Statement of profit or loss - Bank 

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest expenses    1,278,546  658,054 

Other Transactions 

Dividends paid    4,693  5,452 

Contributions made    1,853,213  1,382,189 
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60 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTD.)

60 (e) Transactions with Government of Sri Lanka/ Entities Controlled, Jointly Controlled, Significantly Influenced by the 

Government of Sri Lanka 

 The Government of Sri Lanka indirectly holds more than 25% of the voting rights of the Bank as at 31st December 2016 through 

Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd , Employees Provident Fund , National Savings Bank and Employees Trust Fund. Accordingly, the Bank has 

considered Government of Sri Lanka and other entities which are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the Government of 

Sri Lanka (government related entities) as related parties according to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 on “Related party disclosures”.

 During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Bank has carried out transactions with the Government of Sri Lanka and other government 

related entities in the ordinary course of its business, the details of which are given below. The pricing applicable to such transactions was 

based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Bank and was comparable with what was applied to transactions between the Bank 

and its unrelated customers.

 Statement of Financial Position - Bank 

 Closing Balance Average balance

 2016 2015 2016 2015

 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka  33,777,614  20,096,090  29,157,412 18,929,352 

Reverse repurchase agreements  -  -  3,062,220  1,000,000 

Financial investments - held for trading and available for sale  166,402,528  140,754,595  166,685,751  123,759,536 

Loans and receivables to customers  56,652,176  38,471,591  42,010,311  32,560,861 

Placements with banks  118,000  3,809,000  3,243,336  3,024,771 

Financial investments - loans and receivables  4,208,320  2,351,454  2,514,510  702,870 

 261,158,638  205,482,730  246,673,540  179,977,390 

Liabilities 

Due to customers  15,444,918  9,381,758  13,482,528  6,564,571 

Due to banks  2,144,842  8,764,315  4,421,991  9,753,324 

Debt securities issued and subordinated term debts  9,329,233  6,133,797  6,893,026  6,089,522 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements  1,864,270  6,333,060  3,267,960  2,774,030 

Other borrowings  -  -  -  2,083,333 

Taxation  6,223,943  4,542,977 5,657,816 3,861,085 

 35,007,206  35,155,907  33,723,321  31,125,865 

 Commitments and Contingencies 

  Closing Balance

Balance as at 31st December   2016 2015

Forward foreign exchange contracts 

 Sales - Rs 000   35,467,025  14,065,140 

Commitments for unutilised facilities 

 Direct - Rs 000    25,391,470  12,352,870 

 Indirect - Rs 000    1,376,312  1,312,842 

 Statement of Profit or Loss - Bank 

For the year ended 31st December   2016 2015

   Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest income    16,620,371  9,846,720 

Interest expenses    1,801,506  1,557,096

Other income   7,960 4,800 

Tax expenses (income tax, financial services VAT, NBT)   10,151,582  6,702,511 

 Transactions which are not individually significant 

Apart from the transactions listed above the Bank has carried out transactions with the Government of Sri Lanka and other government related 

entities in the form of utility bills, telephone charges, deposit insurance payments, crib charges etc. The total of such payments made during 

the year ended 31st December 2016 was Rs. 473.80  Mn (2015 - Rs. 613.44 Mn).   
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61 MATURITY ANALYSIS      

61 (a) As at 31st December 2016      

Bank Group

Within More than Total Within More than Total

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  17,511,446  -  17,511,446  18,668,703 -  18,668,703 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka  -  33,777,614  33,777,614 -  33,777,614  33,777,614 

Placements with banks  753,050  -  753,050  1,391,274  807,172  2,198,446 

Reverse repurchase agreements  4,303,460  -  4,303,460  5,756,794 -  5,756,794 

Derivative financial instruments  289,989  -  289,989  289,989 -  289,989 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  544,915  -  544,915  716,009 -  716,009 

Loans and receivables to customers  322,385,348  262,027,379  584,412,727  334,291,542  263,175,918  597,467,460 

Financial investments -

 Loans and receivables  42,366,749  56,893,949  99,260,698  42,714,722  59,348,507  102,063,229 

Financial investments - available-for-sale  37,062,483  52,852,670  89,915,153  38,726,384  57,070,758  95,797,142 

Financial investments - held-to-maturity  -  -  -  291,056  174,025  465,081 

Investment in joint venture  -  755,000  755,000 -  1,450,806  1,450,806 

Investments in subsidiaries  -  3,017,285  3,017,285 - - -

Investment properties  -  403,959  403,959 -  1,054,300  1,054,300 

Property, plant and equipment  -  13,945,002  13,945,002 -  29,844,234  29,844,234 

Intangible assets and goodwill  -  789,648  789,648 -  1,180,269  1,180,269 

Other assets  3,145,664  6,048,215  9,193,879  4,737,377  5,983,130  10,720,506 

Total assets  428,363,104  430,510,721  858,873,825  447,583,850 453,866,734  901,450,582 

Liabilities

Due to banks  41,680,338  28,248,451  69,928,789  41,702,893  28,261,487  69,964,380 

Derivative financial instruments  665,890  -  665,890  665,890 -  665,890 

Securities sold under repurchase

 agreements  13,458,127  -  13,458,127  13,458,127 -  13,458,127 

Due to customers  606,310,053  17,184,916  623,494,969  613,320,466  22,050,631  635,371,097 

Dividends payable  1,007,075  -  1,007,075  1,015,463 -  1,015,463 

Other borrowings  3,045,640  24,084,718  27,130,358  2,900,657  24,229,701  27,130,358 

Debt securities issued  329,831  4,323,226  4,653,057  318,862  4,796,939  5,115,801 

Current tax liabilities  6,223,943  -  6,223,943  6,425,379 -  6,425,379 

Deferred tax liabilities  -  231,364  231,364 - 824,778 824,778

Insurance provision - life  -  -  -  902,525  7,845,331  8,747,856 

Insurance provision - general  -  -  -  1,921,567 -  1,921,567 

Other provisions  3,158,444  -  3,158,444  3,407,050 -  3,407,050 

Other liabilities  5,338,092  413,015  5,751,107  6,648,756 541,272  7,190,028 

Subordinated term debts  1,255,750  24,897,726  26,153,476  1,214,726  24,686,384  25,901,110 

Shareholders’ funds  -  77,017,226  77,017,226 -  94,311,698  94,311,698 

Total liabilities  682,473,183  176,400,642  858,873,825  693,902,362  207,548,221  901,450,582 

Maturity gap  (254,110,079)  254,110,079  (246,318,512)  246,318,512

Cumulative gap (254,110,079)  -  (246,318,512) -
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61 MATURITY ANALYSIS (CONTD.)

61 (b) As at 31st December 2015      

Bank Group

Within More than Total Within More than Total

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  14,909,598  -  14,909,598  15,419,654  -  15,419,654 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka  -  20,096,090  20,096,090  -  20,096,090  20,096,090 

Placements with banks  26,827  -  26,827  388,230  786,096  1,174,326 

Reverse repurchase agreements  4,869,219  -  4,869,219  7,782,374  -  7,782,374 

Derivative financial instruments  1,302,872  -  1,302,872  1,302,872  -  1,302,872 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  593,390  -  593,390  773,053  1,175,719  1,948,772 

Non-current assets held for sale  20,151  -  20,151  20,151  -  20,151 

Loans and receivables to customers  234,104,217  264,237,411  498,341,628  242,405,760  264,838,569  507,244,329 

Financial investments -

 Loans and receivables  24,275,024  59,931,678  84,206,702  24,626,349  62,460,856  87,087,205 

Financial investments - available-for-sale  34,520,815  43,525,690  78,046,505  34,773,197  44,945,034  79,718,231 

Financial investments - held-to-maturity  -  -  -  1,089,146  168,287  1,257,433 

Investment in joint venture  -  655,000  655,000  -  1,253,370  1,253,370 

Investments in subsidiaries  -  3,017,285  3,017,285  -  -  - 

Investment properties  -  386,643  386,643  -  1,041,797  1,041,797 

Property, plant and equipment  -  11,473,569  11,473,569  -  23,908,688  23,908,688 

Intangible assets and goodwill  -  659,309  659,309  -  1,001,230  1,001,230 

Other assets  2,257,750  4,345,172  6,602,922  3,142,472  4,185,581  7,328,053 

Total assets  316,879,863  408,327,847  725,207,710  331,723,258  425,861,317  757,584,575 

Liabilities

Due to banks  33,795,056  24,436,978  58,232,034  33,842,840  24,440,998  58,283,838 

Derivative financial instruments  304,485  -  304,485  304,485  -  304,485 

Securities sold under repurchase

 agreements  16,630,201  -  16,630,201  16,630,201  -  16,630,201 

Due to customers  513,964,760  13,161,421  527,126,181  519,558,971  16,573,818  536,132,789 

Dividends payable  764,771  -  764,771  764,771  -  764,771 

Other borrowings  312,142  26,520,967  26,833,109  312,141  26,520,968  26,833,109 

Debt securities issued  -  4,490,742  4,490,742  -  4,913,751  4,913,751 

Current tax liabilities  4,542,977  -  4,542,977  4,762,707  -  4,762,707 

Deferred tax liabilities  -  378,820  378,820  -  579,102  579,102 

Insurance provision - life  -  -  -  284,280  6,722,801  7,007,081 

Insurance provision - general  -  -  -  1,546,266  -  1,546,266 

Other provisions  2,538,111  -  2,538,111  2,746,294  -  2,746,294 

Other liabilities  5,833,151  417,705  6,250,856  6,529,273  721,620  7,250,893 

Subordinated term debts  -  12,064,370  12,064,370  -  12,085,598  12,085,598 

Shareholders’ funds  -  65,051,053  65,051,053  -  77,743,690  77,743,690 

Total liabilities  578,685,654  146,522,056  725,207,710  587,282,229  170,302,346  757,584,575 

Maturity gap  (261,805,791)  261,805,791  (255,558,971)  255,558,971 

Cumulative gap  (261,805,791)  -  (255,558,971)  -

Notes to the Financial Statements
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63 NET ASSETS VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE    

 Bank Group 

As at 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

Amount used as the numerator:    

Equity holders funds (Rs 000) 77,017,226 65,051,053 91,290,675 75,564,402

Number of ordinary shares used as the denominator:    

Total number of shares 413,815,474 405,821,370 413,815,474 405,821,370

Net assets value per share (Rs) 186.11  160.29 220.60  186.20

64 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD    

 Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date the 

financial statements are authorised for issue.    

 There are no events occurring after the reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements, other than those 

disclosed below:    

64 (a) Proposed Dividends    

 Refer Note 22 (a).

65 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

 The presentation and classification of the following items in these financial statements are amended to ensure the comparability with the 

current year.

Bank Group

Note  As disclosed 

previously

 Current 

Presentation

Adjustment  As disclosed 

previously

 Current 

Presentation

Adjustment

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Income Statement

Net gain/(loss) from trading 65 (a) (i)  346,577  196,993  149,584  361,948  212,364  149,584 

Other operating income 65 (a) (i)  2,062,640  2,212,224  (149,584)  1,366,839  1,516,423  (149,584)

 Foreign exchange gain of Rs 149.584 Mn classified in “gain/(loss) on revaluation of foreign currency derivatives” has been reclassified to “other 

operating income”.

66 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

Please refer to page 196 for the statement of the Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting. 
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Compliance with Other Disclosure Requirements

Bank’s level of compliance with the other disclosure requirements given in the specified format for the preparation of annual financial statements of 

licensed commercial banks issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka is detailed below.

1 INFORMATION ABOUT THE SIGNIFICANCE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FOR FINANCIAL 

POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

1.1 Statement of Financial Position

1.1.1 Disclosures on categories of financial assets and financial liabilities Note 23 to the financial statements

1.1.2 Other disclosures

(i) Special disclosures about financial assets and financial liabilities designated to be 

measured at fair value through profit or loss, including disclosures about credit risk 

and market risk, changes in fair values attributable to these risks and the methods of 

measurement

N/A

(ii) Reclassifications of financial instruments from one category to another N/A

(iii) Information about financial assets pledged as collateral and about financial or non-

financial assets held as collateral

Note 33 (k) and 37 (b) to the financial 

statements

(iv) Reconciliation of the allowance account for credit losses by class of financial assets Note 31 (b) to the financial statements

(v) Information about compound financial instruments with multiple embedded derivatives N/A

(vi) Breaches of terms of loan agreements N/A

1.2 Statement of Comprehensive Income Statement of Comprehensive Income

1.2.1 Disclosures on items of income, expense, gains and losses Note 8,9,10,11, 12,13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 to 

the financial statements

1.2.2 Other disclosures

(i) Total interest income and total interest expense for those financial instruments that are 

not measured at fair value through profit and loss

Note 8 to the financial statements

(ii) Fee income and expense Note 9 to the financial statements

(iii) Amount of impairment losses by class of financial assets Note 14 to the financial statements

(iv) Interest income on impaired financial assets Note 8 (a) to the financial statements

1.3 Other disclosures

1.3.1 Accounting policies for financial instruments Note 3.3,29,31,32 and 33 to the financial 

statements

1.3.2 Information on hedge accounting N/A

1.3.3 Information about the fair values of each class of financial asset and financial 

liability, along with:

Note 5 to the financial statements

(i) Comparable carrying amounts Note 5 to the financial statements

(ii) Description of how fair value was determined Note 5 to the financial statements

(iii) The level of inputs used in determining fair value Note 5 to the financial statements

(iv) Reconciliations of movements between levels of fair value measurement hierarchy, 

additional disclosures for financial instruments that fair value is determined using level 3 

inputs

Note 5 to the financial statements

(v) Information if fair value cannot be reliably measured N/A

2 INFORMATION ABOUT THE NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL 

INSTRUMENTS

2.1 Qualitative disclosures

2.1.1 Risk exposures for each type of financial instrument Note 4 to the financial statements and “Risk 

Management report”

2.1.2 Management’s objectives, policies, and processes for managing those risks Note 4 to the financial statements and “Risk 

Management report”

2.1.3 Changes from the prior period “Risk Management report”
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2.2 Quantitative disclosures

2.2.1 Summary of quantitative data about exposure to each risk at the reporting 

date

Note 4 to the financial statements

2.2.2 Disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk, interest 

rate risk and how these risks are managed

(i) Credit Risk

(a) Maximum amount of exposure (before deducting the value of collateral), description of 

collateral, information about credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due 

nor impaired and information about credit quality of financial assets

Note 4.3 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(b) For financial assets that are past due or impaired, disclosures on age, factors considered 

in determining as impaired and the description of collateral on each class of financial 

asset

Note 4.3 to the financial statements

(c) Information about collateral or other credit enhancements obtained or called Note 4.3 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(d) For other disclosures, refer Banking Act Direction No. 7 of 2011 on Integrated Risk 

Management Framework for Licensed Banks (Section H)

Note 4.3 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(ii) Liquidity Risk

(a) A maturity analysis of financial liabilities Note 61 to the financial statements

(b) Description of approach to risk management Note 4.4 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(c) For other disclosures, refer Banking Act Direction No. 7 of 2011 on Integrated Risk 

Management Framework for Licensed Banks (Section H)

Note 4.4 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(iii) Market Risk

(a) A sensitivity analysis of each type of market risk to which the entity is exposed Note 4.5 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(b) Additional information, if the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the entity’s risk 

exposure

Note 4.5 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(c) For other disclosures, refer Banking Act Direction No. 7 of 2011 on Integrated Risk 

Management Framework for Licensed Banks (Section H)

Note 4.5 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(iv) Operational Risk

 Refer Banking Act Direction No. 7 of 2011 on Integrated Risk Management Framework 

for Licensed Banks (Section H)

“Risk Management report”

(v) Equity risk in the banking book Note 4.5 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(a) Qualitative disclosures

*Differentiation between holdings on which capital gains are expected and those taken 

under other objectives including for relationship and strategic reasons.

Note 3.3,29,31,32 and 33  to the financial 

statements

*Discussion of important policies covering the valuation and accounting of equity holdings 

in the banking book.

Note 3.3,29 and 33 to the financial 

statements

(b) Quantitative disclosures

*Value disclosed in the statement of financial position of investments, as well as the fair 

value of those investments; for quoted securities, a comparison to publicly quoted share 

values where the share price is materially different from fair value.

Note 5, 29 and 33 and 34 to the financial 

statements

*The types and nature of investments. Note 29 and 33 to the financial statements

* The cumulative realised gains/(losses) arising from sales and liquidations in the reporting 

period.

Note 10, 11 and 14 to the financial 

statements

(vi) Interest rate risk in the banking book Note 4.5.3 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(a) Qualitative disclosures

 Nature of interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) and key assumptions Note 4.5.3 to the financial statements and 

“Risk Management report”

(b) Quantitative disclosures

The increase/(decline) in earnings or economic value (or relevant measure used by 

management) for upward and downward rate shocks according to management’s method 

for measuring IRRBB, broken down by currency (as relevant).

“Risk Management report”

2.2.3 Information on concentrations of risk “Risk Management report”
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Compliance with Other Disclosure Requirements

3 OTHER DISCLOSURES

3.1 Capital

3.1.1 Capital structure

(i) Qualitative disclosures

 Summary information on the terms and conditions of the main features of all capital 

instruments, especially in the case of innovative, complex or hybrid capital instruments.

Note 4.6 to the financial statements

(ii) Quantitative disclosures “Computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio”

(a) The amount of Tier 1 capital, with separate disclosure of:

*Paid-up share capital / common stock “Computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio”

*Reserves

*Non-controlling interests in the equity of subsidiaries

*Innovative instruments

*Other capital instruments

*Deductions from Tier 1 capital

(b) The total amount of Tier 2 and Tier 3 capital

(c) Other deductions from capital

(d) Total eligible capital

3.1.2 Capital adequacy

(i) Qualitative disclosures “Computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio”

 A summary discussion of the bank’s approach to assessing the adequacy of its capital to 

support current and future activities.

(ii) Quantitative disclosures

(a) Capital requirements for credit risk, market risk and operational risk

(b) Total and Tier 1 capital ratio
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Statement of Profit or Loss in US Dollars

 Bank Group 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000

Gross Income  562,620  424,353  640,259  485,925 

Interest income  504,307  365,106  543,829  394,795 

Less: Interest expenses  275,048  182,360  283,106  188,746 

Net interest income  229,259  182,746  260,723  206,049 

Fee and commission income  47,619  40,767  52,732  44,591 

Less: Fee and commission expenses  604  684  1,204  1,263 

Net fee and commission income  47,015  40,083  51,528  43,328 

Net interest, fee and commission income  276,274  222,829  312,251  249,377 

Net gain/(loss) from trading  (11,977)  1,367  (12,169)  1,474 

Net gain from financial investments  745  1,762  688  2,068 

Net insurance premium income  -  -  36,623  32,474 

Other operating income  21,926  15,351  18,556  10,523 

Total Operating income  286,968  241,309  355,949  295,916 

Less: Impairment charges for loans and other losses  1,582  6,467  3,390  7,093 

Net operating income  285,386  234,842  352,559  288,823 

Less : Operating expenses    

Personnel expenses  58,053  55,011  69,475  63,529 

Benefits, claims and underwriting expenditure  -  -  30,491  29,228 

Other expenses  63,927  55,867  71,937  63,098 

Total Operating expenses  121,980  110,878  171,903  155,855 

Operating profit before Value Added Tax (VAT) and Nation    

      Building Tax (NBT) on financial services  163,406  123,964  180,656  132,968 

Less: Value added tax (VAT) and    

      Nation Building Tax (NBT) on financial services  29,033  19,529  31,582  21,246 

Operating profit after Value Added Tax (VAT)    

      and Nation Building Tax (NBT) on financial services  134,373  104,435  149,074  111,722 

Share of profit of joint venture (net of income tax)  -  -  992  417 

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX  134,373  104,435  150,066  112,139 

Less: Income tax expense  40,036  31,929  45,581  35,143 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  94,337  72,506  104,485  76,996 

Profit attributable to:    

      Equity holders of the Bank  94,337  72,506  98,420  73,233 

      Non-controlling interests  -  -  6,065  3,763 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  94,337  72,506  104,485  76,996 

Earnings per share    

Basic earnings per ordinary share ($)  0.23  0.18  0.24  0.18 

Diluted earnings per ordinary share ($)  0.23  0.18  0.24  0.18 

Dividend per share    

Dividend per share: Gross ($)  *0.06  0.06  *0.06  0.06

Exchange rate of US$ 1 was Rs 149.925 as at 31st December 2016 (Rs 144.11 as at 31st December 2015)

The statement of profit or loss given on this page is solely for the convenience of the stakeholders of financial statements and do not form part of the 

audited financial statements.

*Calculated on interim dividend paid and final dividend proposed, which is to be approved at the Annual General Meeting.   
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Statement of Comprehensive Income in US Dollars

 Bank Group 

For the year ended 31st December 2016 2015 2016 2015

 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  94,337  72,506  104,485  76,996 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX    

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or    

       loss in subsequent periods    

Available-for-sale financial assets:    

      Net change in fair value during the year  (21,068)  (17,006)  (22,092)  (17,613)

      Transfer to life policy holder reserve fund  -  -  899  674 

      Net amount transferred to profit or loss    

          (available-for-sale financial assets)  -  -  97  (133)

Deferred tax effect on above  2,697  1,047  2,709  1,056 

Share of other comprehensive income of    

      equity accounted joint venture  -  -  (141)  118 

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or    

       loss in subsequent periods  (18,371)  (15,959)  (18,528)  (15,898)

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or    

       loss in subsequent periods    

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  2,413  (6,231)  2,518  (6,311)

Revaluation of freehold land and buildings  15,163  14,538  38,345  38,839 

Deferred tax effect on above  (363)  (722)  (1,052)  (722)

Deferred tax effect on realisation of revaluation surplus  8  -  8  -   

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or    

       loss in subsequent periods  17,221  7,585  39,819  31,806 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX  (1,150)  (8,374)  21,291  15,908 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  93,187  64,132  125,776  92,904 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:    

      Equity holders of the Bank  93,187  64,132  119,165  89,207 

      Non-controlling interests  -  -  6,611  3,697 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  93,187  64,132  125,776  92,904 

Exchange rate of US$ 1 was Rs 149.925 as at 31st December 2016 (Rs 144.11 as at 31st December 2015)

The statement of comprehensive income given on this page is solely for the convenience of the stakeholders of financial statements and do not form 

part of the audited financial statements.    
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Statement of Financial Position in US Dollars

 Bank Group 

As at 31st December  2016 2015  2016 2015

 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US$ 000

ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents  116,801  103,460  124,520  106,999 

Balances with Central Bank of Sri Lanka  225,297  139,450  225,297  139,450 

Placements with banks  5,023  186  14,664  8,149 

Reverse repurchase agreements  28,704  33,788  38,398  54,003 

Derivative financial instruments  1,934  9,041  1,934  9,041 

Financial investments - fair value through profit or loss  3,635  4,117  4,776  13,523 

Non-current assets held for sale  -  140  -  140 

Loans and receivables to customers  3,898,034  3,458,064  3,985,109  3,519,841 

Financial investments - loans and receivables  662,069  584,322  680,762  604,311 

Financial investments - available-for-sale  599,734  541,576  638,967  553,176 

Financial investments - held-to-maturity  -  -  3,102  8,725 

Investment in joint venture  5,036  4,545  9,677  8,697 

Investment in subsidiaries  20,125  20,937  -  -   

Investment properties  2,695  2,683  7,032  7,229 

Property, plant and equipment  93,013  79,617  199,061  165,906 

Intangible assets and goodwill  5,267  4,576  7,872  6,948 

Other assets  61,323  45,819  71,506  50,850 

Total assets  5,728,690  5,032,321  6,012,677  5,256,988 

LIABILITIES    

Due to banks  466,425  404,080  466,663  404,440 

Derivative financial instruments  4,441  2,113  4,441  2,113 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements  89,766  115,399  89,766  115,399 

Due to customers  4,158,712  3,657,804  4,237,926  3,720,302 

Dividends payable  6,717  5,307  6,773  5,307 

Other borrowings  180,960  186,199  180,960  186,199 

Debt securities issued  31,036  31,162  34,122  34,097 

Current tax liabilities  41,514  31,524  42,857  33,049 

Deferred tax liabilities  1,543  2,629  5,501  4,019 

Insurance provision - life  -  -  58,348  48,623 

Insurance provision - general  -  -  12,817  10,730 

Other provisions  21,067  17,612  22,725  19,057 

Other liabilities  38,360  43,376  47,958  50,315 

Subordinated term debts  174,444  83,717  172,761  83,864 

Total liabilities  5,214,985  4,580,922  5,383,618  4,717,514 

EQUITY    

Stated capital  102,319  95,947  102,319  95,947 

Statutory reserve  30,415  26,091  30,415  26,091 

Other reserves  317,444  292,786  390,658  347,149 

Retained earnings  63,527  36,575  85,517  55,165 

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 513,705  451,399  608,909  524,352 

Non-controlling interests  -  -  20,150  15,122 

Total equity  513,705  451,399  629,059  539,474 

Total liabilities and equity  5,728,690  5,032,321  6,012,677  5,256,988 

Contingent liabilities and commitments  3,350,828  2,940,896  3,350,828  2,940,896 

Net assets value per share ($)  1.24  1.11  1.47  1.29 

Exchange rate of US$ 1 was Rs 149.925 as at 31st December 2016 (Rs 144.11 as at 31st December 2015)

The statement of financial position given on this page is solely for the convenience of the stakeholders of financial statements and do not form part of 

the audited financial statements.    
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Analysis of Deposits

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Analysis of Total Deposits

Local currency deposits  280,644,471  323,925,015  352,732,715  438,253,261  522,168,609 

Foreign currency deposits  60,779,515  63,233,375  66,594,408  88,872,920  101,326,360 

 341,423,986  387,158,390  419,327,123  527,126,181  623,494,969 

Product wise analysis of Deposits

Current  23,390,690  23,837,932  32,608,645  33,958,697  36,675,800 

Savings  109,176,640  124,510,240  157,946,623  184,204,894  188,845,184 

Time  208,856,656  238,810,218  228,771,855  308,962,590  397,973,985 

 341,423,986  387,158,390  419,327,123  527,126,181  623,494,969

Product wise analysis of Deposits
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Analysis of Loans and Receivables

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Analysis of Loans and Receivables to customers (Gross)

Local currency advances  278,597,183  321,888,416  359,217,435  446,394,387  527,288,700 

Foreign currency advances  31,767,370  40,691,142  47,714,009  63,131,080  68,225,219 

Total advances (Gross)  310,364,553  362,579,558  406,931,444  509,525,467  595,513,919 

Product wise analysis of loans and receivables to customers 

(Gross)

Overdrafts  61,160,391  62,458,953  69,118,967  71,566,434  91,093,180 

Short term loans  16,756,644  36,200,888  40,664,653  50,881,880  60,562,111 

Trust receipts  13,059,931  13,820,841  17,867,491  23,669,721  24,885,713 

Term loans  121,856,986  155,626,639  204,143,947  275,817,905  328,374,844 

Lease rentals receivables  25,280,078  23,152,822  24,482,873  40,341,596  42,621,900 

Housing loans  22,990,253  25,084,496  27,622,481  30,808,329  33,966,019 

Pawning advances  49,260,270  46,234,919  23,031,032  16,439,602  14,010,152 

 310,364,553  362,579,558  406,931,444  509,525,467  595,513,919 

Analysis of Total Advances
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Sources and Utilisation of Income

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Sources of Income

Interest  47,326,377  56,770,713  51,868,333  52,615,463  75,608,193 

Non interest income  4,212,402  4,235,701  7,632,162  8,538,003  8,742,630 

Total  51,538,779  61,006,414  59,500,495  61,153,466  84,350,823 

Utilisation of income

Employees

Salaries and other payment to Staff  6,689,864  5,453,778  7,407,015  7,927,695  8,703,575 

Suppliers and providers of funding

Interest paid  25,368,432  31,423,945  26,966,826  26,279,934  41,236,605 

Other expenses  6,214,551  6,759,719  6,824,411  6,967,804 8,501,199

 31,582,983  38,183,664  33,791,237  33,247,738 49,737,804

Provisions and depreciation

Depreciation and amortisation  975,700  1,084,256  1,126,995  966,596  1,035,930 

Impairment for loans and other losses  1,150,887  4,513,900  2,502,835  1,013,322 237,160

 2,126,587  5,598,156  3,629,830  1,979,918 1,273,090

Net Income before Government Taxes and Levies  11,139,345  11,770,816  14,672,414  17,998,115 24,636,354

Government

Income Tax, VAT, SGT, NBT, Crop Insurance  3,605,190  4,760,710  5,667,139  *9,623,577  10,492,948 

(Incl. Deferred Tax)

Shareholders

Dividends  3,378,684  3,400,244  3,430,715  3,450,948  3,517,095 

Retained income  4,155,471  3,609,862  5,574,559  4,923,590 10,626,311

Total  51,538,779  61,006,414  59,500,495  61,153,466  84,350,823 

*Including Super Gain Tax (SGT) payment
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Value Added Statement

2016 % 2015 %

Rs 000 Rs 000

Value added

Income earned by providing banking services  85,143,172  59,619,355 

Cost of services  49,737,804  33,329,135 

Value added by banking services  35,405,368  26,290,220 

Non-banking income  891,629  1,083,260 

Net gain / (loss) from trading and financial investments  (1,683,978)  450,851 

Impairment for loans and other losses  (237,160)  (931,925)

34,375,859 26,892,406

Value allocated to employees

Salaries,wages and other benefits
 8,703,575 25.32  7,927,695 29.48

To providers of capital

Dividends to shareholders
 3,517,095 10.23  3,450,948  12.84 

To Government

Income Tax
 5,798,826  3,888,177 

Value Added Tax on financial services  3,787,448  2,381,359 

Super Gain Tax (SGT)  -    2,074,248 

Nation Building Tax on financial services  565,308  432,975 

Crop Insurance Levy  113,473  108,379 

Local taxes  13,296  13,047 

Stamp Duty  11,000  10,289,351 29.93  12,338  8,910,523  33.13 

To expansion and growth

Retained income*  10,626,311 30.92  4,923,590 18.31

Depreciation and amortization  1,035,930 3.01  966,596 3.59

Deferred Taxation  203,597 0.59  713,054  2.65 

 34,375,859 100.00  26,892,406 100.00

*After adjusting for the payment of Super Gain Tax (SGT) which was imposed by the Finance Bill passed in Parliament on 20th October 2015.
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Ten Year Statistical Summary

Year ended 31st December (Rs Mn) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

OPERATING RESULTS 

Income  29,565  36,615  38,811  34,870  37,066  51,539  61,006  59,500  61,153  84,351 

Interest income  26,250  32,431  34,620  30,249  33,176  47,326  56,771  51,868  52,615  75,608 

Interest expense  15,190  19,752  20,040  14,703  16,530  25,368  31,424  26,967  26,280  41,237 

Non interest income  3,315  4,184  4,191  4,621  3,890  4,213  4,236  7,633  8,538  8,743 

Operating expenses (Incl. financial VAT & NBT)  10,040  12,078  12,853  13,436  12,148  16,294  19,575  20,470  19,824  22,969 

Profit before income tax  4,335  4,785  5,918  6,731  8,388  9,876  10,008  12,064  15,050  20,145 

Income tax on profit  1,313  1,566  1,566  2,267  2,123  2,342  2,998  3,059  4,601  6,002 

Profit after taxation  3,021  3,219  4,352  4,464  6,265  7,534  7,010  9,005  10,449  14,143 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 

Customer deposits  175,660  186,770  210,507  239,034  291,357  341,424  387,158  419,327  527,126  623,495 

Refinance borrowings  5,750  6,424  6,169  6,435  7,045  6,429  5,615  4,889  4,227  4,140 

Other liabilities  32,472  42,064  38,774  42,572  42,923  50,495  66,083  87,736  128,803  154,222 

Deferred tax liabilities  606  872  939  891  1,175  1,111 - - - -

Shareholders’ funds  18,419  20,581  23,900  30,775  37,984  46,899  51,454  60,899  65,051  77,016 

Total  232,907  256,711  280,289  319,708  380,484  446,358  510,310  572,851  725,208  858,874 

ASSETS 

Loans and receivables to customers (Net)  160,343  174,808  169,639  202,253  257,198  302,761  351,965  396,277  498,342  584,413 

Cash, short term funds and statutory 

 deposits with the Central Bank of Sri Lanka  32,565  35,149  38,216  30,600  33,446  39,024  29,238  33,838  35,033  52,042 

Property, plant and equipment  6,083  6,866  7,180  7,428  7,835  9,418  9,521  9,305  11,474  13,945 

Deferred tax assets  506  315 -  768  287 - -

Other assets  33,916  39,888  65,254  78,921  81,690  95,155  118,818  133,144  180,360  208,474 

Total  232,907  256,711  280,289  319,708  380,484  446,358  510,310  572,851  725,208  858,874 

RATIOS 

Return on average shareholders funds (%)  19  17  20  16  18  18  14  16  17  20 

Income growth (%)  40  24  6  (10)  6  39  18  (2)  3  38 

Return on average assets (%)  1.4  1.3  1.6  1.5  1.8  1.8  1.5  1.7  1.6  1.8 

Dividend cover (Times)  3.7  3.4  2.8  2.7  2.1  2.2  2.1  2.6  3.0  4.0 

Property, plant and equipment to  

 shareholders’ funds (%)  33  33  30  24  21  20  19  15  18  18 

Total assets to shareholders’ funds (Times)  13  12  12  10  10  10  10  9  11  11 

Liquid assets to liabilities (%)  22  22  29  24  22  22  23  23  24  24 

SHARE INFORMATION 

Market value per share (Rs) 

 - Voting  122.50  69.75  170.25  399.90  151.30  148.00  147.00  194.90  210.60  225.00 

 - Non Voting  53.25  32.00  104.75  214.60  83.20  112.50  119.00  152.90  177.90  190.00 

Earnings per share (Rs)  12.83  13.67  18.47  18.84  16.60  18.94  17.59  22.47  25.41  34.25 

Earnings per share (Adjusted) (Rs) *  7.35  7.83  10.58  10.86  15.17  18.24  16.97  21.81  25.30  34.25 

Price earnings ratio  9.55  5.10  9.22  21.23  9.11  7.81  8.36  8.67  8.29  6.57 

Net assets per share (Adjusted) (Rs) **  45.39  50.71  58.89  75.83  91.79  113.33  124.34  147.16  157.20  186.11 

Dividend per share (Rs)  3.50  4.00  6.50  7.00  7.50  8.50  8.50  8.50  8.50  8.50 

Gross dividends (Rs Mn)  824  942  1,533  1,650  2,915  3,379  3,400  3,431  3,451  3,517 

OTHER INFORMATION 

No of employees  4,334  4,395  4,302  4,352  4,584  4,679  4,604  4,451  4,285  4,190 

No of customer centres  167  177  186  205  240  247  250  249  249  251 

No of student banking centres  152  152  153  159  164  166  168  168  168  150 

* Earnings per share has been adjusted for weighted Average number of shares outstanding during the current year.

** Net Assets per share has been computed for the current number of shares issued as at 31st December 2016

Highlighted Information is based on LKASs/SLFRSs.
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Quarterly Statistics

* 2016 * 2015

For the three months ended December September June March December September June March 

31st 30th 30th 31st 31st 30th 30th 31st

Statement of financial position

(Rs. Million)

Total assets  858,874  818,557  793,124  760,059  725,208  673,078  630,843  596,566 

Loans and receivables to banks and 

 other customers  584,413  544,008  525,586  513,508  498,342  462,030  427,354  408,171 

Due to other customers  623,495  580,487  556,949  530,506  527,126  496,808  461,202  435,898 

Shareholders’ funds  77,017  72,047  67,235  63,275  65,051  63,638  62,506  59,525 

Average assets  791,164  774,237  759,463  742,633  639,709  618,335  600,087  584,709 

Statement of profit or loss data

(Rs 000)

Net interest income  9,431,217  9,080,937  8,479,771  7,379,663  6,966,545  6,525,810  6,653,823  6,189,351 

Net fee and commission income  1,954,498  1,734,634  1,647,120  1,712,407  1,624,927  1,482,898  1,336,539  1,331,942 

Net gain/(loss) from trading  (544,869)  (727,494)  (2,594,611)  2,071,283  (498,371)  1,226,645  (602,657)  71,376 

Net gain/(loss) from financial investments  4,600  342  3,990  102,781  36,831  16,791  177,940  22,296 

Other operating income  1,142,180  1,000,378  2,663,660  (1,518,863)  1,257,758  (620,571)  1,298,919  276,118 

Total operating income  11,987,626  11,088,797  10,199,930  9,747,271  9,387,690  8,631,573  8,864,564  7,891,083 

Less :Impairment charge / (reversal) for 

 loans and other losses  90,322  9,680  31,264  105,894  (784,871)  296,941  844,746  575,109 

Net operating income  11,897,304  11,079,117  10,168,666  9,641,377  10,172,561  8,334,632  8,019,818  7,315,974 

Less : Operating expenses  4,744,598  4,523,345  4,577,119  4,442,817  3,677,293  4,243,749  4,073,527  3,984,065 

         VAT & NBT on financial services  1,497,985  1,176,298  866,235  812,238  948,819  664,885  642,331  558,299 

         Provision for income tax  1,608,625  1,690,953  1,408,320  1,294,525  1,927,144  908,439  830,082  935,566 

Profit for the quarter ended  4,046,096  3,688,521  3,316,992  3,091,797  3,619,305  2,517,559  2,473,878  1,838,044 

Other comprehensive 

 income for the quarter ended  1,480,842  1,072,866  610,134  (3,336,309)  435,157  (1,444,373)  356,658  (554,164)

Total comprehensive income 

 for the quarter ended  5,526,938  4,761,387  3,927,126  (244,512)  4,054,462  1,073,186  2,830,536  1,283,880 

Ordinary share information

Market price per share (Rs) V NV V NV V NV V NV V NV V NV V NV V NV 

High  235.00  202.00  228.00  194.00  216.60  180.00  207.00  176.50  222.00  183.40  230.50  184.50  239.50  182.50  242.00  187.00 

Low  185.00  165.50  206.00  170.00  197.00  169.00  185.00  165.50  207.50  175.00  203.00  170.00  213.50  164.60  192.00  155.00 

Closing  225.00  190.00  224.80  190.50  212.00  172.50  199.30  171.00  210.60  177.90  214.00  175.10  216.00  173.00  222.00  165.00 

V- Voting  NV - Non Voting

Book value per ordinary share  186.11  174.30  162.81  153.31  160.29  156.93  154.30  147.35 

Financial measures

Profitability

Return on average 

  shareholders’ equity (annualised) (%) **  20.24  20.12  19.66  19.27  16.77  14.77  14.14  12.21 

Productivity

Non interest expenses

  to total operating income (%)  39.58  40.79  44.87  45.58  39.17  49.17  45.95  50.49 

Capital

Risk weighted capital ratios

Tier I (%) 11.22  10.40  9.77  10.05  10.53  10.60  10.45  10.87 

Total (Tier II) (%) 15.27  13.44  12.97  13.48  12.70  13.04  13.01  13.70 

Asset quality

Gross NPA ratio (%)  **  1.80  2.18  2.25  2.41  2.43  2.98  3.24  3.62 

Net NPA ratio  (% )  **  0.46  0.76  0.80  0.86  0.84  1.29  1.49  1.89 

Note

* Quarterly information has been amended based on classification changes made in 2016.

** This informaiton has been compiled in accordance with the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka for interim publication which may differ from information in 

other disclosures.
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Segmental Analysis

Business Segments Banking Leasing/Hirepurchase Property Insurance Others Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Interest 70,800,583 48,630,385 - - 19,418 17,645 1,166,368 843,580  4,921,053  3,515,491 76,907,422 53,007,101

Leasing /Fee & 

Commission / Premium 

/ Rent

7,243,917 5,968,744  4,807,610  3,985,078 919,957 903,694 5,737,694 4,825,842  681,994  493,638 19,391,172 16,176,996

Net Gain/(loss) from 

Trading & financial 

investment

(1,683,978) 450,851 - - - - (26,309) 62,133 (11,000) (2,642) (1,721,287) 510,342

Other operating income 3,182,691 2,118,408 - - 1,200 817 19,063 44,076  192,304  18,121 3,395,258 2,181,422

Total  Revenue 79,543,213 57,168,388 4,807,610 3,985,078 940,575 922,156 6,896,816 5,775,631 5,784,350 4,024,608 97,972,564 71,875,861
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Investor Relations

1 STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

 The issued ordinary shares of Hatton National Bank PLC are listed with the Colombo Stock Exchange. The audited Income Statement for the 

year ended 31st December 2016 and the audited Balance Sheet of the Bank as at date have been submitted to the Colombo Stock Exchange 

within three months of the Balance Sheet date.

 Stock Exchange code for Hatton National Bank PLC shares is “HNB”. Reuter code of Hatton National Bank PLC is “HNBL”

2 ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

 SHARE INFORMATION -  VOTING

 There were 4,593 registered Voting Shareholders as at 31st December 2016 (2015 - 4,619) distributed as follows.

Resident Non-Resident Total

No of 

Share

holders

No of 

Shares

% No of 

Share

holders

No of 

Shares

% No of 

Share

holders

No of 

Shares

%

 1 -  1,000  2,603  661,487  0.30  38  13,147  0.01  2,641  674,634  0.22 

 1,001 -  10,000  1,256  3,978,891  1.80  48  183,451  0.20  1,304  4,162,342  1.34 

 10,001 -  100,000  493  14,762,156  6.66  27  903,038  1.00  520  15,665,194  5.02 

 100,001 -  1,000,000  62  16,047,292  7.24  27  9,394,394  10.42  89  25,441,686  8.16 

Over  1,000,000  14 186,125,718  84.00  25  79,700,137  88.37  39 265,825,855  85.26 

 4,428 221,575,544  100.00  165  90,194,167  100.00  4,593 311,769,711  100.00 

 ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS

 Resident / Non-Resident

31st December 2016 31st December 2015

 No of  Share  No of Shares  %  No of Share  No of Shares  % 

holders  holders 

Resident  4,428  221,575,544  71.07  4,440  217,246,155  71.06 

Non-Resident  165  90,194,167  28.93  179  88,475,126  28.94 

Total  4,593  311,769,711  100.00  4,619  305,721,281  100.00 

 Individuals / Institutions          

31st December 2016 31st December 2015

 No Share  No of Shares  %  No of Share  No of Shares  % 

holders  holders 

Individuals  4,255  56,257,435  18.04  4,287  55,579,308 18.18

Institutions  338  255,512,276  81.96  332  250,141,973 81.82

Total  4,593  311,769,711  100.00  4,619  305,721,281 100.00

 As at 31/12/2016 the average size of holding of ordinary shareholding was 67,879 voting shares. (31/12/2015 - 66,188 voting shares).

 As per Rule No. 7.6 (iv) of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, percentage of public holding of voting shares as at 31st December 

2016 was 61% ( 61% as at 31st December 2015).

 As per Rule No. 7.13.1 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, No. of shareholders representing public holding as at 

31st December 2016 - 4,571 (4,595 as at 31st December 2015).

 *18,987,071 shares remain unregistered arising from a direction given by the CBSL dated 26th August 2010 in terms of Sec. 12(IC)(c) of the 

Banking Act, and these unregistered shares are not included herein.        
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 SHARE INFORMATION -  NON VOTING

 There were 10,329 registered Non Voting Shareholders as at 31st December 2016 (2015 - 10,660) distributed as follows.

Resident Non-Resident Total

No of 

Share

holders

No of 

Shares

% No of 

Share

holders

No of 

Shares

% No of 

Share

holders

No of 

Shares

%

 1 -  1,000  6,245  2,077,727  4.35  46  15,417  0.04  6,291  2,093,144  2.52 

 1,001 -  10,000  3,333  10,042,105  21.04  47  159,309  0.45  3,380  10,201,414  12.28 

 10,001 -  100,000  568  14,567,848  30.51  14  491,310  1.39  582  15,059,158  18.13 

 100,001 -  1,000,000  55  13,784,176  28.88  8  3,270,213  9.26  63  17,054,389  20.53 

Over  1,000,000  5  7,263,978  15.22  8  31,386,609  88.86  13  38,650,587  46.54 

 10,206  47,735,834  100.00  123  35,322,858  100.00  10,329  83,058,692  100.00 

 ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS

 Resident / Non-Resident

31st December 2016 31st December 2015

 No of  Share  No of Shares  %  No of Share  No of Shares  % 

holders  holders 

Resident  10,206  47,735,834  57.47  10,515  50,323,998 61.81

Non-Resident  123  35,322,858  42.53  145  31,091,927 38.19

Total  10,329  83,058,692  100.00  10,660  81,415,925 100.00

 Individuals / Institutions          

31st December 2016 31st December 2015

 No Share  No of Shares  %  No of Share  No of Shares  % 

holders  holders 

Individuals  10,061  32,439,339  39.06  10,376  34,743,795  42.67 

Institutions  268  50,619,353  60.94  284  46,672,130  57.33 

Total  10,329  83,058,692  100.00  10,660  81,415,925  100.00 

  As at 31/12/2016 the average size of holding of ordinary shareholding was 8,041 non-voting shares. (31/12/2015 - 7,638 non- voting shares)

 As per Rule No. 7.6 (iv) of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, percentage of public holding of non-voting shares as at 

31st December 2016 was 99% (99% as at 31st December 2015). 

 As per Rule No. 7.13.1 of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, No. of shareholders representing public holding as at 

31st December 2016 - 10,317 (10,647 as at 31st December 2015). 

3 SHARE TRADING     

VOTING 2016 2015

Number of transactions  4,573  8,287 

Number of shares traded (Mn)  20  35 

Value of shares traded (Rs Mn)  4,230  7,701 

      

NON VOTING 2016 2015

Number of transactions  3,654  6,051 

Number of shares traded (Mn)  12  15 

Value of shares traded (Rs Mn)  2,187  2,611 
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4 DIVIDENDS     

2016 2015

Interim (Rs)  1.50 Paid in December 2016  1.50 Paid in December 2015

Final (Rs) - Cash Dividend  3.50 Propose to be paid in April 2017  3.50 Paid in April 2016

Final (Rs) - Scrip Dividend 3.50 Propose to be paid in April 2017  3.50 Paid in April 2016

Dividend payout ratio (%)  24.87  33.03 

5 EARNINGS     

Earnings per share (Rs)  34.25  25.41 

Price earnings ratio(Times)-Voting Shares  6.57  8.29 

6 MARKET VALUE     

Highest Lowest Year End

Rs. Rs. Rs.

2012 - Voting  170.00  130.00  148.00 

 -  Non Voting   121.70  77.50  112.50 

2013 - Voting  176.00  140.00  147.00 

 -  Non Voting   132.50  108.20  119.00 

2014 - Voting  205.00  145.10  194.90 

 -  Non Voting   153.20  116.60  152.90 

2015 - Voting  242.00  192.00  210.60 

 -  Non Voting   187.00  150.00  177.90 

2016 - Voting  235.00  185.00  225.00 

 -  Non Voting   202.00  165.50  190.00 

7 MARKET CAPITALIZATION (AS AT 31ST DECEMBER)

Capital & HNB Market CSE Market HNB Market Market 

Reserves Capitalization Capitalization Capitalization as Capitalization

Rs Mn Rs Mn Rs Mn a % of CSE 

Market 

Ranking

 Capitalization

2012  46,899  47,012  2,167,134  2.17 11

2013  51,454  46,945  2,459,897  1.91 11

2014  60,899  62,706  3,104,863  2.02 11

2015  65,051  68,320  2,937,998  2.33 9

2016  77,017  74,420  2,745,410  2.71 7

 * HNB Market Capitalization includes only Voting shares     
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8 INFORMATION ON MOVEMENT IN SHARE CAPITAL   

Year Issue Basis No of Shares

Prior to public issue  50,000 

1971 Public issue  220,000 

1977 Rights issue (@ Rs 10/-) 42:50  230,000 

1980 Rights issue (@ Rs 10/-) 1:1  500,000 

1982 Bonus 1:1  1,000,000 

1988 Bonus 1:1  2,000,000 

1990 Bonus 1:2  2,000,000 

1993 Bonus 1:1  6,000,000 

1996 Bonus 2:3  8,000,000 

1998 Bonus 1:2  10,000,000 

1999 Bonus 2:3  20,000,000 

1999 Rights (non voting @ Rs 70/-) 3:10  15,000,000 

2002 Bonus 1:10  6,500,000 

2004 Rights (voting @ Rs 55.00 and non voting @ Rs 33.00) 2:5  28,600,000 

2005 Issue of underlying shares for GDR -  17,664,700 

2007 Bonus 1:1  117,764,700 

2009 Shares issued under ESOP  240,747 

2010 Shares issued under ESOP  2,198,875 

2011 Sub division of shares 1:2  119,179,782 

2011 Rights (voting @ Rs 219.50 and non voting @ Rs 119.50) 1:10  21,858,851 

2011 Private placement of unsubscribed rights  8,975,700 

2011 Shares issued under ESOP  613,488 

2012 Scrip Dividend  7,890,528 

2012 Shares issued under ESOP  759,078 

2013 Shares issued under ESOP  2,308,752 

2014 Shares issued under ESOP  3,042,455 

2015 Shares issued under ESOP  3,223,714 

2016 Shares issued under ESOP  1,314,043 

2016 Scrip Dividend 6,680,061

Total  413,815,474
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 20 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS (VOTING) OF THE BANK AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2016  

Name % on total 

capital

% on total 

voting 

capital

No. of Shares 

2016

No. of Shares 

2015

1. Employees Provident Fund 7.82 9.78  32,352,748  31,836,612 

2. Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation - Life Fund 7.74 9.68  32,014,697  31,503,954 

3. Milford Exports (Ceylon) Limited 6.34 **7.94  26,247,009  25,828,280 

4. Mr.Sohli Edelji Captain 5.82 7.28  24,089,530  23,705,220 

5. Stassen Exports Ltd 5.50 **6.88  22,750,036  22,387,096 

6. Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation - General Fund 3.96 4.96  16,393,058  16,131,533 

7. Sonetto Holdings Limited 3.61 4.52  14,936,204  14,697,921 

8. HSBC Int’l Nominees Ltd-JPMLU-Franklin Templeton Investment 2.68 3.35  11,084,554  12,012,761 

9. Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka PLC 2.46 **3.08  10,178,656  10,016,272 

10. National Savings Bank 2.30 2.88  9,523,878  9,371,940 

11. Standard Chartered Bank Singapore S/A HL Bank Singapore 1.52 1.90  6,270,219  6,420,188 

12. The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV-CF Ruffer Total return Fund 1.26 1.58  5,221,591  5,138,289 

13. CitiBank Newyork S/A Norges Bank Account 2 0.86 1.08  3,558,424  2,711,926 

14. The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV-CF Ruffer Absolute return 0.85 1.06  3,504,886  3,448,972 

15. RBC Investor Services Bank - COELI SICAV I - Frontier Market 0.74 0.93  3,068,364  1,330,799 

16. Ms.Leesha Anne Captain 0.70 0.88  2,916,548  2,870,020 

17. HSBC Int’l Nom Ltd-JPMCB-Templeton Global Investment Trust 0.68 0.85  2,818,429  1,520,932 

18. Mrs. Cheryl Susan De Fonseka 0.67 0.84  2,763,993  2,719,898 

19. Citi Group Global Markets Ltd Agency Trading Prop. Sec. 0.66 0.80  2,731,986  3,949,446 

20. BNYM SA/NV-CF Ruffer Investment Funds: CF Ruffer Pacific 0.64 0.81  2,671,131  2,628,518 

Sub total 56.81 71.08 235,095,941 230,230,577

*  Unregistered Shares 4.59 5.74 18,987,071 18,684,164

Balance held by 4,573 voting shareholders 18.53 23.18 76,673,770 75,490,704

     (Total voting shareholders- 4,593)

Total voting shares 79.93 100.00 330,756,782 324,405,445

Shares held by 10,329 Non-voting shareholders 20.07 83,058,692 81,415,925

Total No. of Ordinary shares 100.00 413,815,474 405,821,370

        

 *18,987,071 shares remain unregistered arizing from a direction given by the CBSL dated 26th August 2010 in terms of Sec. 12(IC)(c) of the 

Banking Act.    

 **Pursuant to the provisions of the Banking Act Directions No. 1 of 2007, the total collective voting rights in the Bank, of Milford Exports 

(Ceylon) Limited, Stassen Exports Limited and Distilleries Company of Sri Lanka (who collectively hold 17.90% of the voting shares of the Bank) 

are limited to 10% of the total voting rights of the Bank with effect from 15th March 2012 as the voting rights in excess of such percentage is 

deemed invalid from that date.     

     

     

     

     

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



346
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

Investor Relations

 20 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS (NON-VOTING) OF THE BANK AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2016  

Name % on total 

capital

% on total 

non-

voting 

capital

No. of Shares 

2016

No. of Shares 

2015

1. HSBC Int'l Nom Ltd-UBS AG Zurich 1.74 8.67  7,203,090  7,083,734 

2. CITI Bank Newyork S/A Norges Bank Account 2 1.48 7.37  6,125,146  893,383 

3. HSBC Intl nominees Ltd-JPMLU-Franklin Templeton Invest 1.40 6.96  5,778,350  7,625,980 

4. BNYM SA/NV-Frontaura Global Frontier Fund LLC 1.05 5.23  4,339,801  4,547,707 

5. The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV-CF Ruffer Total Return 

Fund

0.63 3.13  2,601,605  2,557,103 

6. BNYM SA/NV-Neon Liberty Lorikeet Master Fund LP 0.62 3.10  2,576,898  745,545 

7. Akbar Brothers Pvt Ltd A/c No. 01 0.60 2.98  2,478,154  2,030,748 

8. The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV-CF Ruffer Absolute Return 0.42 2.09  1,733,008  1,703,364 

9. Mr. Sohli Edelji Captain 0.35 1.77  1,467,949  1,442,839 

10. Rubber Investment Trust Limited A/c # 01 0.29 1.43  1,184,341  1,164,083 

11. Union Assurance PLC No. 1 A/c 0.27 1.36  1,131,457  1,047,778 

12. BNY-CF Ruffer Investment Funds:CF Ruffer Pacific Fund 0.25 1.24  1,028,711  1,011,115 

13. Mr. Jayampathi Divale Bandaranayake 0.24 1.21  1,002,077  980,022 

14. Northern Trust Company S/A Polar Capital Funds PLC 0.24 1.18  977,006  1,220,030 

15. Employees Trust  Fund Board 0.22 1.10  909,800  894,238 

16. CITI Bank NY S/A Forward International Dividend Fund 0.19 0.96  801,235  1,142,944 

17. The Ceylon Guardian Investment Trust PLC A/c #02 0.18 0.90  750,857  580,751 

18. Deutsche Bank AG as Trustee for JB Vantage Value Equity Fund 0.18 0.90  749,353  667,731 

19. The Ceylon Investment PLC A/c No. 2 0.15 0.74  614,227  603,721 

20. Hatton National Bank PLC A/c No. 2 0.14 0.70  584,735  574,733 

Sub total 10.64 53.02 44,037,800 38,517,549

Balance held by 10,309 Non-voting shareholders 9.43 46.98 39,020,892 42,898,376

    (Total Non-voting shareholders-10,329)

Total Non-voting shares 20.07 100.00 83,058,692 81,415,925

     Shares held by 4,593 voting shareholders 75.34 311,769,711 305,721,281

 * Unregistered voting Shares 4.59 18,987,071 18,684,164

Total voting shares 79.93 330,756,782 324,405,445

Total No. of Ordinary shares 100.00 413,815,474 405,821,370

        

 *18,987,071 shares remain unregistered arising from a direction given by the CBSL dated 26th August 2010 in terms of Sec. 12(IC)(c) of the 

Banking Act. 
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12. DEBENTURE INFORMATION 

 HNB SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 2006 

i) Market Value

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

 These debentures have not traded during the year ended 31st December 2016

ii) Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

15 year Fixed Rate (11.00% p.a.)

(Zero Coupon)

   330,287 - 11.00 13.37     297,488 - 11.00 10.72

18 year Fixed Rate (11.25% p.a.)

(Zero Coupon)

   629,495 - 11.25 13.76     565,709 - 11.25 11.18

 HNB SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 2007 

i) Market Value

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

 These debentures have not traded during the year ended 31st December 2016

ii) Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

10 year Fixed Rate (16.00% p.a.)    540,000 16.00 16.00 11.27     540,000 16.00 16.00 8.73

15 year Fixed Rate (16.75% p.a.)    758,625 16.75 16.75 13.64     758,625 16.75 16.75 10.80

 

 HNB SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 2011 

i)      Market Value

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

 These debentures have not traded during the year ended 31st December 2016

ii)     Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

10 year Fixed Rate (11.50% p.a.) 2,115,628 11.50 11.83 13.46  2,000,000 11.50 11.83 10.68
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 HNB SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 2013 

i)      Market Value 

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

 These debentures have not traded during the year ended 31st December 2016

ii)     Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

5 year Fixed Rate (14.00% p.a.) 4,309,918 14.00 14.00 11.17  4,309,918 14.00 14.00 8.47

 HNB SENIOR DEBENTURES 2013 

i)      Market Value 

 12 months ended 31st December 2016 

 These debentures have not traded during the year ended 31st December 2016

ii)     Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

10 year Fixed Rate (14.25% p.a.) 1,536,302 8.00 14.25 12.35  1,490,742 8.00 14.25 9.98

 HNB SENIOR DEBENTURES 2014 

i)      Market Value 

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

Market Value Traded Yield

Highest Rs Lowest Rs Last Traded Rs Highest % Lowest % Last Traded %

3 year Fixed Rate (6.88% p.a.) 94.50 94.00 94.50 11.59 10.58 11.59

5 year Fixed Rate (7.75% p.a.) 89.00 89.00 89.00 11.38 11.38 11.38

ii)     Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

03 year Fixed Rate (6.88% p.a.)    164,225 6.88 7.00 10.15     158,720 6.88 7.00 8.21

05 year Fixed Rate (7.75% p.a.) 2,864,961 7.75 7.90 11.85 2,757,240 7.75 7.90 9.25

10 year Fixed Rate (8.33% p.a.)      87,569 8.33 8.50 12.49       84,040 8.33 8.50 9.97
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 HNB SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 2016 - March 

i)      Market Value 

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

Market Value Traded Yield

Highest Rs Lowest Rs Last Traded Rs Highest % Lowest % Last Traded %

5 year Fixed Rate (11.25% p.a.) 93.40 91.00 91.50 14.05 13.23 13.98

ii)     Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

5 year Fixed Rate (11.25% p.a.) 7,599,795 11.25 11.25 12.04               -          -                  -                    -   

Number of 

Debentures

Class Consideration 

received (Rs)

Reason for the issue Any material change in 

the use of funds

70,000,000 Subordinated, Unsecured, 

Redeemable, Rated 

Debentures

7,000,000,000 I. To increase the Tier II capital base of the 

Bank.

II. To minimize mismatch of durations 

between assets and liabilities in the Bank’s 

balance sheet

III. To strengthen the Bank’s liquidity position 

and to increase the loan portfolio

No

 HNB SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 2016 - November

i)      Market Value 

 12 months ended 31st December 2016

Market Value Traded Yield

Highest Rs Lowest Rs Last Traded Rs Highest % Lowest % Last Traded %

7 year Fixed Rate (13.00% p.a.) 100.00 99.80 100.00 13.04 12.98 12.98

 ii)    Interest Rate

12 months ended 31st December 2016 2015

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

Amount 

Rs 000

Coupon 

Rate %

Annual 

Effective 

Rate %

Interest Rate 

of comparable 

Govt.Security 

%

5 year Fixed Rate (11.75% p.a.) 2,039,274 11.75 11.75 12.15               -          -                  -                    -   

7 year Fixed Rate (13.00% p.a.) 4,086,904 13.00 13.00 12.51               -          -                  -                    -   
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Number of 

Debentures

Class Consideration 

received (Rs)

Reason for the issue Any material change in 

the use of funds

20,000,000
Subordinated, Unsecured, 

Redeemable, Rated 

Debentures

2,000,000,000
I. To increase the Tier II capital base of the 

Bank

II. To strengthen the Bank’s liquidity position 

and thereby to increase the loan portfolio

No

40,000,000 4,000,000,000

 Note: HNB Senior Debenture information is listed under Debt Securities issued, Note 46 of the Financial Position. 

 Note: HNB Subordinated Debenture information is listed under Note 47 of the Financial Position.

Ratios 2016 2015

Debt to Equity Ratio (%)* 166 146

Interest Cover (Times)** 4.8 5.3

Liquidity Asset Ratio (LAR) (%) 24.23 23.89

 *Debt includes Borrowings and Debentures

 **Includes interest paid on Borrowings and Debentures



351
Hatton National Bank PLC

Annual Report 2016

Sustainability Reporting Supplement

MEMBERSHIP IN ASSOCIATIONS

HNB is a member and/or represented at the following membership forums with the objective of having access to new insights, trends and research on 

various business related topics pertaining to the management of economic, social and environmental impacts, continuous learning and development 

and to influence sustainable business practices.

Corporate Memberships Corporate Training Partners Significant Involvement by our Key Management Personnel

• American Chamber of Commerce (Amcham)

• Asian Bankers Association

• Association of Professional Bankers, 

Sri Lanka 

• Banking with the Poor Network, Singapore

• Biodiversity Sri Lanka 

• CSR Sri Lanka

• Employers Federation of Ceylon

• International Chamber of Commerce Sri Lanka

• Lanka SWIFT User Group

• Sri Lanka Banks Association

• Sri Lanka Forex Association

• The Ceylon Chamber of Commerce

• The Clearing Association of Bankers

• The Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka

• The National Chamber of Commerce 

Sri Lanka

• The Chartered Institute of 

Management Accountants

 (UK) - Sri Lanka Division

• Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of 

Sri Lanka 

(CA Sri Lanka)

• Sri Lanka Banks Association - Chairman 2015/16

• Bio Diversity Sri Lanka - Advisory Committee Member

• Financial Ombudsman Sri Lanka - Chairman 2015/16

• Lanka Financial Services Bureau Ltd - Chairman

• Association of HR Professionals, Sri Lanka - Immediate Past 

President

• Association of Banking Sector Risk Professionals (CRO Forum) 

2015/16 - President

• FinCSIRT - Steering Committee Member

• Technical Evaluation Committee for procurement of a new IT 

System for CRIB - Chairman

• Chief Internal Auditors of Banks Forum - representing CIAs 

of all the banks in Sri Lanka - President

• Practicing Accountants in Business Committee - Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka - Committee Member 

• Institute of Internal Auditors - IIA Sri Lanka Chapter - 

Committee Member 

• Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka - Brand 

Development & Corporate Communications Committee - 

Committee Member 

• Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka - Sub 

Committee on Strengthening Reporting & Practicing in Small & 

Medium Size Enterprises - Committee Member

• Asian Bankers Association - Member, Policy Advocacy 

Committee

• Association of Professional Bankers - Council Member

• Central Bank of Sri Lanka - Banks’ Technical Advisory 

Committee Member

• Sri Lanka Banks Association - Technical Advisory Committee 

Member 

• CFA Sri Lanka Society - Director 2015/16
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Sustainability Reporting Supplement

OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS PRACTICES

Measurement Achievement

Grievances about environmental and human rights impacts and discriminations filed, addressed, and resolved through formal 

grievance mechanisms

No significant 

incidents

recorded during 

the year

under review

Legal actions for anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust, and monopoly practices and their outcomes

Significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with environmental and social laws and 

regulations

Negative impact on local communities due to business operations and grievances about impacts on society filed, addressed, 

and resolved through formal grievance mechanisms

Incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning product and service information and labelling

Incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning marketing communications, including 

advertising, promotion, and sponsorship

Substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data

Significant fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning the provision and use of products and services

Sale of banned or disputed products

2016 - DIRECT ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED AND DISTRIBUTED 

 2016 2015

For the year ended 31st  December   Rs 000 Rs 000

Direct Economic value generated  

Interest Income  75,608,193  52,615,463 

Fee Commission Income  7,139,253  5,874,928 

Net Gain/(loss) from trading & Financial investment  (1,683,978)  450,851 

Other operating income    3,287,355  2,212,224 

Total Direct Economic value generated    84,350,823  61,153,466 

Economic value distributed  

To Depositors/Debenture Holders as Interest  41,236,605  26,279,934 

To Employees as Emoluments  8,703,575  7,927,695 

Depreciation/ Amortisation  Set Aside  1,035,930  966,596 

Impairment charge for loans and other losses  237,160  931,925 

To providers of Supplies and services  7,824,165  6,587,879 

To Government as Taxation  10,289,351  8,910,523 

     - Income tax  5,798,826  3,888,177 

     - VAT and NBT on Financial Services  4,352,756  2,814,334 

     - Super Gains Tax (SGT)  -  2,074,248 

     - Crop Insurance Levy  113,473  108,379 

    - Stamp duty and Other Local taxes  24,296  25,385 

To Central Bank of Sri Lanka as Deposit insurance premium  664,611  448,503 

To Shareholders as Dividends  3,517,095  3,450,948 

To Community as Donation/CSR  20,451  12,819 

Total Economic value distributed    73,528,943  55,516,822 

Economic Value Retained    10,821,880  5,636,644 
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Independent Assurance Report to 
Hatton National Bank PLC on the 
Sustainability Reporting Criteria 
Presented in the Integrated Annual 
Report- 2016

Introduction and scope of the 
engagement

The management of Hatton National Bank 

PLC (“the Bank”) engaged us to provide 

an independent assurance on the following 

elements of the sustainability reporting 

indicators in the annual report- 2016 (“the 

Report”).

• Reasonable assurance on the information on 

financial performance as specified on page 

352 of the Report.

• Limited assurance on other information 

presented in the Report, prepared in 

accordance with the requirements of 

the Global Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In 

accordance’ - Core guidelines.

Basis of our work and level of 
assurance

We performed our procedures to provide 

limited assurance in accordance with 

International Standard on Assurance 

Engagements (ISAE 3000): ‘Assurance 

Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of 

Historical Financial Information’, issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 

(“CASL”).

The evaluation criteria used for this limited 

assurance engagement are based on the 

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (“GRI 

Guidelines”) and related information in 

particular, the requirements to achieve GRI G4 

‘In accordance’ - Core guideline publication, 

publicly available at GRI’s global website at 

“www.globalreporting.org”.

Our engagement provides limited assurance 

as well as reasonable assurance. A limited 

assurance engagement is substantially 

less in scope than a reasonable assurance 

engagement conducted in accordance with 

ISAE-3000 and consequently does not enable 

to obtain assurance that we would become 

aware of all significant matters that might 

be identified in a reasonable assurance 

engagement. Accordingly, we do not express 

an opinion providing reasonable assurance.

Management of the Bank’s 
responsibility for the Report

The management of the bank is responsible 

for the preparation of the self-declaration, the 

information and statements contained within 

the Report, and for maintaining adequate 

records and internal controls that are designed 

to support the sustaining reporting process 

in line with the GRI Sustainability Reporting 

Guidelines.

Ernst & Young’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion 

as to whether we have become aware of 

any matter that causes us to believe that the 

Report is not prepared in accordance with 

the requirements of the Global Reporting 

Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core guidelines. 

This report is made solely to the Bank in 

accordance with our engagement letter dated 

4th January 2017. We disclaim any assumption 

of responsibility for any reliance on this report 

to any person other than the bank or for 

any purpose other than that for which it was 

prepared. In conducting our engagement, 

we have complied with the independence 

requirements of the Code for Ethics for 

Professional Accountants issued by the CASL.

Key assurance procedures

We planned and performed our procedures 

to obtain the information and explanations 

considered necessary to provide sufficient 

evidence to support our limited assurance 

conclusions. Key assurance procedures 

included:

• Interviewing relevant the bank’s personnel 

to understand the process for collection, 

analysis, aggregation and presentation of 

data.

• Reviewing and validation of the information 

contained in the Report.

• Checking the calculations performed 

by the bank on a sample basis through 

recalculation.

• Reconciling and agreeing the data on 

financial performance are properly derived 

from the bank’s audited financial statements 

for the year ended 31 December 2016.

• Comparison of the content of the Report 

against the criteria for a Global Reporting 

Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core 

guidelines.

Our procedures did not include testing 

electronic systems used to collect and 

aggregate the information.

Limitations and considerations

Environmental and social performance data 

are subject to inherent limitations given their 

nature and the methods used for determining, 

calculating and estimating such data.

Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed, as 

described above, we conclude that;

• The information on financial performance 

as specified on page 352 of the Report are 

properly derived from the audited financial 

statements of the Bank for the year ended 

31 December 2016.

• Nothing has come to our attention that 

causes us to believe that other information 

presented in the Report are not fairly 

presented, in all material respects, in 

accordance with the Bank’s sustainability 

practices and policies some of which are 

derived from GRI-G4-‘In accordance’ Core 

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

Chartered Accountants

23rd February 2017

Colombo
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Independent Assurance Statement

Scope and Approach

DNV GL represented by DNV GL Business Assurance Lanka (Private) 

Limited has been commissioned by the management of Hatton National 

Bank PLC (‘HNB’ or ‘the Bank) to carry out an independent assurance 

engagement (Type 2, Moderate level) for the non-financial - qualitative 

and quantitative information (sustainability performance) reported in 

HNB PLC Annual Report 2016 (‘the Report’) in its printed format for the 

financial year ending 31st December 2016. The sustainability disclosures 

in this Report is prepared by the Bank, based on the ‘in accordance’ 

– Core reporting option of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) 

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines Version 4 (GRI G4) and International 

<IR> Framework of The International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC).

We performed our work using AccountAbility’s AA1000 Assurance 

Standard 2008 (AA1000 AS) and DNV GL’s assurance methodology 

VeriSustainTM[1] , which is based on our professional experience, 

international assurance best practice including International Standard 

on Assurance Engagements 3000 (ISAE 3000) and the Global Reporting 

Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines. Our assurance 

engagement was planned and carried out in February - 2017. 

The intended user of this assurance statement is the management of 

Bank (‘the Management’). We disclaim any liability or responsibility to a 

third party for decisions, whether investment or otherwise, based on this 

assurance statement. 

The reporting aspect boundary of sustainability performance is based on 

internal and external materiality assessment covering HNB’s operations 

and key internal and external stakeholders, as set out in the Report.

We planned and performed our work to obtain the evidence we 

considered necessary to provide a basis for our assurance opinion and 

the process did not involve engagement with external stakeholders. 

Responsibilities of the Management of HNB and of the 

assurance providers

The management of HNB have sole responsibility for the preparation of 

the Report as well as the processes for collecting, analysing and reporting 

the information presented in the Report. In performing our assurance 

work, our responsibility is to the management of HNB; however, our 

statement represents our independent opinion and is intended to inform 

the outcome of our assurance to the stakeholders of HNB. DNV GL was 

not involved in the preparation of any statements or data included in the 

Report except for this Assurance Statement. 

DNV GL did not provide any other services to HNB, which would have 

constituted a conflict of interest with this assurance engagement.

DNV GL’s assurance engagements are based on the assumption that 

the data and information provided by the client to us as part of our 

review have been provided in good faith. We were not involved in the 

preparation of any statements or data included in the Report except for 

this Assurance Statement. DNV GL expressly disclaims any liability or co-

responsibility for any decision a person or an entity may make based on 

this Assurance Statement.

Basis of our opinion

A multi-disciplinary team of sustainability and assurance specialists 

performed work at HNB’s Corporate/ Head Office, and as part of 

assurance we visited sample banking operations in Colombo, Sri Lanka. 

We undertook the following activities: 

• Review of HNB’s approach to stakeholder engagement and materiality 

determination process and the outcome as reported in this Report. We 

did not have any direct engagement with external stakeholders;

• Interviews with selected senior managers responsible for management 

of sustainability issues and review of selected evidence to support 

issues discussed. We were free to choose interviewees and interviewed 

those with overall responsibility to deliver the Company’s sustainability 

objectives;

• Site visits to City Office and five Retail Customer Centres: 

Bambalapitiya, Pettah, Kirullapone, Kotte and one Islamic banking 

operations to review processes and systems for preparing site level 

sustainability data and implementation of sustainability strategy. We 

were free to choose sites we visited;

• Review of supporting evidence for key claims and data in the Report;

• Review of the processes for gathering and consolidating the specified 

performance data and, for a sample, checking the data consolidation. 

The reported data on economic performance and other financial data 

are based on audited financial statements issued by the Company’s 

statutory auditors;

• An independent assessment of HNB’s reporting against the 

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 Guidelines and the reporting 

requirements for its ‘in accordance’ – Core option.

During the assurance process, we did not come across limitations to the 

scope of the agreed assurance engagement.

--------------------------------------------------------
[1] The VeriSustain protocol is available on www.dnvgl.com
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Opinion

On the basis of the verification undertaken, nothing came to our 

attention to suggest that the Report does not properly describe HNB’s 

adherence to the GRI G4 reporting requirements including the Principles 

for Defining Report Content, representation of the material Aspects, 

related strategies and Disclosures on Management Approach and 

Performance Indicators as below:

• General Standard Disclosures: The reported information on General 

Standard Disclosure generally meets the disclosure requirements for 

the ‘in accordance’ – Core option of reporting and the reasons for 

omissions and partial disclosure were explained to us and also brought 

out within the Report.

• Specific Standard Disclosures: The Report describes the generic 

Disclosures on Management Approach (DMA) and Performance 

Indicators for identified material Aspects presented within the Report 

as below:

o Economic Performance (EC1,2 3,4)

o Indirect Economic Impacts (EC7)

o Procurement practices (EC9)

o Product Portfolio (FS6,7,8)

o Product and Service Labelling (PR3,4, 5)

o Customer Privacy (PR8)

o Marketing Communications (PR6,7)

o Anti-Competitive Behaviour (SO7)

o Local community SO1, FS13,14

o Compliance (EN29, PR 9, SO8) 

o Grievance Mechanisms (LA16, HR12, SO11)

o Diversity and Equal Opportunity (LA12)

o Anti-Corruption (SO3,4,5)

o Employment (LA1)

o Occupational Health and Safety (LA6)

o Training and Education (LA9,10,11)

o Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining(HR4)

Observations 

Without affecting our assurance opinion we also provide the following 

observations. We have evaluated the Report’s adherence to the 

following principles on a scale of ‘Good’, ‘Acceptable’ and ‘Needs 

Improvement’:

Materiality

The process of determining the issues that is most relevant to an 

organization and its stakeholders.

The report discloses the outcome of the materiality assessment exercise 

carried by the Bank through an external consultant and validated 

by the management team; the process also considered inputs from 

diverse sources such as needs and concerns of external and internal 

stakeholders, media reports and impacts of material issues on 

stakeholder. In our opinion, the level at which the Report adheres to this 

principle is ‘Acceptable’.

Inclusivity

The participation of stakeholders in developing and achieving an 

accountable and strategic response to Sustainability. 

The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing and continuous 

process and involves key stakeholders including business partners, to 

identify and respond to significant sustainability concerns. In our opinion, 

the level at which the Report adheres to this principle is ‘Good’.

Responsiveness

The extent to which an organization responds to stakeholder issues. 

We consider the response to key stakeholder concerns are well disclosed 

within the Report i.e. disclosures include business model, policies, 

management systems and governance mechanisms etc.. In our opinion, 

the level at which the Report adheres to this principle is ‘Acceptable’.

Reliability

The accuracy and comparability of information presented in the report, 

as well as the quality of underlying data management systems.

The robustness of the data management and aggregation systems was 

evaluated, and the sample data and information verified as part of 

assurance was found to be reliable. Nothing has come to our attention 

to suggest that reported data has not been properly collated from 

information reported at operational level, nor that the assumptions used 

were inappropriate. Some of the data inaccuracies identified during 

the verification process were found to be attributable to transcription, 

interpretation and aggregation errors and the errors have been 

communicated for correction. In our opinion, the level at which the 

Report adheres to this principle is ‘Good’.
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Independent Assurance Statement

Specific Evaluation of the Information on Sustainability 

Performance

We consider the methodology and process for gathering information 

developed by Bank for its sustainability performance reporting to be 

appropriate, and the qualitative and quantitative data included in 

the Report was found to be identifiable and traceable; the personnel 

responsible were able to demonstrate the origin and interpretation of the 

data and its reliability. We observed that the Report presents a faithful 

description of the reported sustainability activities for the reporting 

period. 

Additional principles as per DNV GL VeriSustain

Completeness

How much of all the information that has been identified as material to 

the organisation and its stakeholders is reported. 

The Report has fairly reported the General and Specific Standard 

Disclosures including the management approach, monitoring systems 

and sustainability performance indicators against GRI G4 requirements 

for its ‘in accordance’ – Core option of reporting within its identified 

reporting boundary. In our opinion, the level at which the Report adheres 

to this principle is ‘Good’.

Neutrality

The extent to which a report provides a balanced account of an 

organization’s performance, delivered in a neutral tone. 

The disclosures related to sustainability issues, challenges and 

performances are reported in a neutral tone, in terms of content and 

presentation. In our opinion, the level at which the Report adheres to the 

principle of Neutrality is ‘Good’.

Opportunities for Improvement

The following is an excerpt from the observations and opportunities 

for improvement reported to the management of the Bank and are not 

considered for drawing our conclusions on the Report; however, they are 

generally consistent with the management’s objectives: 

• The Bank may, through a structured risk assessment establish short, 

medium and long term sustainability goals and targets for identified 

material Aspects and disclose the same in its future reports; 

• A systematic process of internal audit of data management systems 

may be established to further strengthen the reliability of reported 

sustainability performance. 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

DNV GL Business Assurance Lanka Private Limited is part of DNV GL – Business Assurance, a global provider of certification, verification, assessment and 

training services, helping customers to build sustainable business performance. www.dnvgl.com 

Rathika de Silva

Lead Verifier 

Country Head

DNV GL Business Assurance Lanka (Private) 

Limited, Colombo, Sri Lanka

Nandkumar Vadakepatth

Regional Sustainability Manager – Region India 

and Middle East

DNV GL Business Assurance India Private 

Limited, India.

Balasubramoniam Sivasubramaniam

Assurance Reviewer 

DNV GL Business Assurance India Private 

Limited, India.

23rd Feburary 2017,

Colombo, Sri Lanka.

For DNV GL
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GRI G4 Content Index

We report against the GRI G4 Sustainability Reporting Guidelines and the GRI Financial Services Sector Disclosures, supported by our internally 

developed policies and procedures. We continue to improve our application of the G4 guidelines and at this stage our report is prepared - In 

accordance - Core option of reporting for the identified material aspects.

Disclosures Disclosure Item Page Number External 
Assurance

STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS

G4-1 Statement of the MD/CEO 20 - 23 353, 354 - 356

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

G4-3 Name of the organisation Inner Back Cover 353, 354 - 356

G4-4 Primary brands, products, and services 74 353, 354 - 356

G4-5 Location of the organisation’s headquarters Inner Back Cover 353, 354 - 356

G4-6 Countries where organisation operates 69, 93 353, 354 - 356

G4-7 Nature of ownership and legal form Inner Back Cover 353, 354 - 356

G4-8 Markets served 69, 93 353, 354 - 356

G4-9 Scale of the organisation 15, 64 353, 354 - 356

G4-10 Employee profile 60, 64 353, 354 - 356

G4-11 Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements 62 353, 354 - 356

G4-12 Organisation’s supply chain 75 353, 354 - 356

G4-13 Significant changes during the year 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-14 Precautionary approach or principle 23 353, 354 - 356

G4-15 Externally developed charters, principles, or other initiatives to which the organisation 

subscribes or which it endorses

12 353, 354 - 356

G4-16 Memberships of associations 351 353, 354 - 356

IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AND BOUNDARIES

G4-17 Entities included in the organisation’s consolidated financial statements or equivalent documents 13 353, 354 - 356

G4-18 Define the report content and the aspect boundaries 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-19 Material aspects 39 - 40 353, 354 - 356

G4-20 Aspect boundary within the organisation 39 353, 354 - 356

G4-21 Aspect boundary outside the organisation 39 353, 354 - 356

G4-22 Effect of any restatements of information provided in previous reports 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-23 Significant changes from previous reporting periods in the scope and aspect boundaries 41 353, 354 - 356

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

G4-24 Stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation 41 - 47 353, 354 - 356

G4-25 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders 41 - 47 353, 354 - 356

G4-26 Organisation’s approach to stakeholder engagement 41 - 47 353, 354 - 356

G4-27 Key topics and concerns raised through stakeholder engagement 41 - 47 353, 354 - 356

REPORT PROFILE

G4-28 Reporting period 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-29 Date of most recent previous report 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-30 Reporting cycle 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-31 Contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents 12 353, 354 - 356

G4-32 The ‘in accordance’ option the organisation has chosen 12, 357 - 361 353, 354 - 356

G4-33 External assurance 12 353, 354 - 356
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Disclosures Disclosure Item Page Number External 
Assurance

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND COMPOSITION

G4-34 Governance structure of the organisation 103 353, 354 - 356

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

G4-56 Organisation’s values, principles, standards and norms of behaviour such as codes of conduct and codes 

of ethics

60, 104, 116, 

118, 140

353, 354 - 356

ECONOMIC

ASPECT: ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

G4-EC1 Direct economic value generated and distributed 352 353, 354 - 356

G4-EC2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities for the organisation’s activities due to climate change 85 353, 354 - 356

G4-EC3 Coverage of the organisation’s defined benefit plan obligations 306 - 311 353, 354 - 356

G4-EC4 Financial assistance received from government 322 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS

G4-EC7 Development and impact of infrastructure investments and services supported 78 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: PROCUREMENT PRACTICES

G4-EC9 Proportion of spending on local suppliers at significant locations of operation 75 353, 354 - 356

ENVIRONMENT

ASPECT: COMPLIANCE

G4-EN29 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance 

with environmental laws and regulations

352 353, 354 - 356

SOCIAL

LABOUR PRACTICES

ASPECT: EMPLOYMENT

G4-LA1 Total number and rates of new employee hires and employee turnover by age group, gender and region 60 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

G4-LA6 Type of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and total number 

of work-related fatalities, by region and by gender

65 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: TRAINING AND EDUCATION

G4-LA9 Average hours of training per year per employee by gender, and by employee category 63 353, 354 - 356

G4-LA10 Programmes for skills management and lifelong learning that support the continued employability of 

employees and assist them in managing career endings

63 353, 354 - 356

G4-LA11 Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews, by gender 

and by employee category

100% 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

G4-LA12 Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees per employee category according to 

gender, age group, minority group membership, and other indicators of diversity

60, 64 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: LABOUR PRACTICES GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS

G4-LA16 Number of grievances about labour practices filed, addressed, and resolved through formal grievance 

mechanisms

65 353, 354 - 356

HUMAN RIGHTS

ASPECT: FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

G4-HR4 Operations and suppliers identified in which the right to exercise freedom of association and collective 

bargaining may be violated or at significant risk, and measures taken to support these rights

62 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: HUMAN RIGHTS GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS

G4-HR12 Number of grievances about human rights impacts filed, addressed, and resolved through formal 

grievance mechanisms

352 353, 354 - 356

 Partially reported
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Disclosures Disclosure Item Page Number External 
Assurance

SOCIETY

ASPECT: LOCAL COMMUNITIES

G4-SO1 Percentage of operations with implemented local community engagement, impact assessments, and 

development programmes

72 - 78 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: ANTI-CORRUPTION

G4-SO3 Total number and percentage of operations assessed for risks related to corruption and the significant 

risks identified

170 - 173 353, 354 - 356

G4-SO4 Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures 63 353, 354 - 356

G4-SO5 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken 173 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOUR

G4-SO7 Total number of legal actions for anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust, and monopoly practices and 

their outcomes

352 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: COMPLIANCE

G4-SO8 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance 

with laws and regulations

352 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS FOR IMPACTS ON SOCIETY

G4-SO11 Number of grievances about impacts on society filed, addressed, and resolved through formal grievance 

mechanisms

352 353, 354 - 356

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

ASPECT: PRODUCT AND SERVICE LABELLING

G4-PR3 Type of product and service information required by the organisation’s procedures for product and 

service information and labelling, and percentage of significant product and service categories subject to 

such information requirements

75 353, 354 - 356

G4-PR4 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning product 

and service information and labelling, by type of outcomes

352 353, 354 - 356

G4-PR5 Results of surveys measuring customer satisfaction 73 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: MARKETING COMMUNICATIONS

G4-PR6 Sale of banned or disputed products 352 353, 354 - 356

G4-PR7 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning 

marketing communications, including advertising, promotion, and sponsorship, by type of outcomes

352 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: CUSTOMER PRIVACY

G4-PR8 Total number of substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy and losses of 

customer data

352 353, 354 - 356

ASPECT: COMPLIANCE

G4-PR9 Monetary value of significant fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning the 

provision and use of products and services

352 353, 354 - 356

FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTOR DISCLOSURES

FS6 Percentage of the portfolio for business lines by specific region, size (eg. Micro/SME/large) and by 

sector

82 - 101 354 - 356

FS7 Monetary value of products and services designed to deliver a specific social benefit for each business 

line broken down by purpose

82 - 101 354 - 356

FS8 Monetary value of products and services designed to deliver a specific environmental benefit for each 

business line broken down by purpose

82 - 101 354 - 356

FS13 Access points in low populated or economically disadvantaged areas by type 72, 90 354 - 356

FS14 Initiatives to improve access to financial services for disadvantaged people 76 - 77 354 - 356
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Additional Disclosures

In addition to the ‘in-accordance’- Core option of reporting requirements of GRI G4,  we have also disclosed additional disclosures with 

reference to General Standard Disclosers and Specific Standard Disclosures such as  governance covering setting of purpose, value and strategy; 

risk management; sustainability reporting and ethics and integrity etc. to ensure continuity of reported disclosures and for benefit of our 

stakeholders  as detailed below:

Disclosures Disclosure Item Page Number

STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS

G4-2 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities 48 - 53, 82 

- 100

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND COMPOSITION

G4-35 Process for delegating authority for economic, environmental and social topics from the highest governance body to senior 

executives and other employees

38

G4-36 Appointment of an executive-level position or positions with responsibility for economic, environmental and social topics, 

and whether post holders report directly to the highest governance body

38

G4-37 Processes for consultation between stakeholders and the highest governance body on economic, environmental and social 

topics

38, 40 - 47

G4-38 Report the composition of the highest governance body and its committees 26 - 29

G4-39 Whether the Chair of the highest governance body is also an executive officer 26

G4-40 The nomination and selection processes for the highest governance body and its committees, and the criteria used for 

nominating and selecting highest governance body members

109

G4-41 Processes for the highest governance body to ensure conflicts of interest are avoided and managed 114, 121

ROLE IN SETTING PURPOSE, VALUES, AND STRATEGY

G4-42 Highest governance body’s and senior executives’ roles in the development, approval, and updating of the organisation’s 

purpose, value or mission statements, strategies, policies, and goals related to economic, environmental and social impacts

103, 106

COMPETENCIES AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

G4-43 Measures taken to develop and enhance the highest governance body’s collective knowledge of economic, environmental 

and social topics

106

G4-44 Processes for evaluation of the highest governance body’s performance with respect to governance of economic, 

environmental and social topics. Report whether such evaluation is independent or not, and its frequency and whether 

such evaluation is a self-assessment

110 

ROLE IN RISK MANAGEMENT

G4-45 The highest governance body’s role in the identification and management of economic, environmental and social impacts, 

risks, and opportunities. Include the highest governance body’s role in the implementation of due diligence processes and 

whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the highest governance body’s identification and management of 

economic, environmental and social impacts, risks, and opportunities

38, 160 - 161

G4-46 The highest governance body’s role in reviewing the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management processes for 

economic, environmental and social topics

160 - 161, 171

G4-47 The frequency of the highest governance body’s review of economic, environmental and social impacts, risks, and 

opportunities

160 - 161, 171

ROLE IN SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

G4-48 The highest committee or position that formally reviews and approves the organisation’s sustainability report and ensures 

that all material Aspects are covered

COO

ROLE IN EVALUATING ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

G4-49 The process for communicating critical concerns to the highest governance body 38

G4-50 The nature and total number of critical concerns that were communicated to the highest governance body and the 

mechanism(s) used to address and resolve them

38, 40 - 47

REMUNERATION AND INCENTIVES

G4-51 The remuneration policies for the highest governance body and senior executives 111 - 112, 126

G4-52 The process for determining remuneration. 111 - 112, 126
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Disclosures Disclosure Item Page Number

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

G4-58 Internal and external mechanisms for reporting concerns about unethical or unlawful behaviour, and matters related to 

organisational integrity, such as escalation through line management, whistleblowing mechanisms or hotlines

104, 116, 126, 

138, 140, 171, 

188

ECONOMIC

ASPECT: INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS

G4-EC8 Significant indirect economic impacts, including the extent of impacts 72, 90

ENVIRONMENT

ASPECT: ENERGY

G4-EN3 Energy consumption within the organisation 79 - 80

G4-EN6 Reduction of energy consumption 79 - 80

ASPECT: EMISSIONS

G4-EN15 Direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 79 - 80

G4-EN16 Energy indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 79 - 80

G4-EN19 Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 79 - 80

ASPECT: SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

G4-EN32 Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria 80

ASPECT: ENVIRONMENTAL GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS

G4-EN34 Number of grievances about environmental impacts filed, addressed, and resolved through formal grievance mechanisms 352

SOCIAL

LABOUR PRACTICES

ASPECT: OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

G4-LA5 Percentage of total workforce represented in formal joint management–worker health and safety committees that help 

monitor and advise on occupational health and safety programmes

65

SOCIETY

ASPECT: LOCAL COMMUNITIES

G4-SO2 Operations with significant actual and potential negative impacts on local communities 352
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A

ACCEPTANCES

The signature on a Bill of Exchange 

indicates that the person on whom 

it is drawn accepts the conditions 

of the Bill. In other words a Bill of 

Exchange that has been accepted.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The specific principles, bases, 

conventions, rules and practices 

adopted by an entity in preparing 

and presenting financial 

statements.

ACCRUAL BASIS

Recognising the effects of 

transactions and other events when 

they occur without waiting for 

receipt or payment of cash or cash 

equivalent.

ACTUARIAL GAIN/LOSS

Gain or loss arising from the 

difference between estimates and 

actual experience in a company’s 

pension plan.

AMORTISATION

The systematic allocation of 

the depreciable amount of an 

intangible asset over its useful life.

AMORTISED COST

Amount at which the financial 

asset or financial liability is 

measured at initial recognition, 

minus principal repayments, plus or 

minus the cumulative amortisation 

using the effective interest method 

of any difference between that 

initial amount and the maturity 

amount and minus any reduction 

for impairment or un-collectability.

ASSOCIATE

An associate is an entity, including 

an unincorporated entity such 

as a partnership, over which the 

investor has significant influence 

and that is neither a subsidiary nor 

an interest in a joint venture.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL 
ASSETS

Available for sale financial assets 

are those non derivative financial 

assets that are designated as 

available for sale or are not 

classified as loans and receivables, 

held to maturity investments or 

financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss.

B

BILLS SENT FOR COLLECTION

A Bill of Exchange drawn by an 

exporter usually at a term, on an 

importer overseas and brought 

by the exporter to his Bank with a 

request to collect the proceeds.

BONUS ISSUE

The issue of new shares to existing 

shareholders in proportion to their 

shareholdings. It is a process for 

converting a company’s reserves (in 

whole or part) in to issued capital 

and hence does not involve an 

infusion of cash.

C

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The percentage of risk-adjusted 

assets supported by capital as 

defined under the framework 

of risk-based capital standards 

developed by the Bank for 

International Settlements (BIS) 

and as modified to suit local 

requirements by the Central Bank 

of Sri Lanka.

CAPITAL RESERVE

Capital reserves consist of 

revaluation reserves arising from 

revaluation of properties owned by 

the Bank.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents are short-term, 

highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash and which are 

subject to an insignificant risk of 

changes in value.

CASH GENERATING UNIT (CGU)

The smallest identifiable group of 

assets that generates cash inflows 

that are largely independent of the 

cash inflows from other assets or 

group of assets.

CEDED INSURANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS

An arrangement where an 

insurance company passes the part 

or all of its risks from its insurance 

policy portfolio to a reinsurance 

firm.

COLLECTIVELY ASSESSED LOAN 
IMPAIRMENT PROVISIONS

Also known as portfolio 

impairment provisions. Impairment 

assessment on a collective basis 

for homogeneous groups of loans 

that are not considered individually 

significant and to cover losses that 

has been incurred but has not yet 

been identified at the reporting 

date. Typically assets within the 

consumer banking business are 

assessed on a portfolio basis.

COMMERCIAL PAPER

An unsecured, short-term debt 

instrument issued by a corporation, 

typically for the financing of 

accounts receivable, inventories 

and meeting short-term liabilities. 

The debt is usually issued at a 

discount, reflecting prevailing 

market interest rates.

COMMITMENT TO EXTEND CREDIT

Credit facilities available to clients 

either in the form of loans, bankers’ 

acceptances and other on-balance 

sheet financing or through off 

-balance sheet products such as 

guarantees and letters of credit.

CONTINGENCIES

Conditions or situations at the 

reporting date, the financial effect 

of which are to be determined by 

the future events which may or 

may not occur.

CONTRACTUAL MATURITY

Contractual maturity refers to the 

final payment date of a loan or 

other financial instrument, at which 

point all the remaining outstanding 

principal will be repaid and interest 

is due to be paid.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The process by which corporate 

entities are governed. It is 

concerned with the way in which 

power is exercised over the 

management and direction of 

entity, the supervision of executive 

actions and accountability to 

owners and others.

CORRESPONDENT BANK

A Bank in a foreign country that 

offers banking facilities to the 

customers of a Bank in another 

country.

COST INCOME RATIO

Operating expenses excluding loan 

loss provision as a percentage of 

total operating income.

COST METHOD

Cost method is a method of 

accounting for an investment 

whereby the investment is 

recognised at cost. The investor 

recognises income from the 

investment only to the extent that 

the investor receives distributions 

from accumulated profits of the 

investee arising after the date of 

acquisition. Distributions received in 

excess of such profits are regarded 

as a recovery of investment and are 

recognised as a reduction of the 

cost of the investment.

COST-PUSH INFLATION

A continuous increase in average 

price levels due to an increase in 

production costs.

CREDIT RATINGS

An evaluation of a corporate’s 

ability to repay its obligations or 

likelihood of not defaulting, carried 

out by an independent rating 

agency.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial 

loss to the Bank if a customer 

or counter party to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations, and arises 

principally from the loans and 

advances to customers and other 

banks and investment in debt/ 

equity securities.

CURRENCY RISK

The risk that the fair value or future 

cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in 

foreign exchange rates.

CURRENCY SWAPS

The simultaneous purchase of an 

amount of a currency for spot 

settlement and the sale of the 
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same amount of same currency for 

forward settlement.

D

DEBT RESTRUCTURING / 
RESCHEDULING

This is when the terms and 

provisions of outstanding debt 

agreements are changed. This is 

often done in order to improve 

cash flow and the ability of the 

borrower to repay the debt. It can 

involve altering the repayment 

schedule as well as debt or interest 

charge reduction.

DEFERRED TAX

Sum set aside in the financial 

statements for taxation that may 

become payable in a financial year 

other than the current financial 

year.

DELINQUENCY

A debt or other financial obligation 

is considered to be in a state of 

delinquency when payments are 

overdue. Loans and advances are 

considered to be delinquent when 

consecutive payments are missed. 

Also known as ‘Arrears’.

DERECOGNITION

Removal of a previously recognised 

financial asset or financial liability 

from an entity’s Statement of 

Financial Position.

DERIVATIVES

A derivative is a financial 

instrument or other contract, the 

value of which changes in response 

to some underlying variable (eg. 

an interest rate), that has an initial 

net investment smaller than would 

be required for other instruments 

that have a similar response to the 

variable, and that will be settled at 

a future date.

DEPRECIATION

The systematic allocation of the 

depreciable amount of an asset 

over its useful life.

DIVIDEND COVER

Profit after tax divided by gross 

dividends. This ratio measures 

the number of times dividend 

is covered by the current year’s 

distributable profits.

DIVIDEND YIELD

Dividend earned per share as a 

percentage of its market value.

DOCUMENTARY LETTERS OF 
CREDIT (L/Cs)

Written undertakings by a Bank on 

behalf of its customers, authorising 

a third party to draw on the Bank 

up to a stipulated amount under 

specific terms and conditions. 

Such undertakings are established 

for the purpose of facilitating 

international trade.

E

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Profit attributable to ordinary 

shareholders, divided by the 

number of ordinary shares in issue.

ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED (EVA)

A measure of productivity which 

takes into consideration cost of 

total invested equity.

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE

Rate that exactly discounts 

estimated future cash payments 

or receipts through the expected 

life of the financial instruments or 

when appropriate a shorter period 

to the net carrying amount of the 

financial asset or financial liability.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

Income tax expense for the year 

divided by the profit before tax.

EQUITY INSTRUMENT

Equity instrument is any contract 

that evidences a residual interest 

in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities.

EQUITY METHOD

The equity method is a method of 

accounting whereby the investment 

is initially recognised at cost and 

adjusted thereafter for the post-

acquisition changes in the investor’s 

share of net assets of the investee. 

The profit or loss of the investor 

includes the investor’s share of the 

profit or loss of the investee.

EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

An embedded derivative is a 

component of a hybrid (combined) 

instrument that also includes a 

non-derivative host contract with 

the effect that some of the cash 

flows of the combined instrument 

vary in a way similar to a stand-

alone derivative.

ESOP (EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION 
PLAN)

A method of giving employees 

shares in the business for which 

they work.

EX-DIVIDEND DATE

A classification of trading shares 

when a declared dividend belongs 

to the seller rather than the buyer. 

A stock will be given ex-dividend 

status if a person has been 

confirmed by the company to 

receive the dividend payment. The 

date on or after which a security 

is traded without a previously 

declared dividend or distribution.

F

FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the amount for which 

an asset could be exchanged 

between a knowledgeable, willing 

buyer and a knowledgeable, willing 

seller in an arm’s length transaction.

FINANCE LEASE

A lease in which the lessee acquires 

all the financial benefits and risks 

attaching to ownership of the asset 

under lease.

FINANCIAL ASSET OR FINANCIAL 
LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE 
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial asset or financial liability 

that is held for trading or upon 

initial recognition designated by 

the entity as ‘at fair value through 

profit or loss’.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Financial Instrument is any contract 

that gives rise to a financial asset of 

one entity and a financial liability or 

equity instrument of another entity.

FINANCIAL RISK

The risk of a possible future change 

in one or more of a specified 

interest rate, financial instrument 

price, commodity price, foreign 

exchange rate, index of prices or 

rates or credit rating or credit index 

or other variable provided in the 

case of a non financial variable that 

the variable is not specific to the 

party to the contract.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE INCOME

The gain recorded when assets or 

liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated into Sri 

Lankan Rupees on the reporting 

date at prevailing rates which 

differ from those rates in force 

at inception or on the previous 

reporting date. Foreign exchange 

income also arises from trading in 

foreign currencies.

FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACT

Agreement between two parties to 

exchange one currency for another 

at a future date at a rate agreed 

upon today.

G

GOODWILL

An asset representing the 

future economic benefits arising 

from other assets acquired in a 

business combination that are 

not individually identified and 

separately recognized.

GROSS DIVIDENDS

The portion of profit inclusive 

of tax withheld distributed to 

shareholders.

GROUP

A group is a parent and all its 

subsidiaries.

GUARANTEES

Primarily represent irrevocable 

assurances that a bank will make 

payments in the event that its 

customer cannot meet his / her 

financial obligations to third parties. 

Certain other guarantees represent 

non-financial undertakings such as 

bid and performance bonds.

H

HEDGING

A strategy under which transactions 

are effected with the aim of 

providing cover against the risk 

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
Reports

Supplementary 
Information



364
Hatton National Bank PLC
Annual Report 2016

of unfavourable price movements 

(interest rate, foreign exchange 

rate, commodity prices, etc.).

HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Non derivative financial assets with 

fixed or determinable payments 

and fixed maturity that an entity 

has the positive intention and 

ability to hold to maturity.

I

IMPAIRED LOANS

Loans where the Group does 

not expect to collect all the 

contractual cash flows or expects 

to collect them later than they are 

contractually due.

IMPAIRMENT

This occurs when recoverable 

amount of an asset is less than its 

carrying amount.

IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

Impairment allowances are 

provisions held on the Statement of 

Financial Position as a result of the 

raising of a charge against profit for 

the incurred loss. An impairment 

allowance may either be identified 

or unidentified and individual 

(specific) or collective (portfolio) 

respectively.

INCREMENTAL COST

Costs that would not have been 

incurred if the entity had not 

acquired, issued or disposed of the 

financial instrument.

INCURRED BUT NOT ENOUGH 
REPORTED (IBNER)

The reserves for claims that become 

due with the occurrence of the 

events covered under the insurance 

policy, but have not been reported 

yet.

INCURRED BUT NOT REPORTED 
(IBNR)

An estimate of the liability for 

claim-generating events that have 

taken place but have not yet been 

reported to the insurer or self-

insurer.

INDIVIDUALLY SIGNIFICANT 
LOANS

Exposures which are above a 

certain threshold decided by the 

Bank’s management which should 

be assessed for objective evidence, 

measurement, and recognition of 

impairment on an individual basis.

INDIVIDUALLY SIGNIFICANT LOAN 
IMPAIRMENT PROVISIONS

Also known as specific impairment 

provisions. Impairment is measured 

individually for assets that are 

individually significant to the 

Group. Typically assets within the 

corporate banking business of the 

Group are assessed individually.

IRREVOCABLE COMMITMENT

A loan amount that may be drawn 

down, or is due to be contractually 

funded in the future.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

An identifiable non-monetary asset 

without physical substance held 

for use in the production / supply 

of goods / services or for rental 

to others or for administrative 

purposes.

INTEREST MARGIN

Net interest income as a percentage 

of average interest earning assets.

INTEREST RATE SWAP

An agreement between two parties 

(known as counterparties) where 

one stream of future interest 

payments is exchanged for another 

based on a specified principal 

amount.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The risk that the fair value or future 

cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates.

INTEREST SPREAD

This represents the difference 

between the average interest rate 

earned and the average interest 

rate paid on funds.

INSURANCE RISK

Risk, other than financial risk, 

transferred from the holder of a 

contract to the issuer.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment property is property 

(land or a building - or part of a 

building - or both) held (by the 

owner or by the lessee under a 

finance lease) 

to earn rentals or for capital 

appreciation or both, rather than 

for use or sale.

INTEREST COVER

A ratio showing the number of 

times interest charges is covered by 

earnings before interest and tax.

J

JOINT CONTROL

Joint control is the contractually 

agreed sharing of the control over 

an economic activity and exists 

only when the strategic financial 

and operating decisions relating to 

the activity require the unanimous 

consent of the parties sharing 

control.

JOINT VENTURE

A joint venture is a contractual 

arrangement whereby two or more 

parties undertake an economic 

activity that is subject to joint 

control.

K

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key management personnel are 

those persons having authority and 

responsibility for planning, directing 

and controlling the activities of the 

entity, directly or indirectly.

L

LETTER OF CREDIT (L/C)

Written undertakings by a Bank on 

behalf of its customer (typically an 

importer), authorising a third party 

(e.g. an exporter) to draw drafts 

on the Bank up to a stipulated 

amount under specific terms and 

conditions. Such undertakings 

are established for the purpose of 

facilitating international trade.

LIABILITY ADEQUACY TEST (LAT)

Assessment on each reporting date 

whether the recognized insurance 

liabilities are adequate, using 

current estimates of future cash 

flows under the insurance contract.

LIQUID ASSETS

Assets that are held in cash or in 

a form that can be converted to 

cash readily, such as deposits with 

other Banks, Bills of Exchange and 

Treasury Bills.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The risk that an entity will 

encounter difficulty in meeting 

obligations associated with financial 

liabilities.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Non derivative financial assets with 

fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active 

market other than those intends 

to sell immediately or in the near 

term and designated as fair value 

through profit or loss or available 

for sale on initial recognition.

LOSS GIVEN DEFAULT (LGD)

LGD is the percentage of an 

exposure that a lender expects 

to loose in the event of obligor 

default.

M

MARKET CAPITALISATION

Number of ordinary shares in issue 

multiplied by the market value of 

each share at the year end.

MARKET RISK

This refers to the possibility of loss 

arising from changes in the value 

of a financial instrument as a result 

of changes in market variables such 

as interest rates, exchange rates, 

credit spreads and other asset 

prices.

MATERIALITY

The relative significance of a 

transaction or an event, the 

omission or misstatement of which 

could influence the decisions of 

users of financial statements.

N

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Shareholders’ funds divided by the 

number of ordinary shares in issue.

NET-INTEREST INCOME

The difference between what a 

Bank earns on assets such as loans 
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and securities and what it pays on 

liabilities such as deposits, refinance 

funds and inter-bank borrowings.

NON CONTROLLING INTEREST

Equity in a subsidiary not 

attributable, directly or indirectly to 

a parent.

NET PREMIUM METHOD

A Net Premium Valuation is an 

actuarial calculation, used to place 

a value on the liabilities of a life 

insurer.

O

OFF BALANCE SHEET 
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions that are not 

recognised as assets or liabilities in 

the Statement of Financial Position, 

but which give rise to contingencies 

and commitments.

ONEROUS CONTRACT

A type of contract where the costs 

involved with fulfilling the terms 

and conditions of the contract 

are higher than the amount of 

economic benefit received.

OPERATIONAL RISK

This refers to the risk of loss 

resulting from inadequate or failed 

internal processes, people and 

systems, or from external events.

P

PARENT

A parent is an entity that has one 

or more subsidiaries.

PAST DUE

A financial asset is past due when 

a counterparty has failed to make a 

payment when contractually due.

PRICE EARNINGS RATIO (P/E 
RATIO)

Market price of an ordinary share 

divided by earnings per share (EPS).

PROBABILITY OF DEFAULT (PD)

PD is an internal estimate for each 

borrower grade of the likelihood 

that an obligor will default on an 

obligation.

PRUDENCE

Inclusion of a degree of caution in 

the exercise of judgement needed 

in making the estimates required 

under conditions of uncertainty, 

such that assets or income are 

not overstated and liabilities or 

expenses are not understated.

R

REGULAR WAY TRADES

A type of trade that is settled 

through the regular settlement 

cycle required for the particular 

investment being traded. The 

settlement cycle is the time that the 

regulations of the securities market 

allows for the buyer to complete 

payment and for the seller to 

deliver the goods being purchased.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

This is a contract to sell and 

subsequently repurchase 

government securities at a given 

price on a specified future date.

RETURN ON AVERAGE ASSETS 
(ROAA)

Profit after tax expressed as a 

percentage of average total 

assets, used along with ROE, as a 

measure of profitability and as a 

basis of intra-industry performance 

comparison.

RETURN ON AVERAGE EQUITY 
(ROAE)

Profit after tax less preferred share 

dividends if any, expressed as a 

percentage of average ordinary 

shareholders’ equity.

REVENUE RESERVE

Reserves set aside for future 

distribution and investment.

REVERSE REPURCHASE 
AGREEMENT

Transaction involving the purchase 

of government securities by a Bank 

or dealer and resale back to the 

seller at a given price on a specific 

future date.

RIGHTS ISSUE

Issue of shares to the existing 

shareholders at an agreed price, 

generally lower than market price.

RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS

Used in the calculation of risk-

based capital ratios. The face 

amount of lower risk assets is 

discounted using risk weighting 

factors in order to reflect a 

comparable risk per rupee among 

all types of assets. The risk inherent 

in off –balance sheet instruments 

is also recognised, first by adjusting 

notional values to balance sheet 

(or credit) equivalents and then by 

applying appropriate risk weighting 

factors.

S

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting indicates the 

contribution to the revenue derived 

from business segments such 

as banking operations, leasing 

operations, stock broking and 

securities dealings, property and 

insurance.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Shareholders’ funds consist of 

stated capital, statutory reserves, 

capital and revenue reserves.

SPECIFIC IMPAIRMENT PROVISIONS

Impairment is measured individually 

for loans that are individually 

significant to the Bank.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUND

Reserve created as per the 

provisions of the Banking Act No. 

30 of 1988.

SUBSIDIARY

A subsidiary is an entity, including 

an unincorporated entity such as 

a partnership, that is controlled 

by another entity (known as the 

parent).

SUBSTANCE OVER FORM

The consideration that the 

accounting treatment and the 

presentation in financial statements 

of transactions and events should 

be governed by their substance and 

financial reality and not merely by 

legal form.

T

TIER I CAPITAL

Consists of the sum total of paid 

up ordinary shares, non cumulative, 

non redeemable preference shares, 

share premium, statutory reserve 

fund, published retained profits, 

general and other reserves, less 

goodwill.

TIER II CAPITAL

Consists of the sum total of 

revaluation reserves, general 

provisions, hybrid capital 

instruments and approved 

subordinated debentures.

TOTAL CAPITAL

Total capital is the sum of Tier I 

capital and Tier II capital.

TRANSACTION COSTS

Incremental costs that is directly 

attributable to the acquisition, issue 

or disposal of a financial asset or 

financial liability.

U

UNEARNED PREMIUM RESERVE

The premium corresponding to 

the time period remaining on an 

insurance policy.

UNIT TRUST

An undertaking formed to invest 

in securities under the terms of a 

trust deed.

V

VALUE ADDED

Value added is the wealth created 

by providing banking services less 

the cost of providing such services. 

The value added is allocated among 

the employees, the providers of 

capital, to government by way of 

taxes and retained for expansion 

and growth.

Y

YIELD TO MATURITY

Discount rate which the present 

value of future cash flows would 

equal the security’s current price.
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Branch Network

Central Province – 25

Kandy - 14

 » Akurana 

 » Digana

 » Galaha

 » Gampola

 » Gelioya

 » Kandy

 » Kandy City Centre 

(Extension Office)

 » Katugastota

 » Kundasale 

 » Kurunduwatte

 » Nawalapitiya 

 » Peradeniya 

 » Pilimathalawa 

 » Rikillagaskada

Matale - 03

 » Dambulla 

 » Galewela 

 » Matale

Nuwara Eliya - 08

 » Bogawanthalawa

 » Ginigathhena 

 » Hatton

 » Maskeliya

 » Nuwara Eliya

 » Pussellawa

 » Ragala 

 » Thalawakele

North Central Province - 10

Anuradhapura - 07

 » Anuradhapura

 » Anuradhapura Metro 

 » Kekirawa 

 » Medawachchiya

 » Nochchiyagama

 » Padavi Parakramapura

 » Thambuttegama

Polonnaruwa - 03

 » Aralaganwila 

 » Medirigiriya

 » Polonnaruwa

Eastern Province - 25

Ampara - 11

 » Akkaraipattu 

 » Ampara 

 » Dehiattakandiya 

 » Kalmunai

 » Karaithivu 

 » Ninthavur 

 » Pottuvil 

 » Samanthurai 

 » Thandavenvely 

 » Thirukkovil 

 » Uhana

Batticaloa - 05

 » Batticaloa

 » Eravur

 » Valachchenai 

 » Kaluwanchikudy 

 » Kattankudy

Trincomalee - 09

 » Kantale

 » Kinniya 

 » Marathamunai 

 » Mullipathana 

 » Muttur 

 » Trinco Metro 

 » Serunuwara 

 » Trincomalee 

 » Uppuveli

Northern Province - 22

Jaffna - 13

 » Atchchuveli 

 » Chankanai 

 » Chavakachcheri 

 » Chunnakam 

 » Jaffna

 » Jaffna Metro 

 » Kaithady 

 » Kodikamam 

 » Manipay 

 » Nelliady 

 » Point Pedro 

 » Thirunelvely 

 » Velanai

Kilinochchi - 02

 » Kilinochchi North

 » Kilinochchi South

Mannar - 03

 » Mannar 

 » Mallavi 

 » Nanattan

Mullaitivu - 02

 » Mullaitivu 

 » Mulliyawalai

Vavuniya - 02

 » Kurumankadu 

 » Vavuniya

Southern Province - 25

Galle - 09

 » Ambalangoda 

 » Batapola 

 » Elpitiya

 » Galle 

 » Hikkaduwa 

 » Karapitiya 

 » Koggala 

 » Pitigala 

 » Yakkalamulla

Hambantota - 8

 » Ambalantota

 » Angunakolapelessa 

 » Hambantota 

 » Middeniya 

 » Sooriyawewa 

 » Tangalle 

 » Tissamaharama 

 » Walasmulla

Matara - 08

 » Akuressa 

 » Deniyaya 

 » Devinuwara 

 » Dickwella 

 » Hakmana 

 » Matara 

 » Urubokka 

 » Weligama

Sabaragamuwa Province - 11

Kegalle - 04

 » Mawanella 

 » Kegalle 

 » Pinnawala 

 » Warakapola

Ratnapura - 07

 » Balangoda 

 » Embilipitiya 

 » Godakawela 

 » Kahawatta 

 » Kalawana 

 » Pelmadulla 

 » Ratnapura

Uva Province - 12

Badulla - 06

 » Badulla 

 » Bandarawela 

 » Haputale 

 » Mahiyanganaya 

 » Passara 

 » Welimada

Monaragala - 06

 » Buttala

 » Bibile 

 » Kataragama 

 » Monaragala

 » Siyambalanduwa 

 » Wellawaya

North Western Province - 18

Kurunegala - 09

 » Alawwa 

 » Galgamuwa 

 » Giriulla

 » Hettipola 

 » Kuliyapitiya 

 » Kurunegala 

 » Kurunegala Metro 

 » Nikaweratiya 

 » Wariyapola

Puttalam - 09

 » Anamaduwa 

 » Chilaw 

 » Dankotuwa 

 » Madampe 

 » Marawila 

 » Norochchole 

 » Puttalam 

 » Udappuwa

 » Wennappuwa
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Western Province - 103

Colombo - 65

 » Aluthkade 

 » Athurugiriya 

 » Avissawella 

 » Bambalapitiya 

 » Boralesgamuwa 

 » Borella

 » Cinnamon Gardens 

 » City Office 

 » Dehiwela 

 » Dematagoda 

 » Grandpass

 » Greenpath 

 » Hanwella

 » Head Office Branch

 » Homagama

 » Hulftsdorp

 » International Water 

Management Institute (Pay 

Office) 

 » Jampettah

 » Sri Jayawardenapura Hospital 

(Pay Office)

 » Kaduwela

 » Kelaniya

 » Kiribathgoda

 » Kirulapone

 » Kohuwela

 » Kollupitiya

 » Kolonnawa

 » Kotahena

 » Kottawa

 » Kotte

 » Maharagama

 » Pettah Metro 

 » Malabe

 » Maligawatte 

 » Maradana 

 » Mirihana 

 » Moratumulla 

 » Moratuwa 

 » Mount Lavinia

 » Mutwal

 » Narahenpita

 » Nawala 

 » Nawaloka (Pay Office) 

 » Nawam Mawatha

 » Nugegoda

 » Overseas School of Colombo 

(Pay Office) 

 » Padukka

 » Pamankada

 » Panchikawatte

 » Peliyagoda 

 » Pettah

 » Piliyandala

 » Ratmalana

 » Sea Street

 » SLPA (Pay Office)

 » Thalangama

 » Thalawathugoda

 » Asiri Central Hospital (Pay 

Office) 

 » Thimbirigasyaya

 » Wellawatte

 » Wijerama

 » World Trade Centre

 » Orian City (Pay Office)

 » Pension Department (Pay 

Office)

 » Lotus Road (Pay Office)

 » Lanka Hospital PLC (Pay 

Office)

Gampaha - 29

 » Airport Departure Counter 

(Pay Office) 

 » Biyagama

 » Delgoda

 » Divulapitiya

 » Ekala 

 » Gampaha 

 » Ganemulla 

 » Hendala

 » Ja-Ela

 » Kadawatha 

 » Kandana 

 » Katunayake 

 » Kirindiwela 

 » Kochchikade

 » Marandagahamula

 » Minuwangoda

 » Mirigama

 » Negombo

 » Negombo Metro

 » Nittambuwa 

 » Pamunugama 

 » Pugoda 

 » Ragama

 » Seeduwa

 » Sri Lankan Airlines (Pay 

Office) 

 » Veyangoda

 » Wattala

 » Weliweriya

 » Yakkala

Kalutara - 09

 » Aluthgama 

 » Bandaragama 

 » Beruwala 

 » Horana 

 » Ingiriya 

 » Kalutara 

 » Mathugama 

 » Panadura 

 » Wadduwa

Overview Management 
Discussion & 
Analysis

Governance 
Reports

Financial 
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Supplementary 
Information
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Forty Eighth (48th) Annual General Meeting of Hatton National Bank PLC (the “Bank”) is convened on Thursday, 

the Thirtieth (30th) day of March 2017 at the Auditorium on Level 22 of “HNB Towers” at No. 479, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, at 10.00 

in the forenoon when the following business will be transacted:

i. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board of Directors along with the Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 31st 

December 2016 and the Auditor’s Report thereon.

ii. To declare a final dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors and to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:

Ordinary Resolution - Declaration of Dividend and approval of its method of satisfaction 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 

(a) THAT a final dividend of Rupees Seven (Rs 7/-) per share constituting a total sum of Rs 2,896,708,318/- be paid on the issued and fully paid 

ordinary (voting) and (non-voting) shares of the Bank for the financial year ended 31st December 2016 based on the issued ordinary voting 

shares and ordinary non-voting shares as at February 23, 2017, subject to any necessary revision being made to such amount to be distributed 

in order to include and accommodate the dividends pertaining to any new shares to be issued by the Bank to its employees under the Hatton 

National Bank PLC ESOP scheme;

(b) THAT such dividend be paid out of exempt dividends received (if any), dividends received on which Withholding Tax has already been paid by 

the paying companies (if any), and the balance out of the profits of the Bank, which balance would be liable to a Withholding Tax of ten per 

centum (10%).

(c) THAT the shareholders entitled to such dividend would be those shareholders (holders of both ordinary voting shares and ordinary non-voting 

shares), whose names have been duly registered in the Register of Shareholders and those shareholders whose names appear on the Central 

Depository Systems (Pvt) Ltd (‘CDS’) as at end of trading on the date on which the requisite resolution of the Shareholders in regard to the 

final dividend is passed (‘entitled Shareholders’);

(d) THAT the said final dividend of Rs 7/- per share be distributed and satisfied partly by the payment of cash and partly by the allotment and 

issue of new ordinary voting shares and ordinary non-voting shares (the “distribution scheme”) based on the share prices of ordinary voting 

shares and ordinary non-voting shares as at February 23, 2017 in the following manner, subject however to any necessary revision being made 

to the amount of dividends to be distributed and the number of shares to be issued, (i) in order to include and accommodate the dividends 

pertaining to any new shares that may be issued by the Bank to its employees under the Hatton National Bank PLC ESOP scheme and / or 

(ii) pursuant to  any changes to the applicable law:

(i) By way of a cash distribution 

  A cash distribution of (A) a sum of Rs 1,157,648,737/- be made to the holders of ordinary voting shares and (B) a sum of Rs 290,705,422/- 

be made to the holders of ordinary non-voting shares respectively, on the basis of Rupees Three and Cents Fifty (Rs 3.50/- ) per each share 

(less Withholding Tax) 

(ii) By way of the allotment of and issue of new shares 

A. For voting shares:

THAT a sum of Rs 1,157,648,737/- (less any Withholding Tax) be distributed to the holders of ordinary voting shares in the form of a scrip dividend 

at the rate of Rupees Three and Cents Fifty  (Rs 3.50/-) per each share, by the issue of a total of 4,510,319 ordinary voting shares computed on the 

basis of one (1) ordinary voting share for every 73.3333333 ordinary voting shares currently in issue (which computation is based on a valuation 

of Rs. 231/- per each ordinary voting share). 

B. For non-voting shares

THAT a sum of Rs 290,705,422/- (less any Withholding Tax) be distributed to the holders of ordinary non-voting shares in the form of a scrip 

dividend at the rate of Rupees Three and Cents Fifty  (Rs 3.50/-) per each share, by the issue of 1,308,174 ordinary non-voting shares computed 

on the basis of one (1) ordinary non-voting share for every 63.4920635 non-voting shares currently in issue (which computation is based on a 

valuation of Rs 200/- per each ordinary non-voting share). 

(e) THAT the shares arising from the aggregation of the residual fractions consequent to the scrip dividend be disposed of in the market by a 

trustee to be nominated by the Board of Directors and the proceeds to be distributed to a charitable organization.

(f) THAT (a) the new ordinary voting shares to be issued in pursuance of the distribution scheme shall, immediately consequent to the allotment 

thereof to the entitled Shareholders rank equal and pari passu in all respects with the existing issued and fully paid ordinary voting shares of 

the Bank and (b) the new ordinary non-voting shares to be issued in pursuance of the distribution scheme shall, immediately consequent to 
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the allotment thereof to the entitled Shareholders rank equal and pari passu in all respects with the existing issued and fully paid ordinary 

non- voting shares of the Bank, and shall be listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange. 

(g) THAT the new ordinary voting shares and ordinary non-voting shares to be so allotted and issued shall not be eligible for the payment of 

dividend declared hereby.

(h) THAT accordingly the Bank’s management be and is hereby authorized to take all necessary steps to give effect to the aforesaid proposed issue 

of new ordinary voting shares and ordinary non-voting shares of the Bank. 

Special Resolution – Approval of the holders of voting shares under section 99 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007,

for the issue of shares by scrip dividend

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT the issue by the Bank of (a)  4,510,319 ordinary voting shares to the holders of ordinary voting shares on the basis 

of one (1) ordinary voting share for every 73.3333333 ordinary voting shares currently in issue and (b) 1,308,174 ordinary non-voting shares to 

the holders of ordinary non-voting shares on the basis of one (1) ordinary non-voting share for every 63.4920635 ordinary non-voting shares 

currently in issue, by way of a scrip dividend [subject to any necessary revision being made to the number of shares to be so issued (i) to include 

and accommodate any dividends pertaining to any new shares to be issued by the Bank to its employees under the Hatton National Bank PLC ESOP 

scheme and / or (ii) pursuant to any changes to the applicable law], be and is hereby approved. 

iii. To re-elect Ms Sanjivani Jayawardena, who retires at the Annual General Meeting, as a Director of the Bank in terms of Article 34 of the 

Articles of Association of the Bank.

iv. To re-elect Mr Rusi Captain, who retires at the Annual General Meeting, as a Director of the Bank in terms of Article 34 of the Articles of 

Association of the Bank.

v. To re-elect Mr. Amal Cabraal, who retires at the Annual General Meeting, as a Director of the Bank in terms of Article 34 of the Articles of 

Association of the Bank.

vi. To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young (Chartered Accountants) as the Bank’s Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to fix 

their remuneration.

vii. To authorize the Directors to determine payments for the year 2017 for charitable and other purposes.

By order of the Board of Hatton National Bank PLC,

K A L Thushari Ranaweera (Mrs)

Deputy General Manager (Legal) /Board Secretary

Colombo, Sri Lanka.

23rd February 2017

Notes :

1. A member entitled to attend or attend and vote at the meeting, is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend or attend and vote as the case may 

be, in his stead.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The Form of Proxy is enclosed.

3. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited with the Board Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company at No. 479, T.B. Jayah 

Mawatha, Colombo 10 (at “HNB Towers”, Level 18), not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.
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Summary of Article 22 of the Articles of Association of Hatton National Bank PLC

PROCEDURE ON VOTING AND HOW A POLL IS TO BE TAKEN

• Voting at a meeting of shareholders shall, unless a poll is demanded, be by a show of hands, or voting by voice as may be determined by the 

Chairman.

• Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, on a show of hands or voting by voice as 

aforesaid every member who is present at the meeting shall have one (01) vote, and on a poll every member who is present in person at the 

meeting shall be entitled to one (01) vote for each voting share held by him.

• A declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution is carried by the requisite majority is conclusive evidence of that fact, unless a 

poll is demanded.

• At a meeting of shareholders, a poll may be demanded on a particular question as provided for in the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 by,

- the Chairman;

- not less than five (5) shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting; or

- a shareholder or shareholders representing not less than ten per centum (10%) of the total voting rights of all shareholders having the 

right to vote at the meeting.

• A poll may be demanded either before or after the vote is taken on a resolution. A demand for a poll may be withdrawn any time before the 

poll is taken.

• If a poll is taken, votes shall be counted according to the votes attached to the shares of each shareholder present and voting.

• In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the Chairman of the meeting shall be entitled to a second or 

casting vote.

• A declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution has been carried, or carried unanimously or by a particular majority, or lost, 

and an entry made to that effect in the minute book, shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of 

the votes recorded for or against such a resolution.

Notice of Meeting
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Form of Proxy [Voting]

I/We ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................ of .....................................................................................

.............................................................................................................. being *a member/members of the Hatton National Bank PLC, hereby 

appoint.................................................................................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................... of .........................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................. or failing him/her, Rienzie Anicetus Fernando Arseculeratne or failing him, 

Antonio Jonathan Alles or failing him, Mirihana Arachchige Rose Chandralatha Cooray or failing her, Lokuwithanage Rohan Karunaratne or failing 

him, Lintotage Udaya Damien Fernando or failing him, Don Tiburtius Sujeewa Handapangoda Mudalige or failing him, Don Sanjivani Clarinda 

Jayawardena or failing her, Rusi Sohli Captain or failing him, Damian Amal Cabraal or failing him, Palitha Srideva Chulakumara Pelpola or failing 

him, Eugen Duliksha Pratharp Soosaipillai or failing him, Appu Hennadige Don Anthony Nilanth de Silva as *my/our proxy, to represent *me/us at 

the Forty Eighth (48th) Annual General Meeting of the Bank to be held at the Auditorium on Level 22 of  “HNB Towers” at  No. 479, T B Jayah 

Mawatha, Colombo 10, on the Thirtieth (30th) day of March, 2017 at 10.00 in the forenoon and at any adjournment thereof.

(i) To declare the recommended dividend of Rs 7/- per share as the final dividend for 2016 and

(a) to adopt Ordinary Resolution - Declaration of Dividend and approval of its method of satisfaction In favour o

Against o

(b) to adopt Special Resolution – Approval of the holders of voting shares under section 99 of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, for the issue of shares by way of scrip dividend

In favour o

Against o

(ii) To re-elect Ms Sanjivani Jayawardena as a Director of the Bank
In favour o

Against o

(iii) To re-elect Mr Rusi Captain as a Director of the Bank 
In favour o

Against o

(iv) To re-elect Mr. Amal Cabraal as a Director of the Bank
In favour o

Against o

(v)
To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young (Chartered Accountants) as the Bank’s Auditors for the ensuing year/

authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration

In favour o

Against o

(vi) To authorize the Directors to determine payments for charitable and other purposes
In favour o

Against o

Mark your preference with “ü”

Signed this .................................................................... day ..................................... 2017.

Signature/s ..........................................................................................................................

  ..........................................................................................................................

  ..........................................................................................................................
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Form of Proxy [Voting]

Please provide the following details:

Shareholder’s NIC No / Company Registration No. : .....................................................................................................................................

Folio No / Number of Shares held.  : .....................................................................................................................................

Proxy holder’s NIC No (if not a Director)  : .....................................................................................................................................

* Delete inappropriate words

Instructions to complete proxy

1. The full name and the registered address of the shareholder appointing the Proxy should be legibly entered in the Form of Proxy, duly signed 

and dated.

2. The completed Proxy should be deposited with the Board Secretary, at the Registered Office of the Bank at No. 479, T B Jayah Mawatha, 

Colombo 10 (“HNB Towers”, Level 18), not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

3. The Proxy shall -

(a) in the case of an individual, be signed by the shareholder or by his attorney, and if signed by an attorney, a notarially certified copy of the 

Power of Attorney should be attached to the completed Proxy if it has not already been registered with the Bank.

(b) in the case of a company or corporate body, either be under its Common Seal or signed by its attorney or by an officer on behalf of the 

Company or corporate body in accordance with the Articles of Association or the Constitution of that Company or corporate body.  

 The Bank may but shall not be bound to, require evidence of the authority of any such attorney or officer.

(c) in the case of joint-holders, the first joint-holder has the power to sign the proxy without the concurrence of the other joint-holder/s.

4. Every alteration or addition to the Proxy must be duly authenticated by the full signature of the shareholder signing the Proxy. Such signature 

should as far as possible be placed in proximity to the alteration or addition intended to be authenticated.
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Form of Proxy [Non-Voting]

I/We ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................ of ............................................................................................

.................................................................................................................................. being *a member/members of the Hatton National Bank 

PLC, hereby appoint..............................................................................................................................................................................................

.................................................................................................................. of ......................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................ or failing him/her, Rienzie Anicetus Fernando Arseculeratne 

or failing him, Antonio Jonathan Alles or failing him, Mirihana Arachchige Rose Chandralatha Cooray or failing her, Lokuwithanage Rohan 

Karunaratne or failing him, Lintotage Udaya Damien Fernando or failing him, Don Tiburtius Sujeewa Handapangoda Mudalige or failing him, Don 

Sanjivani Clarinda Jayawardena or failing her, Rusi Sohli Captain or failing him, Damian Amal Cabraal or failing him, Palitha Srideva Chulakumara 

Pelpola or failing him, Eugen Duliksha Pratharp Soosaipillai or failing him, Appu Hennadige Don Anthony Nilanth de Silva as *my/our proxy, to 

represent *me/us at the Forty Eighth (48th) Annual General Meeting of the Bank to be held at the Auditorium on Level 22 of  “HNB Towers” at  

No. 479, T B Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, on the Thirtieth (30th) day of March, 2017 at 10.00 in the forenoon and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this .................................................................... day ..................................... 2017.

Signature/s ..........................................................................................................................

  ..........................................................................................................................

  ..........................................................................................................................

Please provide the following details:

Shareholder’s NIC No / Company Registration No. : .....................................................................................................................................

Folio No / Number of Shares held.  : .....................................................................................................................................

Proxy holder’s NIC No (if not a Director)  : .....................................................................................................................................

Note - See reverse hereof for instructions to complete the proxy.   

* Delete inappropriate words
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Instructions to complete proxy

1. The full name and the registered address of the shareholder appointing the Proxy should be legibly entered in the Form of Proxy, duly signed 

and dated.

2. The completed Proxy should be deposited with the Board Secretary, at the Registered Office of the Bank at No. 479, T B Jayah Mawatha, 

Colombo 10 (“HNB Towers”, Level 18), not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

3. The Proxy shall -

(a) in the case of an individual, be signed by the shareholder or by his attorney, and if signed by an attorney, a notarially certified copy of the 

Power of Attorney should be attached to the completed Proxy if it has not already been registered with the Bank.

(b) in the case of a company or corporate body, either be under its Common Seal or signed by its attorney or by an officer on behalf of the 

Company or corporate body in accordance with the Articles of Association or the Constitution of that Company or corporate body.  

 The Bank may but shall not be bound to, require evidence of the authority of any such attorney or officer.

(c) in the case of joint-holders, the first joint-holder has the power to sign the proxy without the concurrence of the other joint-holder/s.

4. Every alteration or addition to the Proxy must be duly authenticated by the full signature of the shareholder signing the Proxy.  Such signature 

should as far as possible be placed in proximity to the alteration or addition intended to be authenticated.

Form of Proxy [Non-Voting]
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Investor Feedback Form

To request information or submit a comment / query to the Company, please complete the following and return this page to -

Chief Strategy Officer, 

Hatton National Bank PLC, 

No. 479, T.B. Jayah Mawatha (Darley Road) Colombo 10. 

Sri Lanka 

Email : rajive.dissanayake@hnb.lk 

Name ........................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................

Permanent Mailing Address ........................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................

Contact Numbers (Tel)

Country Code Area Code Number

(Fax)

Country Code Area Code Number

E-mail ........................................................................................................................................

Name of Company

(If Applicable)

........................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................

Designation

(If Applicable)

........................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................

Company Address

(If Applicable)

........................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................

Queries / Comments 

Please tick “ ” the appropriate box 

 Yes No

Would you like to receive soft copies of the HNB annual and interim reports via e-mail?  

Would you like to receive news and press releases of HNB via e-mail?  

Would you like to receive any information on our products / services?  





NAME OF COMPANY

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC

LEGAL FORM

A public limited Company incorporated on 5th 

March 1970 under the Laws of the Republic 

of Sri Lanka. The Company was re-registered 

under the Companies Act No 7 of 2007 

on 27th September 2007. It is a Licensed 

Commercial Bank under the Banking Act.

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER

PQ 82 (Previous PBS 613)

ACCOUNTING YEAR END

31st December 

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING 

The ordinary shares and the unsecured 

subordinated redeemable debentures of 

the Bank are listed on the Colombo Stock 

Exchange in Sri Lanka. 

REGISTERED OFFICE

“HNB Towers”

No. 479, T B Jayah Mawatha (Darley Road),

P O Box 837, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.

HEAD OFFICE

“HNB Towers”, 

No. 479, T B Jayah Mawatha (Darley Road),

P O Box 837, 

Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.

Cable Address : HATNABANK

Telephone Nos : +94 11 2664664

 : +94 112662772

 : +94 11 4764764

Fax No : +94 112662832

Swift : Bic Code - HBLILKLX

e - mail : moreinfo@hnb.net

Web : www.hnb.net

CREDIT RATINGS 

The Bank has been assigned a national long 

term rating of  AA-(lka) by Fitch Ratings 

Lanka Limited and a Foreign Currency Issuer 

rating of B1 by Moody’s Investors Service.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr Rienzie Arseculeratne (Chairman)

Mr Jonathan Alles (Managing Director / CEO)

Ms M A R C Cooray

Dr L R Karunaratne

Mr L U D Fernando

Mr Sujeewa Mudalige

Ms D S C Jayawardena

Mr R S Captain

Mr Amal Cabraal

Mr Palitha Pelpola

Mr D Soosaipillai

Mr Nilanth de Silva

BOARD SECRETARY

Ms K A L Thushari Ranaweera

Attorney-at-Law, LL.M (Cambridge),

Dip in Int’l Affairs (BCIS) 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr Sujeewa Mudalige (Chairman)

Dr L R Karunaratne

Mr Amal Cabraal

Mr Nilanth de Silva

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr Rienzie Arseculeratne (Chairman)

Ms M A R C Cooray 

Mr R S Captain

Mr Palitha Pelpola

HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr Rienzie Arseculeratne (Chairman)

Mr L U D Fernando

Mr Sujeewa Mudalige 

Mr Amal Cabraal 

BOARD INTEGRATED RISK 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Ms M A R C Cooray (Chairperson)

Mr L U D Fernando

Ms D S C Jayawardena

Mr D Soosaipillai

Mr Jonathan Alles - Managing Director/CEO

Mr Damith Pallewatte - Chief Risk Officer 

Ms Mohini Seneviratne - Head of  Compliance

JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

Acuity Partners (Pvt) Ltd  50%

(Financial Services)

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

HNB Assurance PLC 60%

(Insurance Services)

Sithma Development (Pvt) Ltd 100%

(Property Development)

HNB Grameen Finance Limited 51%

(Financial Services)

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Chartered Accountants

201, De Saram Place

Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Institutional Investors, Stockbrokers 

and Security Analysts requiring financial 

information should contact the Chief 

Strategy Officer

“HNB Towers”, Level 16, 

No. 479, T B Jayah Mawatha (Darley Road),

Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.

Telephone : +94 11 2661555

Fax : +94 11 2662815

e-mail : rajive.dissanayake@hnb.lk
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Digital Plates & Printing by Softwave Printing & Packaging (Pvt) Ltd
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